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Part I. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements
CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
UNAUDITED
Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2022 2023 2022
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Net sales and other operating revenues 968 $ 1,149 $ 2,966 $ 3,209
Cost of sales 745 914 2,352 2,544
Gross profit 223 235 614 665
Selling and administrative expenses 58 51 184 196
Research and technical expenses 15 14 43 41
Loss on sale of business and asset impairment charge (Note D) — 2 3 206
Gain on bargain purchase of a business (Note C) = = = (24)
Income (loss) from operations 150 168 384 246
Interest and dividend income 7 — 22 7
Interest expense (24) (15) (69) (38)
Other income (expense) (3) (1) (13) (9)
Income (loss) before income taxes
and equity in earnings of affiliated companies 130 152 324 206
(Provision) benefit for income taxes (41) (49) (90) (73)
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, net of tax 1 3 4 7
Net income (loss) 90 106 238 140
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests, net
of tax 8 9 27 25
Net income (loss) attributable to Cabot Corporation 82 $ 97 $ 211 $ 115
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 56.1 56.3 56.2 56.5
Diluted 56.5 56.8 56.7 56.9
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic 1.44 $ 1.70 $ 3.68 $ 2.00
Diluted 1.43 $ 1.69 $ 3.65 $ 1.99

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

UNAUDITED
Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Net income (loss) $ 90 $ 106 $ 238 $ 140
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (20) (102) 117 (84)
Derivatives: net investment hedges
(Gains) losses reclassified to interest expense, net of tax (1) (1) (4) (4)
(Gains) losses excluded from effectiveness testing and amortized
to interest expense, net of tax — — 1 1
Pension and other postretirement benefit liability adjustments, net of tax — — (1) 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of $—, $ —, $— and ($1) (21) (103) 113 (85)
Comprehensive income (loss) 69 3 351 55
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests, net
of tax 8 9 27 25
Foreign currency translation adjustment attributable to
noncontrolling interests, net of tax (6) (9) 3 (6)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 2 - 30 19
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Cabot Corporation $ 67 $ 3 $ 321 $ 36

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
UNAUDITED
June 30, 2023 September 30, 2022
(In millions)

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 220 $ 206
Accounts and notes receivable, net of reserve for doubtful

accounts of $2 and $3 688 836

Inventories:
Raw materials 152 182
Work in process 1 —
Finished goods 370 427
Other 69 55
Total inventories 592 664
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 102 114
Total current assets 1,602 1,820
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,364 1,270
Goodwill 136 129
Equity affiliates 19 20
Intangible assets, net 63 63
Deferred income taxes 36 45
Other assets 167 178
Total assets $ 3,387 $ 3,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5



Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Contingencies (Note G)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock:

CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
UNAUDITED

Authorized: 2,000,000 shares of $1 par value, Issued and Outstanding: None and none

Common stock:

Authorized: 200,000,000 shares of $1 par value, Issued: 56,072,816 and 56,385,963 shares,

Outstanding: 55,936,984 and 56,248,559 shares

Less cost of 135,832 and 137,404 shares of common treasury stock

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total Cabot Corporation stockholders' equity

Noncontrolling interests

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

June 30, 2023

September 30, 2022

(In millions, except share
and per share amounts)

136 347
568 707
27 44
7 7
738 1,105
1,093 1,089
60 65
230 234
56 56

(3) (4)
= 1
1,407 1,284

(329) (439)
1,131 898
135 134
1,266 1,032
3,387 3,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

6



Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss)

CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

UNAUDITED

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Loss on sale of business and asset impairment charge
Gain on sale of land
Gain on bargain purchase of a business
Deferred tax provision (benefit)
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Share-based compensation
Other non-cash (income) expense
Cash dividends received from equity affiliates
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Other liabilities
Cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of land
Proceeds from sale of business
Cash paid for acquisition of business, net of cash acquired of $— and $5
Proceeds from insurance settlements
Other
Cash provided (used) by investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance (repayments) of commercial paper, net
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs
Repayments of long-term debt
Purchases of common stock
Proceeds from sales of common stock
Cash dividends paid to noncontrolling interests
Cash dividends paid to common stockholders
Cash provided (used) by financing activities
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash classified within Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Nine Months Ended June 30

2023 2022
(In millions)

$ 238 $ 140

107 111

3 206

(1) (17)

= (24)

(1) (39)

(4) (7)

15 17

2 15

2 1

173 (286)

100 (231)

17 (35)

(177) 127

(18) 18

1 (1)

457 (5)

(166) (121)

7 18

6 79

= (9)

12 1

2 1

(139) (31)

24 26

(48) =

(188) 193

79 394

(88) (357)

(48) (48)

4 6

(41) (22)

(65) (63)

(371) 129

67 (49)

14 44

206 170

$ 220 $ 214

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

(In millions)

$ 220 $ 208

— 6

$ 220 $ 214

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

UNAUDITED
Total Cabot
Accumulate Corporatio
d Other n Total
Common Stock, Net of Additional Comprehen Stockholde Noncontroll Stockholder
Treasury Stock Paid-in Retained sive rs’ ing s’
Income
Shares Cost Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
(In millions, except share amounts)

Balance at September 30, 2022 56,249 $ 52 $ 1 $ 1,284 $ (439) $ 898 $ 134 $ 1,032
Net income (loss) 54 54 12 66
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 81 81 6 87
Cash dividends paid:

Common stock, $0.37 per share (21) (21) (21)
Cash dividends declared to noncontrolling
interests (2) (2)
Issuance of stock under equity compensation
plans 309 1 2 3 3
Share-based compensation 11 11 11
Purchase and retirement of common stock (242) = (14) (3) (17) (17)
Balance at December 31, 2022 56,316 $ 53 § - % 1314 ¢ (358) $ 1,009 $ 150 ¢ 1,159
Net income (loss) 75 75 7 82
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 44 44 3 47
Cash dividends paid:

Common stock, $0.37 per share (21) (21) (21)
Cash dividends declared to noncontrolling
interests — (27) (27)
Issuance of stock under equity compensation
plans 29 — 1 1 1
Share-based compensation 7 7
Purchase and retirement of common stock (199) — (8) (8) (16) (16)
Balance at March 31, 2023 56,146 $ 53 $ = $ 1,360 $ (314) $ 1,099 $ 133 $ 1,232
Net income (loss) 82 82 8 90
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (15) (15) (6) (21)
Cash dividends paid:

Common stock, $0.40 per share (23) (23) (23)
Cash dividends declared to noncontrolling
interests — — —
Issuance of stock under equity compensation
plans 4 — — — —
Share-based compensation 3 3 3
Purchase and retirement of common stock (213) — (3) (12) (15) (15)
Balance at June 30, 2023 55,937 ¢ 53 — ¢ 1,407 ¢ (329) $ 1,131 $ 135 $ 1,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CABOT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

UNAUDITED
Total Cabot
Accumulate Corporatio
d Other n Total
Common Stock, Net of Additional Comprehen Stockholde Noncontroll Stockholder
Treasury Stock Paid-in Retained sive rs’ ing s’
Income
Shares Cost Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
(In millions, except share amounts)

Balance at September 30, 2021 56,727 $ 53 $ 24 $ 1,159 $ (289) $ 947 $ 143 $ 1,090
Net income (loss) (89) (89) 9 (80)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (30) (30) 2 (28)
Cash dividends paid:

Common stock, $0.37 per share (21) (21) (21)
Issuance of stock under equity compensation
plans 202 — — — —
Share-based compensation 6 6 6
Purchase and retirement of common stock (349) - (19) - (19) (19)
Balance at December 31, 2021 56,580 $ 53 $ 11 $ 1,049 $ (319) $ 794 $ 154 % 948
Net income (loss) 107 107 7 114
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 45 45 1 46
Cash dividends paid:

Common stock, $0.37 per share (21) (21) (21)
Cash dividends declared to noncontrolling
interests — (14) (14)
Issuance of stock under equity compensation
plans 72 — 3 3 3
Share-based compensation 5 5 5
Purchase and retirement of common stock (221) — (15) (15) (15)
Balance at March 31, 2022 56,431 ¢ 53 $ 4 $ 1,135 $ (274) $ 918 % 148 ¢ 1,066
Net income (loss) 97 97 9 106
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (94) (94) (9) (103)
Cash dividends paid:

Common stock, $0.37 per share (21) (21) (21)
Cash dividends declared to noncontrolling
interests = =
Issuance of stock under equity compensation
plans 66 — 3 3 3
Share-based compensation 6 6 6
Purchase and retirement of common stock (198) — (13) (1) (14) (14)
Balance at June 30, 2022 56,299 ¢ 53 $ — $ 1210 $ (368) $ 895 ¢ 148 ¢ 1,043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

9



CABOT CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023
UNAUDITED

A. Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting policies generally accepted in the United States (“U.S.”)
and include the accounts of Cabot Corporation (“Cabot” or the “Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and majority-owned and controlled U.S.
and non-U.S. subsidiaries. Additionally, Cabot considers consolidation of entities over which control is achieved through means other than voting rights.
Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Form 10-Q and consequently do not
include all disclosures required by Form 10-K. Additional information may be obtained by referring to Cabot’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for its fiscal
year ended September 30, 2022 (“2022 10-K”).

The financial information submitted herewith is unaudited and reflects all adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to
provide a fair statement of the results for the interim periods ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. The
results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the fiscal year.

B. Significant Accounting Policies
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2022, the U.S. government enacted the Inflation Reduction Act ("IRA") which, among other things, provides for a 1% excise tax on stock
repurchases. The IRA was effective January 1, 2023. The Company'’s application of the statute did not have a material effect on its Consolidated Financial
Statements, or its share repurchase program.

In November 2022, the FASB issued a new standard on the disclosure of supplier financing programs. The new standard requires qualitative and
guantitative disclosure as to the nature and potential magnitude of such programs in addition to program activity and changes for the periods presented.
The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022 and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the
timing of adoption and the impact of the adoption of this standard on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

C. Acquisition
Tokai Carbon (Tianjin) Co.

In February 2022, the Company purchased 100% of the registered capital of Tokai Carbon (Tianjin) Co., a carbon black manufacturing facility, from
Tokai Carbon Group for a net purchase price of $9 million, consisting of cash consideration of $14 million, including customary post-closing adjustments,
and net of $5 million of cash acquired.

The excess of the fair value of the net assets over the purchase price was recorded as a gain of $24 million for the three months ended March 31,
2022. The Gain on bargain purchase of a business arose primarily due to equipment upgrades required after the purchase to continue to utilize the
existing assets.
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D. Divestitures

Sale of Purification Solutions Business

In March 2022, the Company completed the sale of its Purification Solutions business, a reporting segment of the Company, to an affiliate of funds
advised by One Equity Partners for total cash proceeds of $85 million, net of $7 million cash transferred. The Company recognized a pre-tax impairment
charge of $197 million during the first quarter of fiscal 2022 and a pre-tax loss on sale of the Purification Solutions business of $10 million during fiscal
2022. The purchase price of the Purification Solutions business was subject to customary post-closing adjustments, which were finalized during the first

quarter of fiscal 2023 and resulted in an additional pre-tax loss on sale of $3 million.

E. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of goodwill attributable to each reportable segment and the changes in those balances during the nine months ended June

30, 2023 are as follows:

Reinforcement Performance
Materials Chemicals Total
(In millions)
Balance at September 30, 2022 $ 46 $ 83 $ 129
Foreign currency impact 6 1 $ 7
Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 52 % 84 3 136
The following table provides information regarding the Company’s intangible assets:
June 30, 2023 September 30, 2022
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Intangible Carrying Accumulated Intangible
Value Amortization Assets Value Amortization Assets
(In millions)
Intangible assets with finite lives
Developed technologies $ 34 ¢ (9) $ 25 ¢ 34 ¢ (8) $ 26
Trademarks 2 (1) $ 1 2 (1) 1
Customer relationships 67 (30) 3 37 59 (23) 36
Total intangible assets $ 103§ (40) 3 63 % 95 % (32) 3 63

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range between ten and twenty-five years, with a weighted average
amortization period of approximately seventeen years. Amortization expense for each of the three months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $1 million.
Amortization expense was $4 million and $5 million for the nine months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Amortization expense is included in
Cost of sales, Selling and administrative expenses and Research and technical expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Total amortization

expense is estimated to be approximately $6 million each year for the next five fiscal years.

11



F. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (“AOCI”)

Comprehensive income combines net income (loss) and other comprehensive income items, which are reported as components of stockholders’
equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Changes in each component of AOCI, net of tax, were as follows:

Pension and Other

Currency Postretirement
Translation Benefit Liability
Adjustment Adjustments Total
(In millions)

Balance at September 30, 2022, attributable to Cabot Corporation $ (429) ¢ (10) ¢ (439)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 88 — 88
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (1) — (1)
Less: Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to

noncontrolling interests 6 — 6
Balance at December 31, 2022, attributable to Cabot Corporation (348) (10) (358)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 49 — 49
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (1) (1) (2)
Less: Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to

noncontrolling interests 3 — 3
Balance at March 31, 2023, attributable to Cabot Corporation $ (303) ¢ (11) s (314)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (20) 1 (19)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (1) (1) (2)
Less: Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to

noncontrolling interests (6) - (6)
Balance at June 30, 2023, attributable to Cabot Corporation $ (318) % (11) s (329)

The amounts reclassified out of AOCI and into the Consolidated Statements of Operations in each of the three and nine months ended June 30,
2023 and 2022 were are follows:

Affected Line Item in the Consolidated Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
Statements of Operations 2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)

Derivatives: net investment hedges

(Gains) losses reclassified to interest Interest expense

expense $ (1) 3 (1) s 4) 3 (4)

(Gains) losses excluded from effectiveness  Interest expense

testing and amortized to interest expense — — 1 1
Release of currency translation adjustment Loss on sale of business and asset

impairment charge — — — 33

Pension and other postretirement

Release of actuarial losses and prior Loss on sale of business and asset

service cost (credit) impairment charge — — — 1

Amortization of actuarial losses and prior ~ Other income (expense)

service cost (credit) (1) 1 (2) 1
Total before tax $ (2) 3 - $ (5) % 32
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G. Contingencies
Respirator Liabilities

Cabot has exposure in connection with a safety respiratory products business that a subsidiary acquired from American Optical Corporation (“AO”)
in an April 1990 asset purchase transaction. The subsidiary manufactured respirators under the AO brand and disposed of that business in July 1995. In
connection with its acquisition of the business, the subsidiary agreed, in certain circumstances, to assume a portion of AO’s liabilities, including costs of
legal fees together with amounts paid in settlements and judgments, allocable to AO respiratory products used prior to the 1990 purchase by the Cabot
subsidiary. In exchange for the subsidiary’s assumption of certain of AO’s respirator liabilities, AO agreed to provide to the subsidiary the benefits of: (i)
AQ’s insurance coverage for the period prior to the 1990 acquisition and (ii) a former owner’s indemnity of AO holding it harmless from any liability
allocable to AO respiratory products used prior to May 1982. As more fully described in the 2022 10-K, the respirator liabilities generally involve claims for
personal injury, including asbestosis, silicosis and coal worker’s pneumoconiosis, allegedly resulting from the use of respirators that are alleged to have
been negligently designed and/or labeled. At no time did this respiratory product line represent a significant portion of the respirator market. In addition
to Cabot’s subsidiary, other parties are responsible for significant portions of the costs of these respirator liabilities (as defined in the 2022 10-K, the
“Payor Group”). On July 26, 2022, one of the members of the Payor Group, Aearo Technologies (“Aearo”), voluntarily filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy
protection with the stated goal of establishing a trust, funded by Aearo and its parent 3M, to satisfy respirator and other unrelated claims determined to
be entitled to compensation. On June 9, 2023, the court dismissed Aearo’s bankruptcy case based on motions filed by various creditors in the case. Aearo
appealed the decision but did not seek to stay the dismissal, which made the dismissal effective immediately and ended the automatic bankruptcy stay. The
Company will continue to monitor Aearo’s appeal; if Aearo's appeal is successful it could reinstate the bankruptcy case.

Cabot has a reserve to cover its expected share of liabilities for pending and future respirator liability claims, which is included in Other liabilities
and Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company expects these liabilities to be incurred over a number of
years. The reserve balance was $38 million and $39 million at June 30, 2023 and September 30, 2022, respectively.

The Company'’s current estimate of the cost of its share of pending and future respirator liability claims is based on facts and circumstances existing
at this time, including the number and nature of the remaining claims. Developments that could affect the Company’s estimate include, but are not
limited to, (i) significant changes in the number of future claims, (ii) changes in the rate of dismissals without payment of pending claims, (iii) significant
changes in the average cost of resolving claims, including potential settlements of groups of claims, (iv) significant changes in the legal costs of defending
these claims, (v) changes in the nature of claims received or changes in our assessment of the viability of these claims, (vi) trial and appellate outcomes,
(vii) changes in the law and procedure applicable to these claims, (viii) the financial viability of the parties that contribute to the payment of respirator
claims and future developments in the now-dismissed Aearo bankruptcy proceedings while Aearo’s appeal is ongoing, (ix) exhaustion or changes in the
recoverability of the insurance coverage maintained by certain members of the Payor Group, or a change in the availability of the indemnity provided by a
former owner of AO, (x) changes in the allocation of costs among the various parties paying legal and settlement costs, and (xi) a determination that the
assumptions that were used to estimate Cabot’s share of liability are no longer reasonable. The Company cannot determine the impact of these potential
developments on its current estimate of its share of liability for existing and future claims. Because reserves are limited to amounts that are probable and
estimable as of a relevant measurement date, and there is inherent difficulty in projecting the impact of potential developments on Cabot’s share of
liability for these existing and future claims, it is reasonably possible that the liabilities for existing and future claims could change in the near term and
that change could be material.

Value-added Tax (“VAT”) Matter

As outlined in Note S, Commitments and Contingencies of the 2022 10-K, the Company had filed legal actions challenging VAT related assessments
it had received from a non-U.S. taxing authority. At such time, the Company did not believe that it was probable that it would incur a loss related to these
matters. However, as the interpretation and application of the VAT rules related to the assessment are an unsettled issue it was reasonably possible to
incur a loss. The Company estimated it could incur a charge that ranged between a nil amount and $41 million. In June 2023, the Court of Justice of the
European Union issued a judgement that is favorable to the Company’s position in these matters. As a result, the Company believes the possibility it will
incur a loss related to these matters is remote.
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Other Matters

The Company has various other lawsuits, claims and contingent liabilities arising in the ordinary course of its business and with respect to its
divested businesses. The Company does not believe that any of these matters will have a material adverse effect on its financial position; however,
litigation is inherently unpredictable. Cabot could incur judgments, enter into settlements or revise its expectations regarding the outcome of certain
matters, and such developments could have a material impact on its results of operations in the period in which the amounts are accrued or its cash flows
in the period in which the amounts are paid.

H. Insurance Recoveries
Pepinster, Belgium

In July 2021, the Company’s Specialty Compounds manufacturing and research and development facility in Pepinster, Belgium experienced
significant flooding. Full production, which was temporarily halted, resumed in the second quarter of fiscal 2022.

The Company agreed to a final settlement of the related insurance claim in the second quarter of fiscal 2023 and received the final proceeds in the
third quarter of fiscal 2023. During the three months and nine months ended June 30, 2023 the Company received $8 million and $14 million of insurance
proceeds, respectively. Of the insurance proceeds received, $12 million related to fixed asset replacement and repairs is included in Cash provided by
investing activities and $2 million is included in Cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended June 30, 2023 in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. During the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023, the Company recognized gains of nil and $9 million and loss recoveries
of $4 million and $5 million, respectively, which are included within Cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During the three and nine months ended June 30, 2022, the Company recorded additional expenses of $1 million and $7 million, respectively, for
clean-up costs, inventory, and fixed asset impairments and simultaneously recognized a fully offsetting loss recovery from expected insurance proceeds as
the Company expected insurance proceeds in excess of the total incurred costs and policy deductibles. The flood-related expenses and loss recoveries are
both included within Cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2022.

I. Income Tax
Effective Tax Rate
Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(Dollars in millions)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes $ (41) 3 (49) 3 (90) $ (73)
Effective tax rate 32% 32% 28% 35%

For the three months and nine months ended June 30, 2023, the (Provision) benefit for income taxes included a net discrete tax expense of $2
million and $3 million, respectively. For the three and nine months ended June 30, 2022, the (Provision) benefit for income taxes included a net discrete
tax expense of $14 million and a net discrete tax benefit of $22 million, respectively, after valuation allowance. The $22 million net benefit is primarily
comprised of a benefit of $36 million related to the Purification Solutions business divestiture, and a tax expense of $8 million related to withholding tax
accruals on historic earnings due to changes in indefinite reinvestment assertions on certain entities.

Income tax in Interim Periods

The Company records its tax provision or benefit on an interim basis using an estimated annual effective tax rate. This rate is applied to the current
period ordinary income or loss to determine the income tax provision or benefit allocated to the interim period. The income tax effects of unusual or
infrequent items are excluded from the estimated annual effective tax rate and are recognized in the impacted interim period. Losses from jurisdictions
for which no benefit can be recognized are excluded from the overall computations of the estimated annual effective tax rate and a separate estimated
annual effective tax rate is computed and applied to ordinary income or loss in the loss jurisdiction.

Valuation allowances are provided against the future tax benefits that arise from the deferred tax assets in jurisdictions for which it is expected
that no benefit can be recognized. The estimated annual effective tax rate may be significantly impacted by nondeductible expenses and the Company’s
projected earnings mix by tax jurisdiction. Adjustments to the estimated annual effective income tax rate are recognized in the period when such
estimates are revised.
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Uncertainties

Cabot and certain subsidiaries are under audit in a number of jurisdictions. In addition, certain statutes of limitations are scheduled to expire in the
near future. It is reasonably possible that a change in the unrecognized tax benefits may also occur within the next twelve months related to the
settlement of one or more of these audits or the lapse of applicable statutes of limitations. However, an estimated range of the impact on the
unrecognized tax benefits cannot be quantified at this time.

Cabot files U.S. federal and state and non-U.S. income tax returns in jurisdictions with varying statutes of limitations. The 2020 through 2022 tax
years generally remain subject to examination by the IRS and various tax years from 2013 through 2022 remain subject to examination by the respective
state tax authorities. In foreign jurisdictions, various tax years from 2005 through 2022 remain subject to examination by their respective tax authorities.

During the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023, Cabot released uncertain tax positions of a nil amount and $1 million, respectively, due to
the expiration of statutes of limitations in various jurisdictions. During the three and nine months ended June 30, 2022, Cabot released uncertain tax
positions of a nil amount and $2 million, respectively, due to the expiration of statutes of limitations in various jurisdictions.

15



J. Earnings Per Share

The following tables summarize the components of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share (“EPS”) computations:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions, except per share amounts)
Basic EPS:
Net income (loss) attributable to Cabot
Corporation $ 82 $ 97 $ 211 $ 115
Less: Dividends and dividend equivalents
to participating securities — — 1 1
Less: Undistributed earnings allocated to
participating securities' 1 1 3 1
Earnings (loss) allocated to common
shareholders (numerator) $ 81 ¢ 96 3 207 ¢ 113

Weighted average common shares and

participating securities outstanding 57.3 57.2 57.5 57.4
Less: Participating securities™ 1.2 0.9 1.3 0.9
Adjusted weighted average common
shares (denominator) 56.1 56.3 56.2 56.5
Earnings (loss) per common share - basic: $ 1.44 $ 1.70 $ 3.68 $ 2.00
Diluted EPS:
Earnings (loss) allocated to common
shareholders $ 81 $ 96 $ 207 $ 113
Plus: Earnings allocated to
participating securities 1 1 4 2
Less: Adjusted earnings allocated to
participating securities? 1 1 4 2

Earnings (loss) allocated to common
shareholders (numerator) $ 81 $ 96 $ 207 $ 113

Adjusted weighted average common

shares outstanding 56.1 56.3 56.2 56.5
Effect of dilutive securities:
Common shares issuable® 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4
Adjusted weighted average common
shares (denominator) 56.5 56.8 56.7 56.9
Earnings (loss) per common share - diluted: $ 1.43 $ 1.69 $ 3.65 $ 1.99
@ Participating securities consist of shares underlying unvested time-based restricted stock units (the "TSUs"), earned and unvested performance-

based restricted stock units (the "PSUs", and referred to in this note collectively with the TSUs as the "RSUs"), stock units accounted for under the
Supplemental 401(k) Plan portion of the Company’s Deferred Compensation and Supplemental Retirement Plan, and stock units and phantom
stock units accounted for under the Company’s Non-Employee Directors’ Deferral Plan. The holders of RSUs are entitled to receive dividend
equivalents, payable in cash, to the extent dividends are paid on the outstanding shares of Common Stock, and equal in value to the dividends that
would have been paid in respect of the Common Stock underlying the RSU. The accounts of holders of stock units and phantom stock units are
credited with dividend equivalents, which are payable, in stock or cash, as the case may be, with the distribution of account balances.

16



Undistributed earnings are the earnings which remain after dividends declared during the period are assumed to be distributed to the common
and participating shareholders. Undistributed earnings are allocated to common and participating shareholders on the same basis as dividend
distributions. The calculation of undistributed earnings is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Calculation of undistributed earnings (loss):
Net income (loss) attributable to Cabot Corporation $ 82 % 97 3 211 % 115
Less: Dividends declared on common stock 23 21 64 63
Less: Dividends declared on participating
securities - — 1 1
Undistributed earnings (loss) $ 59 $ 76 % 146 3 51
Allocation of undistributed earnings (loss):
Undistributed earnings (loss) allocated to
common shareholders $ 58 ¢ 75 % 143 $ 50
Undistributed earnings allocated to
participating shareholders 1 1 3 1
Undistributed earnings (loss) $ 59 % 76 % 146 ¢ 51
@ Undistributed earnings are adjusted for the assumed distribution of dividends to the dilutive securities, which are described in (3) below, and then
reallocated to participating securities.
@) Represents incremental shares of common stock from the assumed exercise of stock options issued under Cabot’s equity incentive plans. For the

three and nine months ended June 30, 2023, 156,550 and 133,039 incremental shares of common stock were excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share because the inclusion of these shares would have been antidilutive. For the three and nine months ended June 30,
2022, 169,425 and 204,796 incremental shares of common stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the
inclusion of these shares would have been antidilutive.

K. Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements

The FASB authoritative guidance on fair value measurements defines fair value, provides a framework for measuring fair value, and requires certain
disclosures about fair value measurements. The required disclosures focus on the inputs used to measure fair value. The guidance establishes the
following hierarchy for categorizing these inputs:

Level 1 —  Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  Significant other observable inputs (e.g., quoted prices for similar items in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar items in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable such as interest rate and yield curves, and market-
corroborated inputs)

Level 3 —  Significant unobservable inputs

There were no transfers of financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value between Level 1 and Level 2 and there were no Level 3 investments
during the first nine months of either fiscal 2023 or 2022.

At June 30, 2023 and September 30, 2022, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, and short-term borrowings and variable rate debt approximated their carrying values due to the short-term nature of these
instruments. Each of these financial asset and liability categories is classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy.

At June 30, 2023 and September 30, 2022, Cabot had derivatives relating to foreign currency risks, including a net investment hedge and forward
foreign currency contracts, carried at fair value. At June 30, 2023, the fair value of these derivatives was a net asset of $8 million and was included in
Prepaid expenses and other current assets, Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. At September
30, 2022, the fair value of these derivatives was a net asset of $28 million and was included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets, Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, and Other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These derivatives are classified as Level 2 instruments within the fair
value hierarchy as the fair value determination was based on observable inputs.
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At June 30, 2023 and September 30, 2022, the fair value of guaranteed investment contracts included in Other assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets was $9 million and $8 million, respectively. Guaranteed investment contracts were classified as Level 2 instruments within the fair value hierarchy
as the fair value determination was based on other observable inputs.

The carrying value and fair value of the long-term fixed rate debt were $1.08 billion and $1.07 billion, respectively, as of June 30, 2023 and $1.08
billion and $1.06 billion, respectively, as of September 30, 2022. The fair values of Cabot’s fixed rate long-term debt are estimated based on comparable
quoted market prices at the respective period ends. The carrying amounts of Cabot’s floating rate long-term debt and finance and operating lease
obligations approximate their fair values. All such measurements are based on observable inputs and are classified as Level 2 within the fair value
hierarchy. The valuation technique used is the discounted cash flow model.

L. Financial Information by Segment

The Company identifies a product line as an operating segment if: i) it engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses; ii) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), who is Cabot’s President and Chief Executive
Officer, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and iii) it has available discrete financial
information. The CODM reviews financial information at the operating segment level to allocate resources and to assess the operating results and
financial performance for each operating segment. Operating segments are aggregated into a reportable segment if the operating segments are
determined to have similar economic characteristics and if the operating segments are similar in the following areas: i) nature of products and services; ii)
nature of production processes; iii) type or class of customer for their products and services; iv) methods used to distribute the products or provide
services; and v) if applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment.

The Company has two reportable segments consisting of Reinforcement Materials and Performance Chemicals. The Company'’s former Purification
Solutions business was a separate reporting segment prior to divestiture in the second quarter of fiscal 2022.

The Reinforcement Materials segment combines the reinforcing carbons and engineered elastomer composites product lines.

The Performance Chemicals segment aggregates the specialty carbons, specialty compounds, fumed metal oxides, battery materials, inkjet
colorants, and aerogel product lines. These businesses are similar in terms of economic characteristics, nature of products, processes, customer class and
product distribution methods, and therefore have been aggregated into one reportable segment.

The Purification Solutions segment consisted of the Company’s activated carbon business.

Income (loss) before income taxes (“Segment EBIT”) is presented for each reportable segment in the table below. Segment EBIT excludes Interest
expense, general unallocated income (expense), unallocated corporate costs, and certain items, meaning items management does not consider
representative of on-going operating segment results. In addition, Segment EBIT includes Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, net of tax, royalties,
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax, and discounting charges for certain Notes receivable.
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Financial information by reportable segment is as follows:

Reinforcemen

t Performance Purification Segment Unallocated Consolidated
Materials Chemicals Solutions Total and Other! Total
(In millions)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
Revenues from external customers®® $ 624 ¢ 307 % — $ 931 $ 37 $ 968
Income (loss) before income taxes'” $ 132 ¢ 32 ¢ — $ 164 ¢ (34) s 130
Three Months Ended June 30, 2022
Revenues from external customers®®© $ 730 % 376 % — ¢ 1,106 $ 43 ¢ 1,149
Income (loss) before income taxes' $ 113 ¢ 63 ¢ — $ 176 ¢ (24) s 152
Nine Months Ended June 30, 2023
Revenues from external customers®® $ 1,939 $ 919 ¢ — $ 2,858 $ 108 $ 2,966
Income (loss) before income taxes'” $ 348 ¢ 89 $ — $ 437 ¢ (113) ¢ 324
Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022
Revenues from external customers®®© $ 1,947 ¢ 1,045 ¢ 97 ¢ 3089 $ 120 ¢ 3,209
Income (loss) before income taxes' $ 299 % 185 $ — $ 484 ¢ (278) $ 206

(1

(2)

(3)

Unallocated and Other includes certain items and eliminations necessary to reflect management’s reporting of operating segment results. These
items are reflective of the segment reporting presented to the CODM.

Beginning in fiscal 2023, the Company began allocating energy center by-product revenue within the applicable segment’s Revenue from external
customers. The Company recast prior period financial information to conform to the new presentation. The allocation of such revenue resulted in
an increase of $23 million in the Reinforcement Materials segment and $4 million in the Performance Chemicals segment, respectively, with an
offsetting decrease in Unallocated and Other revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2022. The allocation of such revenue resulted in an
increase of $72 million in the Reinforcement Materials segment and $11 million in the Performance Chemicals segment, respectively, with an
offsetting decrease in Unallocated and Other revenue for the nine months ended June 30, 2022. There was no impact to the Consolidated Total
Revenues from external customers.

Consolidated Total Revenues from external customers reconciles to Net sales and other operating revenues on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. Revenues from external customers that are categorized as Unallocated and Other reflects royalties, external shipping and handling
fees, the impact of unearned revenue, discounting charges for certain Notes receivable, and other by-product revenue. Details are provided in the
table below:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30

2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Shipping and handling fees $ 31 $ 44 $ 100 $ 124
Other 6 (1) 8 (4)
Total $ 37 $ 43 $ 108 $ 120
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) Consolidated Total Income (loss) before income taxes reconciles to Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated
companies on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Income (loss) before income taxes that are categorized as Unallocated and Other

includes:

Three Months Ended June 30

Nine Months Ended June 30

2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Interest expense $ (24) s (15) ¢ (69) ¢ (38)
Certain items®
Gain on bargain purchase of a business (Note C) — — — 24
Gain on sale of land — 17 1 17
Loss on sale of business and asset impairment charge (Note D) — (2) (3) (206)
Legal and environmental matters and reserves — (1) (2) (9)
Acquisition and integration-related charges (1) (1) (2) (4)
Divestiture related charges — — — (5)
Global restructuring activities — (1) — (3)
Other — — (1) 1
Total certain items, pre-tax (1) 12 (7) (185)
Unallocated corporate costs® (11) (15) (42) (45)
General unallocated income (expense)“) 3 (3) 9 (3)
Less: Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, net
of tax® 1 3 4 7
Total $ (34) s (24) ¢ (113) ¢ (278)
(@ Certain items are items of expense and income that management does not consider representative of the Company’s fundamental on-going
segment results and they are, therefore, excluded from Segment EBIT.
(b) Unallocated corporate costs are costs that are not controlled by the segments and primarily benefit corporate interests.
C] General unallocated income (expense) consists of gains (losses) arising from foreign currency transactions, net of other foreign currency risk

management activities, Interest and dividend income, the profit or loss related to the corporate adjustment for unearned revenue and

unrealized holding gains (losses) for investments.

(d) Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, net of tax, is included in Segment EBIT and is removed in Unallocated and other to reconcile to

Income (loss) from operations before income taxes and equity in earnings from affiliated companies.

The Company'’s segments operate globally. In addition to presenting Revenue from external customers by reportable segment, the following tables
further disaggregate Revenues from external customers by geographic region.

Americas

Asia Pacific

Europe, Middle East and Africa

Segment revenues from external customers
Unallocated and other

Net sales and other operating revenues

Three Months Ended June 30, 2023

Reinforcement Performance Purification Consolidated
Materials Chemicals Solutions Total
(In millions)
$ 260 $ 94 $ = $ 354
234 119 — 353
130 94 = 224
624 307 — 931
37
$ 968
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Americas

Asia Pacific

Europe, Middle East and Africa

Segment revenues from external customers
Unallocated and other

Net sales and other operating revenues

Americas

Asia Pacific

Europe, Middle East and Africa

Segment revenues from external customers
Unallocated and other

Net sales and other operating revenues

Americas

Asia Pacific

Europe, Middle East and Africa

Segment revenues from external customers
Unallocated and other

Net sales and other operating revenues

Three Months Ended June 30, 2022

Reinforcement Performance Purification Consolidated
Materials Chemicals Solutions Total
(In millions)
$ 302 114 $ = $ 416
265 147 — 412
163 115 = 278
730 376 — 1,106
43
$ 1,149

Nine Months Ended June 30, 2023

Reinforcement Performance Purification Consolidated
Materials Chemicals Solutions Total
(In millions)
$ 781 283 $ = $ 1,064
752 368 — 1,120
406 268 = 674
1,939 919 — 2,858
108
$ 2,966

Nine Months Ended June 30, 2022

Reinforcement Performance Purification Consolidated
Materials Chemicals Solutions Total
(In millions)
$ 767 314 $ 43 $ 1,124
773 422 14 1,209
407 309 40 756
1,947 1,045 97 3,089
120
$ 3,209
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Critical Accounting Policies
Our critical accounting policies have not substantially changed from those described in the 2022 10-K.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
Refer to the discussion under the heading “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” in Note B of our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Results of Operations

The Company has two reportable segments: Reinforcement Materials and Performance Chemicals. The Company’s former Purification Solutions
business was a separate reporting segment prior to divestiture in the second quarter of fiscal 2022. Cabot is also organized for operational purposes into
three geographic regions: the Americas; Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”); and Asia Pacific. The discussion of our results of operations for the
periods presented reflects these structures.

Our analysis of our financial condition and operating results should be read with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
Definition of Terms and Non-GAAP Financial Measures
When discussing our results of operations, we use several terms as described below.

The term “product mix” refers to the mix of types and grades of products sold or the mix of geographic regions where products are sold, and the
positive or negative impact this has on the revenue or profitability of the business and/or segment.

Our discussion under the heading “(Provision) Benefit for Income Taxes and Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate to Operating Tax Rate” includes a
discussion and reconciliation of our “effective tax rate” and our “operating tax rate” for the periods presented, as well as management’s projection of our
operating tax rate range for the full fiscal year. Our operating tax rate is a non-GAAP financial measure and should not be considered as an alternative to
our effective tax rate, the most comparable GAAP financial measure. The operating tax rate is calculated based upon management's forecast of the annual
operating tax rate for the fiscal year applied to adjusted pre-tax earnings. The operating tax rate excludes income tax (expense) benefit on certain items,
discrete tax items and, on a quarterly basis the timing of losses in certain jurisdictions. The income tax (expense) benefit on certain items is determined
using the applicable rates in the taxing jurisdictions in which the certain items occurred and includes both current and deferred income tax (expense)
benefit based on the nature of the certain items. Discrete tax items include, but are not limited to, changes in valuation allowance, uncertain tax
positions, and other tax items, such as the tax impact of legislative changes and tax accruals on historic earnings due to changes in indefinite reinvestment
assertions. Our definition of the operating tax rate may not be comparable to the definition used by other companies. Management believes that this
non-GAAP financial measure is useful supplemental information because it helps our investors compare our tax rate year to year on a consistent basis and
to understand what our tax rate on current operations would be without the impact of these items.

Our discussion under the heading “Third Quarter of Fiscal 2023 versus Third Quarter of Fiscal 2022—By Business Segment” includes a discussion of
Total segment EBIT, which is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings from affiliated companies
less certain items and other unallocated items. Our Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is our President and Chief Executive Officer, uses segment EBIT
to evaluate the operating results of each segment and to allocate resources to the segments. We believe Total segment EBIT, which reflects the sum of
EBIT from our reportable segments, provides useful supplemental information for our investors as it is an important indicator of our operational strength
and performance, allows investors to see our results through the eyes of management, and provides context for our discussion of individual business
segment performance. Our definition of Total segment EBIT may not be comparable to the definition used by other companies and it should not be
considered an alternative for Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies, which is the most directly comparable
GAAP financial measure. A reconciliation of Total segment EBIT to Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies is
provided under the heading “Third quarter of Fiscal 2023 versus Third quarter of Fiscal 2022—By Business Segment”. Investors should consider the
limitations associated with this non-GAAP measure, including the potential lack of comparability of this measure from one company to another.
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In calculating Total segment EBIT, we exclude from our Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies (i) items of
expense and income that management does not consider representative of our fundamental on-going segment results, which we refer to as “certain
items”, and (ii) items that, because they are not controlled by the business segments and primarily benefit corporate objectives, are not allocated to our
business segments, such as interest expense and other corporate costs, which include unallocated corporate overhead expenses such as certain corporate
salaries and headquarter expenses, plus costs related to special projects and initiatives, which we refer to as “other unallocated items”. Management
believes excluding the items identified as certain items facilitates operating performance comparisons from period to period by eliminating differences
that would not otherwise be apparent on a GAAP basis and also facilitates an evaluation of our operating performance without the impact of these costs
or benefits. The items of income and expense that we exclude from Total segment EBIT but that are included in our GAAP Income (loss) before income
taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies, as applicable in a particular reporting period, include, but are not limited to, the following:

. Asset impairment charges, which primarily include charges associated with an impairment of goodwill, other long-lived assets or assets held
for sale.
. Charges related to the divestiture of our Purification Solutions business, which include accelerated costs associated with the change in

control and employee incentive compensation.

. Legal and environmental reserves and matters, which consist of costs or benefits for matters typically related to former businesses or that
are otherwise incurred outside of the ordinary course of business.

. Global restructuring activities, which include costs or benefits associated with cost reduction initiatives or plant closures and are primarily
related to (i) employee termination costs, (ii) asset impairment charges associated with restructuring actions, (iii) costs to close facilities,
including environmental costs and contract termination penalties, and (iv) gains realized on the sale of land or equipment associated with
restructured plants or locations.

. Acquisition and integration-related charges, which include transaction costs, redundant costs incurred during the period of integration, and
costs associated with transitioning certain management and business processes to Cabot’s processes.
. Gains (losses) on sale of a business.
. Gain associated with the bargain purchase of a business.
. Gain realized on the sale of land.
Overview

During the third quarter of fiscal 2023, Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies decreased compared to
the third quarter of fiscal 2022 due to a reduction in earnings in our Performance Chemicals segment partially offset by stronger results in our
Reinforcement Materials segment.

Third quarter of Fiscal 2023 versus Third quarter of Fiscal 2022—Consolidated

Net Sales and Other Operating Revenues and Gross Profit

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Net sales and other operating revenues $ 968 $ 1,149 $ 2,966 $ 3,209
Gross profit $ 223 % 235 % 614 3 665

The $181 million decrease in net sales and other operating revenues in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2022
was driven by lower volumes in both segments ($92 million), unfavorable price and product mix (combined $56 million), the negative impact from foreign
currency translation ($19 million), and lower by-product revenue ($8 million).

The $243 million decrease in net sales and other operating revenues in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to the first nine months of
fiscal 2022 was primarily driven by lower volumes ($198 million) the unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation ($130 million), the impact of
the divestiture of our Purification Solutions business in fiscal 2022 ($97 million) and lower by-product revenue ($22 million). These decreases were
partially offset by favorable price and product mix (combined $217 million) primarily in our Reinforcement Materials segment.

For the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023, gross profit decreased by $12 million and $51 million, respectively, compared to the same
periods of fiscal 2022. The decrease was primarily due to lower volumes and higher fixed costs, partially offset by higher unit margins in our
Reinforcement Materials segment.
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Selling and administrative expenses $ 58 §¢ 51 $ 184 $ 196

Selling and administrative expenses increased by $7 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 and decreased by $12 million for the nine months
ended June 30, 2023, compared to the same periods of fiscal 2022.

The increase in selling and administrative expenses in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2022 was primarily
due to a $17 million benefit from the sale of land in the fiscal 2022 period, partially offset by a decrease in the incentive compensation accrual for the
fiscal 2023 period.

The decrease in selling and administrative expenses in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2022 was

primarily due to a decrease in the incentive compensation accrual for the fiscal 2023 period and prior year charges related to the Purification Solutions
divestiture and our legal reserve for respirator matters, partially offset by the benefit from the sale of land in the fiscal 2022 period.

Research and Technical Expenses

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Research and technical expenses $ 15 3 14 3 43 3 41

Research and technical expenses increased by $1 million and $2 million for the third quarter and the first nine months of fiscal 2023, respectively,
compared to the same periods of fiscal 2022.

Interest and Dividend Income, Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense)

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Interest and dividend income $ 7 3 - 3 22 % 7
Interest expense $ (24) s (15) $ (69) $ (38)
Other income (expense) $ (3) $ (1) $ (13) ¢ (9)

Interest and dividend income increased by $7 million and $15 million in the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023, respectively, compared to
the same periods of fiscal 2022, primarily due to higher interest rates.

Interest expense increased by $9 million and $31 million in the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023, respectively, compared to the same
periods of fiscal 2022, primarily due to higher interest rates.

Other expense increased by $2 million and $4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 and the first nine months of fiscal 2023, respectively,
compared to the same periods of fiscal 2022, driven by higher foreign currency losses, primarily in Argentina, partially offset by an increase in investment
income in Argentina and Brazil.
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(1

(Provision) Benefit for Income Taxes and Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate to Operating Tax Rate

Three Months Ended June 30

2023 2022
(Provision) / (Provision) /
Benefit for Benefit for

Income Taxes Rate Income Taxes Rate
Dollars in millions
Effective tax rate $ (41) 32% $ (49) 32%
Less: Non-GAAP tax adjustments™” 2 (15)
Operating tax rate $ (43) 33% $ (34) 24%

Nine Months Ended June 30

2023 2022
(Provision) / (Provision) /
Benefit for Benefit for

Income Taxes Rate Income Taxes Rate
Dollars in millions
Effective tax rate $ (90) 28% $ (73) 35%
Less: Non-GAAP tax adjustments” 3 29
Operating tax rate $ (93) 28% $ (102) 26%

Non-GAAP tax adjustments made to arrive at the operating tax provision include the income tax (expense) benefit on certain items, discrete tax
items, and, on a quarterly basis, the timing of losses in certain jurisdictions, as further described above under the heading “Definition of Terms and
Non-GAAP Financial Measures”.

For the three months ended June 30, 2023, the (Provision) benefit for income taxes was a provision of $41 million compared to $49 million for the

same period in 2022. For the nine months ended June 30, 2023, the (Provision) benefit for income taxes was a provision of $90 million compared to $73
million for the same period in 2022. Included in the (Provision) benefit for income taxes in the nine months ended June 30, 2022 is a net discrete tax
benefit of $22 million primarily comprised of $36 million related to the divestiture of the Purification Solutions business, and a tax expense of $8 million
related to withholding tax accruals on historic earnings due to changes in indefinite reinvestment assertion on certain entities. Our income taxes are
affected by the mix of earnings in the tax jurisdictions in which we operate, and by the presence of valuation allowances in certain tax jurisdictions.

For fiscal 2023, the Operating tax rate is expected to be in the range of 27% to 29%. We are not providing a forward-looking reconciliation of the

operating tax rate range with an effective tax rate range because, without unreasonable effort, we are unable to predict with reasonable certainty the
matters we would allocate to “certain items,” which have historically included unusual gains and losses, costs associated with future restructurings,
acquisition-related expenses and litigation outcomes. Matters allocated to certain items are unpredictable, depend on various factors, and could have a
material impact on the effective tax rate in future periods.

We regularly evaluate the realizability of our net deferred tax assets. As of June 30, 2023, substantially all our U.S. deferred tax assets, net of

deferred tax liabilities, were subject to valuation allowances. There is a reasonable possibility that within the next twelve months, sufficient positive
evidence may become available to reach a conclusion that all or a significant portion of the valuation allowances will no longer be required. Such a release
would result in a material non-cash income tax benefit in our Consolidated Statement of Operations in the period of release and an increase of net
deferred tax assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies,
net of tax $ 1 $ 3 $ 4 3 7
Net income (loss) attributable to
noncontrolling interests, net of tax $ 8 3 9 3 27 % 25

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, net of tax, decreased by $2 million and $3 million in the third quarter and the first nine months of fiscal

2023, respectively, compared to the same periods of fiscal 2022 primarily due to lower profitability at our equity affiliate in India.
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Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax, decreased by $1 million in the third quarter and increased by $2 million for
the nine months ended June 30, 2023, compared to the same periods of fiscal 2022. The lower income for the three month period was primarily due to
the lower profitability of our joint ventures in China. The higher income for the nine month period was primarily due to the higher profitability of our
joint venture in the Czech Republic.

Net Income Attributable to Cabot Corporation

In the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2023, we reported Net income (loss) attributable to Cabot Corporation of $82 million and $211
million, or $1.43 per diluted common share and $3.65 per diluted common share, respectively. This compares to Net income (loss) attributable to Cabot
Corporation of $97 million and $115 million, or $1.69 per diluted common share and $1.99 per diluted common share, respectively, in the third quarter
and first nine months of fiscal 2022. The lower net income in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 compared with the same period in fiscal 2022 is primarily due
to lower volumes and higher fixed costs partially offset by higher unit margins. The higher net income in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared
with the same period in fiscal 2022 is primarily due to an impairment charge associated with the divestiture of Purification Solutions in fiscal 2022 that did
not reoccur in fiscal 2023.

Third quarter of Fiscal 2023 versus Third quarter of Fiscal 2022—By Business Segment

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies, certain items, other unallocated items, and Total segment EBIT
for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are set forth in the table below. The details of certain items and other unallocated items are
shown below and in Note L of our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Income (loss) before income taxes and
equity in earnings of affiliated companies $ 130 % 152 % 324 % 206

Less: Certain items (1) 12 (7) (185)
Less: Other unallocated items (33) (36) (106) (93)
Total segment EBIT $ 164 $ 176 $ 437 % 484

In the third quarter of fiscal 2023, Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies decreased by $22 million and
Total segment EBIT decreased by $12 million. The decreases in Income (loss) before income taxes and equity earnings of affiliated companies and in Total
segment EBIT were driven by lower volumes, higher fixed costs and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency movements partially offset by higher unit
margins in Reinforcement Materials. Lower volumes in the Reinforcement Materials ($19 million) and Performance Chemicals segments ($20 million)
were primarily due to demand softness in key end markets. Higher unit margins in the Reinforcement Materials segment ($42 million) were primarily due
to improved pricing and product mix in our annual tire customer agreements.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2023, Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of affiliated companies increased by $118 million.
The increase is primarily due to the Purification Solutions loss on sale and asset impairment charge of $206 million in fiscal 2022, partially offset by the
gain on the Tokai Carbon acquisition of $24 million that did not reoccur in fiscal 2023. Total segment EBIT decreased by $47 million in the first nine
months of fiscal 2023 as compared to the same period in fiscal 2022 driven by lower volumes, higher fixed costs and the unfavorable impact of foreign
currency movements in both segments, partially offset by higher unit margins in Reinforcement Materials. Lower volumes in the Reinforcement Materials
($44 million) and Performance Chemicals segments ($48 million) were primarily due to demand softness in key end markets and destocking. Higher unit
margins in the Reinforcement Materials segment ($130 million) were primarily due to improved pricing and product mix in our annual tire customer
agreements.
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Certain Items

Details of the certain items for the three and nine months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Gain on bargain purchase of a business (Note C) $ — $ - % — $ 24
Gain on sale of land — 17 1 17
Loss on sale of business and asset impairment charge (Note D) — (2) (3) (206)
Legal and environmental matters and reserves — (1) (2) (9)
Acquisition and integration-related charges (1) (1) (2) (4)
Divestiture related charges — — — (5)
Global restructuring activities — (1) — (3)
Other - — (1) 1
Total certain items, pre-tax (1) 12 (7) (185)
Non-GAAP tax adjustments 2 (15) 3 29
Total certain items, after tax $ 1 3 (3) ¢ (4) s (156)
Other Unallocated Items
Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Interest expense $ (24) ¢ (15) $ (69) ¢ (38)
Unallocated corporate costs (11) (15) (42) (45)
General unallocated income (expense) 3 (3) 9 (3)
Less: Equity in earnings of affiliated
companies, net of tax 1 3 4 7
Total other unallocated items $ (33) 3 (36) ¢ (106) ¢ (93)

A discussion of items that we refer to as “other unallocated items” can be found under the heading “Definition of Terms and Non-GAAP Financial
Measures”. The balances of unallocated corporate costs are primarily comprised of expenditures related to managing a public company that are not
allocated to the segments and corporate business development costs related to ongoing corporate projects. The balances of General unallocated income
(expense) consist of gains (losses) arising from foreign currency transactions, net of other foreign currency risk management activities, the profit or loss
related to the corporate adjustment for unearned revenue and unrealized holding gains (losses) for investments.

Reinforcement Materials

Sales and EBIT for Reinforcement Materials for the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Reinforcement Materials Sales $ 624 ¢ 730 $ 1,939 $ 1,947
Reinforcement Materials EBIT $ 132 $ 113 $ 348 $ 299

Sales in Reinforcement Materials decreased by $106 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to the same period of fiscal 2022,
primarily due to lower volumes ($59 million), less favorable price and product mix (combined $29 million) the unfavorable impact from foreign currency
translation ($12 million) and lower by-product revenue ($5 million). The less favorable price and product mix was primarily due to lower feedstock costs
that are generally passed through to our customers. Volumes were lower across all regions primarily due to lower replacement tire demand.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2023, sales in Reinforcement Materials decreased by $8 million compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2022.
The decrease was primarily due to lower volumes ($130 million), the unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation ($88 million) and lower by-
product revenue ($15 million), partially offset by improved price and product mix (combined $225 million). Lower volumes were primarily due to lower
replacement tire demand and customer destocking. The improved price and product mix was primarily due to favorable 2022 and 2023 calendar year
customer agreements.

EBIT in Reinforcement Materials in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 increased by $19 million compared to the same period of fiscal 2022. During the
third quarter of fiscal 2023, the segment had higher unit margins, net of higher costs ($38 million), partially offset by lower volumes ($19 million) and the
unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation ($1 million). The higher unit
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margins were primarily driven by favorable pricing and product mix in the 2023 calendar year customer agreements. Volumes were lower across all
regions primarily due to lower replacement tire demand.

EBIT in Reinforcement Materials increased by $49 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to the same period of fiscal 2022. The
increase was driven by higher unit margins, net of higher costs ($99 million) partially offset by lower volumes ($44 million) and the unfavorable impact
from foreign currency translation ($6 million). The higher unit margins were primarily driven by favorable pricing and product mix in the 2022 and 2023
calendar year customer agreements. Volumes were lower across all regions primarily due to lower replacement tire demand and destocking at our major
tire customers.

As we look to the fourth quarter of the fiscal year, we expect EBIT to decrease sequentially due to seasonally lower volumes in Europe and higher
fixed costs related to the timing of maintenance activities.

Performance Chemicals

Sales and EBIT for Performance Chemicals for the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Performance Chemicals Sales $ 307 $ 376 $ 919 $ 1,045
Performance Chemicals EBIT $ 32 % 63 % 89 ¢ 185

Sales in Performance Chemicals decreased by $69 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to the same period of fiscal 2022, primarily
due to lower volumes ($32 million), less favorable pricing and product mix ($27 million), the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation ($6
million) and lower by-product revenue ($2 million). The lower volumes in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 were driven by demand softness in key end
markets, particularly in our fumed metal oxides product line. The less favorable product mix was due to less favorable product mix in our battery materials
and specialty carbons product lines.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2023, sales in Performance Chemicals decreased by $126 million compared to the same period of fiscal 2022 due
to lower volumes ($68 million), the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation ($42 million), lower by-product revenue ($7 million) and less
favorable pricing and product mix ($9 million). The lower volumes were primarily due to customer destocking, demand softness in key end markets and
the impact from COVID-19 outbreaks in China.

EBIT in Performance Chemicals decreased by $31 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2022, due to
lower volumes ($20 million), lower unit margins ($9 million) and higher costs associated with the unfavorable impact of the reduction in inventory levels
($4 million). The lower volumes in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 were driven by demand softness across all regions. Lower unit margins were primarily
due to less favorable product mix in the specialty carbons and battery materials product lines.

EBIT in Performance Chemicals decreased by $96 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to the same period of fiscal 2022, due to
lower volumes ($48 million), lower unit margins ($24 million), the unfavorable impact of a reduction in inventory levels ($15 million) and the unfavorable
impact of foreign currency translation ($9 million). Lower unit margins were largely due to less favorable product mix in the specialty carbons and battery
materials product lines. The segment also experienced higher costs associated with the unfavorable impact of reduction in inventory levels ($15 million).
Lower volumes were driven by customer destocking, demand softness in key end markets, and the impact from COVID-19 outbreaks in China.

As we look ahead to the fourth quarter of the fiscal year, we expect EBIT to improve sequentially due to higher volumes in our battery materials
and inkjet product lines.

Purification Solutions

Sales and EBIT for Purification Solutions for the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30 Nine Months Ended June 30
2023 2022 2023 2022
(In millions)
Purification Solutions Sales $ — $ — $ — $ 97
Purification Solutions EBIT $ - 3 - 3 - 3 —
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We divested the Purification Solutions business in March 2022. Refer to Note D of our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Our liquidity position, as measured by cash and cash equivalents plus borrowing availability, increased by $233 million during the first nine months
of fiscal 2023, which was primarily due to a higher cash balance, lower outstanding commercial paper and the impact of foreign currency rates partially
offset by increased borrowing on the Euro Credit Agreement (as defined below). As of June 30, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents of $220 million
and borrowing availability under our revolving credit agreements of $1.1 billion.

We have access to borrowings under the following two credit agreements:

. $1 billion unsecured revolving credit agreement (the “U.S. Credit Agreement”)with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent,
Citibank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and the other lenders party thereto, which matures in August 2026, subject to a one-year option to
extend the maturity, exercisable on or prior to August 6, 2023. Effective August 4, 2023, we closed on the one-year option extending the
maturity date to August 2027. The U.S. Credit Agreement supports our issuance of commercial paper, and borrowings under it may be
used for working capital, letters of credit and other general corporate purposes.

. Effective May 17, 2023, we amended and restated our €300 million unsecured revolving credit agreement (the “Euro Credit Agreement”,
and together with the U.S. Credit Agreement, the “Credit Agreements”), changing the Administrative Agent, updating the Designated
Borrowers (as defined therein). The Euro Credit Agreement with PNC Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, and the other
lenders party thereto, matures in August 2027. Borrowings under the Euro Credit Agreement may be used for the repatriation of
earnings of our foreign subsidiaries to the United States, the repayment of indebtedness of our foreign subsidiaries owing to us or any of
our subsidiaries and for working capital and general corporate purposes.

As of June 30, 2023, we were in compliance with the debt covenants under the Credit Agreements, which, with limited exceptions, require us to
comply on a quarterly basis with a leverage test requiring the ratio of consolidated net debt to consolidated EBITDA not to exceed 3.50 to 1.00.
Consolidated net debt is defined as consolidated debt offset by the lesser of (i) unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and (ii) $150 million.

A significant portion of our business occurs outside the U.S. and our cash generation does not always align geographically with our cash needs. The
vast majority of our cash and cash equivalent holdings tend to be held outside the U.S. We generally use a combination of U.S. earnings, repatriation of
certain foreign earnings, commercial paper issuances and borrowings under our U.S. Credit Agreement to meet our U.S. cash needs. With the exception
of Argentina, which has currency controls that prevent the distribution of cash, we are generally able to move cash throughout the Company through our
cash pooling structures, intercompany accounts and/or distributions, as needed. Although we repatriate certain foreign earnings, cash held by foreign
subsidiaries is generally considered permanently reinvested and is used to finance the subsidiaries’ operational activities and future investments. We
usually reduce our commercial paper balance and, if applicable, borrowings under our Credit Agreements, at quarter-end using cash derived from
customer collections, settlement of intercompany balances and short-term intercompany loans. If additional funds are needed in the U.S., we expect to
be able to repatriate cash, including cash from China, while paying any withholding or other taxes. Changes in tax laws in the U.S. or foreign countries
could restrict our ability to transfer funds or impose material costs on such transfers.

As of June 30, 2023, we had $1.1 billion of availability under our Credit Agreements. As of June 30, 2023, we had $118 million of borrowings under
the Euro Credit Agreement and no outstanding borrowings under the U.S. Credit Agreement. There was $134 million of commercial paper outstanding as
of June 30, 2023.

We anticipate sufficient liquidity from (i) cash on hand; (ii) cash flows from operating activities; and (iii) cash available from the Credit Agreements
and our commercial paper program to meet our operational and capital investment needs and financial obligations for the foreseeable future. The
liquidity we derive from cash flows from operations is, to a large degree, predicated on our ability to collect our receivables in a timely manner, the cost of
our raw materials, and our ability to manage inventory levels.

In addition, our subsidiary in Argentina may incur a foreign currency loss as a result of a significant government driven currency devaluation. The
timing of any government action is uncertain, but could be in the near term and any loss we record would negatively impact earnings. As of June 30,
2023, we had approximately $35 million of Peso denominated net assets. As described above, currently there are currency controls that prevent the
distribution or conversion of cash from Argentina, which makes up the majority of these net assets.
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The following discussion of the changes in our cash balance refers to the various sections of our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities, which consists of net income adjusted for the various non-cash items included in income, changes in working
capital and changes in certain other balance sheet accounts, totaled $457 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to $5 million of cash
used by operating activities during the same period of fiscal 2022.

Cash provided by operating activities in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 was driven by business earnings excluding the non-cash impacts of
depreciation and amortization of $107 million and a decrease in net working capital of $96 million. The decrease in net working capital was largely driven
by a decrease in accounts receivable due to lower customer prices from lower cost of raw materials and decreased sales volumes and a decrease in
inventories and accounts payable and accrued expenses driven by lower cost of raw materials.

Cash used by operating activities in the first nine months of fiscal 2022 was driven by an increase in net working capital of $390 million. The
increase in net working capital was driven by an increase in accounts receivable due to higher sales and an increase in inventory driven by a higher cost of
raw materials, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investing activities consumed $139 million of cash in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to $31 million of cash consumed in the first nine
months of fiscal 2022.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2023, investing activities included $166 million of capital expenditures for sustaining and compliance capital
projects at our operating facilities as well as growth-related capital, including capacity expansion projects in Performance Chemicals, partially offset by
proceeds from the sale of land of $7 million, proceeds from the sale of our Purification Solutions business of $6 million, and proceeds from insurance
settlements of $12 million.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2022, investing activities included $121 million of capital expenditures for sustaining and compliance capital
projects at our operating facilities as well as capacity expansion capital expenditures primarily in Performance Chemicals. In addition, the first nine
months of fiscal 2022 includes $79 million of net cash proceeds from the sale of our Purification Solutions business, $18 million of proceeds from the sale
of land, and $9 million of cash paid for the acquisition of Tokai Carbon, net of cash assumed of $5 million.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2023 are expected to be approximately $250 million. Our planned capital spending program for fiscal 2023 is
primarily for sustaining, compliance, and improvement capital projects at our operating facilities as well as capacity expansion expenditures in the
Performance Chemicals segment.

Province of Ontario Regulation 419 Update

As described in Part |, Item 1 of the 2022 10-K under the heading “Safety, Health, Environment, and Sustainability”, under the Province of Ontario
Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks’ (“MECP”) Regulation 419, a new requirement for sulfur dioxide (“SO2") emissions went into effect on
July 1, 2023 for our reinforcing carbons plant in Sarnia, Ontario. On June 30, 2023, we received a letter from the MECP indicating that as of July 1 we are
out of compliance with the new air standards for SO2 and in response submitted our required abatement plan in accordance with the regulation. We are
continuing discussions with the MECP on a new technical standard for SO2 emissions controls at our plant as an alternative to this requirement that in its
current form would require the installation of air pollution controls at the plant by July 1, 2028. We intend to continue to engage with the MECP on this
alternative, or another compliance plan approach that is acceptable to the MECP. We anticipate that we will need to incur significant capital costs for the
installation of these new SO2 emissions controls, particularly during the 24-month period prior to the date of installation.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Financing activities consumed $371 million of cash in the first nine months of fiscal 2023 compared to $129 million of cash provided during the
same period of fiscal 2022.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2023, financing activities primarily consisted of the repayment of commercial paper of $188 million, dividend
payments to stockholders of $65 million, share repurchases of $48 million, cash dividends paid to noncontrolling interests of $41 million, net repayments
of short-term borrowings of $24 million and repayments of long-term debt of $88 million. These payments were partially offset by proceeds from long-
term borrowings of $79 million.

In the first nine months of fiscal 2022, financing activities primarily consisted of the issuance of commercial paper of $193 million and proceeds
from short-term borrowings of $26 million. These proceeds were partially offset by dividend payments to stockholders of $63 million, share repurchases
of $48 million, dividend payments to noncontrolling interests of $22 million, and repayments of long-term debt of $357 million.
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Forward-Looking Information

This report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” under the Federal securities laws. These forward-looking statements address
expectations or projections about the future, including our expectations regarding segment performance in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2023 as compared
with EBIT in the third quarter of fiscal 2023 and the factors we expect will decrease EBIT in our Reinforcement Materials segment and increase EBIT in our
Performance Chemicals segment; demand for our products; the sufficiency of our cash on hand, cash provided from operations and cash available under
our credit and commercial paper facilities to fund our cash requirements; anticipated capital spending, including with respect to the installation of new
SO2 emissions controls at our Sarnia, Ontario reinforcing carbons plant; regulatory developments; cash requirements and uses of available cash, including
future cash outlays associated with respirator liabilities and the timing of such outlays; amortization expenses; our operating tax rate; and the possible
outcome of legal and environmental proceedings. From time to time, we also provide forward-looking statements in other materials we release to the
public and in oral statements made by authorized officers.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties, potentially inaccurate assumptions,
and other factors, some of which are beyond our control or difficult to predict. If known or unknown risks materialize, our actual results could differ
materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.

In addition to factors described elsewhere in this report, the following are some of the factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements: industry capacity utilization and competition from other specialty chemical
companies; safety, health and environmental requirements and related constraints imposed on our business; regulatory and financial risks related to
climate change developments; volatility in the price and availability of energy and raw materials, including with respect to the Russian invasion of Ukraine;
a significant adverse change in a customer relationship or the failure of a customer to perform its obligations under agreements with us; failure to achieve
growth expectations from new products, applications and technology developments; failure to realize benefits from acquisitions, alliances, or joint
ventures or achieve our portfolio management objectives; negative or uncertain worldwide or regional economic conditions and market opportunities,
including from trade relations, global health matters including the COVID-19 pandemic or geo-political conflicts; litigation or legal proceedings; tax rates
and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange and interest rates; our inability to complete capacity expansions or other development projects; and the
accuracy of the assumptions we used in establishing reserves for our share of liability for respirator claims. These other factors and risks are discussed
more fully in our 2022 10-K and in our subsequent SEC filings.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Information about market risks for the period ended June 30, 2023 does not differ materially from that discussed under Item 7A of our 2022 10-K.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2023, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal
executive officer and our principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of that date.

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2023 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Part Il. Other Information
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The table below sets forth information regarding Cabot’s purchases of its equity securities during the quarter ended June 30, 2023:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Value) of Shares that

Total Number of as Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Shares Average Price Announced Plans or Under the Plans or

Period Purchased™? Paid per Share Programs™ Programs™
April 1, 2023 - April 30, 2023 — $ — — 3,903,733
May 1, 2023 - May 31, 2023 195,000 $ 70.65 195,000 3,708,733
June 1, 2023 - June 30, 2023 17,161 $ 71.30 17,161 3,691,572
Total 212,161 212,161
& On July 13, 2018, Cabot publicly announced that the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to an additional ten million

shares of its common stock on the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, increasing the balance of shares available for repurchase at
that time to approximately eleven million shares. The current authorization does not have a set expiration date.

@) Total number of shares purchased does not include 1,262 shares withheld to pay taxes on the vesting of equity awards made under the Company's
equity incentive plans or to pay the exercise price of options exercised during the period.

Item 5. Other Information

(c). During our fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2023, none of our directors or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended) entered into, modified (as to amount, price or timing of trades) or terminated (i) contracts, instructions or written plans for the
purchase or sale of our securities that are intended to satisfy the conditions specified in Rule 10b5-1(c) under the Exchange Act for an affirmative defense
against liability for trading in securities on the basis of material nonpublic information or (ii) non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangements (as defined in Item

408(c) of Regulation S-K).
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

Exhibit 3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Cabot Corporation effective January 9, 2009 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
3.1 of Cabot’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2008, file reference 1-5667, filed
with the SEC on February 9, 2009).

Exhibit 3.2* The By-laws of Cabot Corporation as amended May 11, 2023

Exhibit 10.1* Amendment No. 1, dated as of April 21, 2023, to Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021, by and among_ Cabot
Corporation, the designated borrowers, the lenders party thereto, and the Administrative Agent

Exhibit 10.2* Amendment No. 2, dated as of July 27, 2023 to Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021, by and among_Cabot Corporation,
the designated borrowers, the lenders party thereto, and the Administrative Agent

Exhibit 10.3* Credit Agreement, dated as of May 17, 2023, among_certain subsidiaries of Cabot Corporation, guaranteed by Cabot
Corporation, PNC Bank, National Association, ING Bank. N.V., Dublin branch, U.S. Bank National Association, and Mizuho Bank,
Ltd.

Exhibit 31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)_or Rule 15d-14(a)_of the Exchange Act.

Exhibit 31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)_or Rule 15d-14(a)_of the Exchange Act.

Exhibit 32** Certifications of the Principal Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Exhibit 101.INS*

Exhibit 101.SCH*

Exhibit 101.CAL*

Exhibit 101.DEF*

Exhibit 101.LAB*

Exhibit 101.PRE*

Exhibit 104*

Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

The cover page from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023, formatted in Inline
XBRL (included in Exhibit 101).

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 8, 2023

Date: August 8, 2023

CABOT CORPORATION

By: /s/ EricA McLAUGHLIN

Erica McLaughlin
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer)

By: /s/ Lisa M. DumonT

Lisa M. Dumont

Vice President and Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 3.2

BY-LAWS
OF
CABOT CORPORATION

(As Amended through May 11, 2023)
Section 1. LAW, CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS

1.1 These by-laws are subject to the certificate of incorporation of the corporation. In these by-laws, references to law, the certificate of incorporation and
by-laws mean all applicable law, the provisions of the certificate of incorporation of the corporation and these by-laws as from time to time in effect.

Section 2. STOCKHOLDERS

2.1 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of stockholders shall be held on such date and at such time as shall be designated by the board of directors each
year (which date and time may subsequently be changed at any time, including the year any such designation occurs).

2.2 Special Meetings. A special meeting of the stockholders may be called at any time by the board of directors. Any such call shall state the place, if any,
time, and purposes of the meeting and the means of remote communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be deemed present and
vote at such meeting.

2.3 Place of Meeting; Adjournment. Meetings of the stockholders may be held at such place within or without the State of Delaware as may be designated
by the board of directors in the call thereof. The board of directors may, in its sole discretion, determine that a meeting of the stockholders shall not be held
at any place, but may instead be held solely by means of remote communication in the manner authorized by the Delaware General Corporation Law. When
any meeting is convened, the officer presiding at such meeting, if directed by the board of directors, may adjourn the meeting for a period of time not to
exceed 30 days if (a) no quorum is present for the transaction of business or (b) the board of directors determines that adjournment is necessary or
appropriate to enable the stockholders (i) to consider fully information which the board of directors determines has not been made sufficiently or timely
available to stockholders or (ii) otherwise to exercise effectively their voting rights. Notice of an adjourned meeting shall be given in the manner provided
in Section 2.4 of these by-laws.

2.4 Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law, a written notice of each meeting of stockholders stating the place, if any, day and hour
thereof, the means of remote communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be deemed present and vote at such meeting and, in the
case of a special meeting, the purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given not less than ten nor more than 60 days before the meeting, to each
stockholder entitled to vote thereat, and to each stockholder who, by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, is entitled to notice, by
leaving such notice at the stockholder’s residence or usual place of business, or by depositing it in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to
such stockholder at the stockholder’s address as it appears in the records of the corporation. Such notice shall be given by the secretary or an assistant
secretary, or in the case of their death, incapacity or refusal, by another officer or person designated by the board of directors. As to any adjourned session
of any meeting of stockholders, notice of the adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place, if any, thereof and the means of remote
communications, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be deemed present and vote at such postponed meeting are provided in accordance
with the Delaware General Corporation Law, except that if the adjournment is for more than 30 days or if after the adjournment a new record date is set for
the adjourned session, notice of any such adjourned session of the meeting shall be given in the manner heretofore described. No notice of any meeting of
stockholders or any adjourned session thereof need be given to a stockholder if a written waiver of notice, executed before or after the meeting or such
adjourned session by such stockholder, is filed with the records of the meeting or if the stockholder attends such meeting without objecting at the beginning
of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the
purpose of, any meeting of the stockholders or any adjourned session thereof need be specified in any written waiver of notice.



2.5 Quorum of Stockholders. At any meeting of the stockholders, a quorum as to any matter shall consist of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on the
matter, except where a larger quorum is required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws. If a quorum is present at an original
meeting, a quorum need not be present at an adjourned session of that meeting. Shares of its own stock belonging to the corporation or to another
corporation, if a majority of the shares entitled to vote in the election of directors of such other corporation is held, directly or indirectly, by the corporation,
shall neither be entitled to vote nor be counted for quorum purposes; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not limit the right of any corporation to
vote stock, including but not limited to its own stock, held by it in a fiduciary capacity.

2.6 Required Vote for Election of Directors. When a quorum is present at any meeting, a nominee for director shall be elected if the votes properly cast for
such nominee’s election exceed the votes properly cast against such nominee’s election (abstentions shall not be considered to be votes cast); provided,
however, that the directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes properly cast at any meeting of stockholders for which (i) the corporation receives a
notice that a stockholder has nominated a person for election as a director in compliance with the provisions for advance notice of nominations in Section
2.12 of these by-laws and (ii) such nomination has not been withdrawn on or prior to the tenth day preceding the date on which the corporation mails notice
of the meeting to the stockholders. If nominees for director are to be elected by a plurality of the votes properly cast, stockholders shall not be permitted to
vote against a nominee.

2.7 Required Vote for Other Matters. When a quorum is present at any meeting, a majority of the votes properly cast shall decide the question, except as
otherwise required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws. If the corporation issues fractional shares of stock entitled to vote,
holders of such fractional shares shall be entitled to exercise voting rights.

2.8 No Action Without Meetings. Any action required or permitted to be taken by stockholders of the corporation must be taken at a duly called annual or
special meeting of the corporation and may not be taken by any consent in writing by such stockholders.

2.9 Proxy Representation. Every stockholder may authorize another person or persons to act for him or her by proxy in all matters in which a stockholder is
entitled to participate, whether by waiving notice of any meeting, objecting to or voting or participating at a meeting. Every proxy must be signed by the
stockholder or by his or her attorney-in-fact. No proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three years from its date unless such proxy provides for a longer
period. A duly executed proxy shall be irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable and, if, and only as long as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient in law
to support an irrevocable power. A proxy may be made irrevocable regardless of whether the interest with which it is coupled is an interest in the stock
itself or an interest in the corporation generally. The authorization of a proxy may but need not be limited to specified action; provided, however, that if a
proxy limits its authorization to a meeting or meetings of stockholders, unless otherwise specifically provided, such proxy shall entitle the holder thereof to
vote at any adjourned session but shall not be valid after the final adjournment thereof. Any stockholder directly or indirectly soliciting proxies from other
stockholders must use a proxy card color other than white, which shall be reserved for exclusive use by the corporation.

2.10 Inspectors. The directors or the person presiding at the meeting shall appoint one or more inspectors of election and may appoint any substitute
inspectors to act at the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his or her duties, shall take and sign an
oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspector at such meeting with strict impartiality and according to the best of his or her ability. The inspector or
inspectors shall have the duties prescribed by law. On request of the person presiding at the meeting, the inspectors shall make a report in writing of any
challenge, question or matter determined by them and execute a certificate of any fact found by them.

2.11 List of Stockholders. The secretary shall prepare and make, or cause to be prepared and made, no later than the 10th day before each meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at such meeting, arranged in alphabetical order and showing the address of each
stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. The original or duplicate stock ledger shall be the only evidence as to who
are stockholders entitled to examine such list or to vote in person or by proxy at such meeting.

2.12 Advance Notice of Stockholder Proposals and Nominations. Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors prior to a meeting of the
stockholders, the officer presiding at such meeting, determined in accordance with these by-laws, shall determine the order of business and shall have the
authority in his or her discretion to regulate
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the conduct of such meeting, including, without limitation, to impose restrictions on the persons (other than stockholders of the corporation or their duly
appointed proxies) who may attend such meeting, to regulate and restrict the making of statements or asking of questions at such meeting and to cause the
removal from such meeting of any person who has disrupted or appears likely to disrupt the proceedings at such meeting.

At a meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly brought before the meeting. To be properly brought
before any meeting of the stockholders, nominations of directors and the proposals of other business to be conducted must be (a) specified in the notice of
meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at the direction of the board of directors, (b) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by or at the
direction of the board of directors, or (c) properly brought before the meeting by a stockholder who is a stockholder of record at the time of the giving by
such stockholder of the notice provided for in this Section 2.12 below, who shall be entitled to vote for such matters at the meeting and who complies with
the requirements of this Section 2.12 with respect to any business sought to be brought before the meeting or the nomination of directors. Clause (c) of this
paragraph shall be the exclusive means for a stockholder to make nominations or propose other business (other than matters properly brought under Rule
14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and included in the Corporation’s notice of meeting) before a meeting
of the stockholders. In addition, unless the board of directors has determined that directors will be elected at a special meeting of the stockholders, no
stockholder may nominate directors for election at any special meeting of the stockholders.

In addition, for business to be properly brought before a meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must appear at the meeting to present such business; if
the stockholder does not appear, any such proposal or nomination shall be disregarded and such proposed business shall not be transacted, notwithstanding
that proxies in respect of such vote may have been received by the corporation.

In addition to any other applicable requirements, in order for any proposal or nomination to be properly brought before the meeting by a stockholder (other
than a stockholder proposal included in the corporation’s proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act) the stockholder must have given
timely notice thereof in writing to the secretary of the corporation. To be timely, (a) with respect to an annual meeting of the stockholders held pursuant to
Section 2.1 of these by-laws, a stockholder’s notice must be received at the principal executive offices of the corporation not less than 90 days nor more
than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders; provided, however, in the event that the annual
meeting of stockholders is called for a date (including any change in a date designated by the board of directors pursuant to Section 2.1) more than 60 days
prior to such anniversary date, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so received not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the
day on which public disclosure of the date of such meeting was made, and (b) with respect to a special meeting of the stockholders held pursuant to Section
2.2 of these by-laws, a stockholder’s notice must be received at the principal executive offices of the corporation by the close of business on the 10th day
following the day on which public disclosure of the date of such meeting was made. In no event shall any adjournment or postponement of an annual or
special meeting of the stockholders or the announcement thereof commence a new time period for the delivery of such notice by a stockholder. For the
avoidance of doubt, a stockholder shall not be entitled to make additional or substitute nominations following the expiration of the time periods set forth in
these by-laws for timely written notice.

A stockholder’s notice to the secretary shall set forth as to each proposal or nomination the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting (a) the name
and address of the stockholder making such proposal, (b) the class and number of shares of capital stock of the corporation directly or indirectly held of
record, owned beneficially and represented by proxy by such stockholder as of the date of such notice by the stockholder, (c) a representation that such
stockholder is a holder of record or beneficial owner, as the case may be, of shares of the corporation entitled to vote at the meeting and intend to appear in
person at the meeting, (d) any “derivative security” (as that term is defined in Rule 16a-1(c) under the Exchange Act) directly or indirectly owned
beneficially by the stockholder and any other “pecuniary interest” or “indirect pecuniary interest” (as those terms are defined in Rule 16a-1(a)(2) under the
Exchange Act) in the shares of capital stock of the corporation, (e) any proxy, contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship pursuant to which such
stockholder has a right to vote any securities of the corporation, (f) any performance-related fees (other than an asset-based fee) that such stockholder is
entitled to based on any increase or decrease in the value of the shares of stock of the corporation, (g) a certification as to whether or not such stockholder
has complied with all applicable federal, state and other legal requirements in
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connection with such stockholder’s acquisition of shares of capital stock or other securities of the corporation, (h) a representation as to whether such
stockholder intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of proxy to holders of a sufficient number of holders of the corporation’s voting shares to elect
such nominee or nominees and, if applicable, in accordance with Rule 14a-19 under the Exchange Act, or to carry such proposal, (i) to the extent known by
such stockholder, the name and address of any other stockholder supporting the proposal on the date of such stockholder’s notice, and (j) all other
information that would be required to be included in a proxy statement required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission if, with respect to
any such proposal or nomination, such stockholder were a participant in a solicitation subject to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act (the “Proxy
Rules”).

In addition, if the notice involves a proposal for business, a stockholder’s notice to the secretary shall set forth as to each proposal a brief description of the
proposal desired to be brought before the meeting, the reasons for making such proposal at the meeting and any material interest that the stockholder has in
the proposal. If the notice involves the nomination of a director, a stockholder’s notice to the secretary shall set forth (a) as to each person whom the
stockholder proposes to nominate for election or re-election as a director, (i) the name, age, business address or residence address of the person, (ii) the
principal occupation or employment of the person, (iii) the class and number of shares of capital stock of the corporation, if any, which are beneficially
owned by the person, the date or dates on which such shares were acquired and the investment intent of such acquisition, (iv) a representation that the
person is not and will not become a party to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether written or oral) with, and has not given any
commitment or assurance to, any person or entity as to how such person, if elected as a director of the corporation, will act or vote on any issue or question
that has not been disclosed to the corporation or that could limit or interfere with such person’s ability to comply, if elected a director of the corporation,
with such person’s fiduciary duties under applicable law, (v) any other information relating to the nominee as would be required to be included in a proxy
statement or other filings required to be filed pursuant to the Proxy Rules (including without limitation the written consent of the nominee to being named
in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serve as a director if elected) and (vi) a statement signed by the person confirming that, if elected, he or she will
comply with the corporation’s Global Ethics and Compliance Standards, Policy on Transactions in Securities, Corporate Governance Guidelines and any
other applicable rule, regulation, policy or standard of conduct applicable to the directors; and (b) as to the stockholder giving the notice, (i) a
representation that the stockholder intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in the notice, (ii) a
representation as to whether such stockholder intends to solicit proxies or votes from stockholders for any director nominees in accordance with Rule 14a-
19 under the Exchange Act, and (iii) a description of all direct and indirect compensation and other material monetary arrangements, agreements or
understandings during the past three years, and any other material relationship, if any, between or concerning the stockholder and its respective affiliates or
associates, or others with whom they are acting in concert, on the one hand, and each person nominated by the stockholder, and his or her respective
affiliates, associates and others with whom any of them are acting in concert on the other hand. In addition, any person nominated by the stockholder shall
complete a questionnaire, in a form available from the corporation, and such completed questionnaire shall be submitted with the stockholder notice
contemplated by this Section 2.12.

If the stockholder holds its shares by or through a nominee, the information required to be provided in a notice of the stockholder contemplated by this
Section 2.12 shall be provided about the person who has the power to direct the voting and disposition of the shares of capital stock of the corporation and
who has a pecuniary interest in such shares in lieu of the stockholder.

A stockholder shall further update and supplement its notice of any nomination to be brought before a meeting, if necessary, so that the information
provided or required to be provided in such notice pursuant to this Section 2.12 shall be true and correct (a) as of the record date for the meeting and (b) as
of the date that is ten business days prior to the meeting or any adjournment, recess, rescheduling or postponement thereof. Such update and supplement
shall be delivered to the secretary not later than three business days after the later of the record date or the date notice of the record date is first publicly
announced (in the case of the update and supplement required to be made as of the record date for the meeting) and not later than seven business days prior
to the date for the meeting, if practicable (or, if not practicable, on the first practicable date prior to the meeting), or any adjournment, recess, rescheduling
or postponement thereof (in the case of the update and supplement required to be made as of ten business days prior to the meeting or any adjournment,
recess, rescheduling or postponement thereof).
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Notwithstanding anything in the by-laws to the contrary, no business pertaining to this Section 2.12 shall be conducted at any meeting except in accordance
with the procedures set forth in this Section 2.12. The officer presiding at the meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine and declare to the meeting that
any proposal or nomination, as the case may be, was not properly brought before the meeting in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2.12 and, if
the presiding officer should so determine, any proposal not properly brought before the meeting shall not be discussed or voted on and any defective
nomination shall be disregarded.

2.15 Rule 14a-19(b). Without limiting the other provisions and requirements of this Section 2, unless otherwise required by law, if any stockholder (a)
provides notice pursuant to Rule 14a-19(b) under the Exchange Act and (b) subsequently fails to comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-19(a)(2) and
Rule 14a-19(a)(3) under the Exchange Act, then the corporation shall disregard any proxies or votes solicited for such stockholder’s nominees. Upon
request by the corporation, if any stockholder provides notice pursuant to Rule 14a-19(b) under the Exchange Act, such stockholder shall deliver to the
corporation, no later than five business days prior to the applicable meeting, reasonable evidence that it has met the requirements of Rule 14a-19(a)(3)
under the Exchange Act.

Section 3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1 Number. The number of directors which shall constitute the whole board shall be not less than three nor more than 17 in number. Within the foregoing
limits, the board of directors shall determine the number of directors, and the number of directors may be increased at any time or from time to time by the
directors by vote of a majority of the directors then in office. The number of directors may be decreased to any number permitted by the foregoing at any
time by the directors by vote of a majority of the directors then in office. The directors shall be classified, with respect to the time for which they severally
hold office, into three classes as nearly equal in number as possible: one class whose term expired at the first annual meeting of stockholders after January
21, 1969 (the “Adoption Date”); one class whose term expired at the second annual meeting of stockholders after the Adoption Date; and another class
whose term expired at the third annual meeting of stockholders after the Adoption Date, with each such class holding office until its successors were
elected and qualified. At each annual meeting of stockholders after the Adoption Date, the successors of the class of directors whose term expires at that
meeting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election.
Directors need not be stockholders.

3.2 Tenure. Except as otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, each director shall hold office until a successor is
elected and qualified, or until such director sooner dies, resigns or is removed.

3.3 Powers. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the board of directors who shall have and may
exercise all the powers of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by law, the certificate of incorporation or these by-laws directed
or required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.

3.4 Vacancies of Directors. Vacancies and any newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors may be filled by a
majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. Any director or directors so chosen shall hold office
until the annual meeting of stockholders at which the term of office of the class to which they have been elected expires and until their successors are duly
elected and shall qualify, unless they sooner die, resign or are removed. The directors shall have and may exercise all their powers notwithstanding the
existence of one or more vacancies in their number, subject to any requirements of law or of the certificate of incorporation or of these by-laws as to the
number of directors required for a quorum or for any vote or other actions.

3.5 Committees. Subject to Section 3.6 of these by-laws, the board of directors may, by vote of a majority of the whole board, (a) designate, change the
membership of or terminate the existence of any committee or committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the directors; (b) designate one or
more directors as alternate members of any such committee who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee; and (c)
determine the extent to which each such committee shall have and may exercise the powers of the board of directors in the management of the business and
affairs of the corporation, including the power to authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers which require it and the power and
authority to declare dividends or to
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authorize the issuance of stock; excepting, however, such powers which by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws they are prohibited
from so delegating. In the absence or disqualification of any member of such committee and his or her alternate, if any, the member or members thereof
present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not constituting a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the board of
directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member. Except as the board of directors may otherwise determine, any
committee may make rules for the conduct of its business, but unless otherwise provided by the board or such rules, its business shall be conducted as
nearly as may be in the same manner as is provided by these by-laws for the conduct of business by the board of directors. Each committee shall keep
regular minutes of its meetings and report the same to the board of directors upon request.

3.6 Executive Committee. The board of directors shall, by vote of a majority of the whole board, elect from its own number an executive committee, to
consist of not less than two members in addition to the chief executive officer, and may from time to time designate or alter, within the limits permitted by
this Section 3.6, the duties and powers of such committee, or change its membership.

The executive committee shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the board of directors in the management of the business and affairs
of the corporation to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, and may authorize the seal of the corporation to be
affixed to all papers which may require it, including the power and authority to declare a dividend, to authorize the issuance of stock and to adopt a
certificate of ownership and merger; provided that the executive committee shall not have the power or authority in reference to amending the certificate of
incorporation of this corporation (except that the executive committee may, to the extent authorized in the vote or votes providing for the issuance of shares
of stock adopted by the board of directors, fix the designations and any of the preferences or rights of such shares or fix the number of shares of any series
of stock or authorize the increase or decrease of the shares of any series), adopting an agreement of merger or consolidation, recommending to the
stockholders the sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the corporation’s property and assets, recommending to the stockholders a dissolution
of the corporation or a revocation of a dissolution, amending these by-laws, electing or appointing the chief executive officer, treasurer or secretary or
filling vacancies in the board of directors or the executive committee. Each member of the executive committee shall hold office until the first meeting of
the board of directors following the next annual meeting of the stockholders and until his or her successor is elected and qualified, or until he or she sooner
dies, resigns, is removed, or becomes disqualified by ceasing to be a director. One-third of the members of the executive committee then in office, but in no
case less than two members, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of
the votes cast upon the question, whether or not a quorum is present, and the meeting may be held as adjourned without further notice.

3.7 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the board of directors may be held without call or notice at such places (if any) within or without the State of
Delaware and at such times as the board may from time to time determine; notice of the first regular meeting following any such determination shall be
given to absent directors. A regular meeting of the directors may be held without call or notice immediately after and at the same place as the annual
meeting of stockholders.

3.8 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board of directors may be held at any time and at any place (if any) within or without the State of Delaware
designated in the notice of the meeting, when called by the chairman of the board, the vice chairman of the board, the president, or by two or more
directors, reasonable notice thereof being given to each director by the secretary or an assistant secretary or by the chairman of the board, the vice chairman
of the board, the president or by any one of the directors calling the meeting.

3.9 Notice. It shall be reasonable and sufficient notice to a director to send notice by mail at least 48 hours before the meeting addressed to such director at
his or her usual or last known business or residence address or to give notice to a director in person or by telephone or electronic communication at least 24
hours before the meeting. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director if a written waiver of notice, executed by a director before or after the
meeting, is filed with the records of the meeting, or to any director who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement the
lack of notice to such director. Neither notice of a meeting nor a waiver of a notice need specify the purposes of the meeting.

3.10 Quorum. Except as may be otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, at any meeting of the directors a
majority of the directors then in office shall constitute a quorum, but in no case less
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than two directors. Any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of the votes cast upon the question, whether or not a quorum is present,
and the meeting may be held as adjourned without further notice.

3.11 Action by Vote. Except as may be otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, when a quorum is present at any
meeting the vote of a majority of the directors present shall be the act of the board of directors.

3.12 Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the board of directors or a committee thereof may be taken
without a meeting if all the members of the board or of such committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and such writing or writings are
filed with the records of the meetings of the board or of such committee. Such consent shall be treated for all purposes as the act of the board or of such
committee, as the case may be.

3.13 Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone. Members of the board of directors, or any committee designated by such board, may participate in
a meeting of such board or committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating
in the meeting can hear each other or by any other means permitted by law. Such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

3.14 Compensation. In the discretion of the board of directors, the directors may be paid their expenses, if any, of attendance at each meeting of the board
of directors and may be paid a fixed sum for attendance at each meeting of the board of directors or a stated salary as director. Nothing contained in this
section shall be construed to preclude any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor. Members of
special or standing committees may be allowed like compensation for attending committee meetings.

3.15 Interested Directors and Officers.

(a) No contract or transaction between the corporation and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the corporation and any other corporation,
partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of the corporation’s directors or officers are directors or officers, or have a financial
interest, shall be void or voidable solely for this reason, or solely because the director or officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the board or
committee thereof which authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because the vote or votes of such director or officer are counted for such purpose,
if:

(1) The material facts as to the relationship or interest of such director or officer and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the board
of directors or the committee, and the board or committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of the
disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less than a quorum; or

(2) The material facts as to the relationship or interest of such director or officer and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the
stockholders entitled to vote thereon, and the contract or transaction is specifically approved in good faith by vote of the stockholders; or

(3) The contract or transaction is fair as to the corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified, by the board of directors, a committee
thereof, or the stockholders.

(b) Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the board of directors or of a committee which
authorizes the contract or transaction.

Section 4. OFFICERS AND AGENTS

4.1 Enumeration;_Qualification. The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a treasurer, a secretary and such other officers, if any, as the board of
directors from time to time may in its discretion elect or appoint including without limitation a chief financial officer, one or more other vice presidents, a
general counsel and a controller. The corporation may also have such agents, if any, as the board of directors from time to time may in its discretion choose.
Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.

4.2 Powers. Subject to law, to the certificate of incorporation and to the other provisions of these by-laws, each officer shall have, in addition to the duties
and powers herein set forth, such duties and powers as are commonly



incident to his or her office and such additional duties and powers as the board of directors may from time to time designate.

4.3 Election. The officers may be elected by the board of directors at their first meeting following the annual meeting of the stockholders or at any other
time. At any time or from time to time the directors may delegate to any officer their power to elect or appoint any other officer or any agents.

4.4 Tenure. Officers shall hold office until the first meeting of the board of directors following the next annual meeting of the stockholders and until their
respective successors are chosen and qualified unless a shorter period shall have been specified by the terms of their election or appointment, or in each
case until they sooner die, resign, are removed or become disqualified. Agents shall retain their authority at the pleasure of the directors, or the officer by
whom they were appointed or by the officer who then holds agent appointive power.

4.5 President and Vice President. The president shall have such duties and powers as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors or by
the chief executive officer. Any vice presidents shall have such duties and powers as shall be set forth in these by-laws or as shall be designated from time
to time by the board of directors or by the chief executive officer.

4.6 Chief Financial Officer. The chief financial officer of the corporation shall be responsible for developing, recommending and implementing financial
policies of the corporation and have general responsibility for protecting its financial position. The chief financial officer shall represent the corporation
with banks and other financial institutions.

4.7 General Counsel and Assistant General Counsels. The general counsel shall be the chief counseling officer of the corporation in all legal matters and,
subject to the oversight by the board of directors, the general counsel shall have charge of all matters of legal import to the corporation. The general
counsel’s relationship to the corporation shall in all respects be that of an attorney to a client. The general counsel shall have charge of all litigation of the
corporation and keep advised of the progress of all legal proceedings and claims by and against the corporation, or in which it is interested by reason of its
ownership and control of other corporations. The general counsel shall maintain records of all suits and actions of every nature in which the corporation
may be a party, or in which it is interested and such records and the papers relating thereto shall be open at all times to the inspection of the directors and
the executive officers of the corporation.

The general counsel may, in his or her discretion, retain such independent attorneys, or law firms, in any and all parts of the world, as the general counsel
may deem necessary to assist him or her in the performance of his or her duties and to protect and further the interests of the corporation.

The general counsel shall have power and authority to execute in the name of the corporation any and all bonds or stipulations for costs or other purposes
connected with legal proceedings in any of the courts of justice, for the protection or enforcement of the rights and interest of this corporation; and, by
instrument in writing, the general counsel may delegate to any such authority like power and authority to execute such bonds or stipulations.

The assistant general counsel, or, if there are more than one, the assistant general counsels, shall, in the order determined by the general counsel, in the
absence or disability of the general counsel perform the duties and exercise the powers of the general counsel and shall perform such other duties and have
such other powers as the board of directors and the general counsel may from time to time prescribe.

4.8 Treasurer and Assistant Treasurers. The treasurer shall be in charge of the corporate funds and securities and shall keep, or cause to be kept, full and
accurate account of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the corporation and shall deposit or cause to be deposited all monies and other
valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the corporation. The treasurer may invest surplus funds in such investments as the treasurer shall deem
appropriate and pursuant to this authority may buy and sell securities on behalf of the corporation from time to time. The treasurer shall disburse or cause to
be disbursed the funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the board of directors, the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer or such other
officer as the chief financial officer may from time to time designate, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements. The treasurer shall be subject to the
direction of the chief financial officer.
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The assistant treasurer, if any, shall in the absence or disability of the treasurer perform the duties and exercise the powers of the treasurer and shall perform
such other duties and have such other powers as the board of directors and the treasurer may from time to time prescribe and shall be subject to the
direction of the treasurer.

4.9 Controller and Assistant Controllers. The controller shall be the chief accounting officer of the corporation, shall be in charge of its books of account
and accounting records, and shall be in charge of the corporation’s accounting policies and procedures. The controller shall be subject to the direction of the
chief financial officer. The controller shall, with the approval of the board of directors, arrange for annual audits by independent public accounts.

The assistant controller, if any, shall in the absence or disability of the controller perform the duties and exercise the powers of the controller and shall
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the board of directors and the controller may from time to time prescribe and shall be subject to
the direction of the controller.

4.10 Secretary and Assistant Secretaries. The secretary shall record all proceedings of the meetings of the stockholders and of the board of directors and its
committees in a book or books to be kept for that purpose and shall file therein all actions by written consent of directors. The secretary shall give or cause
to be given notice of all meetings of the stockholders and meetings of the board of directors and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the
board of directors or by the chief executive officer. The secretary shall keep in safe custody the seal of the corporation and, when authorized by the board of
directors, the chief executive officer, or these by-laws, affix the same to any instrument requiring it and, when so affixed, it shall be attested by the
secretary’s signature or by the signature of an assistant secretary.

The secretary shall have charge of the stock ledger (which may, however, be kept by any transfer agent or agents of the corporation under the direction of
the secretary).

The assistant secretary, or if there are more than one, the assistant secretaries, in the order determined by the secretary, shall in the absence or disability of
the secretary perform the duties and exercise the powers of the secretary and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the board of
directors and the secretary may from time to time prescribe.

Section 5. RESIGNATIONS AND REMOVALS

5.1 Any director or officer may resign at any time by delivering his or her resignation in writing to the chairman of the board, any vice chairman of the
board, the president, or the secretary or to a meeting of the board of directors. Such resignation shall be effective upon receipt unless specified to be
effective at some other time, and without in either case the necessity of its being accepted unless the resignation shall so state. A director (including persons
elected by directors to fill vacancies in the board) may be removed from office with cause by the vote of the holders of a majority of the shares issued and
outstanding and entitled to vote in the election of directors. The board of directors may at any time remove any officer either with or without cause. The
board of directors may at any time terminate or modify the authority of any agent. Except where a right to receive compensation shall be expressly
provided in a duly authorized written agreement with the corporation or severance or other benefit plan or arrangement approved by the board of directors,
no director or officer resigning and no director or officer removed shall have any right to any compensation as such director or officer for any period
following such director’s or officer’s resignation or removal, or any right to damages on account of such removal, whether such compensation be by the
month or by the year or otherwise; unless, in the case of a resignation, the directors, or, in the case of removal, the body acting on the removal, shall in their
or its discretion provide for compensation.

Section 6. VACANCIES OF OFFICERS

6.1 If the office of any officer becomes vacant, the directors may elect a successor by vote of a majority of the directors present and voting at a meeting.
Such successors shall hold office for the unexpired term, and until their respective successors are chosen and qualified or in each case until they sooner die,
resign, are removed or become disqualified. Any vacancy of a directorship shall be filled as specified in Section 3.4 of these by-laws.
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Section 7. CAPITAL STOCK

7.1 Stock Certificates. The shares of capital stock of the corporation shall be represented by certificates, provided that the board of directors may provide
by resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all classes or series of stock shall be uncertificated shares. Any such resolution shall not apply to
shares represented by a certificate until such certificate is surrendered to the corporation. Every holder of stock represented by certificates shall be entitled
to a certificate stating the number and the class and the designation of the series, if any, of the shares held by him or her, in such form as shall, in
conformity to law, the certificate of incorporation and the by-laws, be prescribed from time to time by the board of directors. Such certificate shall be
signed by any two authorized officers of the corporation. Any of or all the signatures on the certificate may be a facsimile. In case an officer, transfer agent,
or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed on such certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent, or registrar
before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he or she were such officer, transfer agent, or registrar at the
time of its issue.

7.2 Loss of Certificates. In the case of the alleged theft, loss, destruction or mutilation of a certificate of stock, a duplicate certificate may be issued in place
thereof, upon such terms, including receipt of a bond sufficient to indemnify the corporation against any claim on account thereof, as the board of directors
may prescribe.

Section 8. TRANSFER OF SHARES OF STOCK

8.1 Transfer on Books. Subject to the restrictions, if any, stated or noted on the stock certificate, or otherwise in force, shares of stock may be transferred on
the books of the corporation by the surrender to the corporation or its transfer agent of the certificate therefor properly endorsed or accompanied by a
written assignment and power of attorney properly executed, with necessary transfer stamps affixed, and with such proof of the authenticity of signature as
the board of directors or the transfer agent of the corporation may reasonably require. Uncertificated shares of stock may be transferred on the books of the
corporation upon receipt of proper transfer instructions from the registered owner of the uncertificated shares, an instruction from an approved source duly
authorized by such owner or from an attorney lawfully constituted. Except as may be otherwise required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by
these by-laws, the corporation shall be entitled to treat the record holder of stock as shown on its books as the owner of such stock for all purposes,
including the payment of dividends and the right to receive notice and to vote or to give any consent with respect thereto and to be held liable for such calls
and assessments, if any, as may lawfully be made thereon, regardless of any transfer, pledge or other disposition of such stock until the shares have been
properly transferred on the books of the corporation.

8.2 Record Date and Closing Transfer Books. In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of
stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the board of directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the vote
fixing the record date is adopted by the board of directors, and which record date shall not be more than 60 days nor less than ten days before the date of
such meeting. If no such record date is fixed by the board of directors, the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of
business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the board of directors may fix a new record date for the
adjourned meeting. In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend declared pursuant to Section 9
of these by-laws or other distribution or allotment of any rights or to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock, or for
the purpose of any other lawful action, the board of directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the vote fixing
the record date is adopted, and which record date shall be not more than 60 days prior to such payment, exercise or other action. If no such record date is
fixed, the record date for determining stockholders for any such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the board of directors adopts
the vote relating thereto.
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Section 9. DIVIDENDS

9.1 Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation, subject to the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, if any, may be declared by the board of
directors at any regular or special meeting, pursuant to law. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the capital stock, subject to the
provisions of the certificate of incorporation.

Section 10. CONTRIBUTIONS

10.1 The directors of this corporation are authorized to make charitable contributions as defined in the United States Internal Revenue Code, as from time
to time amended, in such amounts as the directors may determine to be reasonable.

Section 11. CORPORATE SEAL

11.1 Subject to alteration by the directors, the seal of the corporation shall consist of a flat-faced circular die with the word “Delaware” and the name of the
corporation cut or engraved thereon, together with such other words, dates or images as may be approved from time to time by the directors. The corporate
seal of the corporation may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise.

Section 12. EXECUTION OF PAPERS

12.1 Except as the board of directors may generally or in particular cases authorize the execution thereof in some other manner, all deeds, leases, transfers,
sales of securities, contracts, proxies, bonds, notes, checks, drafts and other obligations, agreements and undertakings made, accepted or endorsed by the
corporation shall be signed by the chairman of the board, the vice chairman of the board, the president, any vice president or the treasurer, and, if such
papers require a seal, the seal of the corporation shall be affixed thereto and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary.

Section 13. FISCAL YEAR

13.1 Except as from time to time otherwise provided by the board of directors, the fiscal year of the corporation shall commence on the first day of October
of each year.

Section 14. INDEMNIFICATION

14.1 The corporation shall, to the maximum extent permitted from time to time under the law of the State of Delaware, indemnify and upon request shall
advance expenses to any person who is or was a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit, proceeding,
claim or counterclaim, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such person is or was or has agreed to be a director,
officer, employee or agent of this corporation or while a director, officer, employee or agent is or was serving at the request of this corporation as a director,
officer, partner, trustee, fiduciary, employee or agent of any corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect
to employee benefit plans, against expenses (including attorney’s fees and expenses), judgments, fines, penalties and amounts paid in settlement or incurred
in connection with the investigation, preparation to defend or defense of such action, suit, proceeding, claim or counterclaim; provided, however, that the
foregoing shall not require this corporation to indemnify or advance expenses to any person in connection with any action, suit, proceeding, claim or
counterclaim initiated by or on behalf of such person, other than an action to enforce indemnification rights. Such indemnification shall not be exclusive of
other indemnification rights arising under any agreement, vote of directors or stockholders or otherwise and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and legal
representatives of such person. Any such person seeking indemnification under this Section 14.1 shall be deemed to have met the standard of conduct
required for
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such indemnification unless the contrary shall be established. The corporation shall have the power to provide indemnification and advance expenses to any
other person, including stockholders purporting to act on behalf of the corporation, to the extent permitted by the law of the State of Delaware.

Section 15. AMENDMENTS

15.1 These by-laws may be altered, amended or repealed by (i) the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 75 percent of the voting power of the then
outstanding shares of stock of all classes and series of this corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class
or (ii) a vote of the majority of the directors then in office at any annual, regular or special stockholders or directors meeting, called for that purpose, the
notice of which shall specify the subject matter of the proposed new by-law or the alteration, amendment or repeal of an existing by-law or the articles to be
affected thereby. Any by-law, whether made, altered, amended or repealed by the stockholders or directors, may be repealed, amended, further amended or
reinstated, as the case may be, by either the stockholders or the directors as aforesaid.

Section 16. EXCLUSIVE FORUM

16.1 Exclusive Forum. Unless the corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any
derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the corporation, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director or
officer or other employee of the corporation to the corporation or the corporation’s stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim against the corporation or
any director or officer or other employee of the corporation arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law or the certificate of
incorporation or these by-laws (as either may be amended from time to time), or (iv) any action asserting a claim against the corporation or any director or
officer or other employee of the corporation governed by the internal affairs doctrine shall be a state court located within the State of Delaware (or, if no
state court located within the State of Delaware has jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware), in all cases subject to the court’s
having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as defendants. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in the
shares of capital stock of the corporation will be deemed to have notice of and consented to the provisions of this Section 16.

16.2 Foreign Actions. If any Foreign Action (as defined below) is filed in the name of any stockholder, such stockholder will be deemed to have consented
to (i) the personal jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located within the State of Delaware in connection with any action brought in any such court to
enforce Section 16.1 above (an “FSC Enforcement Action”) and (ii) having service of process made upon such stockholder in any such FSC Enforcement
Action by service upon such stockholder’s counsel in the Foreign Action as agent for such stockholder. A “Foreign Action” means any action the subject
matter of which is within the scope of Section 16.1 that is filed in a court other than a court located within the State of Delaware.
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Exhibit 10.1
EXECUTION COPY

AMENDMENT NO. 1
Dated as of April 21, 2023
to
CREDIT AGREEMENT
Dated as of August 6, 2021

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (this “Amendment”) is made as of April 21, 2023 by and among Cabot Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), the Lenders party hereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as administrative agent for
the Lenders (the “Administrative Agent”), under that certain Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021, by and among the Company, the
Designated Borrowers from time to time party thereto, the Lenders from time to time party thereto and the Administrative Agent (as
amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time prior to the date hereof, the “Credit Agreement”). Capitalized
terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings given to them in the Credit Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Company requested that the requisite Lenders agree to make certain amendments to the Credit
Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Company, the Lenders party hereto and the Administrative Agent have agreed to amend the Credit
Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above, the terms and conditions contained herein, and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company, the Lenders party hereto
and the Administrative Agent hereby agree to enter into this Amendment.

1. Amendments to the Credit Agreement. Effective as of the date of satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth
in Section 2 below (such date, the “Amendment Effective Date”) the parties hereto agree that the Credit Agreement (including the Exhibits
thereto) shall be amended to delete the stricken text (indicated textually in the same manner as the following example: strieken-text) and to
add the double-underlined text (indicated textually in the same manner as the following example: double-underlined text) as set forth in the
pages of the Credit Agreement (including the Exhibits thereto) attached as Annex A hereto (the Credit Agreement as so amended, the
“Amended Credit Agreement”).

2. Conditions of Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective as of the first date on which each of the
following conditions shall have been satisfied:

(@) The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received counterparts of this Amendment duly executed by the
Company, each of the Lenders, each of the Issuing Banks, the Swingline Lender and the Administrative Agent.

(b) The Administrative Agent shall have received, or, substantially concurrently herewith shall receive, all fees and

other amounts due and payable on or prior to the Amendment Effective Date, including, to the extent invoiced, reimbursement or payment of
all out-of-pocket expenses required to be reimbursed or paid by the Borrowers pursuant to the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement.

|US-DOCS\139062026.4]|



The Administrative Agent shall notify the Company and the Lenders of the Amendment Effective Date, and such notice shall be
conclusive and binding.

3. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Lenders on
the Amendment Effective Date that each of this Amendment and the Amended Credit Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding
obligation of each Borrower, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in
a proceeding in equity or at law.

4. Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreement.

(@) From and after the effectiveness of the amendment to the Credit Agreement evidenced hereby, the terms
“Agreement”, “this Agreement”, “herein”, “hereinafter”, “hereto”, “hereof” and words of similar import, as used in the Amended Credit
Agreement, shall, unless the context otherwise requires, refer to the Amended Credit Agreement, and the term “Credit Agreement”, as used in
the other Loan Documents, shall mean the Amended Credit Agreement.

(b)  Each Loan Document and all other documents, instruments and agreements executed and/or delivered in connection
therewith shall remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed.

(c)  The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right, power or
remedy of the Administrative Agent or the Lenders, nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Credit Agreement, the Loan Documents or
any other documents, instruments and agreements executed and/or delivered in connection therewith.

(d)  This Amendment shall be a Loan Document.

5. Governing Law;_Jurisdiction. This Amendment shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the law of
the State of New York.

6. Headings. Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not
constitute a part of this Amendment for any other purpose.

7. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by one or more of the parties hereto on any number of separate
counterparts, and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. The words “execution,”
“signed,” “signature,” “delivery,” and words of like import in or relating to this Amendment and/or any document to be signed in connection
with this Amendment and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be deemed to include Electronic Signatures (as defined below),
electronic deliveries or the keeping of records in electronic form, each of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as
a manually executed signature, physical delivery thereof or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be. As used
herein, “Electronic Signatures” means any electronic symbol or process attached to, or associated with, any contract or other record and
adopted by a person with the intent to sign, authenticate or accept such contract or record.

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered by their respective
authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

CABOT CORPORATION,
as the Company and a Borrower

By:_/s/ Steven J. Delahunt
Name: Steven J. Delahunt
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,
individually as a Lender, as an Issuing Bank, as the Swingline Lender and as
the Administrative Agent

By:_/s/ Jonathan Bennett
Name: Jonathan Bennett
Title: Executive Director

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



CITIBANK, N.A.,
individually as a Lender and as an Issuing Bank

By:_/s/ Stephanie Epkins
Name: Stephanie Epkins
Title: Director

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



MIZUHO BANK, LTD.,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Donna DeMagistris

Name: Donna DeMagistris
Title: Executive Director

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



TORONTO DOMINION BANK, NEW YORK BRANCH,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Victoria Roberts
Name: Victoria Roberts
Title: Authorized Signatory

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Robert C. Morgan
Name: Robert C. Morgan
Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Kelsey Hunter

Name: Kelsey Hunter
Title: Vice President

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Christopher S. Allen
Name: Christopher S. Allen
Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



BANK OF CHINA, NEW YORK BRANCH,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Raymond Qiao
Name: Raymond Qiao
Title: Executive Vice President

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Mourad Liousfi
Name: Mourad Liousfi
Title: Vice President

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation



HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender

By:_/s/ Andrew Everett
Name: Andrew Everett
Title: Senior Vice President
Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to
Credit Agreement dated as of August 6, 2021
Cabot Corporation
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CREDIT AGREEMENT
dated as of

August 6, 2021,

among

CABOT CORPORATION
and Certain of its Subsidiaries,

as Borrowers,
The Lenders Party Hereto
and

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,
as Lead Left Bookrunner and Administrative Agent

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., and
CITIBANK, N.A,,
as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners,

CITIBANK, N.A,,
as Syndication Agent

MIZUHO BANK, LTD.,
TD SECURITIES (USA) LLC
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. and
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Joint Lead Arrangers and Co-Documentation Agents

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Co-Documentation Agent

and
J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES LLC and

MIZUHO BANK, LTD,,
as Co-Sustainability Structuring Agents
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CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated as of August 6, 2021, among CABOT CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation
(the “Company”), certain Subsidiaries of the Company from time to time party hereto pursuant to Section 2.23 (each, a “Designated
Borrower” and, together with the Company, the “Borrowers” and each, a “Borrower”), the LENDERS from time to time party hereto, and
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Administrative Agent.
The parties hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE I

Definitions

SECTION 1.01Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings specified below:

“ABR”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing,
bear interest at a rate determined by reference to the Alternate Base Rate._All ABR Loans shall be denominated in U.S. Dollars.

“Acquisition”, by any Person, means the acquisition by such Person (other than a transaction that would be classified as a capital
expenditure in accordance with GAAP), in a single transaction or in a series of related transactions, of all or any substantial portion
(constituting a separate business unit) of the assets of another Person or at least a majority of the Equity Interests with ordinary voting power
of another Person, in each case whether or not involving a merger or consolidation with such other Person and whether for cash, property,
services, assumption of Indebtedness, securities or otherwise.

“Act” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.14.

“Adjusted AUD Rate” means, with respect to any Fureetrrereylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Australian Dollars for
any Interest Period, an interest rate per annum equal to (a) the AUD Rate for such Interest Period multiplied by (b) the Statutory Reserve
Rate.

“Adjusted CDOR Rate” means, with respect to any Eureeurrereylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Canadian Dollars for
any Interest Period, an interest rate per annum equal to (a) the CDOR Rate for such Interest Period multiplied by (b) the Statutory Reserve
Rate.

“Adjusted FERIBO-RateDaily Simple RFR” means, (i)_with respect to any EureetrrereyREFR Borrowing denominated in Ewure—for-
any-Interest-PeriodPounds Sterling, an interest rate per annum equal to the Daily Simple RFR for Pounds Sterling, (ii)_with respect to any_
RFR Borrowing denominated in Swiss Francs an interest rate Rper annum equal to the Daily Simple RFR for Swiss Francs, (iii) with respect

}nfefesEPeﬂed—mﬂ}&phed—by—fbﬁhe—Stﬁﬂﬁeﬁ%esefve—RafeDaﬂv Slmple RFR for U.S. Dollars, plus (b)_0.10%.

“Adjusted EFBOEURIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eurectrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Euro for any
Interest Period, an interest rate per annum frounded-upwards;, ifnecessary;to-the-next Ht6-of +%)-equal to (a) the HHBOEURIBO Rate for

such Interest Period multiplied by (b) the Statutory Reserve Rate.
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“Adjusted SIBOTerm SOFR Rate” means, with respect to any Ftroeurrereylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in
SingaporelU.S. Dollars for any Interest Period, an interest rate per annum equal to (a) the SH BSGTerm SOFR Rate for such Interest Period-

mtttiphied-by-(b)-the-Statutery ReserveRate,_plus (b)_0.10%;_provided that if the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate as so determined would be less
than the Floor, such rate shall be deemed to be equal to the Floor for the purposes of this Agreement.

“Adjusted TIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eturoeetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen for any
Interest Period, an interest rate per annum equal to (a) the TIBO Rate for such Interest Period multiplied by (b) the Statutory Reserve Rate.

“Administrative Agent” means JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (including its subsidiaries and Affiliates), in its capacity as
administrative agent for the Lenders hereunder.

“Administrative Questionnaire” means an Administrative Questionnaire in a form supplied by the Administrative Agent.
“Affected Financial Institution” means (a) any EEA Financial Institution or (b) any UK Financial Institution.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to a specified Person, another Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
Controls or is Controlled by or is under common Control with the Person specified.

“Agent-Related Person” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.03(c).

“Agreed Currencies” means (a) U.S. Dollars, (b) Euro, (c) Pounds Sterling, (d) Swiss Francs, (e) Australian Dollars, (f) Japanese
Yen, (g) Canadian Dollars, (h) Singapore Dollars and (i) any other Foreign Currency acceptable to all of the Lenders and the Issuing Banks.

“Agreement” has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.

“Alternate Base Rate” means, for any day, a rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such day, (b) the
NYFRB Rate in effect on such day plus ¥ of 1% and (c) the Adjusted EH36Term SOFR Rate for a one month Interest Period enas published
two U.S. Government Securities Business Days prior to such day (or if such day is not a U.S. Government Securities Business Day, the
immediately preceding U.S. Government Securities Business Day) plus 1%, provrded that for the purpose of thrs definition, the Ad]usted
EHBBTerm SOFR Rate for any day shall be based on the he A
{-n*cerest—Pertod—t-he—I:I-Be—Iﬂferpﬁ-}afed—Rafe)Term SOFR Reference Rate at approx1rnately %Pee—a—m—keﬂdeﬂ—&me—eﬂ—srﬁ*h—&ay—btﬁ—s-hﬂﬁ-
e 15:00 a.m.,_
Chrcago time, on such day | (or any arnended publication time for the Term SOFR Reference Rate, as sDecrfled by the CME Term SOFR
Administrator in the Term SOFR Reference Rate methodology). Any change in the Alternate Base Rate due to a change in the Prime Rate,
the NYFRB Rate or the Adjusted EHB6Term SOFR Rate shall be effective from and including the effective date of such change in the Prime
Rate, the NYFRB Rate or the Adjusted 5H36Term SOFR Rate, respectively. If the Alternate Base Rate is being used as an alternate rate of
interest pursuant to Section 2.14 (for the avoidance of doubt, only until the Benchmark Replacement has been determined pursuant to Section
2.14(b)), then the Alternate Base Rate shall be the greater of clauses (a) and (b) above and shall be determined without reference to clause (c)
above. For the avoidance of doubt, if the Alternate Base Rate as determined pursuant
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to the foregoing would be less than 1.00%, such rate shall be deemed to be 1.00% for purposes of this Agreement.

“Amendment No. 1 Effective Date” means April 21, 2023.

“Ancillary Document” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.06(b).
“Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.12(a).

“Anti-Corruption Laws” means all laws, rules, and regulations of any jurisdiction applicable to any Borrower or any of its
Affiliates from time to time concerning or relating to bribery or corruption.

“Applicable Margins” means the “EurecurreneyTerm Benchmark/RFR/CBR Spread” per annum rate levels at each Tier under such
heading and the “ABR/Canadian Prime Rate/Japanese Prime Rate Spread” per annum rate levels at each Tier under such heading, in each
case as set forth in the table contained in the definition of “Applicable Rate”.

“Applicable Percentage” means, with respect to any Lender, the percentage of the total Commitments represented by such Lender’s
Commitment; provided that in the case of Section 2.20 when a Defaulting Lender shall exist, “Applicable Percentage” shall mean the
percentage of the total Commitments (disregarding any Defaulting Lender’s Commitment) represented by such Lender’s Commitment. If the
Commitments have terminated or expired, the Applicable Percentages shall be determined based upon the Revolving Credit Exposure then in
effect, giving effect to any assignments and to any Lender’s status as a Defaulting Lender at the time of determination.

“Applicable Rate” means, for any day, with respect to (i)_any (x).ABR Loan, E—uf@Eﬂrreﬂey—Eeaﬁ—Canadian Prime Rate Loan—RF—R—

under the caption “Term Benchmark/RFR/CBR Spread”, or w1th respect to (11) the fac1hty fees payable hereunder as the case may be, the
applicable rate per annum set forth below under the caption “ABRACana e—Spr y
“Facility Fee Rate”, as the case may be, based upon the ratings by Moody’s and S&P, respectlvely, apphcable on such date to the Index Debt:

EuarocurreneyTerm.
Benchmark/RFR/ ABR/Canadian Prime
CBR Rate/Japanese Prime
Tier Ratings Spread Rate Spread Facility Fee Rate
1 2A2/A 0.680% 0% 0.070%
<A2/A
1 . ;‘g‘“} N 0.900% 0% 0.100%
<A3/A-
and
I > Baal / BBB+ 1.000% 0% 0.125%
v < Bfaéag ZB]/SSEBa“d 1.100% 0.100% 0.150%




v < Baa3/BBB- 1.200% 0.200% 0.175%

For purposes of the foregoing, (i) if either Moody’s or S&P shall not have in effect a rating for the Index Debt (other than by reason
of the circumstances referred to in the last sentence of this definition), then such rating agency shall be deemed to have established a rating
equivalent to the Moody’s or S&P, as applicable, rating then in effect (unless the absence of any such rating is due to the termination of the
ratings engagement by the Company with Moody’s or S&P, as applicable, in which case, the applicable rating shall be deemed to be Tier V);
(ii) if the ratings established or deemed to have been established by Moody’s and S&P for the Index Debt shall fall within different Tiers, the
Applicable Rate shall be based on the higher of the two ratings unless one of the two ratings is two or more Tiers lower than the other, in
which case the Applicable Rate shall be determined by reference to the Tier next above that of the lower of the two ratings; and (iii) if the
ratings established or deemed to have been established by Moody’s and S&P for the Index Debt shall be changed (other than as a result of a
change in the rating system of Moody’s or S&P), such change shall be effective as of the date on which it is first announced by the applicable
rating agency, irrespective of when notice of such change shall have been furnished by the Company to the Administrative Agent and the
Lenders pursuant to Section 5.01 or otherwise. Each change in the Applicable Rate shall apply during the period commencing on the
effective date of such change and ending on the date immediately preceding the effective date of the next such change. If the rating system
of Moody’s or S&P shall change, or if either such rating agency shall cease to be in the business of rating corporate debt obligations, the
Company and the Lenders shall negotiate in good faith to amend this definition to reflect such changed rating system or the unavailability of
ratings from such rating agency and, pending the effectiveness of any such amendment, the Applicable Rate shall be determined by reference
to the rating most recently in effect prior to such change or cessation.

It is hereby understood and agreed that (a) the Facility Fee Rate shall be adjusted from time to time based upon the Sustainability
Fee Adjustment (as defined and to be calculated and applied as set forth in Schedule 1.01) and (b) the Applicable Margins shall be adjusted
from time to time based upon the Sustainability Margin Adjustment (as defined and to be calculated and applied as set forth in Schedule
1.01); provided that in no event shall any of the Facility Rate or any Applicable Margin be less than 0% per annum.

“Applicant Borrower” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.23(b).

“Approved Fund” means any Person (other than a natural person) that is engaged in making, purchasing, holding or investing in
bank loans and similar extensions of credit in the ordinary course of its business and that is administered or managed by (a) a Lender, (b) an
Affiliate of a Lender or (c) an entity or an Affiliate of an entity that administers or manages a Lender.

“Arrangers” means, collectively, (i) JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Citibank, N.A., in their capacity as Joint Lead Arrangers and
Joint Bookrunners, and (ii) Mizuho Bank, Ltd., TD Securities (USA) LLC, Bank of America, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Association, in
their capacity as Joint Lead Arrangers.

“Assignment and Assumption” means an assignment and assumption entered into by a Lender and an assignee (with the consent of
any party whose consent is required by Section 10.04), and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in the form of Exhibit A or any other form
approved by the Administrative Agent.




“AUD Rate” means, with respect to any EurecurreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Australian Dollars and for any
Interest Period, the AUD Screen Rate at approximately 11:00 a.m., Sydney, Australia time, on the first day of such Interest Period:provided-

N «

“AUD Screen Rate” means, for any day and time, for any Interest Period, the average bid reference rate administered by ASX
Benchmarks Pty Limited (ACN 616 075 417) (or any other Person that takes over the administration of such rate) for Australian dollar bills
of exchange with a tenor equal in length to such Interest Period as displayed on page BBSY of the Reuters screen (or, in the event such rate
does not appear on such Reuters page, on any successor or substitute page on such screen that displays such rate, or on the appropriate page
of such other information service that publishes such rate as shall be selected by the Administrative Agent from time to time in its reasonable
discretion). If the AUD Screen Rate as so determined would be less than zero, the AUD Screen Rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes
of this Agreement.

“Augmenting Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(a).
“Australian Dollars” means the lawful currency of Australia.

“Availability Period” means the period from and including the Effective Date to but excluding the earlier of the Maturity Date and
the date of termination of the Commitments.

“Available Tenor” means, as of any date of determination and with respect to the then-current Benchmark for any Agreed Currency,
as applicable, any tenor for such Benchmark (or component thereof) or payment period for interest calculated with reference to such
Benchmark (or component thereof), as applicable, that is or may be used for determining the length of an Interest Period for any term rate or
otherwise, for determining any frequency of making payments of interest calculated pursuant to this Agreement as of such date and not
including, for the avoidance of doubt, any tenor for such Benchmark that is then-removed from the definition of “Interest Period” pursuant to
clause (f) of Section 2.14.

“Bail-In Action” means the exercise of any Write-Down and Conversion Powers by the applicable Resolution Authority in respect
of any liability of an Affected Financial Institution.

“Bail-In Legislation” means (a) with respect to any EEA Member Country implementing Article 55 of Directive 2014/59/EU of the
European Parliament and of the Council of the European Union, the implementing law, regulation, rule or requirement for such EEA Member
Country from time to time which is described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule and (b) with respect to the United Kingdom, Part I of
the United Kingdom Banking Act 2009 (as amended from time to time) and any other law, regulation or rule applicable in the United
Kingdom relating to the resolution of unsound or failing banks, investment firms or other financial institutions or their affiliates (other than
through liquidation, administration or other insolvency proceedings).
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“Bankruptcy Code” means Title 11 of the United States Code entitled “Bankruptcy”, as now and hereafter in effect, or any
successor statute.

“Bankruptcy Event” means, with respect to any Person, such Person becomes the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding,
or has had a receiver, conservator, trustee, administrator, custodian, assignee for the benefit of creditors or similar Person charged with the
reorganization or liquidation of its business appointed for it, or, in the good faith determination of the Administrative Agent, has taken any
action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of, or acquiescence in, any such proceeding or appointment, provided that a
Bankruptcy Event shall not result solely by virtue of any ownership interest, or the acquisition of any ownership interest, in such Person by a
Governmental Authority or instrumentality thereof, unless such ownership interest results in or provides such Person with immunity from the
jurisdiction of courts within the United States of America or from the enforcement of judgments or writs of attachment on its assets or permit
such Person (or such Governmental Authority or instrumentality) to reject, repudiate, disavow or disaffirm any contracts or agreements made
by such Person.

“Benchmark” means, initially, with respect to any (i) RFR Loan in any Agreed Currency, the applicable Relevant Adjusted Rate for
such Agreed Currency or (ii) Exreetirreneylerm Benchmark Loan in any Agreed Currency, the Relevant Ad]usted Rate for such Agreed
Currency; provided that if a Benchmark Transition Event: F
Rate—FElection,—as—apptieable,—and-its and the related Benchmark Replacement Date have occurred wrth respect to the apphcable Relevant
Adjusted Rate or the then-current Benchmark for such Agreed Currency, then “Benchmark” means the applicable Benchmark Replacement to
the extent that such Benchmark Replacement has replaced such prior benchmark rate pursuant to clause (b) eretatse-tej-of Section 2.14.

3) “Benchmark Replacement” means, with respect to any Benchmark Transition Event in respect of an Agreed Currency, the
sum of: (a) the alternate benchmark rate that has been selected by the Administrative Agent and the Company as the replacement for the then-
current Benchmark for the applicable Corresponding Tenor giving due consideration to (i) any selection or recommendation of a replacement
benchmark rate or the mechanism for determining such a rate by the Relevant Governmental Body or (ii) any evolving or then-prevailing
market convention for determining a benchmark rate as a replacement for the then-current Benchmark for syndicated credit facilities
denominated in the applicable Agreed Currency at such time in the United States and (b) the related Benchmark Replacement Adjustment;
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Hprovided that if the Benchmark Replacement as-determinea-purstant-to-etatuse{H;(2-or(3)abeve-would be less than the Floor,

the Benchmark Replacement will be deemed to be the Floor for the purposes of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

“Benchmark Replacement Adjustment” means, with respect to any replacement of the then-current Benchmark in respect of a
specified currency with an Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement for any applicable Interest Period and Available Tenor for any setting of such
Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement:

etermining h-spread-adjtstmen hieh-m ve-or e e-or-zero), that has been selected by the Admlmstratlve Agent
and the Company for the apphcable Correspondmg Tenor giving due c0n51derat10n to (i) any selection or recommendation of a spread
adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, for the replacement of such Benchmark with the applicable
Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement by the Relevant Governmental Body on the applicable Benchmark Replacement Date and/or (ii) any
evolving or then-prevailing market convention for determining a spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread
adjustment, for the replacement of such Benchmark with the applicable Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement for syndicated credit facilities
denominated in the applicable Agreed Currency at such time in the United States;.




“Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes” means, with respect to any Benchmark Replacement_and/or any Term
Benchmark Revolving Loan denominated in U.S. Dollars, any technical, administrative or operational changes (including changes to the
definition of “Alternate Base Rate,” the definition of “Business Day,” the definition of “U.S. Government Securities Business Day,” the
definition of “RFR Business Day,” the definition of “Interest Period,” timing and frequency of determining rates and making payments of
interest, timing of borrowing requests or prepayment, conversion or continuation notices, length of lookback periods, the applicability of
breakage provisions, and other technical, administrative or operational matters) that the Administrative Agent decides, after consultation with
the Company, may be appropriate to reflect the adoption and implementation of such Benchmark Reptacemtent—and to permit the
administration thereof by the Administrative Agent in a manner substantially consistent with market practice (or, if the Administrative Agent
decides that adoption of any portion of such market practice is not administratively feasible or if the Administrative Agent determines, after
consultation with the Company, that no market practice for the administration of such Benchmark Reptacement-exists, in such other manner
of administration as the Administrative Agent decides, after consultation with the Company, is reasonably necessary in connection with the
administration of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents).

“Benchmark Replacement Date” means, with respect to any Benchmark, the earliest to occur of the following events with respect
to such then-current Benchmark:

(1) in the case of clause (1) or (2) of the definition of “Benchmark Transition Event,” the later of (a) the date of the
public statement or publication of information referenced therein and (b) the date on which the administrator of such Benchmark (or
the published component used in the calculation thereof) permanently or indefinitely ceases to provide all Available Tenors of such
Benchmark (or such component thereof);_or

(2) in the case of clause (3) of the definition of “Benchmark Transition Event,” the first date on which such Benchmark
(or the published component used in the calculation thereof) has been determined and announced by the regulatory supervisor for
the administrator of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) to be no longer representative; provided;— that such non-
representativeness will be determined by reference to the most recent statement or publication referenced in such clause (3) and
even if any Available Tenor of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) continues to be provided on such date;.

For the avoidance of doubt, (i) if the event giving rise to the Benchmark Replacement Date occurs on the same day as, but
earlier than, the Reference Time in respect of any determination, the Benchmark Replacement Date will be deemed to have
occurred prior to the Reference Time for such determination and (ii) the “Benchmark Replacement Date” will be deemed to have
occurred in the case of clause (1) or (2) with respect to any Benchmark upon the occurrence of the applicable
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event or events set forth therein with respect to all then-current Available Tenors of such Benchmark (or the published component
used in the calculation thereof).

“Benchmark Transition Event” means, with respect to any Benchmark, the occurrence of one or more of the following events with
respect to such then-current Benchmark:

(1) a public statement or publication of information by or on behalf of the administrator of such Benchmark (or the
published component used in the calculation thereof) announcing that such administrator has ceased or will cease to provide all
Available Tenors of such Benchmark (or such component thereof), permanently or indefinitely;; provided that, at the time of such
statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that will continue to provide any Available Tenor of such Benchmark
(or such component thereof);

(2) a public statement or publication of information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such
Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof), the Board, the NYFRB, the CME Term SOFR

Administrator, the central bank for the Agreed Currency applicable to such Benchmark, an insolvency official with jurisdiction over
the administrator for such Benchmark (or such component), a resolution authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for such
Benchmark (or such component) or a court or an entity with similar insolvency or resolution authority over the administrator for
such Benchmark (or such component), in each case which states that the administrator of such Benchmark (or such component) has
ceased or will cease to provide all Available Tenors of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) permanently or indefinitely;
provided that, at the time of such statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that will continue to provide any
Available Tenor of such Benchmark (or such component thereof); or

(3) a public statement or publication of information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such
Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof) announcing that all Available Tenors of such Benchmark
(or such component thereof) are no longer, or as of a specified future date will no longer be, representative.

For the avoidance of doubt, a “Benchmark Transition Event” will be deemed to have occurred with respect to any
Benchmark if a public statement or publication of information set forth above has occurred with respect to each then-current
Available Tenor of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof).

“Benchmark Unavailability Period” means, with respect to any Benchmark, the period (if any) (x) beginning at the time that a
Benchmark Replacement Date pursuant to clauses (1) or (2) of that definition has occurred if, at such time, no Benchmark Replacement has
replaced such then-current Benchmark for all purposes hereunder and under any Loan Document in accordance with Section 2.14 and (y)
ending at the time that a Benchmark Replacement has replaced such then-current Benchmark for all purposes hereunder and under any Loan
Document in accordance with Section 2.14.

“Beneficial Ownership Certification” means a certification regarding beneficial ownership as required by the Beneficial
Ownership Regulation.

“Beneficial Ownership Regulation” means 31 C.F.R. § 1010.230.
“Benefit Plan” means any of (a) an “employee benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA) that is subject to Title I of
ERISA, (b) a “plan” as defined in Section 4975 of the Code to which Section 4975 of the Code applies, and (c) any Person whose assets

include (for purposes of the Plan Asset
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Regulations or otherwise for purposes of Title I of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code) the assets of any such “employee benefit plan” or
‘Eplan)i'

“BHC Act Affiliate” of a party means an “affiliate” (as such term is defined under, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 U.S.C.
1841(k)) of such party.

“Board” means the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States of America.
“Borrower” and “Borrowers” each has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.

“Borrower DTTP Filing” means an HM Revenue & Customs’ Form DTTP2, duly completed and filed by the relevant Borrower
within the applicable time limit, which contains the scheme reference number and jurisdiction of tax residence provided by the applicable
Lender to the Company and the Administrative Agent.

“Borrowing” means (a) Revolving Loans of the same Type and currency, made, converted or continued on the same date and, in the
case of Euroetrreneylerm Benchmark Loans, as to which a single Interest Period is in effect, or (b) a Swingline Loan.

“Borrowing Request” means a request by the Company, for itself or on behalf of a Designated Borrower, for a Revolving
Borrowing in accordance with Section 2.03.

“Business Day” means, any day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are open for business in New York City;
Drov1ded that,_in addition to the foregomg, a Business Day shall be (1) in relation to the-ealetlationorcomputation-of LIBOR;any-day(other-

S A &y w a endenLoans referencing the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate and any_
interest rate settmgs fundmgs dlsbursements settlements or payments of any such Loans referencing the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate or any_
other dealings of such Loans referencing the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate, any such day that is a U.S. Government Securities Business Day, (ii)
in relation to Loans denominated in Japanese Yen and in relation to the calculation or computation of ¥H36Rthe TIBO Rate, any day (other
than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are open for business in Japan, (iii) in relation to Loans denominated in Euro and in relation to
the calculation or computation of EbRIBORthe EURIBO Rate, any day which is a TARGET Day, (iv) in relation to Loans denominated in
Canadian Dollars and in relation to the calculation or computation of the CDOR Rate, any day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which
banks are open for business in Toronto, Canada, (v) in relation to Loans denominated in Australian Dollars and in relation to the calculation
or computation of BBS¥the AUD Rate, any day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on Wthh banks are open for busmess in Sydney,
Australia; or (vi) in relation At 3 g ars— ¢ €4 .

Rday W bttsine rretation-to RFR Loans and any mterest rate
settings, fundmgs dlsbursements settlements or payments of any such RFR Loan, or any other dealings in the applicable Agreed Currency of
such RFR Loan, any such day that is only an RFR Business Day.

“Canadian Borrower” means any Borrower that is organized under the laws of Canada or any province thereof.
“Canadian Dollars” means the lawful currency of Canada.

“Canadian Prime Rate” means, on any day, the rate determined by the Administrative Agent to be the higher of (i) the rate equal to
the PRIMCAN Index rate that appears on the Bloomberg screen at 10:15
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a.m. Toronto time on such day (or, in the event that the PRIMCAN Index is not published by Bloomberg, any other information services that
publishes such index from time to time, as selected by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion) and (ii) the average rate for
thirty (30) day Canadian Dollar bankers’ acceptances that appears on the Reuters Screen CDOR Page (or, in the event such rate does not
appear on such page or screen, on any successor or substitute page or screen that displays such rate, or on the appropriate page of such other
information service that publishes such rate from time to time, as selected by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion) at 10:15
a.m. Toronto time on such day_(“CDOR”), plus 1% per annum; provided, that if any of the above rates shall be less than zero, such rate shall
be deemed to be zero for purposes of this Agreement. Any change in the Canadian Prime Rate due to a change in the PRIMCAN Index or
CDOR shall be effective from and including the effective date of such change in the PRIMCAN Index or CDOR, respectively.

“Canadian Prime Rate Loan” means a Loan which bears interest at the Canadian Prime Rate.

“Capital Lease Obligations” of any Person means the obligations of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or
other arrangement conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be
classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such Person under GAAP, and the amount of such obligations shall be the
capitalized amount thereof determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Cash Equivalents” of any Person means cash equivalents as classified or accounted for as cash equivalents on the balance sheet of
such Person in accordance with GAAP.

“CBR Loan” means a Loan that bears interest at a rate determined by reference to the Central Bank Rate.

13 »

“CDOR Rate” means, with respect to any Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Canadian Dollars and for any
Interest Period, the CDOR Screen Rate at approx1mately 10:15 a.m., Toronto tlme on the first day of such Interest Penod—pfeﬂded—t-h-a-t—rf-

“CDOR Screen Rate” means, for any day and time, with respect to any Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in
Canadian Dollars and for any Interest Period, the annual rate of interest equal to the average rate applicable to Canadian dollar Canadian
bankers’ acceptances for the applicable period that appears on the “Reuters Screen CDOR Page” as defined in the International Swap Dealer
Association, Inc. definitions, as modified and amended from time to time (or, in the event such rate does not appear on such page or screen,
on any successor or substitute page or screen that displays such rate, or on the appropriate page of such other information service that
publishes such rate from time to time,
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as selected by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion), rounded to the nearest 1/100™ of 1% (with .005% being rounded up),_as
of 10:15 a.m. Toronto time on the first day of such Interest Period and,_if such day is not a Business Day, then on the immediately preceding_
Business Day (as adjusted by Administrative Agent after 10:15 a.m. Toronto time to reflect any error in the posted rate of interest or in the

posted average annual rate of interest). If the CDOR Screen Rate as so determined would be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be
zero for the purposes of this Agreement.

“Central Bank Rate” means;{Aj)- the greater of (i) (A) for any Loan denominated in (a) Pounds Sterling, the Bank of England (or
any successor thereto)’s “Bank Rate” as published by the Bank of England (or any successor thereto) from time to time, (b) Euro, one of the
following three rates as may be selected by the Administrative Agent_in its reasonable discretion: (1) the fixed rate for the main refinancing
operations of the European Central Bank (or any successor thereto), or, if that rate is not published, the minimum bid rate for the main
refinancing operations of the European Central Bank (or any successor thereto), each as published by the European Central Bank (or any
successor thereto) from time to time, (2) the rate for the marginal lending facility of the European Central Bank (or any successor thereto), as
published by the European Central Bank (or any successor thereto) from time to time or (3) the rate for the deposit facility of the central
banking system of the Participating Member States, as published by the European Central Bank (or any successor thereto) from time to time,
(c) Swiss Francs, the policy rate of the Swiss National Bank (or any successor thereto) as pubhshed by the Swiss National Bank (or any
successor thereto) from time to time; and (d) Japane 5 e e Reed he

suecessor-thereto)-from-time-to-time-and-(ej)-any other Forergn Currency, a Central bank rate as deterrnrned by the Adrnrnrstratrve Agent in its
reasonable discretion-anei)-6%; plus (B) the applicable Central Bank Rate Adjustment_and (ii)_the Floor.

“Central Bank Rate Adjustment” means, for any day, for any Loan denominated in:

(a) Pounds Sterling, a rate equal to the difference (which may be a positive or negative value or zero) of (x) the average of
SGN{AAdiusted DailV SirnDle RFR for Pounds Sterling Borrowings for the five (5) most recent RFR Business Days preceding such day for

the lowest SONtAsuch Adjusted Daily Simple RER applicable during such period of five (5) RFR Business Days) minus (y) the Central
Bank Rate in respect of Pounds Sterling in effect on the last RFR Business Day in such period,

(b) Swiss Francs, a rate equal to the difference (which may be a positive or negative value or zero) of (x) the average of
SAROGNAdjusted Daily Simple RFR for Swiss Franc Borrowings for the five (5) most recent RFR Business Days preceding such day for
which SARON was available (excluding, from such averaging, the highest and the lowest SARONsuch Adjusted Daily Simple RFR
applicable during such period of five (5) RFR Business Days) minus (y) the Central Bank Rate in respect of Swiss Francs in effect on the last
RFR Business Day in such period,

(c) Euro, a rate equal to the difference (which may be a positive or negative value or zero) of (x) the average of the EURIBO Rate
for the five (5) most recent Business Days preceding such day for which the EURIBO Screen Rate was available (excluding, from such
averaging, the highest and the lowest EURIBO Rate applicable during such period of five (5) Business Days) minus (y) the Central Bank
Rate in respect of Euro in effect on the last Business Day in such period,
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(fd) Australian Dollars, a rate equal to the difference (which may be a positive or negative value or zero) of (x) the average of the
AUD Rate for the five (5) most recent Business Days preceding such day for which the AUD Screen Rate was available (excluding, from
such averaging, the highest and the lowest AUD Rate applicable during such period of five (5) Business Days) minus (y) the Central Bank
Rate in respect of Australian Dollars in effect on the last Business Day in such period, and

(ke) any other Foreign Currency, an adjustment as determined by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion.

For purposes of this definition, (x) the term Central Bank Rate shall be determined disregarding clause (i)(B) of the definition of
such term and (y) each applicable Relevant Rate on any day shall be based on the applicable Relevant Screen Rate in respect of such
applicable Relevant Rate, as applicable, on such day at approxunately the time referred to in the deflnltlon of such terrn for deposrts in the
apphcable Forelgn Currency for a rnaturlty of one month or11 v ele eet g

as-of-sueh-time); provrded that if such rate shall be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero.

“Change in Control” means an event or series of events by which:

(a) any “person” or “group” (as such terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, but
excluding members of the Cabot family, any employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries, and any person or entity acting in its
capacity as trustee, agent or other fiduciary or administrator of any such plan) becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and
13d-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except that a person or group shall be deemed to have “beneficial ownership” of all
securities that such person or group has the right to acquire (such right, an “option right”), whether such right is exercisable immediately or
only after the passage of time), directly or indirectly, of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the equity securities of the Company entitled to
vote for members of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Company on a fully-diluted basis (and taking into account all
such securities that such person or group has the right to acquire pursuant to any option right); or

(b) during any period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months, a majority of the members of the board of directors or other
equivalent governing body of the Company cease to be composed of individuals (i) who were members of that board or equivalent governing
body on the first day of such period, (ii) whose election or nomination to that board or equivalent governing body was approved by
individuals referred to
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in clause (i) above constituting at the time of such election or nomination at least a majority of that board or equivalent governing body or
(iii) whose election or nomination to that board or other equivalent governing body was approved by individuals referred to in clauses (i) and
(ii) above constituting at the time of such election or nomination at least a majority of that board or equivalent governing body.

“Change in Law” means (a) the adoption of or taking effect of any law, rule, regulation, or treaty (including any rules or regulations
issued under or implementing any existing law) after the date of this Agreement, (b) any change in any law, rule, regulation or treaty or in the
interpretation or application thereof by any Governmental Authority after the date of this Agreement or (c) compliance by any Lender or the
Issuing Bank (or by any applicable lending office of such Lender or the Issuing Bank) with any request, guideline or directive (whether or not
having the force of law) of any Governmental Authority made or issued after the date of this Agreement; provided that, notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, (x) the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and all requests, rules, guidelines or
directives thereunder or issued in connection therewith or in implementation thereof, and (y) all requests, rules, guidelines or directives
promulgated by the Bank for International Settlements, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (or any successor or similar authority)
or the United States of America or foreign regulatory authorities, in each case under Basel III, shall in each case be deemed to be a “Change
in Law” regardless of the date enacted, adopted, issued or implemented.

“Charges” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.13.

“Class”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing,
are Revolving Loans or Swingline Loans.

“CME Term SOFR Administrator” means CME Group Benchmark Administration Limited as administrator of the forward-looking_
term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR)_(or a successor administrator).

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Commitment” means, with respect to each Lender, the commitment of such Lender to make Revolving Loans and to acquire
participations in Letters of Credit and Swingline Loans hereunder, expressed as an amount representing the maximum aggregate amount of
such Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure hereunder, as such commitment may be (a) reduced from time to time pursuant to Section 2.09, (b)
reduced or increased from time to time pursuant to assignments by or to such Lender pursuant to Section 10.04, and (c) increased from time
to time pursuant to Section 2.21. The initial amount of each Lender’s Commitment is set forth on Schedule 2.01, or in the Assignment and
Assumption pursuant to which such Lender shall have assumed its Commitment, as applicable. The initial aggregate amount of the Lenders’
Commitments is $1,000,000,000.

“Company” has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.
“Compliance Certificate” means a certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit E.
“Computation Date” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.04.

“Consolidated” or “consolidated” means, with reference to any term defined herein, that term as applied to the accounts of the
Company and its Subsidiaries, consolidated in accordance with GAAP.
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“Consolidated EBITDA” means, with reference to any period, Consolidated Net Income for such period plus (a) without
duplication, to the extent deducted from revenues in determining such Consolidated Net Income, (i) interest expense (including capitalized
interest, premium payments, debt discount, fees, charges and related expenses in connection with all Indebtedness, including for the deferred
purchase price of assets and services, and fees and charges incurred under any Securitization Transactions), (ii) the provision for federal,
state, local, foreign or other income taxes payable, (iii) depreciation expense, (iv) amortization expense, (v) non-cash stock-based
compensation expense, (vi) any extraordinary, unusual or non-recurring expenses, losses and charges, including (A) impairment charges, (B)
any restructuring charges or restructuring reversals, (C) any loss from the sales of assets outside the ordinary course of business, (D) costs
related to acquisitions and dispositions, including transaction costs (whether or not the transaction is consummated), charges for the sale of
inventories revalued at the date of acquisition and in-process research and development acquired, and the amortization of acquisition-related
intangible assets, and (E) amortization or write-off of debt discount and debt issuance costs and commissions, discounts, debt refinancing
costs and commissions and other fees and charges associated with Indebtedness, and (vii) other non-cash charges and expenses, minus (b) to
the extent included in such Consolidated Net Income, (i) all non-cash income or gains, (ii) interest income, (iii) any extraordinary, unusual or
non-recurring income or gains (including any gain from the sales of assets outside of the ordinary course of business), and (iv) income tax
credits (to the extent not netted from income tax expense), all calculated for the Company and its Subsidiaries in accordance with GAAP on a
consolidated basis. For the purposes of calculating Consolidated EBITDA for any period, if during such period the Company or any
Subsidiary shall have made a Permitted Acquisition or sale of any business or Subsidiary permitted hereunder, Consolidated EBITDA for
such period shall be calculated after giving effect to such Permitted Acquisition (and all associated Indebtedness) or such sale of any business
or Subsidiary on a Pro Forma Basis as if such Permitted Acquisition or sale of any business or Subsidiary occurred on the first day of such
period.

“Consolidated Net Income” means, with reference to any period, the net income (or loss) of the Company and its Subsidiaries
calculated in accordance with GAAP on a consolidated basis (without duplication) for such period.

“Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio” means, as of the last day of any fiscal quarter, the ratio of (a) (i) Consolidated Total Debt as of
such date minus (ii) Liquidity as of such date to (b) Consolidated EBITDA for the Reference Period ended on such date.

“Consolidated Tangible Net Worth” means, as of any date, (i) the consolidated stockholders’ equity of the Company as of such date
(calculated excluding adjustments to translate foreign assets and liabilities for changes in foreign exchange rates made in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 52 and 133), minus (ii) to the extent reflected in determining such consolidated
stockholders’ equity as of such date, the amount of Intangible Assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

“Consolidated Total Debt” means, as of any date of determination, the outstanding principal amount as of such date of all
Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

“Consolidated Total Tangible Assets” means the aggregate amount of all assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis other than Intangible Assets.

“Contractual Obligation” means, as to any Person, any provision of any security issued by such Person or of any agreement,
instrument or other undertaking to which such Person is a party or by which it or any of its property is bound.
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“Control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of
a Person, whether through the ability to exercise voting power, by contract or otherwise. “Controlling” and “Controlled” have meanings

correlative thereto.

“Corresponding Tenor” with respect to any Available Tenor means, as applicable, either a tenor (including overnight) or an interest
payment period having approximately the same length (disregarding business day adjustment) as such Available Tenor.

“Co-Sustainability Structuring Agent” means each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Mizuho Bank, Ltd, in its capacity as a Co-
Sustainability Structuring Agent in connection with the credit facility provided hereunder.

“Covered Entity” means any of the following:
(i) a “covered entity” as that term is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 252.82(b);
(ii) a “covered bank” as that term is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 47.3(b); or

(iii) a “covered FSI” as that term is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 382.2(b).

“Covered Party” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.17.

“Credit Party” means the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Banks, the Swingline Lenders or any other Lender.

“Daily Simple RFR” means, for any day (an “RFR Interest Day”), an interest rate per annum equal to the greater of (a) for any RFR
Loan denominated in (i) Pounds Sterling, SONIA for the day that is five (5) RER Business Days prior to (A) if such RFR Interest Day is aan_
RER Business Day, such RFR Interest Day or (B) if such RFR Interest Day is not aan RFR Business Day, the RFR Business Day
immediately preceding such RFR Interest Day-and, (ii) Swiss Francs, SARON for the day that is five (5) RFR Business Days prior to (A) if
such RFR Interest Day is aan RER Business Day, such RFR Interest Day or (B) if such RFR Interest Day is not aan RFR RFR Business Day, the
RFR Busmess Day 1mmed1ately precedmg such RFR Interest Day ate ange a P a—eha

RER Interest DaV or (B)_if such RFR Interest Day is not an RFR Business Day, the RFR Business Day immediately preceding such RFR

Interest Day, and (iv)_U.S. Dollars, Daily Simple SOFR, and (b) 0%.

“Dally Slmple SOFR” means, for any day, (a “SOFR wi

i other vertion—t diseretion: Rate Day”) a rate per annum equal to SOFR for the daV that is five
(5) RFR Busmess Davs prior to (i) if such SOFR Rate DaV is an RFR Business Day, such SOFR Rate Day or (ii)_if such SOFR Rate Day is
not an RFR Business Day, the RFR Business Day immediately preceding such SOFR Rate Day, in each case, as such
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SOEFR is published by the SOFR Administrator on the SOFR Administrator’s Website. Any change in Daily Simple SOFR due to a change in

SOEFR shall be effective from and including the effective date of such change in SOFR without notice to the Company.

“Debtor Relief Laws” means the Bankruptcy Code, and all other liquidation, conservatorship, bankruptcy, assignment for the
benefit of creditors, moratorium, rearrangement, receivership, insolvency, reorganization, or similar debtor relief laws of the United States or
other applicable jurisdictions from time to time in effect and affecting the rights of creditors generally.

“Default” means any event or condition which constitutes an Event of Default or which upon notice, lapse of time or both would,
unless cured or waived, become an Event of Default.

“Default Right” has the meaning assigned to that term in, and shall be interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. §§ 252.81, 47.2 or
382.1, as applicable.

“Defaulting Lender” means any Lender that (a) has failed, within two (2) Business Days after the date required to be funded or
paid, to (i) fund any portion of its Loans, (ii) fund any portion of its participations in Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans or (iii) pay over to
any Credit Party any other amount required to be paid by it hereunder, unless, in the case of clause (i) above, such Lender notifies the
Administrative Agent in writing that such failure is the result of such Lender’s good faith determination that a condition precedent to funding
(specifically identified and including the particular default, if any) has not been satisfied, (b) has notified any Borrower or any Credit Party in
writing, or has made a public statement to the effect, that it does not intend or expect to comply with any of its funding obligations under this
Agreement (unless such writing or public statement indicates that such position is based on such Lender’s good faith determination that a
condition precedent (specifically identified and including the particular default, if any) to funding cannot be satisfied) or generally under
other agreements in which it commits to extend credit, (c) has failed, within three (3) Business Days after request by a Credit Party, acting in
good faith, to provide a certification in writing from an authorized officer of such Lender that it will comply with its obligations (and is
financially able to meet such obligations) to fund prospective Loans and participations in then outstanding Letters of Credit and Swingline
Loans under this Agreement, provided that such Lender shall cease to be a Defaulting Lender pursuant to this clause (c) upon such Credit
Party’s receipt of such certification in form and substance satisfactory to it and the Administrative Agent, or (d) has, or has a Lender Parent
that has, become the subject of a (A) Bankruptcy Event or (B) a Bail-In Action.

“Designated Borrower” has the meaning assigned to such term in the preamble.

“Designated Borrower Notice” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.23(b).

“Designated Borrower Request and Assumption Agreement” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.23(b).
“Disclosed Litigation” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.05(a).

“Dollar Amount” of any amount of any currency means, at the time of determination thereof, (a) if such amount is expressed in
U.S. Dollars, such amount, (b) if such amount is expressed in a Foreign Currency, the equivalent of such amount in U.S. Dollars determined
by using the rate of exchange for the purchase of U.S. Dollars with such Foreign Currency last provided (either by publication or otherwise
provided to the Administrative Agent) by the applicable Reuters source on the Business Day (New York City time) immediately preceding
the date of determination or if such service ceases to be available or ceases to provide a rate of exchange for the purchase of U.S. Dollars
with such Foreign Currency, as
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provided by such other publicly available information service which provides that rate of exchange at such time in place of Reuters chosen by
the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion (or if such service ceases to be available or ceases to provide such rate of exchange, the
equivalent of such amount in U.S. Dollars as reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent, in consultation with the Company, using
any reasonable method of determination it deems reasonably appropriate) and (c) if such amount is denominated in any other currency, the
equivalent of such amount in U.S. Dollars as reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent, in consultation with the Company, using
any reasonable method of determination it deems reasonably appropriate.

“Domestic Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary that is organized under the laws of any political subdivision of the United States of
America.

“EEA Financial Institution” means (a) any credit institution or investment firm established in any EEA Member Country which is
subject to the supervision of an EEA Resolution Authority, (b) any entity established in an EEA Member Country which is a parent of an
institution described in clause (a) of this definition, or (c) any financial institution established in an EEA Member Country which is a
subsidiary of an institution described in clauses (a) or (b) of this definition and is subject to consolidated supervision with its parent.

“EEA Member Country” means any of the member states of the European Union, Iceland, Liechtenstein, and Norway.

“EEA Resolution Authority” means any public administrative authority or any Person entrusted with public administrative
authority of any EEA Member Country (including any delegee) having responsibility for the resolution of any EEA Financial Institution.

“Effective Date” means the date on which the conditions specified in Section 4.01 are satisfied (or waived in accordance with
Section 10.02).

“Electronic Signature” means an electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to, or associated with, a contract or other record and
adopted by a person with the intent to sign, authenticate or accept such contract or record.

“Electronic System” means any electronic system, including e-mail, e-fax, Intralinks®, ClearPar®, Debt Domain, Syndtrak and any
other Internet or extranet-based site, whether such electronic system is owned, operated or hosted by the Administrative Agent and the
Issuing Bank and any of its respective Related Parties or any other Person, providing for access to data protected by passcodes or other
security system.
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“Environmental Laws” means all laws, rules, regulations, codes, ordinances, orders, decrees, judgments, injunctions, notices or
binding agreements issued, promulgated or entered into by any Governmental Authority, relating to pollution and the protection of the
environment, or the release of any Hazardous Material.

“Environmental Liability” means any liability, contingent or otherwise (including any liability for damages, costs of environmental
remediation, fines, penalties or indemnities), of the Company or any Subsidiary directly or indirectly resulting from or based upon (a)
violation of any Environmental Law, (b) the generation, use, handling, transportation, storage, treatment or disposal of any Hazardous
Materials, (c) exposure to any Hazardous Materials, (d) the release or threatened release of any Hazardous Materials into the environment or
(e) any contract, agreement or other consensual arrangement pursuant to which liability is assumed or imposed with respect to any of the
foregoing.

“Equity Interests” means shares of capital stock, partnership interests, membership interests in a limited liability company,
beneficial interests in a trust or other equity ownership interests in a Person, and any warrants, options or other rights entitling the holder
thereof to purchase or acquire any such equity interest.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that, together with any Borrower, is treated as a single
employer under subsections (b) and (c) of Section 414 of the Code (and, solely for the purposes of Section 412 of the Code, including
subsections (m) and (o) of Section 414 of the Code).

“ERISA Event” means (a) any “reportable event”, as defined in Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder with
respect to a Plan (other than an event for which the 30-day notice period is waived); (b) the existence with respect to any Multiemployer Plan
of an “accumulated funding deficiency” (as defined in Sections 412 and 431 of the Code or Sections 302 and 304 of ERISA), whether or not
waived, or the determination that any Multiemployer Plan is in either “endangered status” or “critical status” (as defined in Section 432 of the
Code or Section 305 of ERISA), or the failure of any Plan that is not a Multiemployer Plan to satisfy the minimum funding standards of
Sections 412 and 430 of the Code or Sections 302 and 303 of ERISA, or the determination that any Plan that is not a Multiemployer Plan is
in “at-risk” status (as defined in Section 430(i) of the Code or Section 303(i) of ERISA) or the imposition of any lien on any Borrower or any
of its ERISA Affiliates pursuant to Section 430(k) of the Code or Section 303(k) of ERISA; (c) the filing pursuant to Section 412(c) of the
Code or Section 303(c) of ERISA of an application for a waiver of the minimum funding standard with respect to any Plan; (d) the incurrence
by any Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any Plan; (e) the
receipt by any Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate from the PBGC or a plan administrator of any notice relating to an intention to terminate any
Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan; (f) the incurrence by any Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates of any liability
with respect to the withdrawal or partial withdrawal from any Multiemployer Plan; (g) the receipt by any Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate of
any notice, or the receipt by any Multiemployer Plan from any Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate of any notice, concerning the imposition of
Withdrawal Liability or a determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, or is expected to be, insolvent or in reorganization, within the meaning
of Title IV of ERISA; (h) the withdrawal by any Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate from a Plan subject to Section 4063 of ERISA during a
plan year in which it was a “substantial employer” (as defined in Section 4001(a)(2) of ERISA); (i) the engagement by any Borrower or any
ERISA Affiliate in a transaction that could reasonably be expected to be subject to Section 4069 or Section 4212(c) of ERISA; (j) the
engagement by any Borrower in a non-exempt “prohibited transaction” (as defined under Section
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406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code) or a breach of a fiduciary duty under ERISA that could reasonably be expected to result in
liability to the Company or any Subsidiary; (k) notification by the IRS of the failure of any Plan (and any related trust) that is intended to be
qualified under Sections 401 and 501 of the Code to be so qualified; (1) the commencement, existence or threatening of a claim, action, suit
or audit or other regulatory examination with respect to any Plan, other than a routine claim for benefits; or (m) the occurrence of an event
with respect to any employee benefit plan described in Section 3(2) of ERISA that results in the imposition of an excise tax or any other
liability on any Borrower or of the imposition of a Lien on the assets of any Borrower.

“EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule” means the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule published by the Loan Market Association (or any
successor Person), as in effect from time to time.

“EURIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eurectrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Euro and for any Interest
Period, the EURIBO Screen Rate at approximately 11:00 a.m., Brussels time, two (2) TARGET Days prior to the commencement of such

«

“EURIBO Screen Rate” means, for any day and time, with respect to any EureenrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated
in Euro and for any Interest Period, the Euro interbank offered rate administered by the European Money Markets Institute (or any other
person which takes over the administration of such rate) for Euro for the relevant period displayed (before any correction, recalculation or
republication by the administrator)_on page EURIBORO1 of the Reuters screen (or any replacement Reuters page which displays that rate) or
on the appropriate page of such other information service which publishes that rate from time to time in place of Reuters_as published at
approximately 11:00 a.m. Brussels time two TARGET Days prior to the commencement of such Interest Period. If such page or service

ceases to be available, the Administrative Agent may specify another page or service displaying the relevant rate after consultation with the
Borrower. If the EURIBO Screen Rate as so determined would be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for the purposes of this
Agreement.




“Event of Default” has the meaning assigned to such term in Article VII.

“Existing Credit Agreement” means that certain Credit Agreement dated as of October 25, 2015, by and among the Company, the
other borrowers party thereto, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent.

“Existing Termination Date” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.24(a).

“Excluded Taxes” means any of the following Taxes imposed on or with respect to a Recipient or required to be withheld or
deducted from a payment to a Recipient, (a) Taxes imposed on or measured by net income (however denominated), franchise Taxes, and
branch profits Taxes, in each case, (i) imposed by the United States of America, (ii) imposed as a result of such Recipient being organized
under the laws of, or having its principal office or, in the case of any Lender, its applicable lending office located in, the jurisdiction imposing
such Tax (or any political subdivision thereof) or (iii) that are Other Connection Taxes, (b) in the case of a Lender, U.S. federal or UK
withholding Taxes (excluding, in the case of United Kingdom withholding Taxes, (x) the portion of United Kingdom withholding Taxes with
respect to which the applicable Lender is entitled to claim a reduction under an income tax treaty, and (y) United Kingdom withholding Taxes
on payments made by any guarantor under any guarantee of the obligations) that are or would be required to be withheld on amounts payable
to or for the account of such Lender with respect to an applicable interest in a Loan, Letter of Credit or Commitment pursuant to a law in
effect on the date on which (i) such Lender acquires such interest in the Loan, Letter of Credit or Commitment (other than pursuant to an
assignment request by the Borrower under Section 2.19(b)) or (ii) such Lender changes its lending office, except in each case to the extent
that, pursuant to Section 2.17, amounts with respect to such Taxes were payable either to such Lender’s assignor immediately before such
Lender acquired the applicable interest in a Loan, Letter of Credit or Commitment or to such Lender immediately before it changed its
lending office, (c) Taxes attributable to such Recipient’s failure to comply with Section 2.17(f) and (g), and (d) any withholding Taxes
imposed under FATCA.

“Extending Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.24(a).

“Facility Fee Rate” means the “Facility Fee Rate” per annum rate levels at each Tier under such heading as set forth in the table
contained in the definition of “Applicable Rate”.

“FATCA” means Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, as of the date of this Agreement (or any amended or successor version
that is substantively comparable and not materially more onerous to comply with), any current or future regulations or official interpretations
thereof, any agreements entered into pursuant to Section 1471(b)(1) of the Code and any fiscal or regulatory legislation, rules or practices
adopted pursuant to any intergovernmental agreement, treaty or convention among Governmental Authorities and implementing such
Sections of the Code.

<« »

“Federal Funds Effective Rate” means, for any day, the rate calculated by the NYFRB based on such day’s federal funds
transactions by depositary institutions, as determined in such manner as shall be set forth on the Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s
Website from time to time, and published on the next succeeding Business Day by the NYFRB as the effective federal funds rate; provided
that if the Federal
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Funds Effective Rate as so determined would be less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for the purposes of this Agreement.

“Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s Website” means the website of the NYFRB at http://www.newyorkfed.org, or any successor
source.

“Financial Officer” means, with respect to any Borrower, the chief financial officer, principal accounting officer, treasurer or
controller of such Borrower.

“Floor” means the benchmark rate floor, if any, provided in this Agreement initially (as of the execution of this Agreement, the
modification, amendment or renewal of this Agreement or otherwise) with respect to the EHB6Adjusted Term SOFR Rate, the Adjusted
EURIBO Rate, the Adjusted TIBO Rate, the Adjusted CDOR Rate, the Adjusted AUD Rate, the-SHBORate;-er-each Adjusted Daily Simple
RFR, the Japanese Prime Rate or the Central Bank Rate, as applicable. For the avoidance of doubt, the initial Floor for each of the Adjusted
Term SOFR Rate, the Adjusted EURIBO Rate, the Adjusted TIBO Rate, the Adjusted CDOR Rate, the Adjusted AUD Rate, each Adjusted

“Foreign Currencies” means Agreed Currencies other than U.S. Dollars.
“Foreign Currency Letter of Credit” means a Letter of Credit denominated in a Foreign Currency.
“Foreign Currency Payment Office” of the Administrative Agent shall mean, for each Foreign Currency,_the office, branch,_

affiliate or correspondent bank of the Administrative Agent for such currency as specified from time to time by the Administrative Agent to
each Borrower and each Lender.

“Foreign Lender” means a Lender that is not a U.S. Person.
“Foreign Obligor” means a Designated Borrower that is a Foreign Subsidiary.
“Foreign Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary that is not a Domestic Subsidiary.

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America set forth in the opinions and
pronouncements of the Accounting Principles Board and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and statements and
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or such other principles as may be approved by a significant segment of the
accounting profession in the United States of America, that are applicable to the circumstances as of the date of determination, consistently
applied, or if the Company adopts the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), IFRS, consistently applied.

“Governmental Authority” means the government of the United States of America, any other nation or any political subdivision
thereof, whether state or local, and any agency, authority, instrumentality, regulatory body, court, central bank or other entity exercising
executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or administrative powers or functions of or pertaining to government.

“Guarantee” of or by any Person (the “guarantor”) means any obligation, contingent or otherwise, of the guarantor guaranteeing or
having the economic effect of guaranteeing any Indebtedness of any other Person (the “primary obligor”) in any manner, whether directly or
indirectly, and including any obligation of the guarantor, direct or indirect, (a) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the
purchase or payment of) such Indebtedness or any security for the payment thereof, (b) to purchase or lease property, securities or services
for the purpose of assuring the holder of such Indebtedness of the payment thereof,
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(c) to maintain working capital, equity capital or any other financial statement condition or liquidity of the primary obligor so as to enable the
primary obligor to pay such Indebtedness or (d) as an account party in respect of any letter of credit or letter of guaranty issued to support
such Indebtedness or obligation; provided, that the term Guarantee shall not include endorsements for collection or deposit in the ordinary
course of business. The amount of any Guarantee shall be deemed to be an amount equal to the stated or determinable amount of the related
primary obligation, or portion thereof, in respect of which such Guarantee is made or, if not stated or determinable, the maximum reasonably
anticipated liability in respect thereof as determined by the guaranteeing Person in good faith.

“Hazardous Materials” means all explosive or radioactive substances or wastes and all hazardous or toxic substances, wastes or
other pollutants, including petroleum or petroleum distillates, asbestos or asbestos-containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls, radon

gas, infectious or medical wastes and all other substances or wastes of any nature regulated pursuant to any Environmental Law.

“HMRC DT Treaty Passport Scheme” means the Board of H.M. Revenue and Customs Double Taxation Treaty Passport scheme.

“Increasing Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(a).

“Incremental Term Loan” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(a).
“Incremental Term Loan Amendment” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.21(e).

“Indebtedness” of any Person means, without duplication, (a) all obligations of such Person for borrowed money, (b) all obligations
of such Person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) all obligations of such Person under conditional sale or other
title retention agreements relating to property acquired by such Person, (d) all obligations of such Person in respect of the deferred purchase
price of property or services (excluding trade accounts payable in the ordinary course of business and payable in accordance with customary
practices), (e) all Indebtedness (excluding prepaid interest thereon) of another Person secured by (or for which the holder of such
Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on property owned or acquired by such Person,
whether or not the Indebtedness secured thereby has been assumed or is limited in recourse, (f) all Guarantees by such Person of
Indebtedness of another Person, (g) all Capital Lease Obligations of such Person, (h) all
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obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person arising under letters of credit, letters of guaranty, bankers’ acceptances and similar
instruments (other than (i) commercial letters of credit issued in the ordinary course of business to the extent there is no overdue
reimbursement obligation in respect thereof, (ii) solely for purposes of calculating the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio, standby letters of
credit and letters of guaranty issued in the ordinary course of business to the extent there is no overdue reimbursement obligation in respect
thereof, and (iii) endorser liability with respect to bankers’ acceptances received by such Person as payment for goods or services in the
ordinary course of business, so long as such Person is not the account party or drawer of the underlying draft), and (i) the outstanding
principal amount of any Securitization Transaction of such Person, after taking into account reserve accounts. The Indebtedness of any
Person shall include the Indebtedness of any other Person (including any partnership in which such Person is a general partner) to the extent
such Person is liable therefor as a result of such Person’s ownership interest in or other relationship with such entity, except to the extent the
terms of such Indebtedness provide that such Person is not liable therefor.

“Indemnified Taxes” means (a) Taxes, other than Excluded Taxes, imposed on or with respect to any payment made by or on
account of any obligation of the Company or any Borrower under any Loan Document and (b) to the extent not otherwise described in the
foregoing clause (a) hereof, Other Taxes.

“Index Debt” means senior, unsecured, long-term indebtedness for borrowed money of the Company that is not guaranteed by any
other Person (other than a Subsidiary that is a Designated Borrower or guarantor of the Obligations) or subject to any other credit
enhancement.

“Ineligible Assignee” means (a) a natural person, (b) a Defaulting Lender or its Lender Parent, (c) any Borrower or any Affiliate or
Subsidiary of a Borrower, or (d) a company, investment vehicle or trust for, or owned and operated for the primary benefit of, a natural
person or a relative thereof; provided that such company, investment vehicle or trust shall not constitute an Ineligible Assignee if it (x) has
not been established for the primary purpose of acquiring any Loans or Commitments, (y) is managed by a professional advisor, who is not
such natural person or a relative thereof, having significant experience in the business of making or purchasing commercial loans, and (z) has
assets greater than $25,000,000 and a significant part of its activities consist of making or purchasing commercial loans and similar
extensions of credit in the ordinary course of its business.

“Intangible Assets” means the amount of all unamortized debt discount and expense, goodwill, patents, trademarks, service marks,
trade names, anticipated future benefit of tax loss carry-forwards, copyrights, organization or developmental expenses and other assets treated
as intangible assets under GAAP (but not in any event including deferred taxes).

“Interest Election Request” means a request by the Company to convert or continue a Revolving Borrowing in accordance with
Section 2.08.

“Interest Payment Date” means (a) with respect to any ABR Loan (other than a Swingline Loan)-6t,_any Canadian Prime Rate
Loan, any Japanese Prime Rate Loan, or any CBR Loan, the last day of each March, June, September and December and the Maturity Date,
(b) with respect to any RFR Loan, each date that is on the numerically corresponding day in each calendar month that is one month after the
Borrowing of such RFR Loan (or, if there is no such numerically corresponding day in such month, then the last day of such month) and the
Maturity Date, (c) with respect to any Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Loan, the last day of the Interest Period applicable to the Term
Benchmark Borrowing of which such Loan is a part and, in the case of a Borrowing with an Interest Period of more than three (3) months’
duration, each day prior to the last day of such Interest Period that occurs at intervals of three (3) months’ duration after the first day of such
Interest Period and the Maturity Date, and (d) with respect to any Swingline Loan, the day that such Loan is required to be repaid and the
Maturity Date.
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“Interest Period” means, with respect to any EtrectirreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such
Borrowing and ending on the numerically corresponding day in the calendar month that is one (1), three (3) or,_other than with respect to a
CDOR Rate Borrowing, six (6) months thereafter (in each case, subject to the availability for the Benchmark applicable to the relevant Loan
or Commitment for any Agreed Currency), as the Company may elect; provided, that (i) if any Interest Period would end on a day other than
a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day unless such next succeeding Business Day would
fall in the next calendar month, in which case such Interest Period shall end on the next preceding Business Day, (ii) any Interest Period that
commences on the last Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the last
calendar month of such Interest Period) shall end on the last Business Day of the last calendar month of such Interest Period and (iii) no tenor
that has been removed from this definition pursuant to Section 2.14(fe) shall be available for specification in such Borrowing Request or
Interest Election Request. For purposes hereof, the date of a Borrowing initially shall be the date on which such Borrowing is made and, in
the case of a Revolving Borrowing, thereafter shall be the effective date of the most recent conversion or continuation of such Borrowing.

“Investment” means, as to any Person, any direct or indirect acquisition or investment by such Person, whether by means of (a) the
purchase or other acquisition of capital stock or other Equity Interests of another Person, (b) a loan, advance or capital contribution to,
Guarantee or guaranty of any obligation or assumption of debt of, or purchase or other acquisition of any other debt or equity participation or
interest in, another Person, including any partnership or joint venture interest in such other Person and any arrangement pursuant to which the
investor Guarantees Indebtedness of such other Person, or (c) the purchase or other acquisition (in one transaction or a series of transactions)
of assets of another Person that constitute a business unit. For purposes of covenant compliance, the amount of any Investment shall be the
amount actually invested, without adjustment for subsequent increases or decreases in the value of such Investment.

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

“Issuing Bank” means JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A., and any other Lender that agrees to act as an Issuing Bank,
each in its capacity as the issuer of, and with respect to, all Letters of Credit hereunder, and its successors in such capacity as provided in
Section 2.06(i). Any Issuing Bank, may, in its discretion, arrange for one or more Letters of Credit to be issued by Affiliates of such Issuing
Bank, in which case the term “Issuing Bank” shall include any such Affiliate with respect to Letters of Credit issued by such Affiliate. Each
reference to the “Issuing Bank” shall be deemed to be a reference to the relevant Issuing Bank.

“Japanese Prime Rate Adjustment” means, for any day, for any Loan denominated in Japanese Yen, a rate equal to the difference
(which may be a positive or negative value or zero) of (i) the average of the TIBO Rate for the five most recent Business Days preceding_
such day for which the TIBO Screen Rate was available (excluding, from such averaging, the highest and the lowest TIBO Rate applicable
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of one month.

“Japanese Prime Rate Loan” means a [.oan which bears interest at the Japanese Prime Rate.

“Japanese Yen” or “¥” means the lawful currency of Japan.
“LC Disbursement” means a payment made by the Issuing Bank pursuant to a Letter of Credit.

“LC Exposure” means, at any time, the sum of (a) the aggregate undrawn amount of all outstanding Letters of Credit at such time
plus (b) the aggregate amount of all LC Disbursements that have not yet been reimbursed by or on behalf of the Borrowers at such time. The
LC Exposure of any Lender at any time shall be its Applicable Percentage of the total LC Exposure at such time. For all purposes of this
Agreement, if on any date of determination a Letter of Credit has expired by its terms but any amount may still be drawn thereunder by
reason of the operation of Article 29(a) of the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits, International Chamber of Commerce
Publication No. 600 (or such later version thereof as may be in effect at the applicable time) or Rule 3.13 or Rule 3.14 of the International
Standby Practices, International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 590 (or such later version thereof as may be in effect at the
applicable time) or similar terms of the Letter of Credit itself, or if compliant documents have been presented but not yet honored, such Letter
of Credit shall be deemed to be “outstanding” and “undrawn” in the amount so remaining available to be paid, and the obligations of the
Borrowers and each Lender shall remain in full force and effect until the relevant Issuing Bank and the Lenders shall have no further
obligations to make any payments or disbursements under any circumstances with respect to any Letter of Credit.

“Lender Parent” means, with respect to any Lender, any Person as to which such Lender is, directly or indirectly, a subsidiary.

“Lenders” means the Persons listed on Schedule 2.01 and any other Person that shall have become a party hereto pursuant to
Section 2.21 or pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption, other than any such Person that ceases to be a party hereto pursuant to an
Assignment and Assumption. Unless the context otherwise requires, the term “Lenders” includes the Swingline Lenders.

“Letter of Credit’ means any letter of credit issued pursuant to this Agreement.

“Letter of Credit Commitment” means, with respect to each Issuing Bank, the commitment of such Issuing Bank to issue Letters of
Credit hereunder. The initial amount of each Issuing Bank’s Letter of Credit Commitment is set forth on Schedule 2.01, or if an Issuing Bank
has entered into an Assignment and Assumption, the amount set forth for such Issuing Bank as its Letter of Credit Commitment in the
Register maintained by the Administrative Agent. The initial aggregate amount of the Letter of Credit Commitment is $75,000,000.

“Liabilities” means any losses, claims (including intraparty claims), demands, damages or liabilities of any kind.
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“Lien” means, with respect to any asset, (a) any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance, charge or
security interest in, on or of such asset, (b) the interest of a vendor or a lessor under any conditional sale agreement, capital lease or title
retention agreement (or any financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as any of the foregoing) relating to such asset and
(c) in the case of securities, any purchase option, call or similar right of a third party with respect to such securities.

“Liquidity” means at any time, the lesser of (i) the amount of unrestricted and unencumbered (other than Permitted Encumbrances)
cash and Cash Equivalents of the Company and its Subsidiaries at such time and (ii) $150,000,000.

“Loan Documents” means, collectively, this Agreement, each promissory note delivered pursuant to this Agreement, any Letter of
Credit applications and any agreements between any Borrower and any Issuing Bank regarding such Issuing Bank’s Letter of Credit
Commitment or the respective rights and obligations between any Borrower and such Issuing Bank in connection with the issuance of Letters
of Credit, and any other agreements, instruments, documents and certificates executed by or on behalf of any Borrower and delivered to or in
favor of the Credit Parties concurrently herewith or hereafter in connection with the Transactions hereunder, including any amendments,
modifications or supplements thereto or waivers thereof.

“Loans” means the loans made by the Lenders to the Borrowers pursuant to this Agreement.

“Local Time” means (ai) in the case of a Loan, Borrowing or LC Disbursement denominated in U.S. Dollars, New York City time,
and (bii) in the case of a Loan, Borrowing or L.C Disbursement denominated in a Foreign Currency, local time (it being understood that such
local time shall mean (a)_London, England time with respect to any Foreign Currency (other than Euro and Canadian Dollars), (b)_Brussels,_
Belgium time with respect to Euro and (c) Toronto, Canada time with respect to Canadian Dollars, in each case of the foregoing clauses (a),_
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“Material Acquisition” means any Permitted Acquisition where the aggregate cash consideration exceeds $500,000,000.
“Material Adverse Effect’” means a material adverse effect on (a) the business, assets, property or financial condition of the
Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or (b) the validity or enforceability of any material provision of any Loan Document or the

rights or remedies of the Credit Parties thereunder.

“Maturity Date” means August 6, 2026 (the fifth anniversary of the Effective Date), as the same may be extended pursuant to
Section 2.24; provided, however, in each case, if such date is not a Business Day, the Maturity Date shall be the next preceding Business Day.

“Maximum Rate” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.13.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

“Multiemployer Plan” means a multiemployer plan as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.

“Non-Consenting Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.02(d).

“Non-Extending Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.24(a).

“NYFRB” means the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

“NYFRB Rate” means, for any day, the greater of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day and (b) the Overnight
Bank Funding Rate in effect on such day (or for any day that is not a Business Day, for the immediately preceding Business Day); provided
that if none of such rates are published for any day that is a Business Day, the term “NYFRB Rate” means the rate for a federal funds
transaction quoted at 11:00 a.m. New York City time on such day received by the Administrative Agent from a federal funds broker of

recognized standing selected by it; provided, further, that if any of the aforesaid rates as so determined would be less than zero, such rate
shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of this Agreement.

“Obligations” means all advances to, and debts, liabilities, obligations, covenants and duties of, any Borrower arising under any
Loan Document or otherwise with respect to any Loan or Letter of Credit, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to
become due, now existing or hereafter arising and including interest and fees that accrue after the commencement by or against any Borrower
of any proceeding under any debtor relief laws naming such Borrower as the debtor in such proceeding, regardless of whether such interest
and fees are allowed claims in such proceeding.

“Organization Documents” means, (a) with respect to any corporation, the certificate or articles of incorporation and the bylaws (or
equivalent or comparable constitutive documents with respect to any non-United States jurisdiction); (b) with respect to any limited liability
company, the certificate or articles of formation or organization and operating agreement; and (c) with respect to any partnership, joint
venture, trust or other form of business entity, the partnership, joint venture or other applicable agreement of formation or organization and
any agreement, instrument, filing or notice with respect thereto filed in connection with its formation or organization with the applicable
Governmental Authority in the jurisdiction of its formation or organization and, if applicable, any certificate or articles of formation or
organization of such entity.
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“Other Connection Taxes” means, with respect to any Recipient, Taxes imposed as a result of a present or former connection
between such Recipient and the jurisdiction imposing such Taxes (other than a connection arising solely from such Recipient having
executed, delivered, enforced, become a party to, performed its obligations under, received payments under, received or perfected a security
interest under, or engaged in any other transaction pursuant to, or enforced, any Loan Document, or sold or assigned an interest in any Loan,
Letter of Credit or Loan Document).

“Other Taxes” means all present or future stamp, court or documentary, intangible, recording, filing or similar Taxes that arise from
any payment made under, from the execution, delivery, performance, enforcement or registration of, from the receipt or perfection of a
security interest under, or otherwise with respect to, any Loan Document, except any such Taxes that are Other Connection Taxes imposed
with respect to an assignment (other than an assignment made pursuant to Section 2.19).

“Overnight Bank Funding Rate” means, for any day, the rate comprised of both overnight federal funds and overnight
Eureetrreney-borrewingseurodollar transactions denominated in U.S. Dollars by U.S.-managed banking offices of depository institutions, as
such composite rate shall be determined by the NYFRB as set forth on the Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s Website from time to time,
and published on the next succeeding Business Day by the NYFRB as an overnight bank funding rate.

“Overnight Rate” means, for any day, (a) with respect to any amount denominated in U.S. Dollars, the NYFRB Rate and (b) with
respect to any amount denominated in a Foreign Currency, an overnight rate determined by the Administrative Agent or the relevant Issuing
Bank, as the case may be, in accordance with banking industry rules on interbank compensation.

“Participant” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(c).

“Participant Register” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(c).

“Payment” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.19(a).

“Payment Notice” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.19(b).

“PBGC” means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and defined in ERISA and any successor entity performing
similar functions.

“Permitted Acquisition” means any Acquisition by the Company or any Subsidiary that satisfies the following conditions:

(a) in the case of an Acquisition of the Equity Interests of any Person, the board of directors (or other comparable governing
body) of such other Person shall have approved the Acquisition; and

-29-



(b) (i) no Default shall exist and be continuing immediately before or immediately after giving effect thereto, (ii) the
representations and warranties made by the Borrowers in any Loan Document (other than the representations and warranties contained in
Sections 3.04(b), 3.05 and 3.09) shall be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects if the applicable representation or warranty
is already qualified by concepts of materiality) on and as of the date of such Acquisition (after giving effect thereto), and (iii) in the case of an
Acquisition of any Person where the aggregate cash consideration exceeds $200,000,000, the Company shall have delivered to the
Administrative Agent a certificate demonstrating that, upon giving effect to such Acquisition on a Pro Forma Basis, the Borrowers would be
in compliance with the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio covenant set forth in Section 6.05 as of the most recent fiscal quarter for which the
Company has delivered financial statements pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or (b).

“Permitted Encumbrances” means:

(a) Liens imposed by law (other than Liens imposed under ERISA) for Taxes that are not yet due or are being contested in
compliance with Section 5.04(a);

(b) carriers’, warehousemen’s, mechanics’, materialmen’s, repairmen’s, lessors’ and other like Liens arising in the ordinary course
of business and securing obligations that are not overdue by more than thirty (30) days or are being contested in compliance with Section
5.04(a);

(c) pledges and deposits made in the ordinary course of business in connection with workers’ compensation, unemployment
insurance and other social security laws or regulations (other than any Lien imposed under ERISA);

(d) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts, leases, statutory obligations, surety and appeal bonds, performance
bonds and other obligations of a like nature, in each case in the ordinary course of business;

(e) Liens securing judgments for the payment of money not constituting an Event of Default under clause (j) of Article VII; and

(f) easements, zoning restrictions, rights-of-way and similar encumbrances affecting real property that do not secure any
substantial amount and do not materially detract from the value of the affected property or materially interfere with the ordinary conduct of
business of the applicable Person;

provided that the term “Permitted Encumbrances” shall not include any Lien securing Indebtedness.

“Permitted Investments” means (i) cash and Cash Equivalents and (ii) any Investment by the Company or any Subsidiary that
satisfies the following conditions: (a) no Default shall exist and be continuing immediately before or immediately after giving effect thereto,
(b) the representations and warranties made by the Borrowers in any Loan Document (other than the representations and warranties contained
in Sections 3.04(b), 3.05 and 3.09) shall be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects if the applicable representation or
warranty is already qualified by concepts of materiality) on and as of the date of such Investment (after giving effect thereto), and (c) in the
case of an Investment in any Person (other than the Company or any of its Subsidiaries) where the aggregate amount of such Investment
exceeds $200,000,000, the Company shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent a certificate demonstrating that, upon giving effect to
such Investment on a Pro Forma Basis, the Borrowers would be in compliance with the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio covenant set forth
in Section 6.05 as of the most recent fiscal quarter for which the Company has delivered financial statements pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or

().
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“Person” means any natural person, corporation, limited liability company, trust, joint venture, association, company, partnership,
Governmental Authority or other entity.

“Plan” means any employee pension benefit plan (other than a Multiemployer Plan) subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA
or Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, and in respect of which any Borrower or any of its ERISA Affiliates is (or, if such plan
were terminated, would under Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an “employer” as defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

“Plan Asset Regulations” means 29 CFR § 2510.3-101 et seq., as modified by Section 3(42) of ERISA, as amended from time to
time.

“Platform” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.01(d)(i).

“Pounds Sterling” or “£” means the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.

“Prime Rate” means the rate of interest last quoted by The Wall Street Journal as the “Prime Rate” in the U.S. or, if The Wall Street
Journal ceases to quote such rate, the highest per annum interest rate published by the Board in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15
(519) (Selected Interest Rates) as the “bank prime loan” rate or, if such rate is no longer quoted therein, any similar rate quoted therein (as
determined by the Administrative Agent) or any similar release by the Board (as determined by the Administrative Agent). Each change in
the Prime Rate shall be effective from and including the date such change is publicly announced or quoted as being effective.

“Pro Forma Basis” means, for purposes of calculating the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio covenant set forth in Section 6.05, that
any Acquisition, Investment or any sale of any business or Subsidiary shall be deemed to have occurred as of the first day of the most recent
four (4) fiscal quarter period preceding the date of such transaction for which the Company has delivered financial statements pursuant to
Section 5.01(a) or (b). In connection with the foregoing, (a) income statement items (whether positive or negative) attributable to the Person
or property acquired, or business or Subsidiary sold, shall be included to the extent relating to any period applicable in such calculations to
the extent (i) such items are not otherwise included in such income statement items for the Company and its Subsidiaries in accordance with
GAAP or in accordance with any defined terms set forth in Section 1.01 and (ii) such items are supported by audited financial statements or
other information reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and (b) any Indebtedness incurred or assumed by the Company or any
Subsidiary (including the Person or property acquired) in connection with such transaction and any Indebtedness of the Person or property
acquired which is not retired in connection with such transaction shall be deemed to have been incurred as of the first day of the applicable
period.

“PTE” means a prohibited transaction class exemption issued by the U.S. Department of Labor, as any such exemption may be
amended from time to time.

“Public-Sider” means a Lender whose representatives may trade in securities of the Borrower or its controlling person or any of its
Subsidiaries while in possession of the financial statements provided by the Company under the terms of this Agreement.

“QFC” has the meaning assigned to the term “qualified financial contract” in, and shall be interpreted in accordance with, 12
U.S.C. 5390(c)(8)(D).

“QFC Credit Support” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.17.

-31-



“Recipient” means, as applicable, (a) the Administrative Agent, (b) any Lender and (c) any Issuing Bank.

“Reference Period” means, as of the last day of any fiscal quarter, the period of four (4) consecutive fiscal quarters of the Company
and its Subsidiaries ending on such date.

“Reference Time” with respect to any setting of the then-current Benchmark means (i) if such Benchmark is the HHB6Term SOFR
Rate, +1+:06-a-m-tondon5:00 a.m., Chicago time, on the day that is two (2) Londenbanking-daysU.S. Government Securities Business Days
preceding the date of such setting, (ii) if such Benchmark is the EURIBO Rate, 11:00 a.m., Brussels time, two (2) TARGET Days preceding
the date of such setting, (iii) if such Benchmark is the TIBO Rate, 11:00 a.m., Japan time, two (2) Business Days preceding the date of such
setting, (iv) if the RFR for such Benchmark is SONIA, then fivefour (54) RFR Business Days prior to such setting, (v) if the RFR for such
Benchmark is SARON, then five (5) RFR Business Days prior to such setting, (vi)_if the RFR for such Benchmark is SORA,_then five (5)

to such setting or (¥iviii) if such Benchmark is none of the EHB6Term SOFR Rate, Daily Simple SOFR, the EURIBO Rate, the TIBO Rate,
SONIA-er, SARON_or SORA, the time determined by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion after consultation with the
Company.

“Register” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 10.04(b).

“Related Parties” means, with respect to any specified Person, such Person’s Affiliates and the respective partners, directors,
officers, employees, agents and advisors of such Person and such Person’s Affiliates.

“Relevant Adjusted Rate” means (i) with respect to any FureetrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, the
Adjusted EHB6Term SOFR Rate, (ii) with respect to any Euroetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Euro, the Adjusted
EURIBO Rate, (iii) with respect to any EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen, the Adjusted TIBO Rate,
(iv) with respect to any Eurectrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Canadian Dollars, the Adjusted CDOR Rate, (v) with
respect to any Eurectirreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Australian Dollars, the Adjusted AUD Rate or (vi) with respect to
any EureetrreneyREFR Borrowing denominated in Pounds Sterling, Swiss Francs, Singapore Dollars_or Dollars, the applicable Adjusted
SHBO6RateDaily Simple RFR, as applicable.

“Relevant Governmental Body” means (i) with respect to a Benchmark Replacement in respect of Loans denominated in U.S.
Dollars, the Board and/or the NYFRB, or a committee officially endorsed or convened by the Board and/or the NYFRB or, in each case, any
successor thereto, (ii) with respect to a Benchmark Replacement in respect of Loans denominated in Pounds Sterling, the Bank of England, or
a committee officially endorsed or convened by the Bank of England or, in each case, any successor thereto, (iii) with respect to a Benchmark
Replacement in respect of Loans denominated in Euro, the European Central Bank, or a committee officially endorsed or convened by the
European Central Bank or, in each case, any successor thereto, (iv) with respect to a Benchmark Replacement in respect of Loans
denominated in Japanese Yen, the Bank of Japan, or a committee officially endorsed or convened by the Bank of Japan or, in each case, any
successor thereto, (v) with respect to a Benchmark Replacement in respect of Loans denominated in Swiss Francs, the Swiss National Bank,
or a committee officially endorsed or convened by the Swiss National Bank or, in each case, any successor thereto and (vi) with respect to a
Benchmark Replacement in respect of Loans denominated in any other currency, (a) the central bank for the currency in which such
Benchmark Replacement is denominated or any central bank or other supervisor which is responsible for supervising either (1) such
Benchmark Replacement or (2) the administrator of such Benchmark Replacement or (b) any working group or committee officially
endorsed or convened by (1)
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the central bank for the currency in which such Benchmark Replacement is denominated, (2) any central bank or other supervisor that is
responsible for supervising either (A) such Benchmark Replacement or (B) the administrator of such Benchmark Replacement, (3) a group of
those central banks or other supervisors or (4) the Financial Stability Board or any part thereof.

“Relevant Rate” means (i) with respect to any Eurectrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, the
EBBTerm SOER Rate, (ii) with respect to any Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Euro, the EURIBO Rate, (iii) with
respect to any Euroeurreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen, the TIBO Rate, (iv) with respect to any
EuroewrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Canadian Dollars, the CDOR Rate; or (V) w1th respect to any E-UfeeuffeﬁeyTerm

Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Australian Dollars, the AUD Rate-6

Singapore-DoHars;the-SHBO-Rate, as applicable.

“Relevant Screen Rate” means (i) with respect to any Eureeurrereylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, the
EHBO-SereenTerm SOFR Rate, (ii) with respect to any EureetrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Euro, the EURIBO Screen
Rate, (iii) with respect to any Euroetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen, the TIBO Screen Rate, (iv) with
respect to any EurectrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Canadian Dollars, the CDOR Screen Rate; or (v) with respect to

any E—ufeeﬂffeﬁeyTerm Benchmark Borrowmg denominated in Australian Dollars, the AUD Screen Rate—er—{vH—with—respeet—to—any-
g e a Peta e erRate, as applicable.

“Required Lenders” means, at any time, Lenders having Revolving Credit Exposures and unused Commitments representing more
than fifty percent (50%) of the sum of the Total Revolving Credit Exposures and unused Commitments at such time; provided that, for
purposes of declaring the Loans to be due and payable pursuant to Article VII, and for all purposes after the Loans become due and payable
pursuant to Article VII or the Commitments expire or terminate, then, as to each Lender, clause (a) of the definition of Swingline Exposure
shall only be applicable for purposes of determining its Revolving Credit Exposure to the extent such Lender shall have funded its
participation in the outstanding Swingline Loans; provided further that for the purpose of determining the Required Lenders needed for any
waiver, amendment, modification or consent, any Lender that is the Borrower, or any Affiliate of the Borrower shall be disregarded. For the
avoidance of doubt, assignments to any Borrower, or any Affiliate or Subsidiary of any Borrower shall not be permitted hereunder in
accordance with Section 10.04(b).

“Resolution Authority” means an EEA Resolution Authority or, with respect to any UK Financial Institution, a UK Resolution
Authority.

“Revolving Credit Exposure” means, with respect to any Lender at any time, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of such
Lender’s Revolving Loans, its LC Exposure and its Swingline Exposure at such time.
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“Revolving Loan” means a L.oan made pursuant to Section 2.03.

Dollars, SORA and (d) U.S. Dollars, Daily Simple SOFR, and when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, means that such I.oan, or
the Loans comprising such Borrowing, bears interest at a rate determined by reference to the applicable Adjusted Daily Simple RFR.

“RFR Borrowing” means, as to any Borrowing, the RFR Loans comprising such Borrowing.

“RFR Business Day” means, for any Loan denominated in (a) Pounds Sterling, any day except for (i) a Saturday, (ii) a Sunday or
(iii) a day on which banks are closed for general business in London-and, (b) Swiss Francs, any day except for (i) a Saturday, (ii) a Sunday or
(iii) a day on which banks are closed for the settlement of payments and foreign exchange transactions in Zurichs, (c)_Singapore Dollars, any_
day _except for (i)_a Saturday, (ii)_a Sunday or (iii)_a day_on which banks are closed for the settlement of payments and foreign exchange

“RFR Interest Day” has the meaning specified in the definition of “Daily Simple RFR”.
“RFR Loan” means a Loan that bears interest at a rate based on the Adjusted Daily Simple RFR.
“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s.

“Sanctioned Country” means, at any time, a country, region or territory which is itself the subject or target of any comprehensive
Sanctions (at-the-time-of thisAgreement,Crimeaas of the Amendment No. 1 Effective Date, the so-called Donetsk People’s Republic, the so-

“Sanctioned Person” means, at any time, (a) any Person listed in any Sanctionsrelated list of designated Persons maintained by the
Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the U.S. Department of State, or by the United Nations Security
Council, the European Union, any European Union member state, Her Majesty’s Treasury of the United Kingdom, or other relevant sanctions
authority, (b) any Person operating, organized or resident in a Sanctioned Country or (c) any Person owned or controlled by any such Person
or Persons described in the foregoing clauses (a) or (b).“Sanctions” means all economic or financial sanctions or trade embargoes imposed,
administered or enforced from time to time by (a) the U.S. government, including those administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control
of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the U.S. Department of State, or (b) the United Nations Security Council, the European Union, any
European Union member state, Her Majesty’s Treasury of the United Kingdom, or other relevant sanctions authority.

“SARON” means, with respect to any Business Day, a rate per annum equal to the Swiss Average Rate Overnight for such Business
Day published by the SARON Administrator on the SARON Administrator’s Website.

“SARON Administrator” means the SIX Swiss Exchange AG (or any successor administrator of the Swiss Average Rate
Overnight).
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“SARON Administrator’s Website” means SIX Swiss Exchange AG’s website, currently at https://www.six-group.com, or any
successor source for the Swiss Average Rate Overnight identified as such by the SARON Administrator from time to time.

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any Governmental Authority succeeding to any or all of the functions of
said Commission.

“Securitization Transaction” means any financing transaction or series of financing transactions (including factoring arrangements)
pursuant to which the Company or any Subsidiary may sell, convey or otherwise transfer, or grant a security interest in, accounts, payments,
receivables, rights to future lease payments or residuals or similar rights to payment to a special purpose subsidiary or affiliate of the
Company.

13 »

“Significant Subsidiary” means each Domestic Subsidiary now existing or hereafter acquired or formed, and each successor
thereto, with respect to which, after giving pro forma effect to such acquisition or formation, or at any other time thereafter:

(a) the Company’s and its other Subsidiaries’ Investments in such Domestic Subsidiary exceed ten percent (10%) of the total
assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis;

(b) the Company’s and its other Subsidiaries’ proportionate share of the total assets (after intercompany eliminations) of such
Domestic Subsidiary exceeds ten percent (10%) of the total assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis; or
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(c) the Company’s and its other Subsidiaries’ equity in the income from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary
items and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of such Domestic Subsidiary exceeds ten percent (10%) of such income of
the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

“Singapore Dollars” means the lawful currency of Singapore.

“SOFR” means;-with-respeetto-any BusinessDay;- a rate per-anntm-equal to
Day—ptibtishedas administered by the SOFR Administrator-en-th HiStra

Bay.

the secured overnight financing rate forsteh-Business

“SOFR Administrator” means the NYFRB (or a successor administrator of the secured overnight financing rate).

“SOFR Administrator’s Website” means the NYFRB’s—websiteFederal Reserve Bank of New York’s Website, currently at
http://www.newyorkfed.org, or any successor source for the secured overnight financing rate identified as such by the SOFR Administrator
from time to time.

“SONIA” means, with respect to any Business Day, a rate per annum equal to the Sterling Overnight Index Average for such
Business Day published by the SONIA Administrator on the SONIA Administrator’s Website on the immediately succeeding Business Day.

“SONIA Administrator” means the Bank of England (or any successor administrator of the Sterling Overnight Index Average).

“SONIA Administrator’s Website” means the Bank of England’s website, currently at http://www.bankofengland.co.uk, or any
successor source for the Sterling Overnight Index Average identified as such by the SONIA Administrator from time to time.

the SORA Administrator on the SORA Administrator’s Website, and in any case, SORA is less than zero, SORA shall be deemed to be zero.

“SORA Administrator” means the Monetary Authority of Singapore (or any successor administrator of the Singapore Overnight
Rate Average).

“SORA Administrator’s Website” means the Statistics page of the MAS website, http://www.mas.gov.sg, or any successor website

“Statutory Reserve Rate” means a fraction (expressed as a decimal), the numerator of which is the number one and the denominator
of which is the number one minus the aggregate of the maximum reserve percentage (including any marginal, special, emergency or
supplemental reserves) expressed as a decimal established by the Board to which the Administrative Agent is subject with respect to the
applicable Relevant Adjusted Rate for eurocurrency funding (currently referred to as “Eurocurrency liabilities” in Regulation D of the Board)
or any other reserve ratio or analogous requirement of any central banking or financial regulatory authority imposed in respect of the
maintenance of the Commitments or the funding of the Loans. Such reserve percentage shall include those imposed pursuant to Regulation
D of the Board. EureenrreneytoansTerm Benchmark Loans for which the associated Benchmark is adjusted by reference
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to the Statutory Reserve Rate (per the related definition of such Benchmark) shall be deemed to constitute eurocurrency funding and to be
subject to such reserve requirements without benefit of or credit for proration, exemptions or offsets that may be available from time to time
to any Lender under Regulation D of the Board or any comparable regulation. The Statutory Reserve Rate shall be adjusted automatically on
and as of the effective date of any change in any reserve percentage.

“subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person (the “parent”) at any date, any corporation, limited liability company, partnership,
association or other entity the accounts of which would be consolidated with those of the parent in the parent’s consolidated financial
statements if such financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP as of such date, as well as any other corporation, limited
liability company, partnership, association or other entity (a) of which securities or other ownership interests representing more than fifty
percent (50%) of the equity or more than fifty percent (50%) of the ordinary voting power or, in the case of a partnership, more than fifty
percent (50%) of the general partnership interests are, as of such date, owned, controlled or held, or (b) that is, as of such date, otherwise
Controlled, by the parent or one or more subsidiaries of the parent or by the parent and one or more subsidiaries of the parent.

“Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Company.
“Supported QFC” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.17.

“Swap Agreement” means any agreement with respect to any swap, forward, future or derivative transaction or option or similar
agreement involving, or settled by reference to, one or more rates, currencies, commodities, equity or debt instruments or securities, or
economic, financial or pricing indices or measures of economic, financial or pricing risk or value or any similar transaction or any
combination of these transactions; provided that no phantom stock or similar plan providing for payments only on account of services
provided by current or former directors, officers, employees or consultants of the Company or its Subsidiaries shall be a Swap Agreement.

“Swingline Commitment” means, as to any Lender, (a) the applicable amount set forth opposite such Lender’s name on Schedule
2.01 or (b) if such Lender has entered into an Assignment and Assumption, the amount set forth for such Lender as its Swingline
Commitment in the Register.

“Swingline Exposure” means, at any time, the aggregate principal amount of all Swingline Loans outstanding at such time. The
Swingline Exposure of any Lender at any time shall be the sum of (a) its Applicable Percentage of the total Swingline Exposure at such time
other than with respect to any Swingline Loans made by such Lender in its capacity as a Swingline Lender and (b) the aggregate principal
amount of all Swingline Loans made by such Lender as a Swingline Lender outstanding at such time (less the amount of participations
funded by the other Lenders in such Swingline Loans).

“Swingline Lenders” means, collectively, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., and any Lender that assumes all or any portion of another

“Swingline Loan” means a Loan made pursuant to Section 2.05.
“Swiss Francs” means the lawful currency of Switzerland.

“TARGET?2” means the Trans-European Automated Real-time Gross Settlement Express Transfer payment system which utilizes a
single shared platform and which was launched on November 19, 2007, or any successor thereto.
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“TARGET Day” means any day on which TARGET?2 (or, if such payment system ceases to be operative, such other payment
system (if any) reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent to be a suitable replacement) is open for the settlement of payments in
Euro.

“Taxes” means all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, withholdings (including backup withholding),
assessments, fees or other charges imposed by any Governmental Authority, including any interest, additions to tax or penalties applicable
thereto.

“Term Benchmark”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, means that such Loan, or the L.oans comprising such

Borrowing, bears interest at a rate determined by reference to the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate, the Adjusted EURIBO Rate, the Adjusted TIBO
Rate, the Adjusted CDOR Rate or the Adjusted AUD Rate.

n of Term SOFR Reference Rate.

A P . A _

“TermSOFR C€ Reah a—T|o ;"iv e gimtnistratve geh Ot . a
Ferm-SOFR-TransitionEvent-Determination Day” has the meaning assigned to it under the definitio

“Term SOFR Rate” means, with respect to any Term Benchmark Borrowing_denominated in U.S. Dollars and for any tenor

published by the CME Term SOFR Administrator.

“Term SOFR Reference Rate” means, for any day and time (such day, the “Term SOFR Determination Day”), with respect to any_

published by the CME Term SOFR Administrator and identified by the Administrative Agent as the forward-looking term rate based on
SOFR. If by 5:00 p.m. (New York City time)_on such Term SOFR Determination Day, the “Term SOFR Reference Rate” for the applicable

first preceding U.S. Government Securities Business Day is not more than five (5)_U.S. Government Securities Business Days prior to such

Term SOFR Determination Day.

-38-




“TIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Furectrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen and for any
Interest Period, the TIBO Screen Rate a-t—a-ppfeﬂna-afe-l-y—l—l—eeﬂ—na—hpan—&me—two (2) Business Days prior to the Cornrnencernent of such

Interest Period'

“TIBO Screen Rate” means, for any day and time, for any Interest Period, the Tokyo interbank offered rate administered by the
Ippan Shadan Hojin JBA TIBOR Administration (or any other person which takes over the administration of such rate) for Japanese Yen for
the relevant period displayed on page DTIBORO1 of the Reuters screen (or, in the event such rate does not appear on such Reuters page or
screen, on any successor or substitute page on such screen that displays such rate, or on the appropriate page of such other information
service that publishes such rate as selected by the Administrative Agent from time to time in its reasonable discretion)_as published at

so determined would be less than Zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for the purposes of this Agreement.

<« i)

“Total Capitalization” means, as of any date, Consolidated Total Debt plus the consolidated stockholders’ equity of the Company
and its Subsidiaries (calculated excluding adjustments to translate foreign assets and liabilities for changes in foreign exchange rates made in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 52 and 133), all as would be presented according to GAAP in a
consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of such date.

“Total Revolving Credit Exposure” means, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of all Lenders’ Revolving Loans, their LC
Exposure and their Swingline Exposure at such time; provided, that, clause (a) of the definition of Swingline Exposure shall only be
applicable to the extent Lenders shall have funded their respective participations in the outstanding Swingline Loans.

“Transactions” means the execution, delivery and performance by each Borrower of each Loan Document to which it is a party,
the borrowing of Loans, the use of the proceeds thereof and the issuance of Letters of Credit hereunder.

“Type”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether the rate of interest on such Loan, or on the Loans
comprising such Borrowing, is determined by reference to a Relevant Adjusted Rate, the Alternate Base Rate, the Canadian Prime Rate, the
Daity-Simpte RFRJapanese Prime Rate or the Central Bank Rate.

“UK Borrower” means any Borrower (a) that is organized or formed under the laws of the United Kingdom and (b) payments from
which under this Agreement or any other Loan Document are subject to withholding Taxes imposed by the laws of the United Kingdom.
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“UK Financial Institutions” means any BRRD Undertaking (as such term is defined under the PRA Rulebook (as amended from
time to time) promulgated by the United Kingdom Prudential Regulation Authority) or any person falling within IFPRU 11.6 of the FCA
Handbook (as amended from time to time) promulgated by the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority, which includes certain credit
institutions and investment firms, and certain affiliates of such credit institutions or investment firms.

“UK Resolution Authority” means the Bank of England or any other public administrative authority having responsibility for the
resolution of any UK Financial Institution.

“Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement” means the applicable Benchmark Replacement excluding the related Benchmark
Replacement Adjustment.

“U.S. Dollars” or “$” means the lawful currency of the United States of America.

“U.S. Government Securities Business Day” means any day except for (i)_a Saturday, (ii)_a Sunday or (iii)_a day on which the

Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association recommends that the fixed income departments of its members be closed for the entire
day for purposes of trading in United States government securities.

“U.S. Person” means a “United States person” within the meaning of Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code.

“U.S. Special Resolution Regime” has the meaning assigned to it in Section 10.17.

“Withdrawal Liability” means liability to a Multiemployer Plan as a result of a complete or partial withdrawal from such
Multiemployer Plan, as such terms are defined in Part I of Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA.

“Write-Down and Conversion Powers” means, (a) with respect to any EEA Resolution Authority, the write-down and conversion
powers of such EEA Resolution Authority from time to time under the Bail-In Legislation for the applicable EEA Member Country, which
write-down and conversion powers are described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule, and (b) with respect to the United Kingdom, any
powers of the applicable Resolution Authority under the Bail-In Legislation to cancel, reduce, modify or change the form of a liability of any
UK Financial Institution or any contract or instrument under which that liability arises, to convert all or part of that liability into shares,
securities or obligations of that person or any other person, to provide that any such contract or instrument is to have effect as if a right had
been exercised under it or to suspend any obligation in respect of that liability or any of the powers under that Bail-In Legislation that are
related to or ancillary to any of those powers.

SECTION 1.02Classification of I.oans and Borrowings. For purposes of this Agreement, Loans may be classified and referred to
by Class (e.g., a “Revolving Loan™) or by Type (e.g., a “Euroctrrenrcylerm Benchmark Loan” or an “RFR Loan”) or by Class and Type
(e.g., a “Eurocurrencylerm Benchmark Revolving Loan” or an “RFR Revolving Loan”). Borrowings also may be classified and referred
to by Class (e.g., a “Revolving Borrowing”) or by Type (e.g., a “Eurocurretricylerm Benchmark Borrowing” or an “RFR Borrowing”) or
by Class and Type (e.g., a “FEurocurrencylerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing” or an “RFR Revolving Borrowing™).

SECTION 1.03Terms Generally. The definitions of terms herein shall apply equally to the singular and plural forms of the terms
defined. Whenever the context may require, any pronoun shall
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include the corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms. The words “include”, “includes” and “including” shall be deemed to be
followed by the phrase “without limitation”. The word “will” shall be construed to have the same meaning and effect as the word “shall”.
Unless the context requires otherwise (a) any definition of or reference to any agreement, instrument or other document herein shall be
construed as referring to such agreement, instrument or other document as from time to time amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
(subject to any restrictions on such amendments, supplements or modifications set forth herein), (b) any reference herein to any Person shall
be construed to include such Person’s successors and assigns, (c) the words “herein”, “hereof” and “hereunder”, and words of similar import,
shall be construed to refer to this Agreement in its entirety and not to any particular provision hereof, (d) all references herein to Articles,
Sections, Exhibits and Schedules shall be construed to refer to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits and Schedules to, this Agreement and
(e) the words “asset” and “property” shall be construed to have the same meaning and effect and to refer to any and all tangible and
intangible assets and properties, including cash, securities, accounts and contract rights.

SECTION 1.04Accounting Terms; GAAP. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms of an accounting or financial
nature shall be construed in accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to time; provided that, if the Company notifies the Administrative
Agent that the Company requests an amendment to any provision hereof to eliminate the effect of any change occurring after the date hereof
in GAAP or in the application thereof on the operation of such provision (or if the Administrative Agent notifies the Company that the
Required Lenders request an amendment to any provision hereof for such purpose), regardless of whether any such notice is given before or
after such change in GAAP or in the application thereof, then such provision shall be interpreted on the basis of GAAP as in effect and
applied immediately before such change shall have become effective until such notice shall have been withdrawn or such provision amended
in accordance herewith. Such amendment, regardless of whether requested by the Company or the Required Lenders, shall be negotiated in
good faith by the Company, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, all terms of an
accounting or financial nature used herein shall be construed, and all computations of amounts and ratios referred to herein shall be made,
without giving effect to any election under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 825 (or any other
Financial Accounting Standard having a similar result or effect) to value any Indebtedness or other liabilities of the Company or any
Subsidiary at “fair value”, as defined therein.

SECTION 1.05Letter of Credit Amounts. Unless otherwise specified herein, the amount of a Letter of Credit at any time shall be
deemed to be the amount of such Letter of Credit available to be drawn at such time; provided that with respect to any Letter of Credit that,
by its terms or the terms of any Letter of Credit Agreement related thereto, provides for one or more automatic increases in the available
amount thereof, the amount of such Letter of Credit shall be deemed to be the maximum amount of such Letter of Credit after giving effect to
all such increases, upon such maximum amount being available to be drawn at such time.

SECTION 1.06Divisions. For all purposes under the Loan Documents, in connection with any division or plan of division under
Delaware law (or any comparable event under a different jurisdiction’s laws): (a) if any asset, right, obligation or liability of any Person
becomes the asset, right, obligation or liability of a different Person, then it shall be deemed to have been transferred from the original Person
to the subsequent Person, and (b) if any new Person comes into existence, such new Person shall be deemed to have been organized and
acquired on the first date of its existence by the holders of its Equity Interests at such time.

SECTION 1.07Interest Rates; HHB6RBenchmark Notification. The interest rate on a Loan denominated in an-AgreedU.S. Dollars
or a Foreign Currency may be derived from an interest rate benchmark that may be discontinued or is, or may in the future become, the
subject of regulatory reform.
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the occurrence of a Benchmark Transrtron Event :
E—leeﬁon—Secuon 2. 14(b) aﬁd—Seeﬁeﬂ—Z—H(e)—preﬁdeprovrdes a mechanrsm for determrnrng an alternatwe rate of interest. The
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Administrative Agent does not warrant or accept any respons1b1hty for, and shall
not have any habrhty with respect to, the adrn1n1strat10n subrn1ss10n perforrnance or any other rnatter related to t-he—Ba-r-ly—S—rnap-le—R—F-R—

—GBeRRafe—efﬁ%U-B—Rafe—ef—Sl-Be—Rafe—as—appheahle)—ofanv 1nterest rate used in thrs Agreernent _or w1th respect to any alternatlve or

successor rate thereto, or replacement rate thereof

, including without hrnrtatlon whether the composition or characteristics of
any such alternatrve successor or replacernent reference rate wrll be similar to or produce the same Value or economic equrvalence of, the

any existing interest rate prior to
its discontinuance or unavailability. The Administrative Agent and its affiliates and/or other related entities may engage in transactions that
affect the calculation of any Baity-SimpteRFR; interest rate used in this Agreement or any alternative, successor or alternative rate (including
any Benchmark Replacement) and/or any relevant adjustments thereto, in each case, in a manner adverse to the Borrowers. The
Administrative Agent may select information sources or services in its reasonable discretion to ascertain any RFR;DBaity-Simpte RFR-or
RelevantRateinterest rate used in this Agreement, any component thereof, or rates referenced in the
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definition thereof, in each case pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and shall have no liability to the Borrowers, any Lender or any other
person or entity for damages of any kind, including direct or indirect, special, punitive, incidental or consequential damages, costs, losses or
expenses (whether in tort, contract or otherwise and whether at law or in equity), for any error or calculation of any such rate (or component
thereof) provided by any such information source or service.

ARTICLE II
The Credits

SECTION 2.01Commitments. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, each Lender agrees to make Revolving Loans to
the Borrowers in Agreed Currencies from time to time during the Availability Period in an aggregate principal amount that will not result
(after giving effect to any application of proceeds of such Borrowing pursuant to Section 2.10) in, subject to Sections 2.04 and 2.11(c), (a) the
Dollar Amount of such Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure exceeding such Lender’s Commitment or (b) the Dollar Amount of the Total
Revolving Credit Exposures exceeding the total Commitments. Within the foregoing limits and subject to the terms and conditions set forth
herein, the Borrowers may borrow, prepay and reborrow Revolving Loans.

SECTION 2.02L.oans and Borrowings.

(@) Each Revolving Loan shall be made as part of a Borrowing consisting of Revolving Loans made by the Lenders
ratably in accordance with their respective Commitments. The failure of any Lender to make any Loan required to be made by it shall not
relieve any other Lender of its obligations hereunder; provided that the Commitments of the Lenders are several and no Lender shall be
responsible for any other Lender’s failure to make Loans as required.

(b)  Subject to Section 2.14, each Revolving Borrowing shall be comprised (i) in the case of Borrowings in U.S.
Dollars, entirely of ABR Loans or Eureenrrerreylerm Benchmark Loans, (ii) in the case of Borrowings in any other Agreed Currency,
entirely of Eureenrreneylerm Benchmark Loans or RFR Loans or Canadian Prime Rate Loans, as applicable, in each case of the same
Agreed Currency, as the Company may request in accordance herewith, provided that (x) ABR Loans shall be only available in U.S. Dollars
and (y) Canadian Prime Rate Loans shall only be available in Canadian Dollars. Each Swingline Loan shall be an ABR Loan. Each Lender
at its option may make any Etroetrrereylerm Benchmark Loan or Canadian Prime Rate Loan to any Borrower, or any Loan to a Foreign
Obligor, by causing any domestic or foreign branch or Affiliate of such Lender to make such Loan; provided that any exercise of such option
shall not affect the obligation of the applicable Borrower to repay such Loan in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(c) At the commencement of each Interest Period for any EurecurreneyTerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing, such
Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount that is (i) an integral multiple of (A) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars,
$1,000,000, (B) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen, ¥100,000,000, and (C) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in
any other Foreign Currency, the smallest amount of such Foreign Currency that has a Dollar Amount in excess of $1,000,000, and (ii) not less
than (A) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, $1,000,000, (B) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen,
¥100,000,000, and (C) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in any other Foreign Currency, the smallest amount of such Foreign Currency
that has a Dollar Amount in excess of $1,000,000. At the time that each ABR Revolving Borrowing and/or RFR Borrowing is made, such
Borrowing shall be in an aggregate Dollar Amount that is not less than $250,000; provided that an ABR Revolving Borrowing may be in an
aggregate amount that is equal to the entire unused balance of the total Commitments or that is required to finance the reimbursement of an
LC
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Disbursement as contemplated by Section 2.06(e). Each Swingline Loan shall be in an amount that is not less than $250,000. Borrowings of
more than one Type and Class may be outstanding at the same time; provided that there shall not at any time be more than a total of ten (10)
EurecurrereyTerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowings or RFR Revolving Borrowings outstanding.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Company shall not be entitled to request, or to elect to
convert or continue, any Borrowing if the Interest Period requested with respect thereto would end after the Maturity Date.

SECTION 2.03Requests for Revolving Borrowings. To request a Revolving Borrowing, the Company shall notify the
Administrative Agent of such request by telecopy of a written Borrowing Request in a form approved by the Administrative Agent and signed
by the Company (a) in the case of a EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, not later than 11:00 a.m., New
York City time, three (3) U.S. Government Securities Business Days before the date of the proposed Borrowing, (b) in the case of a
EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing denominated in a Foreign Currency, not later than 11:00 a.m., Eeeat-FimeNew York City time,
four (4) Business Days before the date of the proposed Borrowing, (c) in the case of an RFR Borrowrng denomrnated in Pounds Sterling-et,

the date of the prop proposed Borrowrng, (d) in the case of an ABR Borrowmg not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the date of the
proposed Borrowing and (e) in the case of or a Canadian Prime Rate Borrowing, not later than 11:00 a.m., Local Time, on the date of the
proposed Borrowing. Each such Borrowing Request shall be irrevocable and shall specify the following information in compliance with
Section 2.02:

@) the Borrower requesting such Borrowing;
(ii) the currency and aggregate amount of the requested Borrowing;
(iii) the date of such Borrowing, which shall be a Business Day;

@iv) whether such Borrowing is to be an ABR Borrowing, a Euroetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing, a Canadian
Prime Rate Borrowing or an RFR Borrowing, as applicable;

W) in the case of a Fureeurreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing, the initial Interest Period to be applicable thereto,
which shall be a period contemplated by the definition of the term “Interest Period”; and

(vi) the location and number of the applicable Borrower’s account to which funds are to be disbursed, which shall
comply with the requirements of Section 2.07.

If no currency is specified with respect to any requested EurectirreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing, then the requested Revolving Borrowing
shall be denominated in U.S. Dollars. If no election as to the Type of Revolving Borrowing is specified, then, (A) in the case of a Borrowing
denominated in U.S. Dollars, the requested Revolving Borrowing shall be an ABR Borrowing, (B) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in
any Foreign Currency (other than Pounds Sterling or Swiss Francs), the requested Revolving Borrowing shall be a EurectrreneyTerm
Benchmark Borrowing, and (C) in the case of a Borrowing denominated in Pounds Sterling or Swiss Francs, the requested Revolving
Borrowing shall be an RFR Borrowing. If no Interest Period is specified with respect to any requested EuroenrreneyTerm Benchmark
Revolving Borrowing, then the Company shall be deemed to have selected an Interest Period of one (1) month’s duration. Promptly
following receipt of a Borrowing Request in accordance with this Section, the
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Administrative Agent shall advise each Lender of the details thereof and of the amount of such Lender’s Loan to be made as part of the
requested Borrowing.

SECTION 2.04Determination of Dollar Amounts. The Administrative Agent will determine the Dollar Amount of:

(@) any _Loan denominated in a Foreign Currency (other than a Canadian Prime Rate Borrowing), on each of the
following; (i)_the date of the Borrowing of such L.oan and (ii)(A)_with respect to any Term Benchmark Loan, each date of a conversion or

continuation of such Loan pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and (B)_with respect to any RFR Loan, each date that is on the numerically_
corresponding_day in each calendar month that is one month after the Borrowing of such Loan (or,_if there is no such numerically_
corresponding day in such month, then the last day of such month);

(b)  each Canadian Prime Rate Borrowing, as of the date of such Borrowing;

(c) the LC Exposure as of the date of each request for the issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of
Credit; and

(d) all outstanding Revolving Loans and the LC Exposure on and as of the last Business Day of each calendar quarter
and, during the continuation of an Event of Default, on any other Business Day elected by the Administrative Agent in its discretion or upon
instruction by the Required Lenders.

is herein described as a “Computation Date” with respect to each Borrowing, Letter of Credit or LC Exposure for which a Dollar Amount is
determined on or as of such day.

SECTION 2.05Swingline L.oans.

(@)  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, each Swingline Lender may in its sole discretion (and without
any obligation to do so) make Swingline Loans in U.S. Dollars to the Company from time to time during the Availability Period, in an
aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding that will not result in (i) the aggregate principal amount of outstanding Swingline Loans
made by such Swingline Lender exceeding such Swingline Lender’s Swingline Commitment, (ii) the Dollar Amount of such Swingline
Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure exceeding its Commitment (such Commitment to be calculated without giving effect to any assignment
of any portion of the initial Swingline Lender’s original Commitment as of the Effective Date, unless such Swingline Lender also assigns a
proportional amount of its Swingline Commitment to the assignee or to another Lender with a Commitment at least equal to the Commitment
amount being assigned), or (iii) the Dollar Amount of the Total Revolving Credit Exposures exceeding the total Commitments; provided that
a Swingline Lender shall not be required to make a Swingline Loan to refinance an outstanding Swingline Loan. Within the foregoing limits
and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company may borrow, prepay and reborrow Swingline Loans.

(b)  To request a Swingline Loan, the Company shall notify the Administrative Agent of such request by telecopy of a
written request in a form approved by the Administrative Agent and signed by the Company, not later than 1:00 p.m., New York City time, on
the day of a proposed Swingline Loan. Each such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the requested date (which shall be a Business
Day)
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and amount of the requested Swingline Loan. The Administrative Agent will promptly advise the Swingline Lenders of any such notice
received from the Company. Each Swingline Lender shall make its ratable portion of the requested Swingline Loan (such ratable portion to
be calculated based upon such Swingline Lender’s Swingline Commitment in proportion to the total Swingline Commitments of all of the
Swingline Lenders) available to the Company by means of a credit to an account of the Company with the Administrative Agent designated
for such purpose (or, in the case of a Swingline Loan made to finance the reimbursement of an LC Disbursement as provided in Section
2.06(e), by remittance to such Issuing Bank) by 3:00 p.m., New York City time, on the requested date of such Swingline Loan.

(c)  The failure of any Swingline Lender to make its ratable portion of a Swingline Loan shall not relieve any other
Swingline Lender of its obligation hereunder to make its ratable portion of such Swingline Loan on the date of such Swingline Loan, but no
Swingline Lender shall be responsible for the failure of any other Swingline Lender to make the ratable portion of a Swingline Loan to be
made by such other Swingline Lender on the date of any Swingline Loan.

(d) Any Swingline Lender may by written notice given to the Administrative Agent require the Lenders to acquire
participations in all or a portion of its Swingline Loans outstanding. Such notice shall specify the aggregate amount of Swingline Loans in
which Lenders will participate. Promptly upon receipt of such notice, the Administrative Agent will give notice thereof to each Lender,
specifying in such notice such Lender’s Applicable Percentage of such Swingline Loans. Each Lender hereby absolutely and unconditionally
agrees, promptly upon receipt of such notice from the Administrative Agent (and in any event, if such notice is received by 12:00 Noon, New
York City time, on a Business Day, then no later than 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on such Business Day, and if received after 12:00
Noon, New York City time, on a Business Day, then no later than 10:00 a.m., New York City Time, on the immediately succeeding Business
Day), to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of such Swingline Lender, such Lender’s Applicable Percentage of such Swingline
Loans. Each Lender acknowledges and agrees that its obligation to acquire participations in Swingline Loans pursuant to this paragraph is
absolute and unconditional and shall not be affected by any circumstance whatsoever, including the occurrence and continuance of a Default
or reduction or termination of the Commitments, and that each such payment shall be made without any offset, abatement, withholding or
reduction whatsoever. Each Lender shall comply with its obligation under this paragraph by wire transfer of immediately available funds, in
the same manner as provided in Section 2.07 with respect to Loans made by such Lender (and Section 2.07 shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to
the payment obligations of the Lenders), and the Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to such Swingline Lender the amounts so received
by it from the Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall notify the Company of any participations in any Swingline Loan acquired pursuant to
this paragraph, and thereafter payments in respect of such Swingline Loan shall be made to the Administrative Agent and not to such
Swingline Lender. Any amounts received by a Swingline Lender from the Company (or other party on behalf of the Company) in respect of
a Swingline Loan after receipt by such Swingline Lender of the proceeds of a sale of participations therein shall be promptly remitted to the
Administrative Agent; any such amounts received by the Administrative Agent shall be promptly remitted by the Administrative Agent to the
Lenders that shall have made their payments pursuant to this paragraph and to such Swingline Lender, as their interests may appear; provided
that any such payment so remitted shall be repaid to such Swingline Lender or to the Administrative Agent, as applicable, if and to the extent
such payment is required to be refunded to the Company for any reason. The purchase of participations in a Swingline Loan pursuant to this
paragraph shall not relieve the Company of any default in the payment thereof.

(e)  Any Swingline Lender may be replaced at any time by written agreement among the Company, the Administrative
Agent, the replaced Swingline Lender and the successor Swingline Lender. The Administrative Agent shall notify the Lenders of any such
replacement of a Swingline Lender. At the time any such replacement shall become effective, the Company shall pay all unpaid interest
accrued for the account of the replaced Swingline Lender pursuant to Section 2.13(a). From and after the effective date
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of any such replacement, (x) the successor Swingline Lender shall have all the rights and obligations of the replaced Swingline Lender under
this Agreement with respect to Swingline Loans made thereafter and (y) references herein to the term “Swingline Lender” shall be deemed to
refer to such successor or to any previous Swingline Lender, or to such successor and all previous Swingline Lenders, as the context shall
require. After the replacement of a Swingline Lender hereunder, the replaced Swingline Lender shall remain a party hereto and shall
continue to have all the rights and obligations of a Swingline Lender under this Agreement with respect to Swingline Loans made by it prior
to its replacement, but shall not be required to make additional Swingline Loans.

® Subject to the prior appointment and acceptance of a successor Swingline Lender, any Swingline Lender may resign
as a Swingline Lender at any time upon thirty days’ prior written notice to the Administrative Agent, the Company and the Lenders, in which
case, such Swingline Lender shall be replaced in accordance with Section 2.05(e) above.

SECTION 2.061 etters of Credit.

(@)  General. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company may request the issuance of Letters of
Credit denominated in Agreed Currencies as the applicant thereof for the support of its or its Subsidiaries” obligations, in a form reasonably
acceptable to the Administrative Agent and the Issuing Bank, at any time and from time to time during the Availability Period. In the event
of any inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of any form of letter of credit
application or other agreement submitted by the Company to, or entered into by the Company with, the Issuing Bank relating to any Letter of
Credit, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Issuing Bank shall
have no obligation hereunder to issue, and shall not issue, any Letter of Credit the proceeds of which would be made available to any Person
(i) to fund any activity or business of or with any Sanctioned Person, or in any country or territory that, at the time of such funding, is the
subject of any Sanctions so as to result in a violation of any Sanctions or (ii) in any other manner that would result in a violation of any
Sanctions by any party to this Agreement.

(b) Notice of Issuance, Amendment, Renewal, Extension; Certain Conditions. To request the issuance of a Letter of
Credit (or the amendment, renewal or extension of an outstanding Letter of Credit), the Company shall hand deliver or telecopy (or transmit
by electronic communication, if arrangements for doing so have been approved by the Issuing Bank) to the Issuing Bank and the
Administrative Agent (no less than three (3) Business Days in advance of the requested date of issuance, amendment, renewal or extension,
or such later date and time as the Administrative Agent and the Issuing Bank may agree in a particular instance in their sole discretion) a
notice requesting the issuance of a Letter of Credit, or identifying the Letter of Credit to be amended, renewed or extended, and specifying
the date of issuance, amendment, renewal or extension (which shall be a Business Day), the date on which such Letter of Credit is to expire

name and address of the beneficiary thereof and such other information as shall be necessary to prepare, amend, renew or extend such Letter
of Credit. If requested by the Issuing Bank, the Company also shall submit a letter of credit application on the Issuing Bank’s standard form
in connection with any request for a Letter of Credit. A Letter of Credit shall be issued, amended, renewed or extended only if (and upon
issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of each Letter of Credit the Borrowers shall be deemed to represent and warrant that), after
giving effect to such issuance, amendment, renewal or extension, subject to Sections 2.04 and 2.11(c), (i) (x) the aggregate undrawn amount
of all outstanding Letters of Credit issued by the Issuing Bank at such time plus (y) the aggregate amount of all LC Disbursements made by
the Issuing Bank that have not yet been reimbursed by or on behalf of the Borrower at such time shall not exceed its Letter of Credit
Commitment, (ii) the sum of the Dollar Amount of the Revolving Credit Exposure of each Lender shall not exceed such Lender’s
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Commitment, and (iii) the Dollar Amount of the Total Revolving Credit Exposures shall not exceed the total Commitments. The Company
may, at any time and from time to time, reduce the Letter of Credit Commitment of any Issuing Bank with the consent of such Issuing Bank;
provided that the Company shall not reduce the Letter of Credit Commitment of any Issuing Bank if, after giving effect of such reduction, the
conditions set forth in clauses (i) through (iii) above shall not be satisfied.

(c)  Expiration Date. Each Letter of Credit shall expire (or be subject to termination by notice from the Issuing Bank to
the beneficiary thereof) at or prior to the close of business on the earlier of (i) the date one (1) year after the date of the issuance of such
Letter of Credit (or, in the case of any renewal or extension thereof, one (1) year after such renewal or extension) and (ii) the date that is five
(5) Business Days prior to the Maturity Date (unless such Letter of Credit has been cash collateralized in a manner satisfactory to the Issuing
Bank); provided that any Letter of Credit may contain customary automatic renewal provisions agreed upon by the Company and the Issuing
Bank pursuant to which the expiration date of such Letter of Credit shall be automatically extended for a period of up to 12 months (but not
to a date later than the date set forth in clause (ii) above (unless such Letter of Credit has been cash collateralized in a manner satisfactory to
the Issuing Bank)).

(d) Participations. By the issuance of a Letter of Credit (or an amendment to a Letter of Credit increasing the amount
thereof) and without any further action on the part of the Issuing Bank or the Lenders, the Issuing Bank hereby grants to each Lender, and
each Lender hereby acquires from the Issuing Bank, a participation in such Letter of Credit equal to such Lender’s Applicable Percentage of
the aggregate amount available to be drawn under such Letter of Credit. In consideration and in furtherance of the foregoing, each Lender
hereby absolutely and unconditionally agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Issuing Bank, such Lender’s
Applicable Percentage of each LC Disbursement made by the Issuing Bank and not reimbursed by the Company on the date due as provided
acknowledges and agrees that its obligation to acquire participations pursuant to this paragraph in respect of Letters of Credit is absolute and
unconditional and shall not be affected by any circumstance whatsoever, including any amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of
Credit or the occurrence and continuance of a Default or reduction or termination of the Commitments, and that each such payment shall be
made without any offset, abatement, withholding or reduction whatsoever.

(e) Reimbursement. If the Issuing Bank shall make any LC Disbursement in respect of a Letter of Credit, the
Company shall reimburse such LC Disbursement by paying to the Administrative Agent in an amount equal to such LC Disbursement not
later than 1:00 p.m., Local Time, on the date that such LC Disbursement is made, if the Company shall have received notice of such LC
Disbursement prior to 10:00 a.m., Local Time, on such date, or, if such notice has not been received by the Company prior to such time on
such date, then not later than 1:00 p.m., Local Time, on the Business Day immediately following the day that the Company receives such
notice; provided that, if such LC Disbursement is not less than a Dollar Amount of $100,000, the Company may, subject to the conditions to
borrowing set forth herein, request in accordance with Section 2.03 or 2.05 that such payment be financed with an ABR Revolving
Borrowing or Swingline Loan in the Dollar Amount of such LC Disbursement and, to the extent so financed, the Company’s obligation to
make such payment shall be discharged and replaced by the resulting ABR Revolving Borrowing or Swingline Loan. If the Company fails to
make such payment when due, the Administrative Agent shall notify each Lender of the applicable LC Disbursement, the payment then due
from the Company in respect thereof and such Lender’s Applicable Percentage thereof. Promptly following receipt of such notice, each
Lender shall pay to the Administrative Agent its Applicable Percentage of the payment then due from the Company, in the same manner as
provided in Section 2.07 with respect to Loans made by such Lender (and Section 2.07 shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the payment
obligations of the Lenders), and the Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to the Issuing Bank the amounts so received by it from the
Lenders. Promptly following receipt by the Administrative Agent of
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any payment from the Company pursuant to this paragraph, the Administrative Agent shall distribute such payment to the Issuing Bank or, to
the extent that Lenders have made payments pursuant to this paragraph to reimburse the Issuing Bank, then to such Lenders and the Issuing
Bank as their interests may appear. Any payment made by a Lender pursuant to this paragraph to reimburse the Issuing Bank for any LC
Disbursement (other than the funding of ABR Revolving Loans or a Swingline Loan as contemplated above) shall not constitute a Loan and
shall not relieve the Company of its obligation to reimburse such LC Disbursement. If the Company’s reimbursement of, or obligation to
reimburse, any amounts in any Foreign Currency would subject a Credit Party to any stamp duty, ad valorem charge or similar tax that would
not be payable if such reimbursement were made or required to be made in U.S. Dollars, the Company shall, at its option, either (x) pay the
amount of any such tax requested by such Credit Party or (y) reimburse each LC Disbursement made in such Foreign Currency in U.S.
Dollars, in an amount equal to the Dollar Amount, calculated using the applicable exchange rates, on the date such LC Disbursement is made,
of such LC Disbursement.

(f)  Obligations Absolute. The Company’s obligation to reimburse LC Disbursements as provided in paragraph (e) of
this Section shall be absolute, unconditional and irrevocable, and shall be performed strictly in accordance with the terms of this Agreement
under any and all circumstances whatsoever and irrespective of (i) any lack of validity or enforceability of any Letter of Credit or this
Agreement, or any term or provision therein, (ii) any draft or other document presented under a Letter of Credit proving to be forged,
fraudulent or invalid in any respect or any statement therein being untrue or inaccurate in any respect, (iii) payment by the Issuing Bank
under a Letter of Credit against presentation of a draft or other document that does not comply with the terms of such Letter of Credit, (iv)
any other event or circumstance whatsoever, whether or not similar to any of the foregoing, that might, but for the provisions of this Section,
constitute a legal or equitable discharge of, or provide a right of setoff against, the Company’s obligations hereunder or (v) any adverse
change in the relevant exchange rates or in the availability of the relevant Foreign Currency to the Company or any Subsidiary or in the
relevant currency markets generally. Neither the Credit Parties nor any of their Related Parties shall have any liability or responsibility by
reason of or in connection with the issuance or transfer of any Letter of Credit or any payment or failure to make any payment thereunder
(irrespective of any of the circumstances referred to in the preceding sentence), or any error, omission, interruption, loss or delay in
transmission or delivery of any draft, notice or other communication under or relating to any Letter of Credit (including any document
required to make a drawing thereunder), any error in interpretation of technical terms or any consequence arising from causes beyond the
control of the Issuing Bank; provided that the foregoing shall not be construed to excuse the Issuing Bank from liability to the Company to
the extent of any direct damages (as opposed to special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages, claims in respect of which are hereby
waived by the Company to the extent permitted by applicable law) suffered by the Company that are caused by the Issuing Bank’s failure to
exercise care when determining whether drafts and other documents presented under a Letter of Credit comply with the terms thereof. The
parties hereto expressly agree that, in the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Issuing Bank (as finally
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction), the Issuing Bank shall be deemed to have exercised care in each such determination. In
furtherance of the foregoing and without limiting the generality thereof, the parties agree that, with respect to documents presented which
appear on their face to be in substantial compliance with the terms of a Letter of Credit, the Issuing Bank may, in its sole discretion, either
accept and make payment upon such documents without responsibility for further investigation, regardless of any notice or information to the
contrary, or refuse to accept and make payment upon such documents if such documents are not in strict compliance with the terms of such
Letter of Credit.

(g) Disbursement Procedures. The Issuing Bank shall, within the time allowed by applicable law or the specific terms
of the Letter of Credit following its receipt thereof, examine all documents purporting to represent a demand for payment under a Letter of
Credit. The Issuing Bank shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent and the Company by telephone (confirmed by telecopy) of such
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demand for payment and whether the Issuing Bank has made or will make an LC Disbursement thereunder; provided that any failure to give
or delay in giving such notice shall not relieve the Company of its obligation to reimburse the Issuing Bank and the Lenders with respect to
any such LC Disbursement.

(h) Interim Interest. If the Issuing Bank shall make any LC Disbursement, then, unless the Company shall reimburse
such LC Disbursement in full on the date such LC Disbursement is made, the unpaid amount thereof shall bear interest, for each day from
and including the date such LC Disbursement is made to but excluding the date that the reimbursement is due and payable at the rate per
annum then applicable to ABR Revolving Loans (or, if such LC Disbursement is denominated in a Foreign Currency, at the Overnight Rate
for such Foreign Currency plus the then effective Applicable Rate with respect to EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Revolving Loans), and such
interest shall be due and payable on the date when such reimbursement is payable; provided that, if the Company fails to reimburse such LC
Disbursement when due pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section, then Section 2.13(d) shall apply. Interest accrued pursuant to this

@) Replacement of the Issuing Bank. The Issuing Bank may be replaced at any time by written agreement among the
Company, the Administrative Agent, the replaced Issuing Bank and the successor Issuing Bank. The Administrative Agent shall notify the
Lenders of any such replacement of the Issuing Bank. At the time any such replacement shall become effective, the Company shall pay all
unpaid fees accrued for the account of the replaced Issuing Bank pursuant to Section 2.12(b). From and after the effective date of any such
replacement, (i) the successor Issuing Bank shall have all the rights and obligations of the Issuing Bank under this Agreement with respect to
Letters of Credit to be issued thereafter and (ii) references herein to the term “Issuing Bank” shall be deemed to refer to such successor or to
any previous Issuing Bank, or to such successor and all previous Issuing Banks, as the context shall require. After the replacement of an
Issuing Bank hereunder, the replaced Issuing Bank shall remain a party hereto and shall continue to have all the rights and obligations of an
Issuing Bank under this Agreement with respect to Letters of Credit issued by it prior to such replacement, but shall not be required to issue
additional Letters of Credit. Subject to the prior appointment and acceptance of a successor Issuing Bank, any Issuing Bank may resign as an
Issuing Bank at any time upon 30 days’ prior written notice to the Administrative Agent, the Company and the Lenders, in which case, such
Issuing Bank shall be replaced in accordance with this Section 2.06(i).

)] Cash Collateralization. If any Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, on the Business Day that the
Company receives notice from the Administrative Agent at the written request of the Required Lenders (or, if the maturity of the Loans has
been accelerated, Lenders with LC Exposure representing greater than fifty percent (50%) of the total LC Exposure) demanding the deposit
of cash collateral pursuant to this paragraph, the Company shall deposit in an account with the Administrative Agent, in the name of the
Administrative Agent and for the benefit of the Issuing Bank and the Lenders, an amount in cash equal to the LC Exposure as of such date
plus any accrued and unpaid interest thereon; provided that the obligation to deposit such cash collateral shall become effective immediately,
and such deposit shall become immediately due and payable, without demand or other notice of any kind, upon the occurrence of any Event
of Default with respect to any Borrower described in clause (g) or (h) of Article VII. Such deposit shall be held by the Administrative Agent
as collateral for the payment and performance of the Obligations. The Administrative Agent shall have exclusive dominion and control,
including the exclusive right of withdrawal, over such account, and the Borrowers hereby grant to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of
the Issuing Bank and the Lenders, a security interest in such account. Other than any interest earned on the investment of such deposits,
which investments shall be made at the option and sole discretion of the Administrative Agent and at the Company’s risk and expense, such
deposits shall not bear interest. Interest or profits, if any, on such investments shall accumulate in such account. Moneys in
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such account shall be applied by the Administrative Agent to reimburse the Issuing Bank for LC Disbursements for which it has not been
reimbursed and, to the extent not so applied, shall be held for the satisfaction of the reimbursement obligations of the Company for the LC
Exposure at such time or, if the maturity of the Loans has been accelerated (but subject to the consent of Lenders with LC Exposure
representing greater than fifty percent (50%) of the total LC Exposure), be applied to satisfy other Obligations. If the Company is required to
provide an amount of cash collateral hereunder as a result of the occurrence of an Event of Default, such amount (to the extent not applied as
aforesaid) shall be returned to the Company within three (3) Business Days after all Events of Default have been cured or waived.

SECTION 2.07Funding of Borrowings.

(@) Each Lender shall make each Loan to be made by it hereunder on the proposed date thereof by wire transfer of
immediately available funds (i) in the case of Loans denominated in U.S. Dollars, by 12:00 noon, New York City time, to the account of the
Administrative Agent most recently designated by it for such purpose by notice to the Lenders, and (ii) in the case of Loans denominated in a
Foreign Currency, by 12:00 noon, Local Time, in the city of the Administrative Agent’s EurectirreneyForeign Currency Payment Office for
such Foreign Currency and at such EureetrrereyForeign Currency Payment Office; provided that Swingline Loans shall be made as provided
in Section 2.05. The Administrative Agent will make such Loans available to the applicable Borrower by promptly crediting the amounts so
received, in like funds, to (x) in the case of Loans denominated in U.S. Dollars, an account of such Borrower maintained with the
Administrative Agent in New York City and designated by the Company in the applicable Borrowing Request, and (y) in the case of Loans
denominated in a Foreign Currency, an account of such Borrower in the relevant jurisdiction and designated by the Company in the
applicable Borrowing Request; provided that ABR-Revolving Loans made to finance the reimbursement of an L.C Disbursement as provided
in Section 2.06(e) shall be remitted by the Administrative Agent to the Issuing Bank.

(b)  Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from a Lender prior to the proposed date of any
Borrowing (or in the case of an ABR Borrowing, prior to 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the date of such Borrowing) that such Lender
will not make available to the Administrative Agent such Lender’s share of such Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such
assumption, make available to the applicable Borrower a corresponding amount. In such event, if a Lender has not in fact made its share of
the applicable Borrowing available to the Administrative Agent, then the applicable Lender and the applicable Borrower severally agree to
pay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such corresponding amount with interest thereon, for each day from and including the
date such amount is made available to the applicable Borrower to but excluding the date of payment to the Administrative Agent, at (i) in the
case of such Lender, the greater of the applicable Overnight Rate and a rate determined by the Administrative Agent in accordance with
banking industry rules on interbank compensation or (ii) in the case of such Borrower, the interest rate applicable to ABR Loans, or in the
case of Foreign Currencies, in accordance with relevant market practice, in each case, as applicable. If such Lender pays such amount to the
Administrative Agent, then such amount shall constitute such Lender’s Loan included in such Borrowing.

SECTION 2.08Interest Elections.

(@) Each Revolving Borrowing initially shall be of the Type and Agreed Currency specified in the applicable
Borrowing Request and, in the case of a Eureeurreneylerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing, shall have an initial Interest Period as
specified in such Borrowing Request. Thereafter, the Company may elect to convert such Borrowing to a different Type or to continue such
Borrowing and, in the case of a Eureeurreneylerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing, may elect Interest Periods therefor, all as provided in
this Section. The Company may elect different options with respect to
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different portions of the affected Borrowing, in which case each such portion shall be allocated ratably among the Lenders holding the Loans
comprising such Borrowing, and the Loans comprising each such portion shall be considered a separate Borrowing. This Section shall not
apply to Swingline Borrowings, which may not be converted or continued.

(b)  To make an election pursuant to this Section, the Company shall notify the Administrative Agent of such election
by telecopy of a written Interest Election Request in a form approved by the Administrative Agent and signed by the Company by the time
that a Borrowing Request would be required under Section 2.03 if the Company were requesting a Revolving Borrowing of the Type
resulting from such election to be made on the effective date of such election. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, the
Company shall not be permitted to (i) change the currency of any Borrowing, (ii) elect an Interest Period for EurectirreneyTerm Benchmark
Loans that does not comply with Section 2.02(d) or (iii) convert any Borrowing to a Borrowing of a Type not available to the applicable
Borrower for such Borrowing when it was made.

(c) Each written Interest Election Request shall be irrevocable and shall specify the following information in
compliance with Section 2.02:

(6] the name of the applicable Borrower and the Agreed Currency and principal amount of the Borrowing to which
such Interest Election Request applies and, if different options are being elected with respect to different portions
thereof, the portions thereof to be allocated to each resulting Borrowing (in which case the information to be
specified pursuant to clauses (iii) and (iv) below shall be specified for each resulting Borrowing);

(ii) the effective date of the election made pursuant to such Interest Election Request, which shall be a Business Day;

(iii) whether the resulting Borrowing is to be an ABR Borrowing, a Eurectirreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing-ot, a
Canadian Prime Rate Borrowing or an RFR Borrowing, as applicable; and

@iv) if the resulting Borrowing is a Eureenrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing, the Interest Period to be applicable
thereto after giving effect to such election, which Interest Period shall be a period contemplated by the definition
of the term “Interest Period”.

If any such Interest Election Request requests a EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing but does not specify an Interest Period, then the
Company shall be deemed to have selected an Interest Period of one (1) month’s duration.

(d)  Promptly following receipt of an Interest Election Request, the Administrative Agent shall advise each Lender of
the details thereof and of such Lender’s portion of each resulting Borrowing.

(e)  If the Company fails to deliver a timely Interest Election Request with respect to a Euroeurreneylerm Benchmark
Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars prior to the end of the Interest Period apphcable thereto, then, unless such Borrowmg is repald as
prov1ded hereln at the end of such Interest Perlod such Borrowmg shall be AV a g
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o—af—Caradta rre—RateBo s—at—the—end Rtere oddeemed to have an Interest Period that is one (1) month. If the
Company fails to deliver a timely and complete Interest Election Request with respect to a Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing
denominated in a Foreign Currency f(other—than—Ganadian—DeHars)—prior to the end of the Interest Period therefor, then, unless such
EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing is repaid as provided herein, the Company shall be deemed to have selected that such
EureeurreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing shall automatically be continued as a Ewreetirreneylerm Benchmark Borrowing in its original
Agreed Currency with an Interest Period of one {+-month at the end of such Interest Period. Notwithstanding any contrary provision hereof,
if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and the Administrative Agent, at the request of the Required Lenders, so notifies the
Company, then, so long as an Event of Default is continuing (i) no outstanding Borrowing may be converted to or continued as a
EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing and (ii) unless repaid, (xw) each Eureeurrereylerm Benchmark Borrowing and each RFR
Borrowing, in each case denominated in U.S. Dollars shall be converted to an ABR Borrowing (in the case of a Term Benchmark Borrowing)_

Rate plus the Applicable Rate at the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto, (y) each EureeturreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing
denominated in Canadian Dollars shall be converted to ara Loan that bears interest at the Canadian Prime Rate Berrowingplus the Applicable
Rate at the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto and (z) each EureenrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing and each RFR Borrowing, in
each case denominated in a Foreign Currency tother than Japanese Yen or Canadian Dollarsy, shall bear interest at the Central Bank Rate for
the applicable Agreed Currency plus the Applicable Rate; provided that, if the Administrative Agent determines (which determination shall
be conclusive and binding absent manifest error) that the Central Bank Rate for the applicable Agreed Currency (or_in the case of (1)_
Japanese Yen, the Japanese Prime Rate or (2)_Canadian Dollars, the Canadian Prime Rate) cannot be determined, any outstanding affected

EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Loans or RFR Loans denominated in any Foreign Currency etherthan-Canadianbotars)-shall either be (A)
converted to an ABR Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars (in an amount equal to the Dollar Amount of such Foreign Currency) at the end

that is three (3) Business Days after receipt by the BorrewerCompany of such notice and (y) the last day of the current Interest Period for the
applicable EureeurreneyTerm Benchmark Loan, thesuch Borrower shall be deemed to have elected clause (A) above.

SECTION 2.09Termination and Reduction of Commitments.
(@)  Unless previously terminated, the Commitments shall terminate on the Maturity Date.

(b)  The Borrowers may at any time terminate, or from time to time reduce, the Commitments; provided that (i) each
reduction of the Commitments shall be in an amount that is an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and not less than $1,000,000 and (ii) the
Borrowers shall not terminate or reduce the Commitments if, after giving effect to any concurrent prepayment of the Loans in accordance
with Section 2.11, (A) any Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure would exceed its Commitment or (B) the Dollar Amount of the Total
Revolving Credit Exposures would exceed the total Commitments.

(c)  The Company shall notify the Administrative Agent of any election to terminate or reduce the Commitments under

election and the effective date thereof. Promptly following receipt of any such notice, the Administrative Agent shall advise the Lenders of
the contents thereof. Each notice delivered by the Company pursuant to this Section shall be irrevocable;
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provided that a notice of termination of the Commitments delivered by the Company may state that such notice is conditioned upon the
effectiveness of other credit facilities, in which case such notice may be revoked by the Company (by notice to the Administrative Agent on
or prior to the specified effective date) if such condition is not satisfied. Any termination or reduction of the Commitments shall be
permanent. Each reduction of the Commitments shall be made ratably among the Lenders in accordance with their respective Commitments.

SECTION 2.10Repayment of Loans; Evidence of Debt.

(@) (i) Each Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each
Lender the then unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Loan made to such Borrower on the Maturity Date in the currency of such Loan
and (ii) the Company hereby unconditionally promises to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of the Swingline Lenders the then
unpaid principal amount of each Swingline Loan on the earlier of the Maturity Date and the fifth (5t) Business Day after such Swingline
Loan is made; provided that on each date that a Revolving Borrowing is made to the Company, the Company shall repay all Swingline Loans
then outstanding, and the proceeds of any such Borrowing shall be applied by the Administrative Agent to repay any Swingline Loans
outstanding.

(b) Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice an account or accounts evidencing the
indebtedness of each Borrower to such Lender resulting from each Loan made to such Borrower by such Lender, including the amounts of
principal and interest payable and paid to such Lender from time to time hereunder.

(c) The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which it shall record (i) the amount of each Loan made
hereunder, the Class, Agreed Currency and Type thereof and the Interest Period applicable thereto, (ii) the amount of any principal or interest
due and payable or to become due and payable from each Borrower to each Lender hereunder and (iii) the amount of any sum received by the
Administrative Agent hereunder for the account of the Lenders and each Lender’s share thereof.

(d)  Subject to Section 10.04(b)(iv), the entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to paragraph (b) or (c) of this
Section shall be prima facie evidence of the existence and amounts of the Obligations recorded therein; provided that the failure of any
Lender or the Administrative Agent to maintain such accounts or any error therein shall not in any manner affect the obligation of each

Borrower to repay the Loans made to such Borrower in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(e)  Any Lender may request that Loans made by it be evidenced by a promissory note. In such event, the Borrowers
shall prepare, execute and deliver to such Lender a promissory note payable to such Lender (or, if requested by such Lender, to such Lender
and its registered assigns) and in a form approved by the Administrative Agent. Thereafter, the Loans evidenced by such promissory note and
interest thereon shall at all times (including after assignment pursuant to Section 10.04) be represented by one or more promissory notes in
such form payable to the payee named therein and its registered assigns.

SECTION 2.11Prepayment of Loans.

(@) The Borrowers shall have the right at any time and from time to time to prepay any Borrowing in whole or in part,
(i) an integral multiple of (A) in the case of an ABR Revolving Borrowing, $100,000, (B) in the case of a Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark
Revolving Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, $1,000,000, (C) in the case of a Eureenrreneylerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing
denominated in Japanese Yen, ¥100,000,000, and (D) in the case of a
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Euroeurreneylerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing denominated in any other Foreign Currency or a Canadian Prime Rate Revolving
Borrowing, the smallest amount of such Foreign Currency that has a Dollar Amount in excess of $1,000,000, and (ii) not less than (A) in the
case of a Swingline Borrowing, $100,000, (B) in the case of an ABR Revolving Borrowing, $1,000,000, (C) in the case of a
EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing denominated in U.S. Dollars, $1,000,000, (D) in the case of a Eurectrreneylerm
Benchmark Revolving Borrowing denominated in Japanese Yen, ¥100,000,000, and (E) in the case of a Eureenrreneylerm Benchmark
Revolving Borrowing denominated in any other Foreign Currency, or a Canadian Prime Rate Revolving Borrowing, the smallest amount of
such Foreign Currency that has a Dollar Amount in excess of $1,000,000.

(b)  The Company, on behalf of the applicable Borrower, shall notify the Administrative Agent (and, in the case of
prepayment of Swingline Loans, the Company shall notify the Swingline Lenders) by telecopy of a written notice signed by the Borrower of
any prepayment hereunder (i) in the case of prepayment of a Eurectrreneylerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing denominated in U.S.
Dollars, not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, three (3) Business Days before the date of prepayment, (ii) in the case of prepayment
of a EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Revolving Borrowing denominated in a Foreign Currency or a Canadian Prime Rate Revolving
Borrowing, not later than 11:00 a.m., Local Time, four (4) Business Days before the date of prepayment, (iii) in the case of prepayment of an
RFR Borrowing denominated in Pounds Sterling or Swiss Francs, not later than 11:00 a.m., Local Time, five (5) Business Days before the
date of prepayment, (iv) in the case of prepayment of an ABR Revolving Borrowing, not later than 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the
date of prepayment or (v) in the case of prepayment of a Swingline Loan, not later than 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the date of
prepayment. Each such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the prepayment date and the principal amount of each Borrowing or
portion thereof to be prepaid; provided that, if a notice of prepayment is given in connection with a conditional notice of termination of the
Commitments as contemplated by Section 2.09, then such notice of prepayment may be revoked if such notice of termination is revoked in
accordance with Section 2.09. Promptly following receipt of any such notice relating to a Revolving Borrowing, the Administrative Agent
shall advise the Lenders of the contents thereof. Each partial prepayment of any Revolving Borrowing shall be in an amount that would be
permitted in the case of an advance of a Revolving Borrowing of the same Type as provided in Section 2.02. Each prepayment of a
Revolving Borrowing shall be applied ratably to the Loans included in the prepaid Borrowing. Prepayments shall be accompanied by
accrued interest to the extent required by Section 2.13 and break funding payments to the extent required by Section 2.16.

(c)  If at any time, (i) other than as a result of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the sum of the aggregate principal
Dollar Amount of the Total Revolving Credit Exposures (calculated, with respect to Revolving Loans and LC Exposure denominated in
Foreign Currencies, as of the most recent Computation Date with respect to each such Revolving Loans and LC Exposure) exceeds the total
Commitments or (ii) solely as a result of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the aggregate principal Dollar Amount of the Total
Revolving Credit Exposures (so calculated), as of the most recent Computation Date, exceeds one hundred five percent (105%) of the total
Commitments, the Borrowers shall, in each case, immediately repay Borrowings or cash collateralize LC Exposure in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Section 2.06(j), as applicable, in an aggregate principal amount sufficient to cause the Dollar Amount of the Total
Revolving Credit Exposures (so calculated) to be less than or equal to the total Commitments.

SECTION 2.12Fees.

(@) The Company agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender a facility fee, which shall
accrue at the Applicable Rate on the daily amount of the Commitment of such Lender (whether used or unused) during the period from and
including the Effective Date to but
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excluding the date on which such Commitment terminates; provided that, if such Lender continues to have any Revolving Credit Exposure
after its Commitment terminates, then such facility fee shall continue to accrue on the daily amount of such Lender’s Revolving Credit
Exposure from and including the date on which its Commitment terminates to but excluding the date on which such Lender ceases to have
any Revolving Credit Exposure. Aeerted-facitityfeesshal-be-payablein-arrears-onFacility fees accrued through and including the last day
of March, June, September and December of each year shall be pavable in arrears on the fifteenth ( 15th) daV following such last day and on
the date on which the Commitments terminate;—€ g-61 P h-clate-to-oceur—afte hereof; provided that any facility
fees accruing after the date on which the Commitments terrnlnate shall be payable on demand All fac111ty fees shall be computed on the
basis of a year of three hundred sixty (360) days and shall be payable for the actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but
excluding the last day).

(b)  The Company agrees to pay (i) to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender a participation fee with
respect to its participations in Letters of Credit, which shall accrue at the same Applicable Rate used to determine the interest rate applicable
to Buroeurreneylerm Benchmark Revolving Loans on the average daily Dollar Amount of such Lender’s LC Exposure (excluding any
portion thereof attributable to unreimbursed LC Disbursements) during the period from and including the Effective Date to but excluding the
later of the date on which such Lender’s Commitment terminates and the date on which such Lender ceases to have any LC Exposure, and
(ii) to the Issuing Bank a fronting fee, which shall accrue at the rate or rates per annum separately agreed upon between the Company and the
Issuing Bank on the average daily Dollar Amount of the LC Exposure (excluding any portion thereof attributable to unreimbursed LC
Disbursements) during the period from and including the Effective Date to but excluding the later of the date of termination of the
Commitments and the date on which there ceases to be any LC Exposure, as well as the Issuing Bank’s standard fees with respect to the
issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of Credit or processing of drawings thereunder. Participation fees and fronting fees
accrued through and including the last day of March, June, September and December of each year shall be payable on the thire-3+)Btisiness-
Payfifteenth (15th) day following such last day,commeneing-on-thefirst-steh-date-to-ocenrafterthe Effeetive Date; provided that all such
fees shall be payable on the date on which the Commitments terminate and any such fees accruing after the date on which the Commitments
terminate shall be payable on demand. Any other fees payable to the Issuing Bank pursuant to this paragraph shall be payable within ten (10)
days after demand. All participation fees and fronting fees shall be computed on the basis of a year of three hundred sixty (360) days and
shall be payable for the actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last day).

(c)  The Company agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent and the Arrangers, for their own respective accounts, fees
payable in the amounts and at the times separately agreed upon between the Company, on the one hand, and the Administrative Agent or
either Arranger, on the other.

(d)  All fees payable hereunder shall be paid on the dates due, in U.S. Dollars and immediately available funds, to the
Administrative Agent (or to the Issuing Bank, in the case of fees payable to it) for distribution, in the case of facility fees and participation
fees, to the Lenders. Fees paid shall not be refundable under any circumstances.

SECTION 2.13Interest.

(@) The Loans comprising each ABR Borrowing (including each Swingline Loan) shall bear interest at the Alternate
Base Rate plus the Applicable Rate, ard-the Loans comprising each Canadian Prime Rate Borrowing shall bear interest at the Canadian Prime
Rate plus the Applicable Rate_and the I.oans comprising each Japanese Prime Rate Borrowing shall bear interest at the Japanese Prime Rate
plus the Applicable Rate.
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(b)  The Loans comprising each EuroetrrereyTerm Benchmark Borrowing shall bear interest at the applicable Relevant
Adjusted Rate for the Interest Period in effect for such Borrowing plus the Applicable Rate.

(c)  Each RFR Loan shall bear interest at a rate per annum equal to the applicable Adjusted Daily Simple RFR plus the
Applicable Rate.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any principal of or interest on any Loan or any fee or other amount payable by the
Borrowers hereunder is not paid when due, whether at stated maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise, such overdue amount shall bear
interest, after as well as before judgment, at a rate per annum equal to (i) in the case of overdue principal of any Loan, two percent (2%) plus
the rate otherwise applicable to such Loan as provided in the preceding paragraphs of this Section or (ii) in the case of any other amount, two

shall be payable on demand, (ii) in the event of any repayment or prepayment of any Loan (other than a prepayment of an ABR Revolving
Loan or a Canadian Prime Rate Loan prior to the end of the Availability Period), accrued interest on the principal amount repaid or prepaid
shall be payable on the date of such repayment or prepayment and (iii) in the event of any conversion of any EwrectirreneyTerm Benchmark
Loan prior to the end of the current Interest Period therefor, accrued interest on such Loan shall be payable on the effective date of such
conversion. All interest shall be payable in the currency in which the applicable Loan is denominated.

® ftere i eterence—to—the e;—the e y—otHpte with—tesp

FranesAll interest hereunder shall be computed on the basis of a year of 360 days—Interest, except that interest computed by reference to the
Daily Simple RFR with respect to Pounds Sterling and Singapore Dollars, the TIBO Rate, the CDOR Rate or the Alternate Base Rate only at
times when the Alternate Base Rate is based on the Prime Rate shall be computed on the basis of a year of 365 days (or 366 days in a leap
year). In each case interest shall be payable for the actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last day). All
interest hereunder on any Loan shall be computed on a daily basis based upon the outstanding principal amount of such Loan as of the
applicable date of determination. FheA determination of the applicable Alternate Base Rate, Relevant Adjusted Rate, Relevant Rate-et, Daily
Simple RFR, Central Bank Rate, Japanese Prime Rate or Canadian Prime Rate shall be determined by the Administrative Agent, and such
determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

DV W

(g) Notwithstanding_anything_in this Agreement or any other Loan Document to the contrary, and subject to the

month Interest Period as of the Amendment No. 1 Effective Date.
SECTION 2.14Alternate Rate of Interest.

(a)  Subject to clauses (b), (c), (d), (e); and (f) ane{g)-of this Section 2.14 if:

(i) if-the Administrative Agent determines (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error) (A)
prior to the commencement of any Interest Period for a
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EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing, that adequate and reasonable means do not exist for ascertaining the applicable Relevant
Adjusted Rate erRetevantRate-(including because the applieabte-Relevant Screen Rate is not available or published on a current
basis);- for the applicable Agreed Currency and such Interest Period or (B) at any time, that adequate and reasonable means do not
exist for ascertaining the applicable Adjusted Daily Simple RFR e+RFR-for the applicable Agreed Currency; or

(ii) #f-the Administrative Agent is advised by the Required Lenders that (A) prior to the commencement of any
Interest Period for a EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowing, the applicable Relevant Adjusted Rate-erRetevant-Rate for the
applicable Agreed Currency and such Interest Period will not adequately and fairly reflect the cost to such Lenders of making or
maintaining their Loans included in such Borrowing for the applicable Agreed Currency and such Interest Period or (B) at any time,
the applicable Adjusted Daily Simple RFR erRFR-for the applicable Agreed Currency will not adequately and fairly reflect the cost
to such Lenders of making or maintaining their Loans included in such Borrowing for the applicable Agreed Currency.

then the Administrative Agent shall promptly give notice thereof to the Company and the Lenders by telephone, telecopy or
electronic mail as promptly as practicable thereafter and, until (x)_the Administrative Agent notifies the Company and the Lenders that the
circumstances giving rise to such notice no longer exist_with respect to the relevant Benchmark, which the Administrative Agent agrees
promptly to do, Hand (y)_the applicable Borrower delivers a new Interest Election Request in accordance with the terms of Section 2.08 or a
new Borrowing Request in accordance with the terms of Section 2.03, (A)_for Loans denominated in U.S. Dollars, any Interest Election
Request that requests the conversion of any Borrowing to, or continuation of any Borrowmg as, a E—ufeeurreﬁeyTerm Benchmark Borrowrng

shattbe-ineffeetive{(i-ifand any Borrowing Request that requests a Wig
as—arm%—B—R—Berrewr—ng—&nﬁ—rfTerm Benchmark Revolvmg Borrowmg shall 1nstead be deemed to be an Interest Electlon Request or a

for U S. Dollar Borrowings also is the subject of Section 2 14(a)(i)_or ( n) above and ( B) for Loans denominated in a Foreign Currency, any_
Interest Election Request that requests the conversion of any Revolving Borrowmg to, or contmuatron of any Revolvmg Borrowrng as, a
Term Benchmark Borrowmg and any Borrowrng Request that requests a Fur y v W a

RFR Borrowrng, in each case, for the relevant

beBenchmark, shall be 1neffect1ve, provided that if the c1rcumstances giving rise to such notice affect only one Type of
BorrewingsBorrowing, then all other Types of Borrowings shall be permitted. Furthermore, if any Eureetireneylerm Benchmark Loan or
RFR Loan in any Agreed Currency is outstanding on the date of the Company’s receipt of the notice from the Administrative Agent referred
to in this Section 2.14(a) with respect to a Relevant Adjusted Rate applicable to such EtreeurrereyTerm Benchmark Loan or aRFR Loan,
then until (x) the Administrative Agent notifies the Company and the Lenders that the circumstances giving rise to such notice no longer
exist—(—l—)—i—f—s&eh—E—ufeeufreney—I:e-aﬂ—'rs with respect to the relevant Benchmark and (y) the applicable Borrower delivers a new Interest
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o : 3 hEtr isthat bears interest at the JaDanese Prime Rate plus the Apphcable
Rate (C) for Terrn Benchmark Loans denornrnated in Canadran Dollars t-hen—on the last day of the Interest Period applicable to such
' Fre cedife ¢ ; efe Term Benchmark Loan such

denominated—in—anyAgreeda Foreign Currency other than H-5—DeHarsJapanese Yen Yen or Canadlan Dollars t-hen—s-ueh—E—ufeeuﬁeney(l) any_

Term Benchmark Loan shall, on the last day of the Interest Period applicable to such Eureetrreney-Loan (or-the-next-steceedingBusiness
Pay-ifsuch-day-isnot-aBusinessBay)-bear interest at the Central Bank Rate for the applicable AgreedForeign Currency plus the Applicable
Rate provided that, 1f the Administrative Agent determines, in consultatron with the Company, (whrch determrnatron shall be conclusive and

Yen, Yen,_the Japanese Prime Rate_or (I)_Canadian Dollars,_the Canadian Prime Rate) cannot anot be determi determined, any outstanding affected
EuroenrreneyTerm Benchmark Loans denominated in any-Agreedsuch Foreign Currency etherthant-5—Dotars-or-CanadianDetars-shall, at
the Company’s election prior to such day: (A) be prepaid by the applicable Borrower on such day or (B) solely for the purpose of calculating
the interest rate applicable to such EureeurrereyTerm Benchmark Loan, such Eureeurreneylerm Benchmark Loan denominated in any-
Agreedsuch Foreign Currency other—than—-S—Detars—or-CanaditanDotars-shall be deemed to be a FurectrreneyTerm Benchmark Loan
denominated in U.S. Dollars and shall accrue interest at the same 1nterest rate apphcable to E—ureeufreneyTerrn Benchmark Loans
denominated in U.S. Dollars at such time erand (42) 1 h P FreRey 3 ;
stiechany RFR Loan shall bear interest at the Central Bank Rate for the apphcable AgfeedForergn Currency plus the Apphcable Rate provrded
that, if the Administrative Agent determines, in consultation with the Company, (which determination shall be conclusive and binding absent
manifest error)_that the Central Bank Rate for the applicable AgreedForeign Currency cannot be determined, any outstanding affected RFR
Loans denominated in any AgreedForeign Currency, at the Company’s election, shall either (xA) be converted into ABR Loans denominated
in U.S. Dollars (in an amount equal to the Dollar Amount of such Foreign Currency) immediately or (¥B) be prepaid in full immediately.

(b) Notwrthstandrng anythrng to the contrary hereln or in any other Loan Document, if a Benchmark Transition Event;-
F e e;- and its related Benchmark Replacement Date have occurred

prror to the Reference Trme in respect of any settrng of the then current Benchrnark then ee)—rf—a—BenehmarleReplaeement—rs—defermmed—rn—

5 ement—with-respeetto-an reed-Curren P h a acement-Date;-such Benchrnark Replacement wrll replace such
Benchrnark for all purposes hereunder and under any Loan Document in respect of any Benchmark setting at or after 5:00 p.m., New York
City time, on the fifth (5th) Business Day after the date notice of such Benchmark Replacement is provided to the Lenders wrthout any
amendment to, or further action (other than any Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes made pursuant to clause (dc) below) or
consent of any other party to, this Agreement or any other Loan Document so long as the Administrative Agent has not received, by such
time, written notice of objection to such Benchmark Replacement from Lenders comprising the Required Lenders.
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(c)  &-In connection with the implementation of a Benchmark Replacement, the Administrative Agent will have the
right to make Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes from time to time and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in
any other Loan Document, any amendments implementing such Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes will become effective
without any further action or consent of any other party to this Agreement or any other Loan Document; provided that the Administrative
Agent shall deliver a copy of any such amendment to the Company for consultation at least five (5) Business Days prior to the effectiveness
thereof (or such shorter period as agreed by the Company).

(d feyrThe Adnnnlstratlve Agent will promptly notify the Company and the Lenders of (i) any occurrence of a
Benchmark Transition Event, a e , i e;~(ii) the implementation of any
Benchmark Replacement, (iii) the effectlveness of any Benchmark Replacement Conforrnlng Changes (iv) the removal or reinstatement of
any tenor of a Benchmark pursuant to clause (fe) below and (v) the commencement or conclusion of any Benchmark Unavailability Period.
Any determination, decision or election that may be made by the Administrative Agent or, if applicable, any Lender (or group of Lenders)
pursuant to this Section 2.14, including any determination with respect to a tenor, rate or adjustment or of the occurrence or non-occurrence
of an event, circumstance or date and any decision to take or refrain from taking any action or any selection, will be conclusive and binding
absent manifest error and may be made in its or their sole discretion and without consent from any other party to this Agreement or any other
Loan Document, except, in each case, as expressly required pursuant to this Section 2.14.

(e) H-Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any other Loan Document, at any time (including in
connection with the implementation of a Benchmark Replacement), (i) if the then-current Benchmark is a term rate (including Ferm-SOFR-or
any Relevant Rate) and either (A) any tenor for such Benchmark is not displayed on a screen or other information service that publishes such
rate from time to time as selected by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion after consultation with the Company or (B) the
regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such Benchmark has provided a public statement or publication of information announcing that
any tenor for such Benchmark is or will be no longer representative, then the Administrative Agent may modify the definition of “Interest
Period” for any Benchmark settings at or after such time to remove such unavailable or non-representative tenor and (ii) if a tenor that was
removed pursuant to clause (i) above either (A) is subsequently displayed on a screen or information service for a Benchmark (including a
Benchmark Replacement) or (B) is not, or is no longer, subject to an announcement that it is or will no longer be representative for a
Benchmark (including a Benchmark Replacement), then the Administrative Agent may modify the definition of “Interest Period” for all
Benchmark settings at or after such time to reinstate such previously removed tenor.

(f)  f#-Upon the Company’s receipt of notice of the commencement of a Benchmark Unavailability Period, the
Gompanyapplicable Borrower may revoke any request for a Exroetrreneylerm
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Benchmark Borrowing or RFR Borrowing of, conversion to or continuation of Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Loans to be made, converted
or continued during any Benchmark Unavailability Period and, failing that, either (x) the-Cempanysuch Borrower will be deemed to have
converted any request for a E—nfoen-rreneyTerm Benchmark Borrowrng denommated in U.S. Dollars into a request for a Borrowrng of or

Borrowmg—or(A) an RFR Borrowrng denommated in U S. Dollars S0 long as the AdJusted Dally Srmple RFR for U S Dollar Borrowmgs is
not the sub]ect of a Benchmark Transmon Event or (B)_.an ABR Borrowing if the Adjusted Daily Srlee RFR for uU.S. Dollar Borrowmgs is

(other than Canadian Dollars) shall be ineffective. During any Benchmark Unavailability Period or at any time that a tenor for the then-
current Benchmark is not an Available Tenor, the component of the Alternate Base Rate based upon the then-current Benchmark or such tenor
for such Benchmark, as applicable, will not be used in any determination of the Alternate Base Rate. Furthermore, if any EurecurreneyTerm
Benchmark Loan or RFR Loan in any Agreed Currency is outstanding on the date of the Company’s receipt of notice of the commencement
of a Benchmark Unavailability Period with respect to a Relevant Adjusted Rate applicable to such Eureetrreneylerm Benchmark Loan or
RFR Loan, then until such time as a Benchmark Replacement for such Agreed Currency is implemented pursuant to this Section 2.14, (A) -
sneh—E—uroenfreney—I:oaﬁ—rsfor Loans denominated in U.S. Dollars—t—heﬁ any Term Benchmark Loan shall on the last day of the Interest Period
applicable to such Eur g i rereyLoan, be
converted by the Admrmstratrve Agent to,_and shall constrtute,_(x) an RFR Borrowrng denomrnated in U.S. Dollars S0 long as the Adjusted

Da1lV Simple RER for U.S. Dollar Borrowrngs is not the subject of a Benchmark Transition Event or (y)_.an ABR Loan if the Ad]usted Daily_

Interest Period applicable to such Fr e A d
EuroeturrereyTerm Benchmark Loan such Term Benchmark Loan shall be converted by the Admrnrstratlve Agent to, and shall constltute ana_
Loan that bears interest at the Canad1an Prrme Rate l:oannlus the Applicable Rate and (D)_for Loans denominated in GanadianDetarson
ey e sreedla Foreign Currency other than U-S—BeHarsJapanese Yen or Canadian
Dollars fhen—sneh—Euroe&rreney(l) any Term Benchmark Loan shall on the last day of the Interest Period applicable to such Eurectrreney-
r—th = t a e ay)-bear interest at the Central Bank Rate for the applicable
AgreedForeign Currency plus the Apphcable Rate provrded that, if the Administrative Agent determines, in consultation with the Company,
(which determination shall be conclusive and binding_absent manifest error) that the Central Bank Rate for the applicable Agreed-
EurreneyForeign Currency (or in the case of (I) Japanese Yen, the Japanese Prime Rate or (II) Canadian Dollars, the Canadian Prime Rate)
cannot be determined, any outstanding affected EwurectirreneyTerm Benchmark Loans denominated in any AgreedForeign Currency other-
thanU-S—Deltars-er-CanadianDeltars-shall, at the Company’s election prior to such day: (A) be prepaid by the applicable Borrower on such
day or (B) solely for the purpose of calculating the interest rate applicable to such Eureeurreneylerm Benchmark Loan, such
EurecurrereyTerm Benchmark Loan denominated in any AgreedForeign Currency other-thant-S—Dotars—orCanadianDettars—shall be
deemed to be a Etroctirreneylerm Benchmark Loan denominated in U.S. Dollars and shall accrue interest at the same interest rate applicable

to Eurectirreneylerm Benchmark Loans denominated in U.S. Dollars at such time erand (iv2) if-stehRFRTLoan-is-denominated—in—any

Agreed—Currency—other—than—-5—Delars;—then—stehany RFR Loan shall bear interest at the Central Bank Rate for the applicable
AgreedForeign Currency plus the Applicable Rate;
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provided that, if the Administrative Agent determines, in consultation with the Company, (which determination shall be conclusive and
binding absent manifest error)_that the Central Bank Rate for the applicable AgreedForeign Currency cannot be determined, any outstanding
affected RFR Loans denominated in any AgreedForeign Currency, at the Company’s election, shall either (A) be converted into ABR Loans
denominated in U.S. Dollars (in an amount equal to the Dollar Amount of such Foreign Currency) immediately or (B) be prepaid in full
immediately.

SECTION 2.15Increased Costs.
(@)  If any Change in Law shall:

@) impose, modify or deem applicable any reserve, special deposit, liquidity or similar requirement (including any
compulsory loan requirement, insurance charge or other assessment) against assets of, deposits with or for the
account of, or credit extended by, any Lender (except any such reserve requirement reflected in the applicable
Relevant Adjusted Rate) or the Issuing Bank;

(ii) impose on any Lender or the Issuing Bank or any applicable interbank market any other condition, cost or
expense (other than Taxes) affecting any Loan Document or Loans made by such Lender or any Letter of Credit
or participation therein; or

(iii) subject any Recipient to any Taxes (other than Indemnified Taxes or Excluded Taxes; provided, however, that
Other Connection Taxes imposed specifically with respect to banks, financial institutions, or financial
transactions by any national or international taxing authority shall not be treated as Excluded Taxes for purposes

deposits, reserves, other liabilities or capital attributable thereto;

and the result of any of the foregoing shall be to increase the cost to such Lender or such other Recipient of making, continuing, converting
or maintaining any Loan or of maintaining its obligation to make any such Loan (including pursuant to any conversion of any Borrowing
denominated in an Agreed Currency to a Borrowing denominated in any other Agreed Currency) or to increase the cost to such Lender, the
Issuing Bank or such other Recipient of participating in, issuing or maintaining any Letter of Credit (including pursuant to any conversion of
any Borrowing denominated in an Agreed Currency to a Borrowing denominated in any other Agreed Currency) or to reduce the amount of
any sum received or receivable by such Lender, the Issuing Bank or such other Recipient hereunder, whether of principal, interest or
otherwise (including pursuant to any conversion of any Borrowing denominated in an Agreed Currency to a Borrowing denominated in any
other Agreed Currency), then the Company will pay (or cause the applicable Designated Borrower to pay) to such Lender, the Issuing Bank
or such other Recipient, as the case may be, such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender, the Issuing Bank or such
other Recipient, as the case may be, for such additional costs incurred or reduction suffered.

(b)  If any Lender or the Issuing Bank reasonably determines that any Change in Law regarding capital or liquidity
requirements has or would have the effect of reducing the rate of return on such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s capital or on the capital of
such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s holding company, if any, as a consequence of any Loan Document or the Loans made by, or
participations in Letters of Credit held by, such Lender, or the Letters of Credit issued by the Issuing Bank, to a level below that which such
Lender or the Issuing Bank or such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s holding company could have achieved but for such Change in Law (taking
into consideration such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s policies and the policies of such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s holding company with
respect to capital adequacy
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and liquidity), then from time to time the Company will pay (or cause the applicable Designated Borrower to pay) to such Lender or the
Issuing Bank, as the case may be, such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender or the Issuing Bank or such Lender’s
or the Issuing Bank’s holding company for any such reduction suffered.

(c) A certificate of a Lender or the Issuing Bank setting forth the amount or amounts necessary to compensate such
to the Company and shall be conclusive absent manifest error. The Company shall pay (or cause the .applicable Designated Borrower to pay)
such Lender or the Issuing Bank, as the case may be, the amount shown as due on any such certificate within ten (10) days after receipt
thereof.

(d) Failure or delay on the part of any Lender or the Issuing Bank to demand compensation pursuant to this Section
shall not constitute a waiver of such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s right to demand such compensation; provided that no Borrower shall be
required to compensate a Lender or the Issuing Bank pursuant to this Section for any increased costs or reductions incurred more than two
hundred seventy (270) days prior to the date that such Lender or the Issuing Bank, as the case may be, notifies the Company of the Change in
Law giving rise to such increased costs or reductions and of such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s intention to claim compensation therefor;
provided further that, if the Change in Law giving rise to such increased costs or reductions is retroactive, then the two hundred seventy (270)
day period referred to above shall be extended to include the period of retroactive effect thereof.

SECTION 2.16Break Funding Payments.

(@)  With respect to Loans that are nret-RFRTerm Benchmark Loans, in the event of (i) the payment of any principal of
any EureetrreneyTerm Benchmark Loan, other than on the last day of an Interest Period applicable thereto (including as a result of an Event
of Default or as a result of any prepayment pursuant to Section 2.11), (ii) the conversion of any Eureetrrereylerm Benchmark Loan other
than on the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto, (iii) the failure to borrow, convert, continue or prepay any Etrectrreneylerm
Benchmark Loan on the date specified in any notice delivered pursuant hereto (regardless of whether such notice may be revoked under
Section 2.11(b) and is revoked in accordance therewith), (iv) the assignment of any EureetirreneyTerm Benchmark Loan other than on the
last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto as a result of a request by the Company pursuant to Section 2.19 or Section 10.02(d) or (v)
the failure by the applicable Borrower to make any payment of any Loan or drawing under any Letter of Credit (or interest due thereof)
denominated in a Foreign Currency on its scheduled due date or any payment thereof in a different currency, then, in any such event, the
Company shall compensate (or cause the applicable Designated Borrower to compensate) each Lender for the loss, cost and expense
attributable to such event. Such loss, cost or expense to any Lender shall be deemed to include an amount determined by such Lender to be
the excess, if any, of (i) the amount of interest which would have accrued on the principal amount of such Loan had such event not occurred,
at the applicable Relevant Adjusted Rate that would have been applicable to such Loan, for the period from the date of such event to the last
day of the then current Interest Period therefor (or, in the case of a failure to borrow, convert or continue, for the period that would have been
the Interest Period for such Loan), over (ii) the amount of interest which would accrue on such principal amount for such period at the
interest rate which such Lender would bid were it to bid, at the commencement of such period, for deposits in the applicable currency of a
comparable amount and period from other banks in the applicable offshore market for such Agreed Currency, whether or not such
EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Loan was in fact so funded. A certificate of any Lender setting forth any amount or amounts that such Lender
is entitled to receive pursuant to this Section shall be delivered to the Company and shall be conclusive absent manifest error. The Company
shall pay (or cause the applicable Designated Borrower to pay) such Lender the amount shown as due on any such certificate within ten (10)
days after receipt thereof.
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(b)  With respect to RFR Loans, in the event of (i) the payment of any principal of any RFR Loan other than on the
Interest Payment Date applicable thereto (including as a result of an Event of Default or as a result of any prepayment pursuant to Section

2.11), (ii) the failure to borrow, convert, continue or prepay any RFR Loan on the date specified in any notice delivered pursuant hereto
(regardless of whether such notice may be revoked under Section 2.11(b) and is revoked in accordance therewith), (iii) the assignment of any
RFR Loan other than on the Interest Payment Date applicable thereto as a result of a request by the Company pursuant to Section 2.19 or
Section 10.02(d) or (iv) the failure by the applicable Borrower to make any payment of any Loan or drawing under any Letter of Credit (or
interest due thereof) denominated in a Foreign Currency on its scheduled due date or any payment thereof in a different currency, then, in any
such event, the Borrower shall compensate each Lender for the loss, cost and expense attributable to such event. A certificate of any Lender
setting forth any amount or amounts that such Lender is entitled to receive pursuant to this Section shall be delivered to the Company and
shall be conclusive absent manifest error. The Company shall pay (or cause the applicable Designated Borrower to pay) such Lender the
amount shown as due on any such certificate within ten (10) days after receipt thereof.

SECTION 2.17Taxes.

(a) Payments Free of Taxes. Any and all payments by or on account of any obligation of Company or any Borrower
under any Loan Document shall be made without deduction or withholding for any Taxes, except as required by applicable law. If any
applicable law (as determined in the good faith discretion of an applicable withholding agent) requires the deduction or withholding of any
Tax from any such payment by a withholding agent, then the applicable withholding agent shall be entitled to make such deduction or
withholding and shall timely pay the full amount deducted or withheld to the relevant Governmental Authority in accordance with
applicable law and, if such Tax is an Indemnified Tax, then the sum payable by Company or the applicable Borrower shall be increased as
necessary so that after such deduction or withholding has been made (including such deductions and withholdings applicable to additional
sums payable under this Section 2.17) the applicable Recipient receives an amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such
deduction or withholding been made.

(@) Payment of Other Taxes by the Borrowers. The Company and the Borrowers shall timely pay to the relevant
Governmental Authority in accordance with applicable law, or at the option of the Administrative Agent timely reimburse it for, Other Taxes.

(b)  Evidence of Payment. As soon as practicable after any payment of Taxes by the Company or any Borrower to a
Governmental Authority pursuant to this Section 2.17, such Borrower shall deliver to the Administrative Agent the original or a certified copy
of a receipt issued by such Governmental Authority evidencing such payment, a copy of the return reporting such payment or other evidence
of such payment reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

(c) Indemnification by the Borrowers. The Company and the Borrowers shall indemnify each Recipient, within ten
(10) days after demand therefor, for the full amount of any Indemnified Taxes (including Indemnified Taxes imposed or asserted on or
attributable to amounts payable under this Section) payable or paid by such Recipient or required to be withheld or deducted from a payment
to such Recipient and any reasonable expenses arising therefrom or with respect thereto, whether or not such Indemnified Taxes were
correctly or legally imposed or asserted by the relevant Governmental Authority. A certificate as to the amount of such payment or liability
delivered to the applicable Borrower by a Lender (with a copy to the Administrative Agent), or by the Administrative Agent on its own behalf
or on behalf of a Lender, shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

(d) Indemnification by the Lenders. Each Lender shall severally indemnify the Administrative Agent, within ten (10)
days after demand therefor, for (i) any Indemnified Taxes attributable
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to such Lender (but only to the extent that any Borrower has not already indemnified the Administrative Agent for such Indemnified Taxes
and without limiting the obligation of the Borrowers to do so), (ii) any Taxes attributable to such Lender’s failure to comply with the
provisions of Section 10.04(c) relating to the maintenance of a Participant Register and (iii) any Excluded Taxes attributable to such Lender,
in each case, that are payable or paid by the Administrative Agent in connection with any Loan Document, and any reasonable expenses
arising therefrom or with respect thereto, whether or not such Taxes were correctly or legally imposed or asserted by the relevant
Governmental Authority. A certificate as to the amount of such payment or liability delivered to any Lender by the Administrative Agent
shall be conclusive absent manifest error. Each Lender hereby authorizes the Administrative Agent to set off and apply any and all amounts
at any time owing to such Lender under any Loan Document or otherwise payable by the Administrative Agent to the Lender from any other

(e)
®

(i)

Status of I.enders.

Any Lender that is entitled to an exemption from or reduction of any applicable withholding Tax with respect to
payments made under any Loan Document shall deliver to the Company and the Administrative Agent, at the
time or times reasonably requested by the Company or the Administrative Agent, such properly completed and
executed documentation reasonably requested by the Company or the Administrative Agent as will permit such
payments to be made without withholding or at a reduced rate of withholding. In addition, any Lender, if
reasonably requested by the Company or the Administrative Agent, shall deliver such other documentation
prescribed by applicable law or reasonably requested by the Company or the Administrative Agent as will enable
the Company or the Administrative Agent to determine whether or not such Lender is subject to backup
withholding or information reporting requirements. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the preceding
two sentences, the completion, execution and submission of such documentation (other than such documentation
judgment such completion, execution or submission would subject such Lender to any material unreimbursed
cost or expense or would materially prejudice the legal or commercial position of such Lender (it being
understood that providing information required under current law shall not be considered prejudicial to the
position of a Recipient).

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in the event that any Borrower is a U.S. Person,

(A) any Lender that is a U.S. Person shall deliver to the Company and the Administrative Agent on

or prior to the date on which such Lender becomes a Lender under this Agreement (and from time to time thereafter upon
the reasonable request of the Company or the Administrative Agent), executed copies of IRS Form W-9 certifying that
such Lender is exempt from U.S. federal backup withholding tax;

(B) any Foreign Lender shall, to the extent it is legally entitled to do so, deliver to the Company and

the Administrative Agent (in such number of copies as shall be requested by the recipient) on or prior to the date on which
such Foreign Lender becomes a Lender under this Agreement (and from time to time thereafter upon the reasonable
request of the Company or the Administrative Agent), whichever of the following is applicable:
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3)

“4)

in the case of a Foreign Lender claiming the benefits of an income tax treaty to
which the United States is a party (x) with respect to payments of interest under any
Loan Document, executed copies of IRS Form W-8BEN or Form W-8BEN-E
establishing an exemption from, or reduction of, U.S. federal withholding Tax
pursuant to the “interest” article of such tax treaty and (y) with respect to any other
applicable payments under any Loan Document, IRS Form W-8BEN or Form W-
8BEN-E establishing an exemption from, or reduction of, U.S. federal withholding
Tax pursuant to the “business profits” or “other income” article of such tax treaty;

in the case of a Foreign Lender claiming that its extension of credit will generate
U.S. effectively connected income, executed copies of IRS Form W-8ECI;

in the case of a Foreign Lender claiming the benefits of the exemption for portfolio
interest under Section 881(c) of the Code, (x) a certificate substantially in the form
of Exhibit B-1 to the effect that such Foreign Lender is not a “bank” within the
meaning of Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, a “10 percent shareholder” of such
Borrower within the meaning of Section 871(h)(3)(B) of the Code, or a “controlled
foreign corporation” described in Section 881(c)(3)(C) of the Code (a “U.S. Tax
Compliance Certificate”) and (y) executed copies of IRS Form W-8BEN; or

to the extent a Foreign Lender is not the beneficial owner, executed copies of IRS
Form W-8IMY, accompanied by IRS Form W-8ECI, IRS Form W-8BEN or Form
W-8BEN-E, a U.S. Tax Compliance Certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit
B-2 or Exhibit B-3, IRS Form W-9, and/or other certification documents from each
beneficial owner, as applicable; provided that if the Foreign Lender is a partnership
and one or more direct or indirect partners of such Foreign Lender are claiming the
portfolio interest exemption, such Foreign Lender may provide a U.S. Tax
Compliance Certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit B-4 on behalf of each
such direct and indirect partner;

(C) any Foreign Lender shall, to the extent it is legally entitled to do so, deliver to the Company and
the Administrative Agent (in such number of copies as shall be requested by the recipient) on or prior to the date on which
such Foreign Lender becomes a Lender under this Agreement (and from time to time thereafter upon the reasonable
request of the Company or the Administrative Agent), executed copies of any other form prescribed by applicable law as a
basis for claiming exemption from or a reduction in U.S. federal withholding Tax, duly completed, together with such

supplementary
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documentation as may be prescribed by applicable law to permit the Company or the Administrative Agent to determine
the withholding or deduction required to be made; and

(D) if a payment made to a Lender under any Loan Document would be subject to U.S. federal
withholding Tax imposed by FATCA if such Lender were to fail to comply with the applicable reporting requirements of
FATCA (including those contained in Section 1471(b) or 1472(b) of the Code, as applicable), such Lender shall deliver to
the Company and the Administrative Agent at the time or times prescribed by law and at such time or times reasonably
requested by the Company or the Administrative Agent such documentation prescribed by applicable law (including as
prescribed by Section 1471(b)(3)(C)(i) of the Code) and such additional documentation reasonably requested by the
Company or the Administrative Agent as may be necessary for the Company and the Administrative Agent to comply with
their obligations under FATCA and to determine that such Lender has complied with such Lender’s obligations under
FATCA or to determine the amount, if any, to deduct and withhold from such payment. Solely for purposes of this clause
(D), “FATCA” shall include any amendments made to FATCA after the date of this Agreement.

Each Lender agrees that if any form or certification it previously delivered expires or becomes obsolete or inaccurate in any respect, it shall
update such form or certification or promptly notify the Company and the Administrative Agent in writing of its legal inability to do so.

(f)  Additional United Kingdom Withholding Tax Matters.

@) Subject to clause (ii) below, each Lender and each UK Borrower which makes a payment to such Lender shall
cooperate in completing any procedural formalities necessary for such UK Borrower to obtain authorization to
make such payment without withholding or deduction for Taxes imposed under the laws of the United Kingdom.

(i)

(A) A Lender which at any time (x) holds a passport under the HMRC DT Treaty Passport scheme
and (y) wishes such scheme to apply to this Agreement, shall provide its scheme reference number and its jurisdiction of
tax residence to each UK Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

(B)  Upon satisfying either clause (A) above, such Lender shall have satisfied its obligation under
paragraph (g)(i)_above.

(iii) If a Lender has confirmed its scheme reference number and its jurisdiction of tax residence in accordance with
paragraph (g)(ii) above, the UK Borrower(s) shall make a Borrower DTTP Filing with respect to such Lender,
and shall promptly provide such Lender with a copy of such filing; provided that, if:

(A) each UK Borrower making a payment to such Lender has not made a Borrower DTTP Filing in
respect of such Lender; or

(B) each UK Borrower making a payment to such Lender has made a Borrower DTTP Filing in
respect of such Lender but:
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) such Borrower DTTP Filing has been rejected by HM Revenue & Customs; or

2 HM Revenue & Customs has not given such UK Borrower authority to make
payments to such Lender without a deduction for tax within sixty (60) days of the
date of such Borrower DTTP Filing;

and in each case, such UK Borrower has notified that Lender in writing of either (1) or (2) above, then such Lender and such UK Borrower
shall co-operate in completing any additional procedural formalities necessary for such UK Borrower to obtain authorization to make that
payment without withholding or deduction for Taxes imposed under the laws of the United Kingdom.

@iv) If a Lender has not confirmed its scheme reference number and jurisdiction of tax residence in accordance with
paragraph (g)(ii) above, no UK Borrower shall make a Borrower DTTP Filing or file any other form relating to
the HMRC DT Treaty Passport scheme in respect of that Lender’s Commitment or its participation in any Loan
unless the Lender otherwise agrees.

W) Each UK Borrower shall, promptly on making a Borrower DTTP Filing, deliver a copy of such Borrower DTTP
Filing to the Administrative Agent for delivery to the relevant Lender.

(vi) Each Lender shall notify the Company and Administrative Agent if it determines in its sole discretion that it is
ceases to be entitled to claim the benefits of an income tax treaty to which the United Kingdom is a party with
respect to payments made by any U.K. Borrower hereunder.

(vii) If a Lender assigns or transfers any of its rights or obligations under the Loan Documents or changes its lending
office, and as a result of circumstances existing at the date the assignment, transfer or change occurs, a U.K.
Borrower would be obligated to make a payment to the new Lender or Lender acting through its new lending
office under Section 2.17, then a new Lender or Lender acting through its new lending office is only entitled to
receive payment under this Section 2.17 to the same extent as the assigning Lender or Lender acting through its
previous lending office would have been if the assignment, transfer or change had not occurred.

(g) Treatment of Certain Refunds. If any party determines, in its sole discretion exercised in good faith, that it has
received a refund of any Taxes as to which it has been indemnified pursuant to this Section 2.17 (including by the payment of additional
amounts pursuant to this Section 2.17), it shall pay to the indemnifying party an amount equal to such refund (but only to the extent of
indemnity payments made under this Section 2.17 with respect to the Taxes giving rise to such refund), net of all out-of-pocket expenses
(including Taxes) of such indemnified party and without interest (other than any interest paid by the relevant Governmental Authority with
respect to such refund). Such indemnifying party, upon the request of such indemnified party, shall repay to such indemnified party the

indemnified
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party would have been in if the Tax subject to indemnification and giving rise to such refund had not been deducted, withheld or otherwise
imposed and the indemnification payments or additional amounts with respect to such Tax had never been paid. This paragraph shall not be
construed to require any indemnified party to make available its Tax returns (or any other information relating to its Taxes that it deems
confidential) to the indemnifying party or any other Person.

(h)  Survival. Each party’s obligations under this Section 2.17 shall survive the resignation or replacement of the
Administrative Agent or any assignment of rights by, or the replacement of, a Lender, the termination of the Commitments and the
repayment, satisfaction or discharge of all obligations under any Loan Document.

@) Failure or delay on the part of any Lender or the Issuing Bank to demand compensation pursuant to this Section
shall not constitute a waiver of such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s right to demand such compensation; provided that no Borrower shall be
required to compensate a Lender or the Issuing Bank pursuant to this Section for any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes paid or payable by a
Recipient pursuant to Section 2.17(d) incurred more than two hundred seventy (270) days prior to the date that such Lender or the Issuing
Bank, as the case may be, notifies the Company of such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s intention to claim compensation therefor; provided
further that, if the Change in Law giving rise to such increased costs or reductions is retroactive, then the two hundred seventy (270) day
period referred to above shall be extended to include the period of retroactive effect thereof.

)] Defined Terms. For purposes of this Section 2.17, the term “Lender” includes any Issuing Bank and the term
“applicable law” includes FATCA.

(@)  Each Borrower shall make each payment required to be made by it hereunder (whether of principal, interest, fees or
reimbursement of LC Disbursements, or of amounts payable under Section 2.15, 2.16 or 2.17, or otherwise) prior to 12:00 noon, Local Time,
on the date when due, in immediately available funds, without set off or counterclaim. Any amounts received after such time on any date
may, in the discretion of the Administrative Agent, be deemed to have been received on the next succeeding Business Day for purposes of
calculating interest thereon. All such payments shall be made to the Administrative Agent at (x) in the case of payments denominated in U.S.
Dollars, its offices at 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York, and (y) in the case of payments denominated in a Foreign Currency, its
EureenrreneyForeign Currency Payment Office for such Foreign Currency, in each case except payments to be made directly to the Issuing
Bank or Swingline Lenders as expressly provided herein and except that payments pursuant to Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03 shall be
made directly to the Persons entitled thereto. The Administrative Agent shall distribute any such payments received by it for the account of
any other Person to the appropriate recipient promptly following receipt thereof. If any payment hereunder shall be due on a day that is not a
Business Day, the date for payment shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day, and, in the case of any payment accruing interest,
interest thereon shall be payable for the period of such extension. All payments hereunder of principal or interest in respect of any Loan or
LC Disbursement shall, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, be made in the currency of such Loan or LC Disbursement, and all
other payments hereunder and under each other Loan Document shall be made in U.S. Dollars. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of
this Section, if, after the making of any Borrowing or LC Disbursement in any Foreign Currency, currency control or exchange regulations
are imposed in the country which issues such Foreign Currency with the result that such Foreign Currency no longer exists or the applicable
Borrower is not able to make payment to the Administrative Agent for the account of the Lenders in such Foreign Currency, then all
payments to be made by such Borrower hereunder in such Foreign Currency shall instead be made when due in U.S. Dollars in an amount
equal to the Dollar Amount (as of the date of repayment) of such payment due, it being the intention of the parties
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hereto that such Borrower takes all risks of the imposition of any such currency control or exchange regulations.

(b)  If at any time insufficient funds are received by and available to the Administrative Agent to pay fully all amounts
of principal, unreimbursed LC Disbursements, interest and fees then due hereunder, such funds shall be applied (i) first, towards payment of
interest and fees then due hereunder, ratably among the parties entitled thereto in accordance with the amounts of interest and fees then due to
such parties, and (ii) second, towards payment of principal and unreimbursed LC Disbursements then due hereunder, ratably among the
parties entitled thereto in accordance with the amounts of principal and unreimbursed LC Disbursements then due to such parties.

(c)  If any Lender shall, by exercising any right of set off or counterclaim or otherwise, obtain payment in respect of any
principal of or interest on any of its Revolving Loans or participations in LC Disbursements or Swingline Loans resulting in such Lender
receiving payment of a greater proportion of the aggregate amount of its Revolving Loans and participations in LC Disbursements and
Swingline Loans and accrued interest thereon than the proportion received by any other Lender, then the Lender receiving such greater
proportion shall purchase (for cash at face value) participations in the Revolving Loans and participations in LC Disbursements and
Swingline Loans of other Lenders to the extent necessary so that the benefit of all such payments shall be shared by the Lenders ratably in
accordance with the aggregate amount of principal of and accrued interest on their respective Revolving Loans and participations in LC
Disbursements and Swingline Loans; provided that (i) if any such participations are purchased and all or any portion of the payment giving
rise thereto is recovered, such participations shall be rescinded and the purchase price restored to the extent of such recovery, without interest,
and (ii) the provisions of this paragraph shall not be construed to apply to any payment made by any Borrower pursuant to and in accordance
with the express terms of this Agreement or any payment obtained by a Lender as consideration for the assignment of or sale of a
participation in any of its Loans or participations in LC Disbursements to any assignee or participant, other than to any Borrower or any
Subsidiary or Affiliate thereof (as to which the provisions of this paragraph shall apply). Each Borrower consents to the foregoing and
agrees, to the extent it may effectively do so under applicable law, that any Lender acquiring a participation pursuant to the foregoing
arrangements may exercise against such Borrower rights of set-off and counterclaim with respect to such participation as fully as if such
Lender were a direct creditor of such Borrower in the amount of such participation.

(d)  Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from any Borrower prior to the date on which any
payment is due to the Administrative Agent for the account of the Lenders or the Issuing Bank hereunder that such Borrower will not make
such payment, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Borrower has made such payment on such date in accordance herewith and
may, in reliance upon such assumption, distribute to the Lenders or the Issuing Bank, as the case may be, the amount due. In such event, if
such Borrower has not in fact made such payment, then each of the Lenders or the Issuing Bank, as the case may be, severally agrees to repay
to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand the amount so distributed to such Lender or Issuing Bank with interest thereon, for each
day from and including the date such amount is distributed to it to but excluding the date of payment to the Administrative Agent, at the
applicable Overnight Rate.

(e)  If any Lender shall fail to make any payment required to be made by it pursuant to Section 2.05(d), 2.06(d) or (e),
2.07(b), 2.18(d) or 9.03(c), then the Administrative Agent may, in its discretion and notwithstanding any contrary provision hereof, apply any
amounts thereafter received by the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender to satisfy such Lender’s obligations under such
Sections until all such unsatisfied obligations are fully paid, and/or (ii) hold such amounts in a segregated account over which the
Administrative Agent shall have exclusive control as cash collateral for, and
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application to, any future funding obligations of such Lender under any such Section, in the case of each of clause (i) and (ii) above, in any
order as determined by the Administrative Agent in its discretion.

SECTION 2.19Mitigation Obligations; Replacement of Lenders.

(@) If any Lender requests compensation under Section 2.15, or if any Borrower is required to pay any Indemnified
Taxes or additional amounts to any Lender or any Governmental Authority for the account of any Lender pursuant to Section 2.17, then such
Lender shall use reasonable efforts to designate a different lending office for funding or booking its Loans hereunder or to assign its rights
and obligations hereunder to another of its offices, branches or affiliates, if, in the judgment of such Lender, such designation or assignment
(i) would eliminate or reduce amounts payable pursuant to Section 2.15 or 2.17, as the case may be, in the future and (ii) would not subject
such Lender to any unreimbursed cost or expense and would not otherwise be disadvantageous to such Lender. The Company hereby agrees
to pay (or cause the applicable Designated Borrower to pay) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by any Lender in connection with any
such designation or assignment.

(b)  If (i) any Lender requests compensation under Section 2.15, (ii) any Borrower is required to pay any Indemnified
Taxes or additional amounts to any Lender or any Governmental Authority for the account of any Lender pursuant to Section 2.17, (iii) any
Lender becomes a Defaulting Lender, or (iv) any Lender becomes a Non-Extending Lender, then the Company may, at its sole expense and
effort, upon notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, require such Lender to assign and delegate, without recourse (in accordance
with and subject to the restrictions contained in Section 10.04), all its interests, rights (other than its existing rights to payments pursuant to
Section 2.15 or 2.17) and obligations under the Loan Documents to an assignee that shall assume such obligations (which assignee may be
another Lender, if a Lender accepts such assignment); provided that (x) the Company shall have received the prior written consent of the
Administrative Agent (and if a Commitment is being assigned, the Issuing Bank and Swingline Lenders), which consent shall not
unreasonably be withheld, (y) such Lender shall have received payment of an amount equal to the outstanding principal of its Loans and
participations in LC Disbursements and Swingline Loans, accrued interest thereon, accrued fees and all other amounts payable to it
hereunder, from the assignee (to the extent of such outstanding principal and accrued interest and fees) or the Borrowers (in the case of all
other amounts) and (z) in the case of any such assignment resulting from a claim for compensation under Section 2.15 or payments required
to be made pursuant to Section 2.17, such assignment will result in a reduction in such compensation or payments. A Lender shall not be
required to make any such assignment and delegation if, prior thereto, as a result of a waiver by such Lender or otherwise, the circumstances
entitling the Company to require such assignment and delegation cease to apply. Each party hereto agrees that (i) an assignment required
pursuant to this clause (d) may be effected pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption executed by the Company, the Administrative Agent
and the assignee (or, to the extent applicable, an agreement incorporating an Assignment and Assumption by reference pursuant to a Platform
as to which the Administrative Agent and such parties are participants), and (ii) the Lender required to make such assignment need not be a
party thereto in order for such assignment to be effective and shall be deemed to have consented to and be bound by the terms thereof;
provided that, following the effectiveness of any such assignment, the other parties to such assignment agree to execute and deliver such
documents necessary to evidence such assignment as reasonably requested by the applicable Lender; provided that any such documents shall
be without recourse to or warranty by the parties thereto.

SECTION 2.20Defaulting Lenders. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if any Lender becomes a
Defaulting Lender, then the following provisions shall apply for so long as such Lender is a Defaulting Lender:
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(a)
(b)

fees shall cease to accrue on the Commitment of such Defaulting Lender pursuant to Section 2.12(a);

the Commitment and Revolving Credit Exposure of such Defaulting Lender shall not be included in determining

whether all Lenders or the Required Lenders have taken or may take any action hereunder (including any consent to any amendment, waiver
or other modification pursuant to Section 10.02); provided that any waiver, amendment or other modification requiring the consent of all
Lenders or each affected Lender which affects such Defaulting Lender disproportionately when compared to the other affected Lenders, or
increases or extends the Commitment of such Defaulting Lender, shall require the consent of such Defaulting Lender;

(©
@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

if any Swingline Exposure or LC Exposure exists at the time such Lender becomes a Defaulting Lender then:

all or any part of the Swingline Exposure and LC Exposure of such Defaulting Lender (other than the portion of
such Swingline Exposure referred to in clause (b) of the definition of such term) shall be reallocated among the
non-Defaulting Lenders in accordance with their respective Applicable Percentages but only (A) to the extent
that the sum of all non-Defaulting Lenders’ Revolving Credit Exposures plus such Defaulting Lender’s
Swingline Exposure and LC Exposure does not exceed the total of all non-Defaulting Lenders’ Commitments,
(B) to the extent that such reallocation does not cause the Revolving Credit Exposure of any non-Defaulting
Lender to exceed such non-Defaulting Lender’s Commitment, and (C) if the conditions set forth in Section 4.02
are satisfied at such time;

if the reallocation described in clause (i) above cannot, or can only partially, be effected, the Company shall
within one (1) Business Day following notice by the Administrative Agent (A) first, prepay such Swingline
Exposure and (B) second, cash collateralize for the benefit of the Issuing Bank only the Company’s obligations
corresponding to such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure (after giving effect to any partial reallocation pursuant
to clause (i) above) in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.06(j) for so long as such LC
Exposure is outstanding;

if the Company cash collateralizes any portion of such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure pursuant to clause (ii)
above, the Company shall not be required to pay any fees to such Defaulting Lender pursuant to Section 2.12(b),
with respect to such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure during the period such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure
is cash collateralized;

if the LC Exposure of the non-Defaulting Lenders is reallocated pursuant to clause (i) above, then the fees
payable to the Lenders pursuant to Section 2.12(b) shall be adjusted in accordance with such non-Defaulting
Lenders’ Applicable Percentages; and

if all or any portion of such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure is neither reallocated nor cash collateralized
pursuant to clause (i) or (ii) above, then, without prejudice to any rights or remedies of the Issuing Bank or any
other Lender hereunder, all facility fees that otherwise would have been payable under Section 2.12(a) to such
Defaulting Lender (solely with respect to the portion of such Defaulting Lender’s Commitment that was utilized
by such LC Exposure) and letter of credit fees
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payable under Section 2.12(b) with respect to such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure shall be payable to the
Issuing Bank until and to the extent that such LC Exposure is reallocated and/or cash collateralized; and

(d) so long as such Lender is a Defaulting Lender, (i) no Swingline Lender shall be required to fund any Swingline
Loan and the Issuing Bank shall not be required to issue, amend, renew or extend any Letter of Credit, unless it is satisfied that the related
exposure and the Defaulting Lender’s then outstanding L.C Exposure will be one hundred percent (100%) covered by the Commitments of
the non-Defaulting Lenders and/or cash collateral will be provided by the Company in accordance with clause (c) above, and (ii) Swingline
Exposure related to any newly made Swingline Loan or LC Exposure related to any newly issued, amended, renewed or extended Letter of
Credit shall be allocated among non-Defaulting Lenders in a manner consistent with clause (c)(i) above (and such Defaulting Lender shall
not participate therein).

In the event that the Administrative Agent, the Company, each Swingline Lender and the Issuing Bank each agrees that a Defaulting Lender
has adequately remedied all matters that caused such Lender to be a Defaulting Lender, then the Swingline Exposure and LC Exposure of the
Lenders shall be readjusted to reflect the inclusion of such Lender’s Commitment and on such date such Lender shall purchase at par such of
the Loans of the other Lenders (other than Swingline Loans) as the Administrative Agent shall determine may be necessary in order for such
Lender to hold such Loans in accordance with its Applicable Percentage.

SECTION 2.21Expansion Option.

(@) The Company may from time to time, but not more than five (5) times during the term of this Agreement, elect to
increase the aggregate Commitments and/or enter into one or more tranches of term loans (each, an “Incremental Term Loan”), in each case
in a minimum amount of $10,000,000 and an integral multiple of $5,000,000 in excess thereof so long as, after giving effect thereto, the
aggregate amount of such Commitment increases and all such Incremental Term Loans does not exceed $500,000,000. The Company may
arrange for any such Commitment increase or Incremental Term Loan to be provided by one or more Lenders (each Lender so agreeing to an
increase in its Commitment, or to participate in such Incremental Term Loans, an “Increasing Lender”), or by one or more new banks,
financial institutions or other entities (each such new bank, financial institution or other entity, an “Augmenting Lender”), to increase their
existing Commitments, or to participate in such Incremental Term Loans, or extend Commitments, as the case may be; provided that (i) each
Augmenting Lender shall be subject to the approval of the Company and the Administrative Agent and, except in the case of an Incremental
Term Loan, the Swingline Lenders and the Issuing Banks, which approvals shall not be unreasonably withheld and (ii) (A) in the case of an
Increasing Lender, the Company and such Increasing Lender execute an agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit F, and (B) in the case
of an Augmenting Lender, the Company and such Augmenting Lender execute an agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit G hereto.
No consent of any Lender (other than the Lenders participating in such Commitment increase or Incremental Term Loan) shall be required
for any such increase or Incremental Term Loan pursuant to this Section 2.21.

(b) Commitment increases, new Commitments and Incremental Term Loans created pursuant to this Section 2.21 shall
become effective on the date agreed by the Company, the Administrative Agent and the relevant Increasing Lenders and/or Augmenting
Lenders, and the Administrative Agent shall notify each Lender thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no increase in the aggregate
Commitments (or in the Commitment of any Lender) or Incremental Term Loan shall become effective under this paragraph unless (i) on the
(b) of Section 4.02 shall be satisfied both before and immediately after giving effect to such Commitment increase or Incremental Term Loan
or waived by
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the Required Lenders, and the Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate to that effect dated such date and executed by a
Financial Officer of the Company and (B) the Company shall be in pro forma compliance with the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio
covenant set forth in Section 6.05, with Consolidated Total Debt measured as of the date of and immediately after giving effect to any
funding in connection with such Commitment increase or Incremental Term Loan (and the application of proceeds thereof to the repayment
of any other Indebtedness) and Consolidated EBITDA measured for the Reference Period then most recently ended for which the Company
has delivered financial statements pursuant to Sections 5.01(a) or (b), and (ii) the Administrative Agent shall have received documents
consistent with those delivered on the Effective Date as to the corporate power and authority of the Borrowers to borrow hereunder
immediately after giving effect to such Commitment increase or Incremental Term Loan.

(c)  On the effective date of any increase in the aggregate Commitments or any Incremental Term Loan being made, (i)
each relevant Increasing Lender and Augmenting Lender shall make available to the Administrative Agent such amounts in immediately
available funds as the Administrative Agent shall determine, for the benefit of the other Lenders, as being required in order to cause, after
giving effect to such Commitment increase and the use of such amounts to make payments to such other Lenders, each Lender’s portion of
the outstanding Revolving Loans of all the Lenders to equal its Applicable Percentage of such outstanding Revolving Loans, and (ii) the
Borrowers shall be deemed to have repaid and reborrowed all outstanding Revolving Loans as of the date of any increase in the
Commitments (with such reborrowing to consist of the Types of Revolving Loans, with related Interest Periods if applicable, specified in a
notice delivered by the Company, in accordance with the requirements of Section 2.03). The deemed payments made pursuant to clause (ii)
of the immediately preceding sentence shall be accompanied by payment of all accrued interest on the amount prepaid and, in respect of each
EureenrreneyTerm Benchmark Loan, Canadian Prime Rate Loan and RFR Loan, shall be subject to indemnification by the Borrowers
pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.16 if the deemed payment occurs other than on the last day of the related Interest Periods (or, in the
case of an RFR Loan other than on the Interest Payment Date applicable thereto).

(d)  The Incremental Term Loans (i) shall rank pari passu in right of payment with the Revolving Loans, (ii) shall not
mature earlier than the Maturity Date (but may have amortization prior to such date) and (iii) shall be treated substantially the same as (and in
any event no more favorably than) the Revolving Loans; provided that (x) the terms and conditions applicable to any Incremental Term Loan
maturing after the Maturity Date may provide for material additional or different financial or other covenants or prepayment requirements
applicable only during periods after the Maturity Date and (y) the Incremental Term Loans may be priced differently than the Revolving
Loans.

(e)  Incremental Term Loans may be made hereunder pursuant to an amendment or restatement (an “Incremental Term
Loan Amendment”) of this Agreement and, as appropriate, the other Loan Documents, executed by the Company, each Increasing Lender
participating in such Incremental Term Loan, each Augmenting Lender participating in such Incremental Term Loan, if any, and the
Administrative Agent. Each Incremental Term Loan Amendment may, without the consent of any other Lenders, effect such amendments to
this Agreement and the other Loan Documents as may be necessary or appropriate, in the reasonable opinion of the Administrative Agent, to
effect the provisions of this Section 2.21. Nothing contained in this Section 2.21 shall constitute, or otherwise be deemed to be, a
commitment on the part of any Lender to increase its Commitment hereunder, or provide Incremental Term Loans, at any time.

SECTION 2.22Judgment Currency. If, for the purposes of obtaining judgment in any court, it is necessary to convert a sum due
from any Borrower hereunder in the currency expressed to be payable herein (the “specified currency”) into another currency, the parties
hereto agree, to the fullest extent that they may effectively do so, that the rate of exchange used shall be that at which in accordance with
normal
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banking procedures the Administrative Agent could purchase the specified currency with such other currency at the Administrative Agent’s
main New York City office on the Business Day preceding that on which final, non-appealable judgment is given. The obligations of any
Borrower in respect of any sum due to any Credit Party hereunder shall, notwithstanding any judgment in a currency other than the specified
currency, be discharged only to the extent that on the Business Day following receipt by such Credit Party of any sum adjudged to be so due
in such other currency such Credit Party may in accordance with normal, reasonable banking procedures purchase the specified currency with
such other currency. If the amount of the specified currency so purchased is less than the sum originally due to such Credit Party in the
specified currency, the applicable Borrower agrees, to the fullest extent that it may effectively do so, as a separate obligation and
notwithstanding any such judgment, to indemnify such Credit Party against such loss, and if the amount of the specified currency so
purchased exceeds (a) the sum originally due to any Credit Party in the specified currency and (b) any amounts shared with other Lenders as
a result of allocations of such excess as a disproportionate payment to such Lender under Section 2.18, such Credit Party agrees to remit such
excess to such Borrower.

SECTION 2.23Designated Borrowers.

(a)  Effective as of the date hereof, each Subsidiary identified on Schedule 2.23 shall be a Designated Borrower
hereunder and may receive Revolving Loans for its account on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

(b) The Company may at any time, upon not less than fifteen (15) Business Days’ notice from the Company to the
Administrative Agent (or such shorter period as may be agreed by the Administrative Agent in its sole discretion), designate any additional
wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company (an “Applicant Borrower”) as a Designated Borrower to receive Revolving Loans hereunder by
delivering to the Administrative Agent (which shall promptly deliver counterparts thereof to each Lender) a duly executed notice and
agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit C (a “Designated Borrower Request and Assumption Agreement”). The parties hereto
acknowledge and agree that prior to any Applicant Borrower becoming entitled to utilize the credit facilities provided for herein the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders shall have (i) received such supporting resolutions, incumbency certificates, opinions of counsel and
other documents or information, in form, content and scope reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, as may be required by the
Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders in their reasonable discretion, and (ii) received promissory notes signed by such new
Borrowers to the extent any Lenders so require. Furthermore, no Subsidiary of the Company shall become a Designated Borrower if (i) any
Lender is not licensed to make Loans to such Subsidiary in the jurisdiction of its organization or (ii) it is otherwise unlawful for such
Subsidiary to become a Designated Borrower or for any Lender to make Loans to such Subsidiary as provided herein. No Lender shall be
obligated to make Loans to any Applicant Borrower or Designated Borrower if making such Loans by such Lender would (i) be unlawful, or
(ii) cause additional costs (including Taxes) to be incurred by such Lender that would not otherwise be reimbursable under Section 2.17 or
the other provisions of this Agreement. If the foregoing conditions have been satisfied, then promptly following receipt of all such requested
resolutions, incumbency certificates, opinions of counsel and other documents or information, the Administrative Agent shall send a notice in
substantially the form of Exhibit D (a “Designated Borrower Notice”) to the Company and the Lenders specifying the effective date upon
which the Applicant Borrower shall constitute a Designated Borrower for purposes hereof, whereupon each of the Lenders agrees to permit
such Designated Borrower to receive Revolving Loans hereunder, on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and each of the parties agrees
that such Designated Borrower otherwise shall be a Borrower for all purposes of this Agreement; provided that no Borrowing Request may
be submitted on behalf of such Designated Borrower until the date that is five (5) Business Days after such effective date.
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(c)  The Obligations of the Company and each Designated Borrower that is a Domestic Subsidiary shall be joint and
several in nature regardless of which Borrower actually borrows Revolving Loans hereunder or the amount of such Revolving Loans
borrowed or the manner in which the Administrative Agent or any Lender accounts for such Revolving Loans on its books and records. The
Obligations of all Foreign Obligors shall be several in nature, and notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement or in any other Loan
Document, express or implied, in no event shall any Foreign Obligor be obligated to make any payments in respect of an Obligation of the
Company or a Designated Borrower that is a Domestic Subsidiary. All provisions in this Agreement and each other Loan Document shall be
interpreted and applied consistently with this Section 2.23(c), and if and where other provisions of this Agreement or any other Loan
Document conflict with the provisions of this Section 2.23(c), the provisions of this Section 2.23(c) shall apply.

(d) Each Subsidiary that is or becomes a Designated Borrower pursuant to this Section 2.23 hereby irrevocably
appoints the Company as its agent for all purposes relevant to the Loan Documents, including (i) the giving and receipt of notices, (ii) the
execution and delivery of all documents, instruments and certificates contemplated herein and all modifications hereto, and (iii) the receipt of
the proceeds of any Revolving Loans made by the Lenders to any such Designated Borrower hereunder. Any acknowledgment, consent,
direction, certification or other action which might otherwise be valid or effective only if given or taken by all Borrowers, or by each
Borrower acting singly, shall be valid and effective if given or taken only by the Company, whether or not any such other Borrower joins
therein. Any notice, demand, consent, acknowledgement, direction, certification or other communication delivered to the Company in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been delivered to each Designated Borrower.

(e) The Company may from time to time, upon not less than fifteen (15) Business Days’ notice from the Company to
the Administrative Agent (or such shorter period as may be agreed by the Administrative Agent in its sole discretion), terminate a Designated
Borrower’s status as such, provided that there are no outstanding Revolving Loans payable by such Designated Borrower, or other amounts
payable by such Designated Borrower on account of any Revolving Loans made to it, as of the effective date of such termination. The
Administrative Agent will promptly notify the Lenders of any such termination of a Designated Borrower’s status.

(f)  If the selection of a particular Designated Borrower results (or is reasonably anticipated to result) in amounts
becoming payable under Section 2.17, the Company may make a written request to the Administrative Agent for an amendment to this
Agreement that would create a separate tranche of Lenders to provide credit to such Designated Borrower in a manner that would eliminate
or minimize amounts payable under Section 2.17. The Administrative Agent and the Lenders agree to consider such amendment request in
good faith. The Company hereby agrees to pay (or to cause the applicable Designated Borrower to pay) all reasonable costs and expenses
incurred by the Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection with any such amendment, subject to compliance by the Lenders with the
applicable provisions of Section 2.17(f).

(g) Ilegality. If, in any applicable jurisdiction, the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender determines
that any law has made it unlawful, or that any Governmental Authority has asserted that it is unlawful, for the Administrative Agent, any
Issuing Bank or any Lender to (i) perform any of its obligations hereunder or under any other Loan Document, (ii) to fund or maintain its
participation in any Loan or (iii) issue, make, maintain, fund or charge interest with respect to any Loan, in each of the foregoing cases to any
Designated Borrower who is organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than the United States, a state thereof or the District of
Columbia, such Person shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent, then, upon the Administrative Agent notifying the Company, and until
such notice by such Person is revoked, any obligation of such Person to issue, make, maintain, fund or charge interest
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with respect to any such Loan shall be suspended, and to the extent required by applicable law, cancelled. Upon receipt of such notice, the
Borrowers shall (A) repay that Person’s participation in the Loans or other applicable Obligations on the last day of the Interest Period for
each Loan or other Obligation occurring after the Administrative Agent has notified the Company or, if earlier, the date specified by such
Person in the notice delivered to the Administrative Agent (being no earlier than the last day of any applicable grace period permitted by
applicable law) and (B) take all reasonable actions requested by such Person to mitigate or avoid such illegality.

SECTION 2.24Extension Options.

(a) Extension Requests. The Company may, by written notice to the Administrative Agent (which shall promptly
deliver a copy thereof to each Lender) given not less than thirty (30) days and not more than ninety (90) days prior to each of the first and
second anniversaries of the Effective Date, request a one-year extension of the Maturity Date then in effect (the Maturity Date then in effect
being called the “Existing Termination Date”). Each Lender shall, by written notice to the Company and the Administrative Agent given not
later than the twentieth (20th) day after the Administrative Agent’s receipt of the applicable extension request, advise the Company and the
Administrative Agent whether it agrees to such extension (each Lender agreeing to the applicable requested extension being called an
“Extending Lender”, and each Lender declining to agree to the applicable requested extension being called a “Non-Extending Lender”).
Any Lender that has not so advised the Company and the Administrative Agent by such day shall be deemed to have declined to agree to
such extension and shall be a Non-Extending Lender. If Required Lenders (including, for purposes of this calculation, each Lender that
agrees to replace a Non-Extending Lender in accordance with Section 2.24(b)) agree to the applicable extension request, then the Maturity
Date shall, as to the Extending Lenders, be extended to the first anniversary of the Existing Termination Date. The decision of any Lender to
agree or withhold agreement to either such extension request shall be at the sole discretion of such Lender.

(b) Commitment Terminations. The Commitments of the Non-Extending Lenders shall terminate on the Existing
Termination Date. The principal amount of outstanding Loans made by Non-Extending Lenders, together with accrued interest thereon and
accrued fees and other amounts payable to or for the accounts of Non-Extending Lenders hereunder, shall be due and payable on the Existing
Termination Date. On the Existing Termination Date the Borrowers shall also make such other prepayments of the Loans and, to the extent
no Loans remain outstanding, cash collateralize, in a manner approved in writing by the Administrative Agent and the Issuing Bank, LC
Exposure in an aggregate principal amount sufficient to cause the Dollar Amount of the Total Revolving Credit Exposures (calculated, with
respect to Revolving Loans and LC Exposure denominated in Foreign Currencies, as of the most recent Computation Date with respect to
each such Revolving Loans and LC Exposure) to be less than or equal to the total Commitments. The Company shall have the right, pursuant
to and in accordance with Section 2.19(b), to replace a Non-Extending Lender with a Lender or other financial institution that will agree to
the applicable extension request, and any such replacement Lender shall for all purposes constitute an Extending Lender.

(c)  Rights of the Swingline Lenders and Issuing Bank. The Availability Period and the Maturity Date (without taking
into consideration any extension pursuant to this Section 2.24), as such terms are used in reference to any Swingline Lender (or any
Swingline Loans made by such Swingline Lender) or the Issuing Bank (or any Letters of Credit issued by the Issuing Bank), may not be
extended without the prior written consent of such Swingline Lenders or each Issuing Bank, as the case may be, it being understood and
agreed that, if such Swingline Lender or each Issuing Bank, as the case may be, does not consent to the applicable extension, (i) such
Swingline Lender or such Issuing Bank, as the case may be, shall continue to have all the rights and obligations of a Swingline Lender or an
Issuing Bank, as the case may be, hereunder through the Existing Termination Date (or the Availability Period determined on the
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basis thereof, as applicable), and thereafter shall have no obligation to make any Swingline Loans or to issue, amend, extend or renew any
Letters of Credit (but shall, in each case, continue to be entitled to the benefits of Sections 2.05, 2.06, 2.15, 2.17 and 10.03, as applicable, as
to Swingline Loans or Letters of Credit made or issued prior to such time), (i) the principal amount of any outstanding Swingline Loans
made by such Swingline Lender, together with any accrued interest thereon, shall, to the extent outstanding or accrued but unpaid on the
Existing Termination Date, be due and payable on the Existing Termination Date, and (iii) the Borrowers shall cause the LC Exposure to be
cash collateralized in a manner approved in writing by the Administrative Agent and the Issuing Bank no later than the date that is five
Business Days prior to the Existing Termination Date.

(d)  Conditions Precedent to Extensions. No extension of the Maturity Date pursuant to this Section 2.24 shall become
effective unless (i) to the extent requested by the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent shall have received documents consistent
with those delivered on the Effective Date as to the corporate power and authority of the Borrowers to effect such extension and (ii) the
Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate executed by a Financial Officer of the Company, dated as of the effective date of such
extension, stating that (A) as of such date, no Default has occurred and is continuing or would result from such extension of the Maturity
Date and (B) the representations and warranties of the Borrowers set forth in the Loan Documents are true in all material respects (or in all
respects if the applicable representation or warranty is already qualified by concepts of materiality) on and as of such date (except to the
extent any such representations or warranties are limited to an earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties shall be true in
all material respects as of such earlier date).

ARTICLE III
Representations and Warranties
Except as otherwise provided in Section 3.12, each Borrower represents and warrants to the Lenders that:

SECTION 3.010rganization; Powers. Each Borrower (a) is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of
the jurisdiction of its organization, (b) has all requisite power and authority and all requisite governmental licenses, authorizations, consents
and approvals to (i) own or lease its assets and carry on its business and (ii) execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the Loan
Documents to which it is a party, and (c) is qualified to do business in, and is licensed and in good standing under the laws of, every
jurisdiction where such qualification is required; except in each case referred to in clause (b)(i) or (c), to the extent that failure to do so could
not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.02Authorization; Enforceability. The Transactions are within each Borrower’s corporate powers and have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate and, if required, stockholder action. Each Loan Document has been duly executed and delivered by
each Borrower that is a party thereto and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of each such Borrower, enforceable in accordance
with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and
subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

SECTION 3.03Governmental Approvals; No Conflicts. The Transactions do not and will not (a) require any consent or approval of,
registration or filing with, or any other action by, any Governmental Authority or any other Person, (b) violate any applicable law, rule or
regulation of any Governmental Authority or any Organization Document of any Borrower, and (c) conflict with or result in any material
breach or contravention of, or the creation of any material Lien under, or require any material payment to
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be made under (i) any material Contractual Obligation to which any Borrower is a party or affecting any Borrower or the properties of any
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or (ii) any order, injunction, writ or decree of any Governmental Authority or any arbitral award to which
any Borrower or the properties of any Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries is subject.

SECTION 3.04Financial Condition; No Material Adverse Change.

(@) The Company has heretofore furnished to the Lenders its consolidated balance sheet and statements of income or
operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows (i) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, reported on by Deloitte and
Touche LLP, independent public accountants, and (ii) as of and for the fiscal quarter and the portion of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021,
certified by its Financial Officer. Such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of such dates and for such periods in accordance with GAAP,
subject to year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes in the case of the statements referred to in clause (ii) above.

(b)  Since September 30, 2020, there has been no development, event or circumstance, either individually or in the
aggregate, that has had or could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.05Litigation and Environmental Matters.

(@)  There are no actions, suits, proceedings, claims or disputes pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrowers after due
and diligent investigation, threatened or contemplated, at law, in equity, in arbitration or before any Governmental Authority, by or against the
Company or any Subsidiary or against any of their properties or revenues that (i) except as described in the Company’s 2020 Form 10-K or
any subsequent Form 10-Q or Form 8-K filing prior to the Effective Date (the “Disclosed Litigation™), could, either individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or (ii) purport to affect or pertain to any Loan Document or the
Transactions.

(b) The Company and its Subsidiaries conduct in the ordinary course of business a review of the effect of existing
Environmental Laws and claims alleging potential liability or responsibility for violation of any Environmental Law on their respective
businesses, operations and properties, and as a result thereof the Borrowers have reasonably concluded that, except for the Disclosed
Litigation, violation of such Environmental Laws and claims could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.06Compliance with Laws and Agreements; No Default.

(@)  Each of the Borrowers and Significant Subsidiaries is in compliance with the requirements of all laws, rules and
regulations and orders, writs and decrees of any Governmental Authority applicable to it or its properties, except to the extent that (i) failure
to comply therewith could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect and (ii) such
requirement is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted. Each Borrower is in compliance with all
material Contractual Obligations to which such Borrower is a party or affecting such Borrower or the properties of such Borrower or any of
its Subsidiaries, except to the extent that failure to comply therewith could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(b)  No Default has occurred and is continuing or would result from the consummation of the Transactions.
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SECTION 3.07Investment Company Status; Margin Regulations.

(@)  Neither the Company, nor any Person Controlling the Company nor any Subsidiary is or is required to be registered
as an “investment company” under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

(b) No Borrower is engaged or will engage, principally or as one of its important activities, in the business of
purchasing or carrying margin stock (within the meaning of Regulation U of the Board), or extending credit for the purpose of purchasing or
carrying margin stock.

SECTION 3.08Taxes. Each of the Borrowers and Significant Subsidiaries has timely filed or caused to be filed all federal, state and
other material Tax returns and reports required to have been filed and have paid or caused to be paid all federal, state and other material Taxes
required to have been paid by it, except Taxes that are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted and for
which such Borrower or such Significant Subsidiary, as applicable, has set aside on its books adequate reserves. There is no proposed Tax
assessment against any Borrower or any Subsidiary that would, if made, have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.09ERISA. No ERISA Event has occurred or is reasonably expected to occur that, when taken together with all other
such ERISA Events for which liability is reasonably expected to occur, could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.
The present value of all accumulated benefit obligations under each Plan (based on the assumptions used for purposes of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87) did not, as of the date of the most recent financial statements reflecting such amounts, exceed the
fair market value of the assets of such Plan by an amount that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, and the
present value of all accumulated benefit obligations of all underfunded Plans (based on the assumptions used for purposes of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87) did not, as of the date of the most recent financial statements reflecting such amounts, exceed the
fair market value of the assets of all such underfunded Plans by an amount that could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse
Effect.

SECTION 3.10Disclosure. All information heretofore furnished by the Borrowers to the Administrative Agent or any Lender for
purposes of or in connection with the Loan Documents or the Transactions is, and all such information hereafter furnished by the Borrowers
to the Administrative Agent or any Lender will be, true and accurate in all material respects on the date as of which such information is stated
or certified. The Borrowers have disclosed to the Lenders in writing any and all facts known to the Borrowers’ management which could
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. As of the Effective Date, to the best knowledge of the Company, the
information included in any Beneficial Ownership Certification provided on or prior to the Effective Date to any Lender in connection with
this Agreement is true and correct in all respects.

SECTION 3.11Subsidiaries. Each Significant Subsidiary (a) is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws
of the jurisdiction of its organization, and (b) has all requisite power and authority and all requisite governmental licenses, authorizations,
consents and approvals to own or lease its assets and carry on its business, except in each case referred to in this clause (b) to the extent that
failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.12Representations as to Foreign Obligors. Each of the Company and each Foreign Obligor represents and warrants to
the Lenders that:

(@)  Such Foreign Obligor is subject to civil and commercial laws, rules and regulations with respect to its obligations
under the Loan Documents to which it is a party (collectively, the “Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents”), and the execution, delivery
and performance by such Foreign Obligor of
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the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents constitute and will constitute private and commercial acts and not public or governmental acts.
Neither any Foreign Obligor nor any of its property has any immunity from jurisdiction of any court or from any legal process (whether
through service or notice, attachment prior to judgment, attachment in aid of execution, execution or otherwise) under the laws of the
jurisdiction in which such Foreign Obligor is organized and existing in respect of its obligations under the Applicable Foreign Obligor
Documents.

(b)  The Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents are in proper legal form under the laws, rules and regulations of the
jurisdiction in which such Foreign Obligor is organized and existing for the enforcement thereof against such Foreign Obligor under the laws,
rules and regulations of such jurisdiction, and to ensure the legality, validity, enforceability, priority or admissibility in evidence of the
Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents. It is not necessary to ensure the legality, validity, enforceability, priority or admissibility in evidence
of the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents that the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents be filed, registered or recorded with, or
executed or notarized before, any court or other authority in the jurisdiction in which any Foreign Obligor is organized and existing or that
any registration charge or stamp or similar tax be paid on or in respect of the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents or any other document,
except for (i) any such filing, registration, recording, execution or notarization as has been made or is not required to be made until the
Applicable Foreign Obligor Document or any other document is sought to be enforced and (ii) any charge or tax as has been timely paid.

(c)  There is no Tax imposed by any Governmental Authority in or of the jurisdiction in which such Foreign Obligor is
organized and existing either (i) on or by virtue of the execution or delivery of the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents or (ii) on any
payment to be made by such Foreign Obligor pursuant to the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents, except as has been disclosed to the
Administrative Agent.

(d)  The execution, delivery and performance of the Applicable Foreign Obligor Documents executed by such Foreign
Obligor are, under applicable foreign exchange control regulations of the jurisdiction in which such Foreign Obligor is organized and
existing, not subject to any notification or authorization except (i) such as have been made or obtained or (ii) such as cannot be made or
obtained until a later date (provided that any notification or authorization described in clause (ii) shall be made or obtained as soon as is
reasonably practicable).

SECTION 3.13Use of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Loans will be used only for the purposes specified in Section 5.08.

SECTION 3.14Anti-Corruption Laws and Sanctions. The Company has implemented and maintains in effect policies and
procedures designed to ensure compliance by the Company, its Subsidiaries and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents
with Anti-Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions. The Company, its Subsidiaries and, to the knowledge of the Borrowers, their respective
employees, officers, directors and agents, are in compliance with Anti-Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions in all material respects
(except to the extent that (i) such noncompliance does not involve any executive officer or similar member of senior management of the
Company or such Subsidiary and does not represent a systemic failure of compliance controls, (ii) the Company or such Subsidiary is
diligently taking steps to cure such noncompliance and (iii) such noncompliance would not reasonably be expected to materially and
adversely affect the Company or such Subsidiary or result in a violation of Anti-Corruption Laws or applicable Sanctions by the
Administrative Agent, any Lender or their Affiliates) and are not knowingly engaged in any activity that would reasonably be expected to
result in any Borrower being designated as a Sanctioned Person. None of (a) the Company, any of its Subsidiaries, any of their respective
officers or employees or, to the knowledge of the Borrowers, any of their respective directors, or (b) to the knowledge of the Borrowers, any
agent of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that will act

-81-



in any capacity in connection with or benefit from the credit facility established hereby, is a Sanctioned Person so as to result in a violation of
Anti-Corruption Law or Sanctions. The Transactions will not violate any Anti-Corruption Law or applicable Sanctions.

SECTION 3.15Affected Financial Institutions. No Borrower is an Affected Financial Institution.

ARTICLE IV
Conditions
SECTION 4.01Effective Date. The obligations of the Lenders to make Loans and of the Issuing Banks to issue Letters of Credit

hereunder shall not become effective until the date on which each of the following conditions is satisfied (or waived in accordance with
Section 10.02):

(@) The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received from each party to the Loan Documents either (i) a
counterpart of each Loan Document to which such Person is a party, signed on behalf of such Person or (ii) written evidence satisfactory to
the Administrative Agent (which may include telecopy transmission of a signed signature page of each Loan Document to which such Person
is a party) that such Person has signed a counterpart of each such Loan Document.

(b)  The Administrative Agent shall have received a favorable written opinion (addressed to the Administrative Agent
and the Lenders and dated the Effective Date) of counsel for the Borrowers covering such matters relating to the Borrowers, the Loan
Documents and the Transactions as the Required Lenders shall reasonably request and otherwise in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

(c)  The Administrative Agent shall have received such documents and certificates as the Administrative Agent or its
counsel may reasonably request relating to the organization, existence and good standing of each Borrower, the authorization of the
Transactions and any other legal matters relating to the Borrowers, the Loan Documents and the Transactions, all in form and substance
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and its counsel.

(d) The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate, dated the Effective Date and signed by the President, a

Section 4.02.

(e)  The Administrative Agent and the Lenders shall have received all fees and other amounts due and payable pursuant
to this Agreement on or prior to the Effective Date, including, to the extent invoiced, reimbursement or payment of all out-of-pocket expenses
required to be reimbursed or paid by the Borrowers hereunder.

(f) (i) The Administrative Agent shall have received, at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Effective Date, all
documentation and other information regarding the Borrowers reasonably requested in connection with applicable “know your customer” and
anti-money laundering rules and regulations, including the Act, to the extent requested in writing of the Company at least ten (10) Business
Days prior to the Effective Date and (ii) to the extent any Borrower qualifies as a “legal entity customer” under the Beneficial Ownership
Regulation, at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Effective Date, any Lender that has requested, in a written notice to the Company at
least ten (10) Business Days prior to the Effective Date, a Beneficial Ownership Certification in relation to such Borrower shall have received
such Beneficial Ownership Certification (provided that, upon the execution and delivery by such Lender of
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its signature page to this Agreement, the conditions set forth in this clause (f) shall be deemed to be satisfied).

(8) The Administrative Agent shall have received evidence satisfactory to it that, substantially simultaneously with the
funding of Loans on the Effective Date, the Borrowers shall have repaid the principal of all outstanding loans under the Existing Credit
Agreement and paid all accrued interest, fees and other amounts owing thereunder. The Borrowers hereby acknowledge and agree that the
“Commitments” of the “Lenders” under (and as such terms are defined in) the Existing Credit Agreement, shall automatically terminate upon
the Effective Date.

The Administrative Agent shall notify the Company and the Lenders of the Effective Date, and such notice shall be conclusive and binding.

SECTION 4.02Each Credit Event. The obligation of each Lender to make a Loan on the occasion of any Borrowing, and of any
Issuing Bank to issue, amend, renew or extend any Letter of Credit, is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(@) The representations and warranties of the Borrowers set forth in the Loan Documents (other than the
representations and warranties set forth in Sections 3.04(b), 3.05 and 3.09 with respect to any Borrowing or issuance, amendment, renewal or
extension of any Letter of Credit after the Effective Date) shall be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects if the applicable
representation or warranty is already qualified by concepts of materiality) on and as of the date of such Borrowing or the date of issuance,
amendment, renewal or extension of such Letter of Credit, as applicable.

(b) At the time of and immediately after giving effect to such Borrowing or the issuance, amendment, renewal or
extension of such Letter of Credit, as applicable, no Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

Each Borrowing and each issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of a Letter of Credit shall be deemed to constitute a representation and

SECTION 4.03Initial Credit Event for each Additional Borrower. The obligation of each Lender to make Loans to any Designated
Borrower that becomes a Designated Borrower after the Effective Date is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(@) The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received such Designated Borrower’s Designated Borrower
Request and Assumption Agreement duly executed by all parties thereto.

(b)  The Administrative Agent shall have received such documents (including such legal opinions) as the Administrative
Agent or its counsel may reasonably request relating to the formation, existence and good standing of such Designated Borrower, the
authorization of the Transactions insofar as they relate to such Designated Borrower and any other legal matters relating to such Designated
Borrower, its Designated Borrower Request and Assumption Agreement or such Transactions, including, with respect to any Designated
Borrower organized under the laws of any jurisdiction outside of the United States of America, a legal opinion from such Designated
Borrower’s counsel in such jurisdiction, all in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and its counsel.

(c)  The Administrative Agent and the Lenders shall have received all documentation and other information reasonably
requested by the Lenders or the Administrative Agent under applicable “know your customer” and anti-money laundering rules and
regulations, including the Act.
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ARTICLE V
Affirmative Covenants

Until the Commitments have expired or been terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan and all fees payable
hereunder shall have been paid in full and all Letters of Credit shall have expired or terminated or been cash collateralized or otherwise
secured on terms and conditions reasonably satisfactory to the Issuing Bank, in each case, without any pending draw, and all LC
Disbursements shall have been reimbursed, the Company (with respect to the covenants set forth in Sections 5.01 and 5.02) and each
Borrower (with respect to all other covenants set forth in this Article V) covenants and agrees with the Lenders that:

SECTION 5.01Financial Statements and Other Information. The Company will furnish to the Administrative Agent and each
Lender:

(a)  within seven (7) Business Days following the date such information is filed with the SEC, and in any event not later
than ninety-seven (97) days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, its audited consolidated balance sheet and related statements of
income or operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows as of the end of and for such year, setting forth in each case in comparative form
the figures for the previous fiscal year, all reported on by Deloitte & Touche LLP or other independent public accountants of recognized
national standing (without a “going concern” or like qualification or exception or any qualification or exception as to the scope of such audit)
to the effect that such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP;

(b)  within seven (7) Business Days following the date such information is filed with the SEC, and in any event not later
than fifty-two (52) days after the end of each of the first three (3) fiscal quarters of each fiscal year of the Company, its consolidated balance
sheet and related statements of income or operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows as of the end of and for such fiscal quarter and the
then elapsed portion of the fiscal year, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the corresponding period or periods of
(or, in the case of the balance sheet, as of the end of) the previous fiscal year, all certified by one of its Financial Officers as presenting fairly
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis in accordance with GAAP, subject to normal year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes;

(c)  concurrently with any delivery of financial statements under clause (a) or (b) above, a duly completed Compliance
Certificate signed by a Financial Officer of the Company;

(d) promptly after the same become available, copies of all periodic and other reports, proxy statements and other
materials filed by the Company or any Subsidiary with the SEC or with any national securities exchange, or distributed by the Company to its
shareholders generally, as the case may be;

(e)  promptly, and in any event within seven (7) Business Days after receipt thereof by the Company or any Subsidiary,
copies of each notice or other correspondence received from the SEC (or comparable agency in any applicable foreign jurisdiction)
concerning any investigation or possible investigation or other inquiry by such agency regarding financial or other operational results of the
Company or any Subsidiary;

(f)  with respect to each calendar year (commencing with the calendar year ending December 31, 2021), as soon as
available and in any event by the date that is 215 days following the end
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of such calendar year, a Pricing Certificate (as defined in Schedule 1.01) for such calendar year; provided, that, for any calendar year, the
Company may elect not to deliver a Pricing Certificate, and such election shall not constitute a Default or Event of Default (but such failure
to so deliver a Pricing Certificate by the end of such 215-day period following such calendar year shall result in the Sustainability Fee
Adjustment (as defined in Schedule 1.01) and the Sustainability Margin Adjustment (as defined in Schedule 1.01) being applied as set forth
in Schedule 1.01 in respect of situations where the Pricing Certificate is not so delivered by the end of such period);

(g) promptly following any request therefor, (i) such other information regarding the operations, business affairs and
financial condition of the Company or any Subsidiary, or compliance with the terms of the Loan Documents, as the Administrative Agent or
any Lender may reasonably request and (ii) such other information regarding sustainability matters and practices of the Company or any
Subsidiary (including with respect to corporate governance, environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anti-
corruption and anti-bribery) as the Administrative Agent or any Lender may reasonably request for purposes of compliance with any legal or
regulatory requirement applicable to it; and

(h) promptly following any request therefor, information and documentation reasonably requested by the
Administrative Agent or any Lender required for purposes of compliance with applicable “know your customer” and anti-money laundering
rules and regulations, including the Patriot Act and the Beneficial Ownership Regulation.

Documents required to be delivered pursuant to clauses (a), (b) or (d) of this Section (to the extent any such documents are included in
materials otherwise filed with the SEC) may be delivered electronically and if so delivered, shall be deemed to have been delivered on the
date (i) on which the Company posts such documents, or provides a link thereto on the Company’s website on the Internet; or (ii) on which
such documents are posted on the Company’s behalf on an Internet or intranet website, if any, to which each Lender and the Administrative
Agent have access (whether a commercial, third-party website or whether sponsored by the Administrative Agent); provided that: (x) the
Company shall deliver paper copies of such documents to the Administrative Agent or any Lender that requests the Company to deliver such
paper copies until a written request to cease delivering paper copies is given by the Administrative Agent or such Lender and (y) the
Company shall notify the Administrative Agent and each Lender (by telecopier or electronic mail) of the posting of any such documents and
provide to the Administrative Agent by electronic mail electronic versions (i.e., soft copies) of such documents. The Administrative Agent
shall have no obligation to request the delivery or to maintain copies of the documents referred to above, and in any event shall have no
responsibility to monitor compliance by the Company with any such request for delivery, and each Lender shall be solely responsible for
requesting delivery to it or maintaining its copies of such documents.

SECTION 5.02Notices of Material Events. The Company will furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender prompt written
notice of the following:

(a)  the occurrence of any Default;

(b)  the occurrence of any ERISA Event (other than an ERISA Event under any of clauses (j), (1) or (m) of the definition
thereof that could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect);

(c)  any material change in accounting policies or financial reporting practices by the Company or any Subsidiary not
otherwise reported in the Company’s SEC filings;
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(d) any published announcement by Moody’s or S&P of any change or possible change in the rating established or
deemed to have been established for the Index Debt; and

(e)  any other development that results in, or could reasonably be expected to result in, a Material Adverse Effect,
including (i) breach or non-performance of, or any default under, a Contractual Obligation of the Company or any Subsidiary; (ii) any
dispute, litigation, investigation, proceeding or suspension between the Company or any Subsidiary and any Governmental Authority; and
(iii) the commencement of, or any material development in, any litigation or proceeding affecting the Company or any Subsidiary, including
pursuant to any applicable Environmental Laws.

Each notice delivered under this Section shall be accompanied by a statement of a Financial Officer or other executive officer of the
Company setting forth the details of the event or development requiring such notice and any action taken or proposed to be taken with respect
thereto.

SECTION 5.03Existence; Conduct of Business. It will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, (a) preserve, renew and keep in
full force and effect its legal existence, (b) preserve, renew and keep in full force and effect its good standing under the laws of the
jurisdiction of its organization except as permitted under Section 6.02, (c) take all reasonable action to maintain all rights, licenses, permits,
privileges and franchises necessary or desirable in the normal conduct of its business, except to the extent that failure to do so could not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and (d) preserve and renew all of its registered patents, trademarks, trade names
and service marks, the non-preservation of which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; provided that the
foregoing shall not prohibit any merger, consolidation, sale, liquidation or dissolution permitted under Section 6.02.

SECTION 5.04Payment of Obligations. It will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, pay its material obligations and liabilities,
including (a) all Tax liabilities, except where (i) the validity or amount thereof is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings
diligently conducted and (ii) the Company or such Subsidiary has set aside on its books adequate reserves with respect thereto in accordance
with GAAP, (b) all lawful material claims which, if unpaid, would by law become a Lien upon its property (other than Liens permitted by
Section 6.01), and (c) all Indebtedness, as and when due and payable, but subject to any subordination provisions contained in any instrument
or agreement evidencing such Indebtedness.

SECTION 5.05Maintenance of Properties; Insurance.

(a) It will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, (i) keep and maintain all property material to the conduct of its
business in good working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and (ii) make all necessary repairs thereto and renewals and
replacements thereof except where the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; provided that
nothing in Section 5.05(a) shall prevent the Company or any Subsidiary from discontinuing the operations and maintenance of any of its
properties or those of its Subsidiaries if such discontinuance is, in the judgment of the Company or such Subsidiary, desirable in the conduct
of its or their business and which do not in the aggregate cause a Material Adverse Effect. Except as provided above, the Borrowers shall
maintain direct ownership of the majority of the tangible and intangible assets employed in connection with the Borrowers’ United States
domestic carbon black business.

(b) It will, and will cause each of its Significant Subsidiaries to, maintain, with financially sound and reputable
insurance companies that are not Affiliates of the Company, insurance in such amounts and against such risks as are customarily maintained
by companies engaged in the same or similar businesses.
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SECTION 5.06Books and Records; Inspection Rights.

(@) It will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, keep proper books of record and account in which full, true and
correct entries in conformity with GAAP are made of all financial dealings and transactions in relation to its business and activities.

(b) It will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, permit any representatives and independent contractors designated
by the Administrative Agent or any Lender, upon reasonable prior notice, to visit and inspect its properties, to examine and make extracts
from its books and records, and to discuss its affairs, finances and accounts with its directors, officers and independent accountants, all at the
expense of the Company and at such reasonable times during normal business hours and not more than once each fiscal year; provided that if
an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, such representatives and independent contractors may do any of the foregoing at the
expense of the Company at any time during normal business hours and without prior notice.

SECTION 5.07Compliance with Laws. It will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, comply with all laws, rules and
regulations and orders, injunctions, writs and decrees of any Governmental Authority applicable to it or its property, except where (a) the
failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect and (b) the requirement to do so is being contested in
good faith by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted. The Company will maintain in effect and enforce policies and procedures
designed to ensure compliance by the Company, its Subsidiaries and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents with Anti-
Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions.

SECTION 5.08Use of Proceeds. The proceeds of the Loans will be used only for general corporate purposes of the Company and
its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business, including Permitted Acquisitions, and to refinance indebtedness and any other amounts
outstanding under the Existing Credit Agreement on the Effective Date. No Borrower will request any Borrowing or Letter of Credit, and no
Borrower shall use the proceeds of any Borrowing or Letter of Credit, and each Borrower shall ensure that its Subsidiaries and its or their
respective directors, officers, employees and agents shall not use the proceeds of any Borrowing or Letter of Credit (a) in furtherance of an
offer, payment, promise to pay, or authorization of the payment or giving of money, or anything else of value, to any Person in violation of
any Anti-Corruption Laws, (b) for the purpose of funding, financing or facilitating any activities, business or transaction of or with any
Sanctioned Person, or in any Sanctioned Country, to the extent such activities, businesses or transaction would be prohibited by Sanctions if
conducted by a corporation incorporated in the United States or in a European Union member state, or (c) in any other manner that would
result in the violation of any Sanctions applicable to any party hereto.

ARTICLE VI
Negative Covenants

Until the Commitments have expired or terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan and all fees payable hereunder
have been paid in full and all Letters of Credit have expired or terminated or been cash collateralized or otherwise secured on terms and
conditions reasonably satisfactory to the Issuing Banks, in each case, without any pending draw, and all LC Disbursements shall have been
reimbursed, each Borrower covenants and agrees with the Lenders that:

SECTION 6.01Liens. It will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien on
any property, asset or revenue now owned or hereafter acquired by it, except:
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(@)  Permitted Encumbrances;

(b) Liens on any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary existing on the date hereof and set forth in
Schedule 6.01; provided that (i) such Lien shall not apply to any other property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary and (ii) such Lien
shall secure only those obligations which it secures on the date hereof and extensions, renewals and replacements thereof that do not increase
the outstanding principal amount thereof;

(c) any Lien existing on any property or asset of a Person prior to the acquisition thereof by the Company or any
Subsidiary or prior to merger or consolidation of such Person into the Company or any Subsidiary, or existing on any property or asset of any
Person that becomes a Subsidiary after the date hereof prior to the time such Person becomes a Subsidiary; provided that, in each case, (i)
such Lien is not created in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition, merger or consolidation or such Person becoming a
Subsidiary, as the case may be, (ii) such Lien shall not apply to any other property or assets of the Company or any Subsidiary and (iii) such
Lien shall secure only those obligations which it secures on the date of such acquisition or the date such Person becomes a Subsidiary, as the
case may;

(d) Liens securing purchase money Indebtedness; provided that (i) such Liens do not at any time encumber any
property other than the property financed by such Indebtedness and (ii) the Indebtedness secured thereby does not exceed the cost or fair
market value, whichever is lower, of the property being acquired on the date of acquisition;

(e) any interest of title of a lessor under, and Liens arising from UCC financing statements (or equivalent filings,
registrations or agreements in foreign jurisdictions) relating to, leases permitted by this Agreement;

(f)  leases or subleases granted to others not interfering in any material respect with the business of the Company or any
Subsidiary;

(g) Liens created or deemed to exist in connection with a Securitization Transaction (including any related filings of
any UCC financing statements (or equivalent filings, registrations or agreements in foreign jurisdictions)) securing Indebtedness in an
aggregate amount not to exceed $200,000,000 during the term of this Agreement, but only to the extent that any such Lien relates to the
applicable property actually sold, contributed, financed or otherwise conveyed or pledged pursuant to such transaction;

(h)  normal and customary rights of setoff upon deposits of cash in favor of banks or other depository institutions;

@) Liens on commodities subject to any arrangement permitted under Section 6.03;

G Liens securing Indebtedness (for working capital purposes) of any Foreign Subsidiary, but only to the extent that
any such Lien relates to the property or assets of such Foreign Subsidiary;

(k)  Liens arising pursuant to any Swap Agreement;
()] any Lien arising out of the refinancing, extension, renewal or refunding of any Indebtedness secured by any Lien
permitted by any of the foregoing clauses of this Section, provided that such Indebtedness is not increased and is not secured by any

additional assets;
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(m) Liens arising in the ordinary course of business that (i) do not secure Indebtedness, (ii) do not secure any single
obligation exceeding $50,000,000 and (iii) do not in the aggregate materially detract from the value of the assets of the Company or any
Subsidiary or materially impair the use thereof in the operation of its business;

(n)  Liens on cash collateral created hereunder in favor of any Credit Party; and

(o) Liens not otherwise permitted by the foregoing clauses of this Section securing Indebtedness in an aggregate
principal amount at any time outstanding not to exceed ten percent (10%) of Consolidated Tangible Net Worth at any time.

SECTION 6.02Fundamental Changes. It will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, merge into or consolidate with any
other Person, or permit any other Person to merge into or consolidate with it, or sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of (in one transaction
or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets, or all or substantially all of the Equity Interests of any Subsidiary (in each
case, whether now owned or hereafter acquired), or divide, liquidate or dissolve, except that, if at the time thereof and immediately after
giving effect thereto no Default shall have occurred and be continuing:

(@) any Subsidiary (i) may merge with the Company, provided that the Company shall be the continuing or surviving
Person, (ii) may merge with any Designated Borrower, provided that such Designated Borrower shall be the continuing or surviving Person,
or (iii) that is not a Borrower may merge with or into any other Subsidiary that is not a Borrower;

(b)  any Subsidiary may sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets (upon voluntary
liquidation or otherwise) to the Company or to another Subsidiary; provided that if the transferor in such a transaction is a Borrower, then the
transferee must be a Borrower; and

(c)  the Company may sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of its assets, or any Subsidiary may sell, transfer, lease
or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets, so long as the aggregate net book value of all such assets sold, transferred, leased
or otherwise disposed of by the Company and its Subsidiaries in all transactions occurring from and after the date of this Agreement shall not
exceed an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of Consolidated Total Tangible Assets, measured as the sum of the percentages for each
such transaction, in each case based upon the Consolidated Total Tangible Assets as of the end of the most recently completed fiscal year
prior to the applicable sale, transfer, lease or other disposition.

to, make any Investment where the aggregate consideration for such Investment exceeds $200,000,000, other than Permitted Investments and
Permitted Acquisitions.

SECTION 6.04Transactions with Affiliates. It will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into any transaction of
any kind with any Affiliate of the Company, whether or not in the ordinary course of business, other than (a) reasonable and customary fees
paid to members of the board of directors of the Company and its Subsidiaries, (b) transactions otherwise expressly permitted hereunder
between the Company or any Subsidiary and any such Affiliate or (c) on fair and reasonable terms substantially as favorable to the Company
or such Subsidiary as would be obtainable by the Company or such Subsidiary at the time in a comparable arm’s length transaction with a
Person other than an Affiliate.

SECTION 6.05Financial Covenant. It will not permit the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio as of the last day of any Reference
Period to be greater than 3.50:1.00; provided, however, that at the election of the Company (prior written notice of which shall be given to
the Administrative Agent), following the
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consummation of any Material Acquisition, the Consolidated Net Leverage Ratio (x) as at the end of the fiscal quarter in which such Material
Acquisition occurs and the three fiscal quarters immediately thereafter, shall not be greater than 4.00:1.00 and (y) as at the end of any fiscal
quarter thereafter, shall not be greater than 3.50:1.00.

SECTION 6.060rganization Documents. It will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, amend, modify or change its
Organization Documents in any manner which could materially adversely affect the rights of the Credit Parties under the Loan Documents.

SECTION 6.07Use of Proceeds. It will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, use any part of the proceeds of any Loan
to be used, whether directly or indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or ultimately, for any purpose that entails a violation of any
of the Regulations of the Board (including Regulations T, U and X), including to purchase or carry margin stock (within the meaning of
Regulation U) other than stock of the Company or to extend credit to others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying margin stock or to
refund indebtedness originally incurred for such purpose.

SECTION 6.08Subsidiary Indebtedness. It will not permit, at any time, the aggregate Indebtedness of all Subsidiaries (excluding
Indebtedness of a Subsidiary owing to a Borrower or to another Subsidiary) to exceed 30% of Total Capitalization.

ARTICLE VII
Events of Default
If any of the following events (“Events of Default”) shall occur:

(@) any Borrower shall fail to pay any principal of any Loan or any reimbursement obligation in respect of any LC
Disbursement when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at the due date thereof or otherwise;

(b)  any Borrower shall fail to pay any interest on any Loan or any fee or any other amount (other than an amount
referred to in clause (a) of this Article) payable under this Agreement or any other Loan Document, when and as the same shall become due
and payable, and such failure shall continue unremedied for a period of five (5) days;

(c)  any representation or warranty made or deemed made by or on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary in or in
connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any amendment or modification hereof or thereof or waiver hereunder or
thereunder, or in any report, certificate, financial statement or other document furnished pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement or
any other Loan Document or any amendment or modification hereof or thereof or waiver hereunder or thereunder, shall prove to have been
incorrect in any material respect (or in any respect if such representation or warranty is already qualified by concepts of materiality) when
made or deemed made;

(d) (i) any Borrower shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement contained in Section
in Section 5.01 or 5.02 and such failure shall continue unremedied for a period of five (5) Business Days after the earlier of any of the chief
executive officer, president or any Financial Officer of the Company becoming aware of such failure or notice thereof by the Administrative
Agent;
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(e) any Borrower shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement contained in any Loan

(30) days after written notice from the Administrative Agent;

(f)  the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (i) shall fail to make any payment when due (whether by scheduled
maturity, required prepayment, acceleration, demand or otherwise) in respect of any Indebtedness or Guarantee having an aggregate principal
amount (including undrawn committed or available amounts and including amounts owing to all creditors under any combined or syndicated
credit arrangement) of more than $50,000,000, or (ii) shall fail to observe or perform any other agreement or condition relating to any such
Indebtedness or Guarantee having an aggregate principal amount (including undrawn committed or available amounts and including amounts
owing to all creditors under any combined or syndicated credit arrangement) of more than $50,000,000 or contained in any instrument or
agreement evidencing, securing or relating thereto, or any other event occurs, the effect of which default or other event is to cause, or to
permit the holder or holders of such Indebtedness or the beneficiary or beneficiaries of such Guarantee (or a trustee or agent on behalf of such
holder or holders or beneficiary or beneficiaries) to cause, with the giving of notice if required, such Indebtedness to be demanded or to
become due or to be repurchased, prepaid, defeased or redeemed (automatically or otherwise), or an offer to repurchase, prepay, defease or
redeem such Indebtedness to be made, prior to its stated maturity, or such Guarantee to become payable or cash collateral in respect thereof
to be demanded;

(g) an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an involuntary petition shall be filed seeking (i) liquidation,
reorganization or other relief in respect of any Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary or its debts, or of a substantial part of its assets, under
any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar law now or hereafter in effect or (ii) the appointment of a
receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar official for any Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary or for a substantial
part of its assets, and, in any such case, such proceeding or petition shall continue undismissed or unstayed for sixty (60) days or an order or
decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered;

(h)  any Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary shall (i) voluntarily commence any proceeding or file any petition
seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar law now
or hereafter in effect, (ii) consent to the institution of, or fail to contest in a timely and appropriate manner, any proceeding or petition
described in clause (g) of this Article, (iii) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator
or similar official for any Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary or for a substantial part of its assets, (iv) file an answer admitting the
material allegations of a petition filed against it in any such proceeding, (v) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or (vi) take
any action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

(6] any Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary shall become unable, admit in writing its inability or fail generally to
pay its debts as they become due;

)] one or more final judgments for the payment of money in an aggregate amount in excess of $50,000,000 (to the
extent not covered by independent third-party insurance as to which the insurer does not dispute coverage) shall be rendered against the
Company or any Subsidiary and (i) the same shall remain undischarged for a period of ten (10) consecutive days during which execution
shall not be effectively stayed by reason or pending appeal or otherwise, or (ii) any action shall be legally taken by a judgment creditor to
attach or levy upon any assets of the Company or any Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment;
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(k) an ERISA Event shall have occurred that, when taken together with all other ERISA Events that have occurred,
could reasonably be expected to result in liability of the Company and its Subsidiaries in an aggregate amount exceeding $50,000,000 from
and after the Effective Date;

()] a Change in Control shall occur; or

(m) any material provisions of any Loan Document, at any time after its execution and delivery and for any reason other
than as expressly permitted hereunder or satisfaction in full of all the Obligations, shall cease to be in full force and effect; or any Borrower
or any other Person shall contest in any manner the validity or enforceability of any material provision of any Loan Document; or any
Borrower shall deny that it has any or further liability or obligation under any material provisions of any Loan Document, or shall purport to
revoke, terminate or rescind any material provision of any Loan Document;

then, and in every such event (other than an event with respect to any Borrower described in clause (g) or (h) of this Article), and at any time
thereafter during the continuance of such event, the Administrative Agent may with the consent of the Required Lenders, and shall at the
written request of the Required Lenders, by notice to the Company, take either or both of the following actions, at the same or different times:
(i) terminate the Commitments (including the Swingline Commitments and the Letter of Credit Commitments), and thereupon the
Commitments shall terminate immediately, and (ii) declare the Loans then outstanding to be due and payable in whole (or in part, in which
case any principal not so declared to be due and payable may thereafter be declared to be due and payable), and thereupon the principal of the
Loans so declared to be due and payable, together with accrued interest thereon and all fees and other Obligations of the Borrowers accrued
hereunder, shall become due and payable immediately, without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are
hereby waived by the Borrowers; and (iii) require cash collateral for the LC Exposure in accordance with Section 2.06(j) hereof; and in case
of any event with respect to any Borrower described in clause (g) or (h) of this Article, the Commitments shall automatically terminate and
the principal of the Loans then outstanding and cash collateral for the LC Exposure, together with accrued interest thereon and all fees and
other Obligations of the Borrowers accrued hereunder, shall automatically become due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or
other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby waived by the Borrowers.

ARTICLE VIII
The Administrative Agent

Each of the Lenders and the Issuing Banks hereby irrevocably appoints the Administrative Agent as its agent and authorizes the
Administrative Agent to take such actions on its behalf and to exercise such powers as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms
hereof, together with such actions and powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. The provisions of this Article are solely for the benefit of
the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, and neither the Company nor any other Borrower shall have rights as a third party beneficiary of
any of such provisions. It is understood and agreed that the use of the term “agent” as used herein or in any other Loan Documents (or any
similar term) with reference to the Administrative Agent is not intended to connote any fiduciary or other implied (or express) obligations
arising under agency doctrine of any applicable law. Instead, such term is used as a matter of market custom, and is intended to create or
reflect only an administrative relationship between independent contracting parties.

Any Person serving as the Administrative Agent hereunder shall have the same rights and powers in its capacity as a Lender as any
other Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent, and such Person and its Affiliates may accept

deposits from, lend money to and
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generally engage in any kind of business with the Company or any Subsidiary or other Affiliate thereof as if it were not the Administrative
Agent hereunder.

The Administrative Agent shall not have any duties or obligations except those expressly set forth herein. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, (a) the Administrative Agent shall not be subject to any fiduciary or other implied duties, regardless of whether a
Default has occurred and is continuing, (b) the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to take any discretionary action or exercise any
discretionary powers, except discretionary rights and powers expressly contemplated hereby that the Administrative Agent is required to
exercise in writing as directed by the Required Lenders (or such other number or percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the
circumstances as provided in Section 10.02), and (c) except as expressly set forth herein, the Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to
disclose, and shall not be liable for the failure to disclose, any information relating to the Company or any Subsidiary that is communicated to
or obtained by the Person serving as Administrative Agent or any of its Affiliates in any capacity. The Administrative Agent shall not be
liable for any action taken or not taken by it with the consent or at the request of the Required Lenders (or such other number or percentage
of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the circumstances as provided in Section 10.02) or in the absence of its own gross negligence or
willful misconduct as determined by a final nonappealable judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction. The Administrative Agent shall be
deemed not to have knowledge of any Default or Event of Default unless and until written notice thereof is given to the Administrative Agent
by the Company or a Lender, and the Administrative Agent shall not be responsible for or have any duty to ascertain or inquire into (i) any
statement, warranty or representation made in or in connection with any Loan Document, (ii) the contents of any certificate, report or other
document delivered under any Loan Document or in connection therewith, (iii) the performance or observance of any of the covenants,
agreements or other terms or conditions set forth in any Loan Document or the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default, (iv) the
validity, enforceability, effectiveness or genuineness of any Loan Document or any other agreement, instrument or document (including, for
the avoidance of doubt, in connection with the Administrative Agent’s reliance on any Electronic Signature transmitted by telecopy, emailed
pdf, or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page), or (v) the satisfaction of any condition set
forth in Article IV or elsewhere herein, other than to confirm receipt of items expressly required to be delivered to the Administrative Agent.

The Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not incur any liability for relying upon, any notice, request,
certificate, consent, statement, instrument, document or other writing believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or sent by the
proper Person. The Administrative Agent also may rely upon any statement made to it orally or by telephone and believed by it to be made
by the proper Person, and shall not incur any liability for relying thereon. The Administrative Agent may consult with legal counsel (who
may be counsel for the Borrowers), independent accountants and other experts selected by it, and shall not be liable for any action taken or
not taken by it in accordance with the advice of any such counsel, accountants or experts.

The Administrative Agent may perform any and all its duties and exercise its rights and powers by or through any one or more sub-
agents appointed by the Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent may perform any and all its duties and
exercise its rights and powers through their respective Related Parties. The exculpatory provisions of the preceding paragraphs shall apply to
any such sub-agent and to the Related Parties of the Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent, and shall apply to their respective
activities in connection with the syndication of the credit facilities provided for herein as well as activities as Administrative Agent.

Subject to the appointment and acceptance of a successor Administrative Agent as provided in this paragraph, the Administrative
Agent may resign at any time by notifying the Lenders, the Issuing Bank and the Company. Upon any such resignation, the Required
Lenders shall have the right, in consultation with
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the Company, to appoint a successor. If no successor shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders and shall have accepted such
appointment within thirty (30) days after the retiring Administrative Agent gives notice of its resignation, then the retiring Administrative
Agent may, on behalf of the Lenders and the Issuing Bank, appoint a successor Administrative Agent which shall be a bank with an office in
New York, New York, or an Affiliate of any such bank. Upon the acceptance of its appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a
successor, such successor shall succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the retiring Administrative
Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent shall be discharged from its duties and obligations hereunder. The fees payable by the Company
to a successor Administrative Agent shall be the same as those payable to its predecessor unless otherwise agreed between the Company and
such successor. After the Administrative Agent’s resignation hereunder, the provisions of this Article and Section 10.03 shall continue in
effect for the benefit of such retiring Administrative Agent, its sub agents and their respective Related Parties in respect of any actions taken
or omitted to be taken by any of them while it was acting as Administrative Agent.

Each Lender and each Issuing Bank represents and warrants that (i) the Loan Documents set forth the terms of a commercial
lending facility, (ii) it is engaged in making, acquiring or holding commercial loans and in providing other facilities set forth herein as may
be applicable to such Lender or such Issuing Bank, in each case in the ordinary course of business, and not for the purpose of purchasing,
acquiring or holding any other type of financial instrument (and each Lender and each Issuing Bank agrees not to assert a claim in
contravention of the foregoing), (iii) it has, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, any Arranger, any Co-
Sustainability Structuring Agent, any Syndication Agent, any Co-Documentation Agent or any other Lender or other Issuing Bank, or any of
the Related Parties of any of the foregoing, and based on such documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own credit
analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement as a Lender, and to make, acquire or hold Loans hereunder and (iv) it is sophisticated with
respect to decisions to make, acquire and/or hold commercial loans and to provide other facilities set forth herein, as may be applicable to
such Lender or such Issuing Bank, and either it, or the Person exercising discretion in making its decision to make, acquire and/or hold such
commercial loans or to provide such other facilities, is experienced in making, acquiring or holding such commercial loans or providing such
other facilities. Each Lender and each Issuing Bank also acknowledges that it will, independently and without reliance upon the
Administrative Agent, any Arranger, any Co-Sustainability Structuring Agent, any Syndication Agent, any Co-Documentation Agent or any
other Lender or other Issuing Bank, or any of the Related Parties of any of the foregoing, and based on such documents and information
(which may contain material, non-public information within the meaning of the United States securities laws concerning the Company and its
Affiliates) as it shall from time to time deem appropriate, continue to make its own decisions in taking or not taking action under or based
upon this Agreement, any other Loan Document or any related agreement or any document furnished hereunder or thereunder. Each Lender
and each Issuing Bank also acknowledges and agrees that (a) none of the Administrative Agent, any Arranger or any Co-Sustainability
Structuring Agent acting in such capacities have made any assurances as to (i) whether the credit facility evidenced by this Agreement (the
“Facility”) meets such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s criteria or expectations with regard to environmental impact and sustainability
performance, (ii) whether any characteristics of the Facility, including the characteristics of the relevant key performance indicators to which
the Company will link a potential margin step-up or step-down, including their environmental and sustainability criteria, meet any industry
standards for sustainability-linked credit facilities and (b) such Lender and such Issuing Bank has performed its own independent
investigation and analysis of the Facility and whether the Facility meets its own criteria or expectations with regard to environmental impact
and/or sustainability performance.

None of any Syndication Agent, any Co-Documentation Agent, any Arranger or any Co-Sustainability Structuring Agent shall have
obligations or duties whatsoever in such capacity under this Agreement or any other Loan Document and shall incur no liability hereunder or

thereunder in such capacity, but all such persons shall have the benefit of the indemnities provided for hereunder.
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Each party to this Agreement agrees that neither the Administrative Agent nor any Co-Sustainability Structuring Agent shall have
any responsibility for (or liability in respect of) reviewing, auditing or otherwise evaluating any calculation by the Company of any
Sustainability Fee Adjustment or any Sustainability Margin Adjustment (or any of the data or computations that are part of or related to any
such calculation) set forth in any Pricing Certificate (and the Administrative Agent may rely conclusively on any such certificate, without
further inquiry).

Each Lender, by delivering its signature page to this Agreement on the Effective Date, or delivering its signature page to an
Assignment and Assumption or any other Loan Document pursuant to which it shall become a Lender hereunder, shall be deemed to have
acknowledged receipt of, and consented to and approved, each Loan Document and each other document required to be delivered to, or be
approved by or satisfactory to, the Administrative Agent or the Lenders on the Effective Date.

ARTICLE IX
Guaranty

In order to induce the Lenders to extend credit to the Designated Borrowers hereunder, the Company hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally guarantees, as a primary obligor and not merely as a surety, the payment when and as due of the Obligations of the
Designated Borrowers. The Company further agrees that the due and punctual payment of such Obligations may be extended or renewed, in
whole or in part, without notice to or further assent from it, and that it will remain bound upon its guarantee hereunder notwithstanding any
such extension or renewal of any such Obligation.

The Company waives presentment to, demand of payment from and protest to any Designated Borrower of any of the Obligations,
and also waives notice of acceptance of its obligations and notice of protest for nonpayment. The obligations of the Company hereunder
shall not be affected by (a) the failure of any Credit Party to assert any claim or demand or to enforce any right or remedy against any
Borrower under the provisions of any Loan Document or otherwise, (b) any extension or renewal of any of the Obligations, (c) any
rescission, waiver, amendment or modification of, or release from, any of the terms or provisions of any Loan Document or any other
agreement, (d) any default, failure or delay, willful or otherwise, in the performance of any of the Obligations, (e) any amendment or waiver
of any of the Obligations, (f) any law or regulation of any jurisdiction or any other event affecting any term of the Obligations, or (g) to the
fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any other act, omission or delay to do any other act which may or might in any manner or to any
extent vary the risk of the Company or otherwise operate as a discharge of a guarantor as a matter of law or equity or which would impair or
eliminate any right of the Company to subrogation.

The Company further agrees that its agreement hereunder constitutes a guarantee of payment when due (whether or not any
bankruptcy or similar proceeding shall have stayed the accrual or collection of any of the Obligations or operated as a discharge thereof) and
not merely of collection, and, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, waives any right to require that any resort be had by any
Credit Party to any balance of any deposit account or credit on the books of any Credit Party in favor of any Borrower or any other Person.

The obligations of the Company hereunder shall not be subject to any reduction, limitation, impairment or termination for any
reason (other than the indefeasible payment in full of all the Obligations), and shall not be subject to any defense or set-off, counterclaim,
recoupment or termination whatsoever, by reason of the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any of the Obligations, any impossibility
in the performance of any of the Obligations or otherwise (other than for the indefeasible payment in full of all the Obligations), in each case,
to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.
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The Company further agrees that its obligations hereunder shall continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at
any time payment, or any part thereof, of any Obligation is rescinded or must otherwise be restored by any Credit Party upon the bankruptcy
or reorganization of any Borrower or otherwise.

In furtherance of the foregoing and not in limitation of any other right which any Credit Party may have at law or in equity against
the Company by virtue hereof, upon the failure of any Designated Borrower to pay any Obligation when and as the same shall become due,
whether at maturity, by acceleration, after notice of prepayment or otherwise, the Company hereby promises to and will, upon receipt of
written demand by any Credit Party, forthwith pay, or cause to be paid, to such Credit Party in cash an amount equal to the unpaid principal
amount of such Obligations then due, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon. The Company further agrees that if payment in
respect of any Obligation shall be due in a Foreign Currency and/or at a place of payment other than New York and if, by reason of any
Change in Law, disruption of currency or foreign exchange markets, war or civil disturbance or other event, payment of such Obligation in
such currency or at such place of payment shall be impossible or, in the reasonable judgment of any Credit Party, not consistent with the
protection of its rights or interests, then, at the election of the Administrative Agent, the Company shall make payment of such Obligation in
U.S. Dollars (based upon the Dollar Amount of such Obligation on the date of payment) and/or in New York, and shall indemnify the Credit
Parties against any losses or reasonable out-of-pocket expenses that it shall sustain as a result of such alternative payment.

Upon payment by the Company of any sums as provided above, all rights of the Company against any Designated Borrower arising
as a result thereof by way of right of subrogation or otherwise shall in all respects be subordinated and junior in right of payment to the prior
indefeasible payment in full of all the Obligations.

The parties hereto agree that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, none of the Company’s Subsidiaries shall
be required to provide any guarantee, pledge, or asset support arrangement that would result in any adverse tax consequences due to the
application of Section 956 of the Code.

ARTICLE X

Miscellaneous

SECTION 10.01Notices.

(@) Except in the case of notices and other communications expressly permitted to be given by telephone (and subject

overnight courier service, mailed by certified or registered mail or sent by telecopy, as follows:

@) if to any Borrower, to the Company at Cabot Corporation, Two Seaport Lane, Boston, Massachusetts 02210-
2019, Attention of Steven J. Delahunt (Telecopy No. (617) 342-6208);

(ii) if to the Administrative Agent, (A) in the case of Borrowings denominated in U.S. Dollars, to JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Loan and Agency Services Group, 10 South Dearborn, 7th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60603-2003,
Attention of Joyce King (Telecopy No. (888) 292-9533), (B) in the case of Borrowings denominated in Foreign
Currencies, to J.P. Morgan Europe Limited, 25 Bank Street, Canary
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Wharf, London E14 5JP, United Kingdom, Attention of Loan and Agency, Jacob Sheehan
(Jacob.T.Sheehan@jpmorgan.com) with a copy to loan_and_agency_london@jpmorgan.com and (C) for all
other notices, to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., 8181 Communications Pkwy, Plano, Texas 75042, Attention of
Peter Predun (email: peter.predun@jpmorgan.com);

(iii) if to an Issuing Bank, (A) in the case of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Loan and
Agency Services Group, 10 South Dearborn, 7th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60603-2003, Attention of Debra
Williams (Telecopy No. (312) 385-7098), with a copy to Chicago.lc.agency.activity.team@jpmchase.com, and
(B) in the case of Citibank, N.A., to its address (or telecopy number) set forth in its Administrative
Questionnaire;

@iv) if to a Swingline Lender, to it at (A) in the case of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
Loan and Agency Services Group, 10 South Dearborn, 7th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60603-2003, Attention of
Joyce King (Telecopy No. (888) 292-9533), and (B) in the case of any other Swingline Lender, its address (or
telecopy number) set forth in its Administrative Questionnaire; and

W) if to any other Lender, to it at its address (or telecopy number) set forth in its Administrative Questionnaire.

Notices sent by hand or overnight courier service, or mailed by certified or registered mail, shall be deemed to have been given when
received; notices sent by facsimile shall be deemed to have been given when sent (except that, if not given during normal business hours for
the recipient, shall be deemed to have been given at the opening of business on the next business day for the recipient). Notices delivered

(b)  Notices and other communications to the Lenders and the Issuing Bank hereunder may be delivered or furnished by
using Electronic Systems pursuant to procedures approved by the Administrative Agent; provided that the foregoing shall not apply to notices
pursuant to Article II unless otherwise agreed by the Administrative Agent and the applicable Lender. The Administrative Agent or the
Company may, in its discretion, agree to accept notices and other communications to it hereunder by electronic communications pursuant to
procedures approved by it; provided that approval of such procedures may be limited to particular notices or communications.

Unless the Administrative Agent otherwise prescribes, (i) notices and other communications sent to an e-mail address shall be deemed
received upon the sender’s receipt of an acknowledgement from the intended recipient (such as by the “return receipt requested” function, as
available, return e-mail or other written acknowledgement), and (ii) notices or communications posted to an Internet or intranet website shall
be deemed received upon the deemed receipt by the intended recipient, at its e-mail address as described in the foregoing clause (i), of
notification that such notice or communication is available and identifying the website address therefor; provided that, for both clauses (i)
and (ii) above, if such notice, email or other communication is not sent during the normal business hours of the recipient, such notice or
communication shall be deemed to have been sent at the opening of business on the next business day for the recipient.

(c)  Any party hereto may change its address or telecopy number for notices and other communications hereunder by
notice to the other parties hereto.

(d)  Posting of Communications.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Each Borrower agrees that the Administrative Agent may, but shall not be obligated to, make Communications
(as defined below) available to the Issuing Bank and the Lenders by posting the Communications on Debt
Domain, Intralinks, Syndtrak, ClearPar or a substantially similar Electronic System chosen by the Administrative
Agent to be its electronic transmission system (the “Platform”).

Although the Platform and its primary web portal are secured with generally-applicable security procedures and
policies implemented or modified by the Administrative Agent from time to time (including, as of the Effective
Date, a user ID/password authorization system) and the Platform is secured through a per-deal authorization
method whereby each user may access the Platform only on a deal-by-deal basis, each of the Lenders, the Issuing
Banks and the Borrowers acknowledges and agrees that the distribution of material through an electronic
medium is not necessarily secure, that the Administrative Agent is not responsible for approving or vetting the
representatives or contacts of any Lender that are added to the Platform, and that there may be confidentiality
and other risks associated with such distribution. Each of the Lenders, the Issuing Banks and the Borrowers
hereby approves distribution of the Communications through the Platform and understands and assumes the risks
of such distribution.

The Platform and the Communications are provided “as is” and “as available.” The Agent Parties (as defined
below) do not warrant the accuracy or completeness of the Communications, or the adequacy of the Platform and
expressly disclaim liability for errors or omissions in the Platform and the Communications. No warranty of any
kind, express, implied or statutory, including any warranty of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose,
non-infringement of third-party rights or freedom from viruses or other code defects, is made by any Agent Party
in connection with the Communications or any Electronic System. In no event shall the Administrative Agent,
any Arranger, any Co-Sustainability Structuring Agent or any of their respective Related Parties (collectively, the
“Agent Parties”) have any liability to the Borrowers, any Lender, the Issuing Bank or any other Person or entity
for damages of any kind, including direct or indirect, special, incidental or consequential damages, losses or
expenses (whether in tort, contract or otherwise) arising out of any Borrower’s or the Administrative Agent’s
transmission of communications through the internet or the Platform. “Communications” means, collectively,
any notice, demand, communication, information, document or other material provided by or on behalf of any
Borrower pursuant to any Loan Document or the transactions contemplated therein which is distributed by the
Administrative Agent, any Lender or any Issuing Bank by means of electronic communications pursuant to this
Section, including through the Platform.

Each Lender and each Issuing Bank agrees that notice to it (as provided in the next sentence) specifying that
Communications have been posted to the Platform shall constitute effective delivery of the Communications to
such Lender for purposes of the Loan Documents. Each Lender and each Issuing Bank agrees (i) to notify the
Administrative Agent in writing (which could be in the form of electronic communication) from time to time of
such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s (as applicable) email address to which the foregoing notice may be sent by
electronic transmission and (ii) that the foregoing notice may be sent to such email address.
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V) Each of the Lenders, the Issuing Banks and the Borrowers agrees that the Administrative Agent may, but (except
as may be required by applicable law) shall not be obligated to, store the Communications on the Platform in
accordance with the Administrative Agent’s generally applicable document retention procedures and policies.

(vi) Nothing herein shall prejudice the right of the Administrative Agent, any Lender or any Issuing Bank to give any
notice or other communication pursuant to any Loan Document in any other manner specified in such Loan
Document.

SECTION 10.02Waivers; Amendments.

(@)  No failure or delay by any Credit Party in exercising any right or power hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof,
nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right or power, or any abandonment or discontinuance of steps to enforce such a right or
power, preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or power. The rights and remedies of the Credit
Parties hereunder are cumulative and are not exclusive of any rights or remedies that they would otherwise have. No waiver of any provision
of this Agreement or consent to any departure by any Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be permitted
given. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the making of a Loan or issuance of a Letter of Credit shall not be construed as a
waiver of any Default, regardless of whether any Credit Party may have had notice or knowledge of such Default at the time.

(b)  Subject to Section 10.02(c), Section 10.02(d) and Section 10.02(e) below and except as provided in Section 2.21
with respect to an Incremental Term Loan Amendment or as provided in Section 2.24 with respect to an extension of the Maturity Date or as
provided in Section 2.14(b); and Section 2.14(c)-and-Seetion—2-14(e);, neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be waived,
amended or modified except pursuant to an agreement or agreements in writing entered into by the Borrowers and the Required Lenders or
by the Borrowers and the Administrative Agent with the consent of the Required Lenders; provided that no such agreement shall (i) increase
the Commitment of any Lender without the written consent of such Lender (it being understood and agreed that a waiver of any condition
precedent set forth in Section 4.02 or of any Default is not considered an increase in Commitments of any Lender), (ii) reduce the principal
amount of any Loan or LC Disbursement or reduce the rate of interest thereon, or reduce any fees payable hereunder, without the written
consent of each Lender affected thereby, provided, however, that only the consent of the Required Lenders shall be necessary to amend the
provisions with respect to the application of default rate interest described in Section 2.13(d) and the last paragraph of Article VII or waive
any obligation of any Borrower to pay interest or fees at such default rate, (iii) postpone the scheduled date of payment of the principal
amount of any Loan or LC Disbursement, or any interest thereon, or any fees payable hereunder, or reduce the amount of, waive or excuse
any such payment (in each case excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, mandatory prepayments under Section 2.11(c)), or postpone the
scheduled date of expiration of any Commitment, without the written consent of each Lender affected thereby, (iv) change Section 2.09(c) or
Section 2.18(b) or (c) in a manner that would alter the ratable reduction of Commitments or the pro rata sharing of payments required
thereby, without the written consent of each Lender, (v) release the Company from its obligations under the Loan Documents without the
written consent of each Lender, (vi) change any of the provisions of this Section or the definition of “Required Lenders” or any other
provision hereof specifying the number or percentage of Lenders required to waive, amend or modify any rights hereunder or make any
determination or grant any consent hereunder, without the written consent of each Lender (it being understood that, solely with the consent of
the parties to an Incremental Term Loan Amendment, Incremental Term Loans may be included in the determination of Required Lenders on
substantially the same basis as the Commitments and the Revolving Loans are included on the Effective
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Date), (vii) change any of the provisions of Section 2.23; or (viii) change the definition of “Agreed Currencies” without the written consent
of each Lender; provided further that no such agreement shall amend, modify or otherwise affect the rights or duties of the Administrative
Agent, the Issuing Bank or the Swingline Lenders hereunder without the prior written consent of the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank
or the Swingline Lenders, as the case may be.

(c)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement and any other Loan Document may be amended (or amended and
restated) with the written consent of the Required Lenders, the Administrative Agent and the Borrowers (x) to add one or more credit
facilities (in addition to the Incremental Term Loans pursuant to an Incremental Term Loan Amendment) to this Agreement and to permit
extensions of credit from time to time outstanding thereunder and the accrued interest and fees in respect thereof to share ratably in the
benefits of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents with the Revolving Loans, Incremental Term Loans and the accrued interest and
fees in respect thereof and (y) to include appropriately the Lenders holding such credit facilities in any determination of the Required Lenders
and Lenders.

(d) If, in connection with any proposed amendment, waiver or consent requiring the consent of “each Lender” or “each
Lender affected thereby,” the consent of the Required Lenders is obtained, but the consent of other necessary Lenders is not obtained (any
such Lender whose consent is necessary but not obtained being referred to herein as a “Non-Consenting Lender”), then the Company may
elect to replace a Non-Consenting Lender as a Lender party to this Agreement, provided that, concurrently with such replacement, (i) another
bank or other entity which is reasonably satisfactory to the Company and the Administrative Agent shall agree, as of such date, to purchase
for cash the Loans and other Obligations due to the Non-Consenting Lender pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption and to become a
Lender for all purposes under this Agreement and to assume all obligations of the Non-Consenting Lender to be terminated as of such date
and to comply with the requirements of clause (b) of Section 10.04, (ii) each Borrower shall pay to such Non-Consenting Lender in same day
funds on the day of such replacement (1) all interest, fees and other amounts then accrued but unpaid to such Non-Consenting Lender by such
Borrower hereunder to and including the date of termination, including without limitation payments due to such Non-Consenting Lender
under Sections 2.15 and 2.17, and (2) an amount, if any, equal to the payment which would have been due to such Lender on the day of such
replacement under Section 2.16 had the Loans of such Non-Consenting Lender been prepaid on such date rather than sold to the replacement
Lender and (iii) such Non-Consenting Lender shall have received the outstanding principal amount of its Loans and participations in LC
Disbursements. Each party hereto agrees that (i) an assignment required pursuant to this clause (d) may be effected pursuant to an
Assignment and Assumption executed by the Company, the Administrative Agent and the assignee (or, to the extent applicable, an agreement
incorporating an Assignment and Assumption by reference pursuant to a Platform as to which the Administrative Agent and such parties are
participants), and (ii) the Lender required to make such assignment need not be a party thereto in order for such assignment to be effective
and shall be deemed to have consented to and be bound by the terms thereof; provided that, following the effectiveness of any such
assignment, the other parties to such assignment agree to execute and deliver such documents necessary to evidence such assignment as
reasonably requested by the applicable Lender; provided that any such documents shall be without recourse to or warranty by the parties
thereto.

(e) If the Administrative Agent and the Company acting together identify any ambiguity, omission, mistake,
typographical error or other defect in any provision of this Agreement or any other Loan Document, then the Administrative Agent and the
Company shall be permitted to amend, modify or supplement such provision to cure such ambiguity, omission, mistake, typographical error
or other defect, and such amendment shall become effective without any further action or consent of any other party to this Agreement. If the
Administrative Agent and the Company make or implement any such amendment, modification or supplement to any Loan Document, the
Administrative Agent agrees (without limiting or affecting the validity of any such amendment, modification or supplement) to give prompt
notice thereof
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to the Lenders including (if appropriate) a copy of such Loan Document as so amended, modified or supplemented.

(@) The Company shall pay (i) all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Administrative Agent, the
Arrangers and their respective Affiliates, including the reasonable fees, charges and disbursements of counsel for the Administrative Agent, in
connection with the syndication of the credit facilities provided for herein, the preparation and administration of the Loan Documents and
any amendments or waivers of the provisions hereof or thereof (whether or not the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby shall be
consummated), (ii) all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by any Issuing Bank in connection with the issuance, amendment, renewal
or extension of any Letter of Credit or any demand for payment thereunder and (iii) all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the
Credit Parties, including the reasonable fees, charges and disbursements of one counsel (and one local counsel in each relevant jurisdiction)
for the Administrative Agent and one counsel (and one local counsel in each relevant jurisdiction) for all other Credit Parties, in connection
with the enforcement or protection of their rights in connection with any Loan Document, including their rights under this Section, or in
connection with the Loans made or Letters of Credit issued hereunder, including all such out-of-pocket expenses incurred during any
workout, restructuring or negotiations in respect of such Loans or Letters of Credit.

(b)  The Company shall indemnify each Credit Party, each Arranger, each Co-Sustainability Structuring Agent and each
of its respective Related Parties (each such Person being called an “Indemnitee”) against, and hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any and
all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related expenses, including the fees, charges and disbursements of any counsel for any Indemnitee,
incurred by or asserted against any Indemnitee arising out of, in connection with, or as a result of (i) the execution or delivery of the Loan
Documents or any agreement or instrument contemplated thereby, the performance by the parties to the Loan Documents of their respective
obligations thereunder or the consummation of the Transactions or any other transactions contemplated hereby, (i) any Loan or Letter of
Credit or the use of the proceeds therefrom (including any refusal by the Issuing Bank to honor a demand for payment under a Letter of
Credit if the documents presented in connection with such demand do not strictly comply with the terms of such Letter of Credit), (iii) any
actual or alleged presence or release of Hazardous Materials on or from any property owned or operated by the Company or any Subsidiary,
or any Environmental Liability related in any way to the Company or any Subsidiary, or (iv) any actual or prospective claim, litigation,
investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, whether or not such claim, litigation, investigation or proceeding is brought by
any Borrower or its equity holders, Affiliates, creditors or any other third Person and whether based on contract, tort or any other theory and
regardless of whether any Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such indemnity shall not, as to any Indemnitee, be available to the
extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or related expenses (x) are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction by final and
nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee, (y) are determined by a court
of competent jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the breach by such Indemnitee of its funding obligations
hereunder, to the extent caused by the inability of such Indemnitee to satisfy such funding obligations because of its status as a Defaulting
Lender under clause (d) of the definition thereof, or (z) result from a claim brought by any Borrower against such Indemnitee for breach in
bad faith of such Indemnitee’s obligations under any Loan Document, if such Borrower has obtained a final and nonappealable judgment in
its favor on such claim as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. This Section 10.03(b) shall not apply with respect to Taxes other
than any Taxes that represent losses, claims or damages arising from any non-Tax claim.

(c)  To the extent that the Company fails to pay any amount required to be paid by it to the Administrative Agent, the
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Section, each Lender severally agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank or the Swingline Lenders, as the case may be,
such Lender’s Applicable Percentage (determined as of the time that the applicable unreimbursed expense or indemnity payment is sought) of
such unpaid amount; provided that the unreimbursed expense or indemnified loss, claim, damage, liability or related expense, as the case may
be, was incurred by or asserted against the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank or the Swingline Lenders in their capacity as such.

(d) To the extent permitted by applicable law, no party hereto shall assert, and each party hereto hereby waives, any
claim against any other party hereto, on any theory of liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages (as opposed to direct
or actual damages) arising out of, in connection with, or as a result of, any Loan Document or any agreement or instrument contemplated
hereby, the Transactions, any Loan or Letter of Credit or the use of the proceeds thereof; provided, that nothing in this clause (d) shall relieve
the Company of any obligation it may have to indemnify an Indemnitee against special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages asserted
against such Indemnitee by a third party.

(e)  All amounts due under this Section shall be payable promptly after written demand therefor.
SECTION 10.04Successors and Assigns.

(@) The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns permitted hereby (including any Affiliate of the Issuing Bank that issues any Letter of Credit), except that
(i) no Borrower may assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of each Lender
(and any attempted assignment or transfer by any Borrower without such consent shall be null and void) and (ii) no Lender may assign or
otherwise transfer its rights or obligations hereunder except in accordance with this Section. Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or
implied, shall be construed to confer upon any Person (other than the parties hereto, their respective successors and assigns permitted hereby
Section) and, to the extent expressly contemplated hereby, the Related Parties of each of the Credit Parties) any legal or equitable right,
remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement.

(b) (i) Subject to the conditions set forth in paragraph (b)(ii) below, any Lender may assign to one or more Persons
(other than an Ineligible Assignee) all or a portion of its rights and obligations under the Loan Documents (including all or a portion of its
Commitment, participations in Letters of Credit and the Loans at the time owing to it) with the prior written consent (such consent not to be

unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) of:

(A) the Company, provided that, the Company shall be deemed to have consented to an assignment
unless it shall have objected thereto by written notice to the Administrative Agent within five (5) Business Days after
having received notice thereof; provided further that no consent of the Company shall be required for an assignment to a
Lender (other than a Defaulting Lender), an Affiliate of a Lender (other than a Defaulting Lender), an Approved Fund or,
if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, any other assignee;

(B) the Administrative Agent, provided that no consent of the Administrative Agent shall be required
for an assignment to a Lender (other than a Defaulting Lender) or an Affiliate of a Lender (other than a Defaulting
Lender);

(C)  the Issuing Bank; and
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(D)  each Swingline Lender.
(ii) Assignments shall be subject to the following additional conditions:

(A) except in the case of an assignment to a Lender or an Affiliate of a Lender or an Approved Fund,
or an assignment of the entire remaining amount of the assigning Lender’s Commitment or Loans of any Class, the
amount of the Commitment or Loans of the assigning Lender subject to each such assignment (determined as of the date
the Assignment and Assumption with respect to such assignment is delivered to the Administrative Agent) shall not be less
than $5,000,000 unless each of the Company and the Administrative Agent otherwise consent, provided that no such
consent of the Company shall be required if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing;

(B)  each partial assignment shall be made as an assignment of a proportionate part of all the
assigning Lender’s rights and obligations under the Loan Documents;

(C)  the parties to each assignment shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent (x) an
Assignment and Assumption or (y) to the extent applicable, an agreement incorporating an Assignment and Assumption by
reference pursuant to a Platform as to which the Administrative Agent and the parties to the Assignment and Assumption
are participants), together with a processing and recordation fee of $3,500;

(D) the assignee shall deliver to the Administrative Agent, withholding agent and/or Company, as
applicable, any documentation required by Sections 2.17(f) and (g); and

(E)  the assignee, if it shall not be a Lender, shall deliver to the Administrative Agent an
Administrative Questionnaire in which the assignee designates one or more credit contacts to whom all syndicate-level
information (which may contain material non-public information about the Borrowers and their Related Parties or their
respective securities) will be made available and who may receive such information in accordance with the assignee’s
compliance procedures and applicable laws, including Federal and state securities laws.

(iii) Subject to acceptance and recording thereof pursuant to paragraph (b)(iv) of this Section, from and after the
effective date specified in each Assignment and Assumption the assignee thereunder shall be a party hereto and,
to the extent of the interest assigned by such Assignment and Assumption, have the rights and obligations of a
Lender under this Agreement, and the assigning Lender thereunder shall, to the extent of the interest assigned by
such Assignment and Assumption, be released from its obligations under the Loan Documents (and, in the case
of an Assignment and Assumption covering all of the assigning Lender’s rights and obligations under the Loan
Documents, such Lender shall cease to be a party thereto but shall continue to be entitled to the benefits of
Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03). Any assignment or transfer by a Lender of rights or obligations under the
Loan Documents that does not comply with this Section 10.04 shall be treated for purposes of this Agreement as

Section.
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@iv) The Administrative Agent, acting solely for this purpose as a non-fiduciary agent of the Borrowers, shall
maintain at one of its offices a copy of each Assignment and Assumption delivered to it and a register for the
recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders, and the Commitment of, and principal amount (and stated
interest) of the Loans and LC Disbursements owing to, each Lender pursuant to the terms hereof from time to
time (the “Register”). The entries in the Register shall be conclusive absent manifest error, and the Borrowers
and the Credit Parties shall treat each Person whose name is recorded in the Register pursuant to the terms hereof
as a Lender hereunder for all purposes of this Agreement, notwithstanding notice to the contrary. The Register
shall be available for inspection by the Company, the Issuing Bank and any Lender, at any reasonable time and
from time to time upon reasonable prior notice.

) Upon its receipt of a duly completed Assignment and Assumption executed by an assigning Lender and an
assignee (or, to the extent applicable, an agreement incorporating an Assignment and Assumption by reference
pursuant to a Platform as to which the Administrative Agent and the parties to the Assignment and Assumption
are participants), any documentation required by Sections 2.17(f) and (g), the assignee’s completed
Administrative Questionnaire (unless the assignee shall already be a Lender hereunder), the processing and

(e), 2.07(b), 2.18(d), or 9.03(c), the Administrative Agent shall have no obligation to accept such Assignment and
Assumption and record the information therein in the Register unless and until such payment shall have been
made in full, together with all accrued interest thereon. No assignment shall be effective for purposes of this
Agreement unless it has been recorded in the Register as provided in this paragraph.

(c) Any Lender may, without the consent of any Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank or the
Swingline Lenders, sell participations to one or more banks or other entities (a “Participant”), other than an Ineligible Assignee, in all or a
portion of such Lender’s rights and obligations under the Loan Documents (including all or a portion of its Commitment and the Loans
owing to it); provided that (A) such Lender’s obligations under the Loan Documents shall remain unchanged, (B) such Lender shall remain
solely responsible to the other parties hereto for the performance of such obligations and (C) the Borrowers, the Administrative Agent, the
Issuing Bank and the other Lenders shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lender in connection with such Lender’s rights and
obligations under the Loan Documents. Any agreement or instrument pursuant to which a Lender sells such a participation shall provide that
such Lender shall retain the sole right to enforce the Loan Documents and to approve any amendment, modification or waiver of any
provision of the Loan Documents; provided that such agreement or instrument may provide that such Lender will not, without the consent of
the Participant, agree to any amendment, modification or waiver described in the first proviso to Section 10.02(b) that affects such
Participant. Each Borrower agrees that each Participant shall be entitled to the benefits of Sections 2.15, 2.16 and 2.17 (subject to the
requirements and limitations therein, including the requirements under Sections 2.17(f) and (g) (it being understood that the documentation
required under Section 2.17(f) and (g) shall be delivered to the Participant) to the same extent as if it were a Lender and had acquired its
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(B) shall not be entitled to receive any greater payment under Sections 2.15 or 2.17, with respect to any participation, than its participating
Lender would have been entitled to receive, except to the extent such entitlement to receive a greater payment results from a Change in Law
that occurs after the Participant acquired the applicable participation. Each Lender that sells a participation agrees, at the Company’s request
and expense, to use reasonable efforts to cooperate with the Company to effectuate the provisions of Section 2.19(b) with respect to any
Participant. To the extent permitted by law, each Participant also shall be entitled to the benefits of Section 10.08 as though it were a Lender,
provided such Participant agrees to be subject to Section 2.18(c) as though it were a Lender. Each Lender that sells a participation shall,
acting solely for this purpose as a non-fiduciary agent of the Borrowers, maintain a register on which it enters the name and address of each
Participant and the principal amounts (and stated interest) of each Participant’s interest in the Loans or other obligations under the Loan
Documents (the “Participant Register”); provided that no Lender shall have any obligation to disclose all or any portion of the Participant
Register (including the identity of any Participant or any information relating to a Participant’s interest in any Commitments, Loans, Letters
of Credit or its other obligations under any Loan Document) to any Person except to the extent that such disclosure is necessary to establish
that such Commitment, Loan, Letter of Credit or other obligation is in registered form under Section 5f.103-1(c) of the United States
Treasury Regulations and Proposed Treasury Regulations Section 1.163-5(b) (or, in each case, any amended or successor version). The
entries in the Participant Register shall be conclusive absent manifest error, and such Lender shall treat each Person whose name is recorded
in the Participant Register as the owner of such participation for all purposes of this Agreement notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.
For the avoidance of doubt, the Administrative Agent (in its capacity as Administrative Agent) shall have no responsibility for maintaining a
Participant Register.

(d)  Any Lender may at any time pledge or assign a security interest in all or any portion of its rights under the Loan
Documents to secure obligations of such Lender, including any pledge or assignment to secure obligations to a Federal Reserve Bank, and
this Section shall not apply to any such pledge or assignment of a security interest; provided that no such pledge or assignment of a security
interest shall release a Lender from any of its obligations hereunder or substitute any such pledgee or assignee for such Lender as a party
hereto.

SECTION 10.05Survival. All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made by the Borrowers herein and in the
certificates or other instruments delivered in connection with or pursuant to any Loan Document shall be considered to have been relied upon
by the other parties hereto and shall survive the execution and delivery of the Loan Documents and the making of any Loans and issuance of
any Letters of Credit, regardless of any investigation made by any such other party or on its behalf and notwithstanding that any Credit Party
may have had notice or knowledge of any Default or incorrect representation or warranty at the time any credit is extended hereunder, and
shall continue in full force and effect as long as the principal of or any accrued interest on any Loan or any fee or any other amount payable
under this Agreement is outstanding and unpaid or any Letter of Credit is outstanding and so long as the Commitments have not expired or
terminated. The provisions of Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03 and Article VIII shall survive and remain in full force and effect regardless
of the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, the repayment of the Loans, the expiration, termination, cash collateralization
or other securing of the Letters of Credit, the expiration or termination of the Commitments or the termination of this Agreement or any
provision hereof.

(@)  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (and by different parties hereto on different counterparts), each of
which shall constitute an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute a single contract. This Agreement, the other Loan
Documents and any separate letter agreements with respect to fees payable to the Administrative Agent or the Issuing Bank constitute the
entire contract
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among the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all previous agreements and understandings, oral or written,
relating to the subject matter hereof. Except as provided in Section 4.01, this Agreement shall become effective when it shall have been
executed by the Administrative Agent and when the Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts hereof which, when taken
together, bear the signatures of each of the other parties hereto, and thereafter shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

(b)  Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of (x) this Agreement, (y) any other Loan Document and/or
(z) any document, amendment, approval, consent, information, notice (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any notice delivered pursuant to
Section 10.01), certificate, request, statement, disclosure or authorization related to this Agreement, any other Loan Document and/or the
transactions contemplated hereby and/or thereby (each an “Ancillary Document”) that is an Electronic Signature transmitted by telecopy,
emailed pdf. or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page shall be effective as delivery of a
manually executed counterpart of this Agreement, such other Loan Document or such Ancillary Document, as applicable. The words
“execution,” “signed,” “signature,” “delivery,” and words of like import in or relating to this Agreement, any other Loan Document and/or
any Ancillary Document shall be deemed to include Electronic Signatures, deliveries or the keeping of records in any electronic form
(including deliveries by telecopy, emailed pdf. or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page),
each of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as a manually executed signature, physical delivery thereof or the
use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be, to the extent and as provided for in any applicable law, including the Federal
Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, the New York State Electronic Signatures and Records Act or any similar state
laws based on the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act; provided that, without limiting the foregoing, (i) the Administrative Agent and each
of the Lenders shall be entitled to rely on such Electronic Signature purportedly given by or on behalf of the Borrowers without further
verification thereof and without any obligation to review the appearance or form of any such Electronic Signature and (ii) upon the
reasonable request of the Administrative Agent or any Lender, any Electronic Signature shall be promptly followed by a manually executed
counterpart. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each Borrower hereby (i) agrees that, for all purposes, including without
limitation, in connection with any workout, restructuring, enforcement of remedies, bankruptcy proceedings or litigation among the
Administrative Agent, the Lenders, and the Borrowers, Electronic Signatures transmitted by telecopy, emailed pdf. or any other electronic
means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page and/or any electronic images of this Agreement, any other Loan
Document and/or any Ancillary Document shall have the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as any paper original, (ii) agrees that
the Administrative Agent and each of the Lenders may, at its option, create one or more copies of this Agreement, any other Loan Document
and/or any Ancillary Document in the form of an imaged electronic record in any format, which shall be deemed created in the ordinary
course of such Person’s business, and destroy the original paper document (and all such electronic records shall be considered an original for
all purposes and shall have the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as a paper record), (iii) waives any argument, defense or right to
contest the legal effect, validity or enforceability of this Agreement, any other Loan Document and/or any Ancillary Document based solely
on the lack of paper original copies of this Agreement, such other Loan Document and/or such Ancillary Document, respectively, including
with respect to any signature pages thereto and (iv) waives any claim against the Administrative Agent, any Arranger, any Co-Sustainability
Structuring Agent, any Issuing Bank and any Lender, and any Related Parties of any of the foregoing Persons for any Liabilities arising
solely from the Administrative Agent’s and/or any Lender’s reliance on or use of Electronic Signatures and/or transmissions by telecopy,
emailed pdf. or any other electronic means that reproduces an image of an actual executed signature page, including any Liabilities arising as
a result of the failure of the Borrowers to use any available security measures in connection with the execution, delivery or transmission of
any Electronic Signature.
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SECTION 10.07Severability. Any provision of this Agreement held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall,
as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability without affecting the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof; and the invalidity of a particular provision in a particular jurisdiction shall not invalidate
such provision in any other jurisdiction.

SECTION 10.08Right of Setoff. If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, each Lender and each of its
Affiliates is hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any and all
deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final and in whatever currency denominated) at any time held and other
obligations at any time owing by such Lender or Affiliate to or for the credit or the account of any Borrower against any of and all the
Obligations of such Borrower now or hereafter existing held by such Lender, irrespective of whether or not such Lender shall have made any
demand under this Agreement and although such obligations may be unmatured. The rights of each Lender under this Section are in addition
to other rights and remedies (including other rights of setoff) which such Lender may have.

SECTION 10.09Governing L.aw;_ Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process.
(@)  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the law of the State of New York.

(b)  Each Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, to the nonexclusive
jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of the State of New York sitting in the Borough of Manhattan, and of the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York sitting in the Borough of Manhattan, and any appellate court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or for recognition or enforcement of any judgment, and each of the parties hereto hereby
irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that all claims in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in such New
York State or, to the extent permitted by law, in such Federal court. Each of the parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such action
or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law.
Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any right that any Credit Party may otherwise have to bring any action or proceeding relating to this
Agreement against any Borrower or its properties in the courts of any jurisdiction.

(c)  Each Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives, to the fullest extent it may legally and effectively
do so, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to

extent permitted by law, the defense of an inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such action or proceeding in any such court.

(d) Each party to this Agreement irrevocably consents to service of process in the manner provided for notices in
Section 10.01. Nothing in this Agreement will affect the right of any party to this Agreement to serve process in any other manner permitted
by applicable law.

(e)  Without limiting the foregoing, each Designated Borrower hereby irrevocably designates the Company, at its
address set forth in Section 10.01, as the designee, appointee and agent of such Designated Borrower to receive, for and on behalf of such
Designated Borrower, service of process in such respective jurisdictions in any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement or
any other Loan Document.
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SECTION 10.10WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY). EACH PARTY HERETO (A)
CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR
OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE
FOREGOING WAIVER AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO
ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS
SECTION.

SECTION 10.11Headings. Article and Section headings and the Table of Contents used herein are for convenience of reference
only, are not part of this Agreement and shall not affect the construction of, or be taken into consideration in interpreting, this Agreement.

SECTION 10.12Confidentiality.

(@) Each Credit Party agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the Information (as defined below), except that
Information may be disclosed (i) to its and its Affiliates’ directors, officers, employees and agents, including accountants, legal counsel and
other advisors (it being understood that the Persons to whom such disclosure is made will be informed of the confidential nature of such
Information and instructed to keep such Information confidential), (ii) to the extent requested by any Governmental Authority (including any
self-regulatory authority, such as the National Association of Insurance Commissioners), (iii) to the extent required by applicable laws or
regulations or by any subpoena or similar legal process, (iv) to any other party to this Agreement, (v) in connection with the exercise of any
remedies hereunder or any suit, action or proceeding relating to this Agreement or the enforcement of rights hereunder, (vi) subject to an
agreement containing provisions substantially the same as those of this Section, to (A) any assignee of or Participant in, or any prospective
assignee of or Participant in, any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or (B) any actual or prospective counterparty (or its
advisors) to any swap or derivative transaction relating to any Borrower and its obligations, (vii) with the consent of the Company or (viii) to
the extent such Information (A) becomes publicly available other than as a result of a breach of this Section or (B) becomes available to any
Credit Party on a non-confidential basis from a source other than any Borrower. For the purposes of this Section, “Information” means all
information received from any Borrower relating to such Borrower or its business, other than any such information that is available to any
Credit Party on a non-confidential basis prior to disclosure by such Borrower and other than information pertaining to this Agreement
routinely provided by arrangers to data service providers, including league table providers, that serve the lending industry; provided that, in
the case of information received from such Borrower after the date hereof, such information is clearly identified at the time of delivery as
confidential. Any Person required to maintain the confidentiality of Information as provided in this Section shall be considered to have
complied with its obligation to do so if such Person has exercised the same degree of care to maintain the confidentiality of such Information
as such Person would accord to its own confidential information.

(b) EACH LENDER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN SECTION 10.12(a)
FURNISHED TO IT PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT MAY INCLUDE MATERIAL NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION
CONCERNING THE BORROWERS AND THEIR RELATED PARTIES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE SECURITIES, AND
CONFIRMS THAT IT HAS DEVELOPED COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REGARDING THE USE OF MATERIAL NON-
PUBLIC INFORMATION AND THAT IT WILL HANDLE SUCH MATERIAL NON-PUBLIC
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INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THOSE PROCEDURES AND APPLICABLE LAW, INCLUDING FEDERAL AND
STATE SECURITIES LAWS.

(c) ALL INFORMATION, INCLUDING REQUESTS FOR WAIVERS AND AMENDMENTS, FURNISHED
BY THE BORROWERS OR THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT PURSUANT TO, OR IN THE COURSE OF ADMINISTERING,
THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE SYNDICATE-LEVEL INFORMATION, WHICH MAY CONTAIN MATERIAL NON-PUBLIC
INFORMATION ABOUT THE BORROWERS AND THEIR RELATED PARTIES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE SECURITIES.
ACCORDINGLY, EACH LENDER REPRESENTS TO THE BORROWERS AND THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT THAT IT
HAS IDENTIFIED IN ITS ADMINISTRATIVE QUESTIONNAIRE A CREDIT CONTACT WHO MAY RECEIVE
INFORMATION THAT MAY CONTAIN MATERIAL NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS
COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES AND APPLICABLE LAW.

SECTION 10.13Interest Rate Limitation. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if at any time the interest rate applicable
to any Loan, together with all fees, charges and other amounts which are treated as interest on such Loan under applicable law (collectively
the “Charges”), shall exceed the maximum lawful rate (the “Maximum Rate”) which may be contracted for, charged, taken, received or
reserved by the Lender holding such Loan in accordance with applicable law, the rate of interest payable in respect of such Loan hereunder,
together with all Charges payable in respect thereof, shall be limited to the Maximum Rate and, to the extent lawful, the interest and Charges
that would have been payable in respect of such Loan but were not payable as a result of the operation of this Section shall be cumulated and
the interest and Charges payable to such Lender in respect of other Loans or periods shall be increased (but not above the Maximum Rate
therefor) until such cumulated amount, together with interest thereon at the applicable Overnight Rate to the date of repayment, shall have
been received by such Lender.

SECTION 10.14USA PATRIOT Act. Each Lender that is subject to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L.
107-56 (signed into law October 26, 2001)) (the “Act”) and the requirements of the Beneficial Ownership Regulation hereby notifies the
Borrowers that pursuant to the requirements of the Act and the Beneficial Ownership Regulation, it is required to obtain, verify and record
information that identifies the Borrowers, which information includes the names, addresses and tax identification numbers of the Borrowers
and other information that will allow such Lender to identify the Borrowers in accordance with the Act and the Beneficial Ownership
Regulation and other applicable “know your customer” and anti-money laundering rules and regulations.

SECTION 10.15No Advisory or Fiduciary Responsibility.

(@) Each Borrower acknowledges and agrees, and acknowledges its Subsidiaries’ understanding, that no Credit Party
will have any obligations except those obligations expressly set forth herein and in the other Loan Documents and each Credit Party is acting
solely in the capacity of an arm’s length contractual counterparty to such Borrower with respect to the Loan Documents and the transactions
contemplated herein and therein and not as a financial advisor or a fiduciary to, or an agent of, such Borrower or any other person. Each
Borrower agrees that it will not assert any claim against any Credit Party based on an alleged breach of fiduciary duty by such Credit Party in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. Additionally, each Borrower acknowledges and agrees that no
Credit Party is advising such Borrower as to any legal, tax, investment, accounting, regulatory or any other matters in any jurisdiction. Each
Borrower shall consult with its own advisors concerning such matters and shall be responsible for making its own independent investigation
and appraisal of the transactions contemplated herein or in the other Loan Documents, and the Credit Parties shall have no responsibility or
liability to any Borrower with respect thereto.
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(b) Each Borrower further acknowledges and agrees, and acknowledges its Subsidiaries’ understanding, that each
Credit Party, together with its Affiliates, is a full service securities or banking firm engaged in securities trading and brokerage activities as
well as providing investment banking and other financial services. In the ordinary course of business, any Credit Party may provide
investment banking and other financial services to, and/or acquire, hold or sell, for its own accounts and the accounts of customers, equity,
debt and other securities and financial instruments (including bank loans and other obligations) of, such Borrower, its Subsidiaries and other
companies with which such Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries may have commercial or other relationships. With respect to any securities
and/or financial instruments so held by any Credit Party or any of its customers, all rights in respect of such securities and financial
instruments, including any voting rights, will be exercised by the holder of the rights, in its sole discretion.

(c)  In addition, each Borrower acknowledges and agrees, and acknowledges its Subsidiaries’ understanding, that each
Credit Party and its Affiliates may be providing debt financing, equity capital or other services (including financial advisory services) to other
companies in respect of which such Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries may have conflicting interests regarding the transactions described
herein and otherwise. No Credit Party will use confidential information obtained from any Borrower by virtue of the transactions
contemplated by the Loan Documents or its other relationships with such Borrower in connection with the performance by such Credit Party
of services for other companies, and no Credit Party will furnish any such information to other companies. Each Borrower also
acknowledges that no Credit Party has any obligation to use in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Loan Documents, or to
furnish to such Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, confidential information obtained from other companies.

SECTION 10.16Acknowledgement and Consent to Bail-In of Affected Financial Institutions. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in any Loan Document or in any other agreement, arrangement or understanding among any such parties, each party hereto
acknowledges that any liability of any Affected Financial Institution arising under any Loan Document may be subject to the Write-Down
and Conversion Powers of the applicable Resolution Authority and agrees and consents to, and acknowledges and agrees to be bound by:

(a)  the application of any Write-Down and Conversion Powers by the applicable Resolution Authority to any such
liabilities arising hereunder which may be payable to it by any party hereto that is an Affected Financial Institution; and

(b) the effects of any Bail-In Action on any such liability, including, if applicable:
@) a reduction in full or in part or cancellation of any such liability;

(ii) a conversion of all, or a portion of, such liability into shares or other instruments of ownership in such Affected
Financial Institution, its parent entity, or a bridge institution that may be issued to it or otherwise conferred on it,
and that such shares or other instruments of ownership will be accepted by it in lieu of any rights with respect to
any such liability under this Agreement or any other Loan Document; or

(iii) the variation of the terms of such liability in connection with the exercise of the Write-Down and Conversion
Powers of the applicable Resolution Authority.

SECTION 10.17Acknowledgement Regarding Any Supported QFCs. To the extent that the Loan Documents provide support,
through a guarantee or otherwise, for Swap Agreements or any other agreement or instrument that is a QFC (such support “QFC Credit
Support” and each such QFC a
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“Supported QFC”), the parties acknowledge and agree as follows with respect to the resolution power of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and Title II of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
(together with the regulations promulgated thereunder, the “U.S. Special Resolution Regimes”) in respect of such Supported QFC and QFC
Credit Support (with the provisions below applicable notwithstanding that the Loan Documents and any Supported QFC may in fact be stated
to be governed by the laws of the State of New York and/or of the United States or any other state of the United States):

In the event a Covered Entity that is party to a Supported QFC (each, a “Covered Party”) becomes subject to a proceeding
under a U.S. Special Resolution Regime, the transfer of such Supported QFC and the benefit of such QFC Credit Support (and any
interest and obligation in or under such Supported QFC and such QFC Credit Support, and any rights in property securing such
Supported QFC or such QFC Credit Support) from such Covered Party will be effective to the same extent as the transfer would be
effective under the U.S.

Special Resolution Regime if the Supported QFC and such QFC Credit Support (and any such interest, obligation and
rights in property) were governed by the laws of the United States or a state of the United States. In the event a Covered Party or a
BHC Act Affiliate of a Covered Party becomes subject to a proceeding under a U.S. Special Resolution Regime, Default Rights
under the Loan Documents that might otherwise apply to such Supported QFC or any QFC Credit Support that may be exercised
against such Covered Party are permitted to be exercised to no greater extent than such Default Rights could be exercised under the
U.S. Special Resolution Regime if the Supported QFC and the Loan Documents were governed by the laws of the United States or
a state of the United States. Without limitation of the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that rights and remedies of the parties
with respect to a Defaulting Lender shall in no event affect the rights of any Covered Party with respect to a Supported QFC or any
QFC Credit Support.

SECTION 10.18Certain ERISA Matters. (a) Each Lender (x) represents and warrants, as of the date such Person became a Lender
party hereto, to, and (y) covenants, from the date such Person became a Lender party hereto to the date such Person ceases being a Lender
party hereto, for the benefit of, the Administrative Agent, and each Arranger and their respective Affiliates, and not, for the avoidance of
doubt, to or for the benefit of the Company or any other Borrower, that at least one of the following is and will be true:

@) such Lender is not using “plan assets” (within the meaning of the Plan Asset Regulations) of one or more Benefit
Plans with respect to such Lender’s entrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of the
Loans, the Letters of Credit or the Commitments,

(>ii) the transaction exemption set forth in one or more PTEs, such as PTE 84-14 (a class exemption for certain
transactions determined by independent qualified professional asset managers), PTE 95-60 (a class exemption
for certain transactions involving insurance company general accounts), PTE 90-1 (a class exemption for certain
transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts), PTE 91-38 (a class exemption for certain
transactions involving bank collective investment funds) or PTE 96-23 (a class exemption for certain
transactions determined by in-house asset managers), is applicable with respect to such Lender’s entrance into,
participation in, administration of and performance of the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this
Agreement,
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(iii) (A) such Lender is an investment fund managed by a “Qualified Professional Asset Manager” (within the
meaning of Part VI of PTE 84-14), (B) such Qualified Professional Asset Manager made the investment decision
on behalf of such Lender to enter into, participate in, administer and perform the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the
Commitments and this Agreement, (C) the entrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of
the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement satisfies the requirements of sub-sections
(b) through (g) of Part I of PTE 84-14 and (D) to the best knowledge of such Lender, the requirements of
subsection (a) of Part I of PTE 84-14 are satisfied with respect to such Lender’s entrance into, participation in,
administration of and performance of the Loans, the Letters of Credit, the Commitments and this Agreement, or

@iv) such other representation, warranty and covenant as may be agreed in writing between the Administrative Agent,
in its sole discretion, and such Lender.

(b) In addition, unless sub-clause (i) in the immediately preceding clause (a) is true with respect to a Lender or such
Lender has provided another representation, warranty and covenant as provided in sub-clause (iv) in the immediately preceding clause (a),
such Lender further (x) represents and warrants, as of the date such Person 